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Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
A Delaware Corporation
Maximum Offering Amount: $25,000,000

This is our initial public offering (the “Offering”) of securities of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc, a Delaware corporation (“Atlis” or the “Company”). We are
offering for sale 3,033,981 shares of our Class A Class A common stock, $.0001 par value per share, at $8.24 per share (the “Shares”) on a “best efforts”
basis. This offering will terminate on the earlier of (i) November 30, 2020, subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the sole
discretion of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Maximum Offering is sold; or (iii) when our board of directors elects to terminate the Offering (in
either case, the “Termination Date”). There is no escrow established for this Offering. We will hold closings upon the receipt of investors’ subscriptions
and acceptance of such subscriptions by the Company. If, on the initial closing date, we have sold less than the Maximum Offering, then we may hold one
or more additional closings for additional sales, until the earlier of: (i) the sale of the Maximum Offering or (ii) the Termination Date. There is no aggregate
minimum requirement for the Offering to become effective, therefore, we reserve the right, subject to applicable securities laws, to begin applying “dollar
one” of the proceeds from the Offering towards our business strategy, development expenses, offering expenses and other uses as more specifically set forth
in this offering circular (“Offering Circular”). We expect to commence the sale of the Shares as of the date on which the offering statement, of which this
Offering Circular is a part (the “Offering Statement ”),is qualified by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC” or the
“Commission”). The offering is made in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the federal securities laws provided by Rule 251 of Regulation
A (as promulgated by the SEC in 17 CFR 230.251 et seq. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act” or the “1933 Act”).

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain risks that you should consider
in connection with an investment in Atlis.

THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY
SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF
ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SOLICITATION MATERIALS. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN
INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.




Price to Public Sales Commissions (! Proceeds to the Company @
Per share of Class A common stock $8.24 $0.41 7.83
Maximum Offering $25,000,000 $1,250,000.00 $23,750,000

GENERALLY, NO SALE MAY BE MADE TO YOU IN THIS OFFERING IF THE AGGREGATE PURCHASE PRICE YOU PAY IS MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE GREATER OF YOUR ANNUAL INCOME OR YOUR NET WORTH. DIFFERENT RULES APPLY TO
ACCREDITED INVESTORS AND NON-NATURAL PERSONS. BEFORE MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION THAT YOUR INVESTMENT
DOES NOT EXCEED APPLICABLE THRESHOLDS, WE ENCOURAGE YOU TO REVIEW RULE 251(D)(2)(I)(C) OF REGULATION A.
FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ON INVESTING, WE ENCOURAGE YOU TO REFER TO WWW.INVESTOR.GOV.

(1) Includes up to a maximum of five percent (5%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering for sales commissions. The Company has retained JumpStart
Securities to act as a broker-dealer in this transaction. JumpStart Securities will not receive any finders fees, but will receive a commission/brokerage
fee of $10,000 plus 1.5% of the aggregate amount of gross proceeds from the offering. Additionally, escrow and technology fees for payment
facilitation will equal 3% assuming the offering is completely fulfilled.

(@) Does not include expenses of the Offering, including but not limited to, fees and expenses for marketing and advertising of the Offering, media
expenses, fees for administrative, accounting, audit and legal services, FINRA filing fees, fees for EDGAR document conversion and filing, and
website posting fees, estimated to be as much as $1,000,000.

THE SECURITIES UNDERLYING THIS OFFERING STATEMENT MAY NOT BE SOLD UNTIL QUALIFIED BY THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION. THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL, NOR SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY, ANY
SHARES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK IN ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION IN WHICH SUCH SALE IS PROHIBITED.

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESS INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, AND INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN
THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE “RISK FACTORS” FOR A DISCUSSION
OF CERTAIN RISKS YOU SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE PURCHASING ANY SHARES IN THIS OFFERING.

AN OFFERING STATEMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION A RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE U.S.
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, WHICH WE REFER TO AS THE COMMISSION. INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS
PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR IS SUBJECT TO COMPLETION OR AMENDMENT. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD
NOR MAY OFFERS TO BUY BE ACCEPTED BEFORE THE OFFERING STATEMENT FILED WITH THE COMMISSION IS QUALIFIED.
THIS PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER
TO BUY NOR MAY THERE BE ANY SALES OF THESE SECURITIES IN ANY STATE IN WHICH SUCH OFFER, SOLICITATION OR
SALE WOULD BE UNLAWFUL BEFORE REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY SUCH STATE. WE MAY
ELECT TO SATISFY OUR OBLIGATION TO DELIVER A FINAL OFFERING CIRCULAR BY SENDING YOU A NOTICE WITHIN TWO
(2) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER THE COMPLETION OF OUR SALE TO YOU THAT CONTAINS THE URL WHERE THE FINAL OFFERING
CIRCULAR OR THE OFFERING STATEMENT IN WHICH SUCH FINAL OFFERING CIRCULAR WAS FILED MAY BE OBTAINED.

THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS JUNE 1, 2020.
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We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, our securities only in jurisdictions where such offers and sales are permitted. You should rely only on the
information contained in this Offering Circular. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with any information other than the information contained in
this Offering Circular. The information contained in this Offering Circular is accurate only as of its date, regardless of the time of its delivery or of any sale
or delivery of our securities. Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any sale or delivery of our securities shall, under any circumstances, imply
that there has not been a change in our affairs since the date of this Offering Circular. This Offering Circular will be updated and made available for delivery
to the extent required by the federal securities laws.

Unless otherwise indicated, data contained in this Offering Circular concerning the business of the Company are based on information from various public
sources. Although we believe that these data are generally reliable, such information is inherently imprecise, and our estimates and expectations based on
these data involve a number of assumptions and limitations. As a result, you are cautioned not to give undue weight to such data, estimates or expectations.

In this Offering Circular, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to “Atlis Motor Vehicles,” “Atlis,” “we,” the “Company,” “our,” and “us”
refer to the activities of and the assets and liabilities of the business and operations of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Some of the statements under “Summary,” “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
"Our Business" and elsewhere in this Offering Circular constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to expectations, beliefs,
projections, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar matters that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify forward-
looking statements by terms such as “anticipate”, “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “should,” “will” and
“would” or the negatives of these terms or other comparable terminology.

You should not place undue reliance on forward looking statements. The cautionary statements set forth in this Offering Circular, including in “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere, identify important factors which you should consider in evaluating our forward-looking statements. These factors include, among
other things:

Our ability to effectively execute our business plan, including without limitation our ability to fully develop our XP Platform, XT Pickup Truck,
subscription model, mass production, and respond to the highly competitive and rapidly evolving marketplace and regulatory environment in
which we intend to operate;

Our ability to manage our research, development, expansion, growth and operating expenses;

Our ability to evaluate and measure our business, prospects and performance metrics, and our ability to differentiate our business model and
products;

Our ability to compete, directly and indirectly, and succeed in the highly competitive and evolving electric vehicle industry.
Our ability to respond and adapt to changes in technology and customer behavior; and

Our ability to protect our intellectual property and to develop, maintain and enhance a strong brand.




Although the forward-looking statements in this Offering Circular are based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectations, taking into account all
information currently available to us, we cannot guarantee future transactions, results, performance, achievements or outcomes. No assurance can be made
to any investor by anyone that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements will be attained, or that deviations from them will not be
material and adverse. We undertake no obligation, other than as may be required by law, to re-issue this Offering Circular or otherwise make public
statements updating our forward-looking statements.

[This space intentionally left blank]




OFFERING SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular, but might not contain all of the information that is important to you.
This summary is not complete and does not contain all the information that you should consider before deciding whether to invest in our Class A common
stock. As such, before investing in our Class A common stock, you should read the entire Offering Circular carefully, including the “Risk Factors” section
and our historical financial statements and the notes thereto attached as part of this Offering Circular. For purposes of this Offering Circular, unless
otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references herein to “Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.,” “Atlis,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and
“our” refer to Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Some of the statements in this Offering Circular are forward-looking statements. See the
section entitled “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

The Company

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. was formed as a Delaware corporation on November 9, 2016. Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc is an early-stage development and
manufacturing company of plug in electric trucks. The Company can be best described as a technology development company working toward providing a
Vehicle as a Service platform for electric heavy duty and light duty work vehicles. The company is in the process of developing electrified vehicle,
infrastructure, and software platforms for work fleets. At the core of Atlis Motor Vehicles’ hardware platform will be proprietary battery technology capable
of charging a full-size pickup truck in 15 minutes, and a modular system architecture capable of scaling to meet the specific vehicle or equipment
application needs. We want to build a truck with unprecedented capabilities at a reasonable price. We also want to change the customer experience from
sales, ordering, financing, and delivery to maintenance and service.

Principal Product and its market

e Atlis Motor Vehicles has several pillars of product focus for our business. These pillars are:

e Battery technology. Our goal is to offer a superior battery technology solution that offers unparalleled performance in charging as well as
inclement weather and output performance.

e XP Platform and connected vehicle technology. As we look to the future of electrification, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP Platform aims to provide a
scalable technology solution with a connected cloud, mobile, service, and charging ecosystem that will provide unprecedented workflows and
customer experiences moving forward. This platform of technology will be leveraged to develop new vehicle solutions quickly while minimizing
costs and time The XP technology platform will allow Atlis Motor Vehicles to work quickly with strategic partners looking to develop new vehicle
solutions for niche and mass-market opportunities while leveraging the vast network of capabilities we look to provide.

e Advanced charging stations. The Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station, or AAC, is being designed to boast the highest power
solution to enter the market, a 1.5MW charging station, that's as simple to operate as filling up your gas vehicle today or plugging in a Tesla
vehicle.

e The XT Pickup truck. The XT Pickup truck will be our flagship vehicle product offering. The XT Pickup truck aims to represent every key piece
of technology Atlis Motor Vehicles is developing and how this technology can be utilized to bring capable, non-compromising vehicle solutions
through electrification. The XT Pickup truck will be our market entry solution into the world of work, and is intended to be just the beginning of a
long line of vehicle solutions built on our XP Platform.




How We Will Generate Revenue

Atlis Motor Vehicles is still in the research and development stage and does not currently produce a product for sale. Atlis will soon exit the early stages of
product and company development, whereupon it will produce a working prototype. Atlis has not yet generated any sales of the XT Pickup truck or XP
Platform to date. The Company is still in the development stage, and will be for at least 12-18 more months. We expect to finalize development of the
production model and begin producing trucks for delivery and sale by the end of calendar year 2021.

Atlis Motor Vehicles has received substantial interest in its product via reservations submitted on the Company’s website. The total value of these
reservations, if all such reservations were converted to sales, is over $1.5 billion. This projection was generated by extrapolating the XT Pickup Truck’s
predicted average sales price of $59,968 by the number of electronic reservations made on the Company's website. These reservations are non-binding, non-
deposit, and require no down payment or reservation fee. Atlis has foregone the requirement for a refundable deposit in favor of allowing reservation
holders to become investors in Atlis Motor Vehicles through our Regulation CF offering. This expressed interest should not be taken as a guarantee of sale.

Market

Industry

Pickup trucks have been the top three best-selling vehicles in the US for the past five years. Altogether, including the new and used truck market, vehicle
up-fitter market, and charging opportunity, the total market opportunity for us is north of $241B, and we have already received over $1.5B in reservations.
Currently there are no electric pickup trucks in the market, and Atlis intends to capture the largest market share of the electric work truck market. Our
proprietary battery technology is being designed to allow us to deliver unprecedented range and charge times.

Target market demographics

We’re developing technology that will power work. Our target customers for the Atlis XT are work vehicle fleet owners, and our target customers for the
Atlis XP Platform are work vehicle manufacturers. We intend to add value for customers across multiple target industries, including construction,
agriculture, and logistics.

The Atlis XT pickup truck will be Atlis Motor Vehicles’ flagship product, capable of 500 miles of range, 35,000 lbs. fifth wheel towing capability, and 15
minute charge time from 0-100%. The Atlis XT will be the first application of our core product offering, the Atlis XP Platform, our electric vehicle
technology platform that is currently in development and is being designed for applications with work vehicles: RVs, box trucks, delivery vehicles, tractors,
construction equipment, and beyond. Our modular design will allow the Atlis XP Platform to easily accommodate the sizes, shapes, and use cases of a
variety of different work vehicles.

Volume targets

We will take a strategic approach to scale: first we will bring the XP Platform to market to drive revenue as we work toward the launch of the XT pickup
truck. We are in talks with multiple companies in construction, agriculture, and logistics industries, and we are working to create a proof of concept for one
large logistics company this summer. We will ship them initial trial XP Platforms integrated with their delivery vehicles. For calendar year 2021, our
volume targets are: 1000 XP Platforms and 100 XT Trucks. In calendar year 2022 we’re targeting production of 4,000 XP Platforms and 1,000 XT Trucks.




Geographic sales territory

Ultimately, Atlis is building a technology platform that is intended to add value across the globe, and our long-term vision includes expansion to the rest of
the world. We will begin manufacturing in the USA, and our initial sales focus is in the USA. We’ve also had multiple conversations with a Japanese
logistics company, and the opportunity is large enough to prioritize sales and infrastructure in Japan.

Distribution Channels

Our hardware and services will be conducted online via our website. Fleet and consumer customers will be able to purchase the Atlis XP Platform, Atlis XT
Pickup Truck, and Atlis advanced charging solutions online. Our advanced charging infrastructure will require users to be able to purchase electricity at our
charging stations. This purchase will be conducted through the cloud-based mobile application and website we plan to build.

Growth Strategy

Our strategy for growth is to focus on execution. We are completing the design work to deliver our production prototype in the second half of 2020. From
there, we will stand up production and begin building products. Once we have started production, we plan to leverage influencer marketing and customer
word of mouth to generate additional interest in our products. We will develop a dedicated sales team pursuing larger fleet customers.

Risk Factors

Our business and our ability to execute our business strategy are subject to a number of risks as more fully described in the section titled “Risk Factors.”
These risks include, among others:

- Atlis is a fledgling company without having developed any products in the past

- Uncertainty exists as to whether Atlis will be able to raise sufficient funds to continue developing the XP platform and XT pickup truck
- Future capital raises may dilute current stockholders’ ownership interests

- Atlis will experience losses for the foreseeable future

- Development timelines are at risk of delays outside of Atlis’ control

- Competition will be stiff

- Scaling up manufacturing will be a challenge and fraught with potential pitfalls

- Product recall could cripple growth

- Product liability could result in costly litigation

- We may face regulatory challenges

- We may not be able to successfully manage growth

- We may not be successful in developing an effective direct sales force

- Raising capital may be costly

- Atlis stock is not marketable and initial investors should be aware that the investment is speculative
- Lack of diversification could cause you to lose all or some of your investment if initial products fail
- Our executive officer and executive staff will retain most of Atlis’ voting rights




Corporate Information

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on November 9, 2016. Our Chief Executive Officer, President and
Secretary has not been in bankruptcy, receivership or any similar proceeding. Our principal executive offices are located at 1828 North Higley Road, Mesa,
AZ 85205. Our website address is www.atlismotorvehicles.com. Information on our web site is not part of this Offering Circular.

REGULATION A+
We are offering our Class A common stock pursuant to recently adopted rules by the Securities and Exchange Commission mandated under the Jumpstart
Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. These offering rules are often referred to as “Regulation A+.” We are relying upon “Tier 2” of

Regulation A+, which allows us to offer up to $50 million in a 12-month period.

In accordance with the requirements of Tier 2 of Regulation A+, we will be required to publicly file annual, semiannual, and current event reports with the
Securities and Exchange Commission after the qualification of the offering statement of which this Offering Circular forms a part.

The Offering
Securities Offered: 3,033,981 shares of Class A common stock at $8.24 per share
Class A common stock Outstanding:
Prior to the offering 17,151,882 shares
|After the offering 20,185,863shares

(Assuming the sale of all shares offered)

Use of Proceeds:
If we sell all of the Shares being offered, our net proceeds (after our estimated
commissions, if any, but excluding our estimated Offering expenses) will be
approximately Twenty Million Dollars ($23,7500,000). We will use these net
proceeds for our product research and development, expenses associated with the
marketing and advertising of the Offering, working capital and general corporate
purposes, and such other purposes described in the “Use of Proceeds” section of

this Offering Circular.
Risk Factors: Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. See
“Risk Factors.”
No Market: There is no market for our Class A common stock and there can be no assurance

that a market will develop.




RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the
other information included in this Offering Circular, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition or results of operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our shares of Class A common stock could decline and you may
lose all or part of your investment. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of forward-looking statements
and the significance of such statements in the context of this Offering Circular.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY

ATLIS IS A FLEDGLING COMPANY

Atlis Motor Vehicles is a relatively new company that was incorporated on November 9th 2016. Atlis has no history, no clients, no revenues. If you are
investing in this company, it's because you think the Atlis electric pickup truck is a good idea, that Atlis will be able to successfully market, manufacture
and sell its electric pickup truck, and that it will be priced appropriately to sell sufficient units to make Atlis profitable. We have yet to fully develop or sell
any electric vehicles. As of right now, aim to develop an electric truck that has no commercial contemporaries. In the meantime, other companies could
develop successful alternatives. We have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We also have no history in the automotive industry. Although Atlis has taken significant steps in building brand awareness, Atlis is a new company and
currently has no experience developing or selling motor vehicles. As such, it is possible that Atlis Motor Vehicles’ lack of history in the industry may
impact our brand, business, financial goals, operation performance, and products.

We should be considered a “Development Stage Company,” and our operations will be subject to all the risks inherent in the establishment of a new
business enterprise, including, but not limited to, hurdles or barriers to the implementation of our business plans. Further, because there is no history of
operations there is also no operating history from which to evaluate our executive management’s ability to manage our business and operations and achieve
our goals or the likely performance of the Company. Prospective investors should also consider the fact that our management team has not previously
developed or managed similar companies. No assurances can be given that we will be able to achieve or sustain profitability.

UNCERTAINTY EXISTS AS TO WHETHER OUR BUSINESS WILL HAVE SUFFICIENT FUNDS OVER THE NEXT 12 MONTHS,
THEREBY MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN ATLIS SPECULATIVE.

We require additional financing to complete development and marketing of our XP Platform until the vehicle is in production and sufficient revenue can be
generated for us to be self-sustaining. Our management projects that in order to effectively bring the products to market, that it will require approximately
$20,000,000.00 over the next 12 months to cover costs involved in completing the prototype and beginning to develop a supply chain. In the event that we
are unable to generate sufficient revenues, and before all of the funds now held by us and obtained by us through this offering are expended, an investment
made in Atlis may become worthless.
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If we cannot continue to raise further rounds of funding, we cannot succeed. Atlis will require additional rounds of funding to complete development and
begin shipments of the Atlis XT pickup truck. If Atlis is unable to secure funding, we will be unable to succeed in our goal of developing the world’s best
pickup truck. Atlis will require additional capital infusion to sustain operations. We predict that we will need to raise an additional $418 million dollars to
finalize the prototype, obtain regulatory approvals, scale production, and continue lean production and sales for the following 4 years to our point of
predicted profitability. If we are unable to raise adequate financing, we will be unable to sustain operations for a prolonged period of time.

We expect to significantly increase our spending to advance the development of our products and services and launch and commercialize the products for
commercial sale. We will require additional capital for the further development and commercialization of our products, as well as to fund our other
operating expenses and capital expenditures. We cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are unable to
raise additional capital in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development or
commercialization of one or more of our products and services. We may also seek collaborators for the products at an earlier stage than otherwise would be
desirable or on terms that are less favorable than might otherwise be available. Any of these events could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and prospects.

The expected gross offering proceeds of a maximum of $19,000,000 to $20,000,000 may never be realized. While we believe that such proceeds will
capitalize and sustain us to allow for the continued development and implementation of our business plan, if only a fraction of this Offering is sold, or if
certain assumptions contained in the business plans prove to be incorrect, we may have inadequate funds to fully develop our business. Although we believe
that the proceeds from this Offering will be sufficient to help sustain our development process and business operations, there is no guarantee that we will
raise all the funds needed to adequately fund our business plan.

WE NEED TO RAISE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL TO MEET OUR FUTURE BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS AND SUCH CAPITAL RAISING
MAY BE COSTLY OR DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN AND COULD DILUTE CURRENT STOCKHOLDERS’ OWNERSHIP INTERESTS.

We are seeking to raise $25,000,000 at $8.24 per share in this offering on a best efforts basis to implement our plan and meet our capital needs for the next
12 months of operations. Additionally, we may sell equity shares in a private placement pursuant to Regulation D. We will use the proceeds from these
offerings to complete a working prototype and prepare for production. See the section entitled “Use of Proceeds” for a description of the manner in which
we plan to use proceeds from this offering.

We have relied upon cash from financing activities and in the future, we expect to rely on the proceeds from this Offering, future debt and/or equity
financings, and we hope to rely on revenues generated from operations to fund all of the cash requirements of our activities. However, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to generate any significant cash from our operating activities in the future. Future financings may not be available on a timely
basis, in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any debt financing or other financing of securities senior to the Class A common stock
will likely include financial and other covenants that will restrict our flexibility.

Any failure to comply with these covenants would have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations
because we could lose our existing sources of funding and impair our ability to secure new sources of funding. However, there can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to generate any investor interest in its securities. If we do not obtain additional financing, our prototype will never be completed, in
which case you would likely lose the entirety of your investment in us.
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At this time, we have not secured or identified any additional financing. We do not have any firm commitments or other identified sources of additional
capital from third parties or from our officer and director or from other shareholders. There can be no assurance that additional capital will be available to
us, or that, if available, it will be on terms satisfactory to us. Any additional financing will involve dilution to our existing shareholders. If we do not obtain
additional capital on terms satisfactory to us, or at all, it may cause us to delay, curtail, scale back or forgo some or all of our product development and/or
business operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. In such a scenario, investors would be at risk to lose
all or a part of any investment in our Company.

WE HAVE LOSSES WHICH WE EXPECT TO CONTINUE INTO THE FUTURE. THERE IS NO ASSURANCE OUR FUTURE
OPERATIONS WILL RESULT IN A PROFIT. IF WE CANNOT GENERATE SUFFICIENT REVENUES TO OPERATE PROFITABLY OR
WE ARE UNABLE TO RAISE ENOUGH ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR OPERATIONS, THE SHAREHOLDERS WILL EXPERIENCE A
DECREASE IN VALUE AND WE MAY HAVE TO CEASE OPERATIONS.

We are a development-stage technology company that began operating and commenced research and development activities in 2016. As a recently formed
development-stage company, we are subject to all of the risks and uncertainties of a new business, including the risk that we may never develop, complete
development or market any of our products or services and we may never generate product or services related revenues. Accordingly, we have only a
limited history upon which an evaluation of our prospects and future performance can be made. We only have one product currently under development,
which will require further development, significant marketing efforts and substantial investment before it and any successors could provide us with any
revenue. As a result, if we do not successfully develop, market and commercialize our XT pickup truck on the XP platform, we will be unable to generate
any revenue for many years, if at all. If we are unable to generate revenue, we will not become profitable, and we may be unable to continue our operations.
Furthermore, our proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. The likelihood of our success must be considered in
light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the expansion of a business, operation in a
competitive industry, and the continued development of advertising, promotions and a corresponding customer base. There can be no assurances that we
will operate profitably.

We expect to incur operating losses in future periods due to the high cost associated with developing an electric vehicle from the ground up. We cannot be
sure that we will be successful in generating revenues in the near future and in the event we are unable to generate sufficient revenues or raise additional
funds we will analyze all avenues of business opportunities. Management may consider a merger, acquisition, joint venture, strategic alliance, a roll-up, or
other business combination to increase business and potentially increase the liquidity of the Company. Such a business combination may ultimately fail,
decreasing the liquidity of the Company and shareholder value or cause us to cease operations, and investors would be at risk to lose all or part of their
investment in us.

WE DO NOT EXPECT TO GENERATE REVENUE IN THE NEXT 24 MONTHS

We currently do not have a product ready for sale to customers. To date, we have funded our operations from sales of our securities and contributions from
our founders. We have not received, and do not expect to receive any revenues from the sale of our vehicles for at least 24 months. Such a time estimate
may be adversely affected by a number of factors, including the inability prototype to operate properly, mechanical hurdles, our lack of capital resources to
commence an effective marketing campaign, the success of this Offering, competition and other factors, some of which may be beyond our control. We may
never succeed in these activities, and may not generate sufficient revenues to continue our business operations or achieve profitability.
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COMPETITION MAY CROWD THE MARKET

We face significant barriers in development of a competitive EV in a crowded market space. Atlis Motor Vehicles faces significant technical, resource, and
financial barriers in development of a battery electric vehicle intended to compete in a crowded pickup truck space. Incumbents, also known as legacy
manufacturers, have substantially deeper pockets, larger pools of resources, and more significant manufacturing experience. Atlis will need to contract with
development partners who may have existing relationships with incumbent manufacturers, these relationships may pose a significant risk in our ability to
successfully develop this program. The Atlis product is differentiated from all currently announced electric trucks in that it will be a full-size, heavy-duty
truck with capabilities that match or exceed internal combustion trucks of the same size. However, we have a lot of work to do before we reach production.
There is a chance that other competitors may release similar full-sized electric trucks before we exit the research and development phase. If several
competitors release full-sized electric trucks before Atlis, it will be exceedingly difficult to penetrate the market.

There are several potential competitors who are better positioned than we are to take the majority of the market. We will compete with larger, established
Automotive Manufacturers who currently have products on the markets and/or various respective product development programs. They have much better
financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier
than us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or
that the plug in electric pickup truck developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be assumed that
that competition will intensify. Atlis Motor Vehicles' success depends on our ability to continuously raise funding, keep cost under control, and properly
execute in our delivery of the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station.

In order to be competitive, we must have the ability to respond promptly and efficiently to the ever-changing marketplace. We must establish our name as a
reliable and constant source for professional conversion and transmission services. Any significant increase in competitors or competitors with better, more

efficient services could make it more difficult for us to gain market share or establish and generate revenues. We may not be able to compete effectively on
these or other factors.

RELIABLE SUPPLIERS MAY BE HARD TO FIND

As Atlis does not currently manufacture any products, we will be starting from scratch in creating and developing supplier relationships. Currently, most
major suppliers have agreements with legacy manufacturers that far exceed the scale and volume at which Atlis will operate. While we intend to make as
many components in-house as possible, we will have to rely on third party suppliers to manufacture some of our components and specifications. Without
having already developed these relationships, we may encounter challenges in ensuring we receive the quality parts we need at the price and volume
required. These supplier challenges may result in unintended delays and/or product inferiority.
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SCALING UP MANUFACTURING WILL BE A CHALLENGE

Electric Vehicle Technology is changing rapidly There is significant development and investment into electric vehicle technology being made today. Such
rapidly changing technology conditions may adversely affect Atlis Motor Vehicles' ability to continuously remain a market leader, provide superior product
performance, and an outstanding customer experience. If we are unable to control the cost of development, cost of manufacturing, and cost of operations,
Atlis may be substantially affected. If we are unable to maintain substantially lower cost of manufacturing, developing, design, distributing, and
maintaining our vehicles, we may incur significant cost increases which can be material substantial to the operation of our business. We have made, and
will continue to make substantial investments into the development of Atlis Motor Vehicles, such investments may have unforeseen costs that we have been
unable to accurately predict, which may significantly impact our ability to execute our business as planned. Atlis will face significant costs in development
and purchasing of materials required to build the XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station through external partnerships. These
purchases are subject to conditions outside the control of Atlis Motor Vehicles and as such, these conditions may substantially affect our business, product,
brand, operational, and financial goals.

Atlis will continuously and diligently work towards obtaining multiple sources of materials and components to mitigate risk in our supply chain. However,
it is possible that specific components or solutions required to manufacture an electric vehicle may be subject to intellectual property, material availability,
or expertise owned solely by a single supplier. A condition such as a single source supplier may hinder our ability to secure the cost, schedule, and long
term viability of Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, or Advanced Charging Station. We may be inherently subjected to conditions
which permit only a single source supplier for specific components necessary to develop and manufacture the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, XP
truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station, magnifying this risk.

UNFORESEEN FACTORS MAY ADJUST TIMELINES

Any valuation of Atlis at this stage is pure speculation. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ business success, timeline, and milestones are estimations. Atlis’ production
projections, sales volume, and cost models are only estimates. Atlis produced these valuations based on existing business models of successful and
unsuccessful efforts of other companies within the technology and automotive industries. All such projections and timeline estimations may change as Atlis
continues in development of a plug in electric vehicle, charging station and manufacturing facilities.

We are currently in the development phase of the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck and have not yet started manufacturing and sales. Cost overruns,
scheduling delays, and failure to meet product performance goals may be caused by, but not limited to, unidentified technical hurdles, delays in material
shipments, and regulatory hurdles. We may experience delays in design and manufacturing of the Atlis XT pickup truck We may experience significant
delays in bringing the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck to market due to design considerations, technical challenges, material availability,
manufacturing complications, and regulatory considerations. Such delays could materially damage our brand, business, financial goals, operation results,
and product.

A PRODUCT RECALL COULD CRIPPLE GROWTH

If the Atlis Motor Vehicles' XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, or Advanced Charging Station are unable to meet performance and quality criteria, we may
be required to perform product recalls to address said concerns. A product recall can have substantial cost related to performing such corrective actions.
Although Atlis will perform significant internal testing and qualifications, as well as external qualifications through approved 3rd party vendors against
industry standards and regulatory requirements, there will be unperceived conditions which may negatively impact the customer or Company expected
performance and safety of our vehicles. As such, Atlis may perform a corrective action such as a recall of products, mandatory repairs of defective
components, or litigation settlements which can materially affect our financial goals, operation results, brand, business, and products. If we are unable to
provide significant charging stations, our business success may be substantially affected.
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A significant portion of our success is our ability to deploy the appropriate number of charging stations, in strategic locations relative to our customers and
customer behaviors. If Atlis is unable to deploy charging stations to specified locations, this may negatively affect our brand, business, financial goals,
operational results, and product success in the market. As such, to meet said availability requirements, Atlis will require significant capital investments to
rapidly deploy said Advanced Charging Stations, as well as development of relationships with third party members who can assist in deployment of said
charging stations. If we are unable to address service requirements, we may negatively affect our customer experience. As such, Atlis Motor Vehicles will
require service capabilities to be established in locations within close proximity to our XT pickup truck and XP truck platform owners. Atlis Motor
Vehicles' ability to engage with 3rd party operating service stations, as well as our ability to establish company operated locations, will be critical to the
success of developing a positive customer experience.

PRODUCT LIABILITY

While Atlis will work diligently to meet all company and regulatory safety requirements, there is a chance that a component catastrophically fails. It is
possible that through unknown circumstances or conditions out of our control, some person is injured by our product. The risk of product liability claims
and adverse publicity can always occur when manufacturing, developing, marketing, and selling a brand new product that was developed from scratch. If a
customer or other party were to be injured by an Atlis product, the ensuing litigation costs and reputational damage could be irreparable.

WE MAY FACE REGULATORY CHALLENGES

We are substantially at risk of unfavorable governmental regulations. Motor vehicles are subject to substantial regulation under international, federal, state,
local and foreign laws regarding safety, performance, and import regulations. Our vehicles will need to comply with many governmental standards and
regulations relating to vehicle safety, fuel economy, emissions control, noise control, and vehicle recycling, among others. Compliance with all of these
requirements may delay our production launch, thereby adversely affecting our business and financial condition.

Additionally, there is a chance that some economically advantageous governmental incentives or subsidies will be removed or repealed before our product
reaches production. Such changes to the governmental regulatory structure could have an adverse effect on profitability.

IF WE CANNOT CONTINUE TO INNOVATE, OUR REVENUE GROWTH RATE AND PROFITS MAY BE REDUCED

To successfully develop and grow our business, we must develop, distribute and commercialize our products, secure strategic partnerships with various
businesses, and bring our products to market on schedule and in a profitable manner, as well as spend time and resources on the development of future
products, services and business strategies that are complementary to our initial electric vehicle and business plan. Delays or failures in launch of the XT
pickup could hurt our ability to meet our growth objectives, which may affect our financial projections and may impact our stock price. Moreover, if we are
unable to continually develop and evolve our business strategy and launch additional products and services in the future, our business will be entirely
dependent on the success of the XT Pickup, which could hurt our ability to meet our objectives. We cannot guarantee that the XT pickup will be able to
achieve our expansion goals alone. Our ability to expand successfully will depend on a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control.
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WE MAY HAVE DIFFICULTY PROTECTING OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our pending patents and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective once patent reviews are completed. We anticipate patent review
completion and patents issued in calendar year 2021. For any company creating brand new products, it is imperative to protect the proprietary intellectual
property to maintain a competitive advantage. There is no doubt that a significant portion of Atlis’s current value depends on the strength and
imperviousness of these pending patents. We intend to continue to file additional patent applications and build our intellectual property portfolio as we
discover new technologies related to the development of plug in electric vehicles.

We believe that intellectual property will be critical to our success, and that we will rely on trademark, copyright and patent law, trade secret protection and
confidentiality and/or license agreements to protect our proprietary rights. If we are not successful in protecting our intellectual property, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. While we believe that we will be issued trademarks, patents and
pending patent applications help to protect our business, there can be no assurance that our operations do not, or will not, infringe valid, enforceable third-
party patents of third parties or that competitors will not devise new methods of competing with us that are not covered by our anticipated patent
applications. There can also be no assurance that our patent applications will be approved, that any patents issued will adequately protect our intellectual
property, or that such patents will not be challenged by third parties or found to be invalid or unenforceable or that our patents will be effective in
preventing third parties from utilizing a copycat business model to offer the same service in one or more categories. Moreover, it is intended that we will
rely on intellectual property and technology developed or licensed by third parties, and we may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and
technologies from these third parties at all or on reasonable terms. Effective trademark, service mark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be
available in every country in which our intended services will be provided. The laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent
as the laws of the U.S. and, therefore, in certain jurisdictions, we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology adequately against unauthorized third
party copying or use, which could adversely affect our competitive position. We expect to license in the future, certain proprietary rights, such as
trademarks or copyrighted material, to third parties. These licensees may take actions that might diminish the value of our proprietary rights or harm our
reputation, even if we have agreements prohibiting such activity. Also to the extent third parties are obligated to indemnify us for breaches of our
intellectual property rights, these third parties may be unable to meet these obligations. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

The U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of procedural, documentary, fee
payment and other provisions during the patent process. There are situations in which noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or
patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, competitors might be able to enter the
market earlier than would otherwise have been the case, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PROTECTION IS COSTLY.

Filing, prosecuting and defending patents related to our products and software throughout the world is prohibitively expensive. Competitors may use our
technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained patent protection to develop their own products and, further, may export otherwise infringing
products to territories where we have patent protection, but where enforcement is not as strong as that in the U.S. These products may compete with our
products in jurisdictions where we do not have any issued or licensed patents and our patent claims or other intellectual property rights may not be effective
or sufficient to prevent them from so competing. Many companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending intellectual property
rights in foreign jurisdictions. The legal systems of certain countries, particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of patents and
other intellectual property protection, particularly those relating to technology, which could make it difficult for us to stop the infringement of our patents or
marketing of competing products in violation of our proprietary rights generally. Proceedings to enforce our patent rights in foreign jurisdictions could
result in substantial cost and divert our efforts and attention from other aspects of our business.

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENTS MAY NOT ADEQUATELY PREVENT DISCLOSURE OF TRADE SECRETS AND OTHER
PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We anticipate that a substantial amount of our processes and technologies will be protected by trade secret laws. In order to protect these technologies and
processes, we intend to rely in part on confidentiality agreements with our employees, licensees, independent contractors and other advisors. These
agreements may not effectively prevent disclosure of confidential information, including trade secrets, and may not provide an adequate remedy in the
event of unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. In addition, others may independently discover our trade secrets and proprietary information,
and in such cases, we could not assert any trade secret rights against such parties. To the extent that our employees, contractors or other third parties with
which we do business use intellectual property owned by others in their work for us, disputes may arise as to the rights in related or resulting know-how and
inventions. Laws regarding trade secret rights in certain markets in which we operate may afford little or no protection to our trade secrets. The loss of trade
secret protection could make it easier for third parties to compete with our products and related future products and services by copying functionality,
among other things. In addition, any changes in, or unexpected interpretations of, the trade secret and other intellectual property laws in any country in
which we operate may compromise our ability to enforce our trade secret and intellectual property rights. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be
necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could adversely affect our
business, revenue, reputation and competitive position.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL AND STATE PRIVACY LAWS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS

A variety of federal and state laws and regulations govern the collection, use, retention, sharing and security of consumer data. The existing privacy-related
laws and regulations are evolving and subject to potentially differing interpretations. In addition, various federal, state and foreign legislative and regulatory
bodies may expand current or enact new laws regarding privacy matters. Several internet companies have recently incurred penalties for failing to abide by
the representations made in their privacy policies and practices. In addition, several states have adopted legislation that requires businesses to implement
and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices to protect sensitive personal information and to provide notice to consumers in the event of a
security breach. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with our posted privacy policies or with any data-related consent orders, Federal Trade
Commission requirements or orders or other federal, state or international privacy or consumer protection-related laws, regulations or industry self-
regulatory principles could result in claims, proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or others or other liabilities, which could adversely
affect our business. In addition, a failure or perceived failure to comply with industry standards or with our own privacy policies and practices could
adversely affect our business. Federal and state governmental authorities continue to evaluate the privacy implications inherent in the use of third-party web
“cookies” for behavioral advertising. The regulation of these cookies and other current online advertising practices could adversely affect our business
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WE ARE DEPENDENT UPON OUR CEO FOR HIS SERVICES AND ANY INTERRUPTION IN HIS ABILITY TO PROVIDE HIS SERVICES
COULD CAUSE US TO CEASE OPERATIONS.

The loss of the services of our CEO, Mr. Mark Hanchett, could have a material adverse effect on us. We do not maintain any key man life insurance on Mr.
Hanchett. The loss of Mr. Hanchett’s services could cause investors to lose all or a part of their investment. Our future success will also depend on our
ability to attract, retain and motivate other highly skilled employees. Competition for personnel in our industry is intense. We may not be able to retain our
key employees or attract, assimilate or retain other highly qualified employees in the future. If we do not succeed in attracting new personnel or retaining
and motivating our current personnel, our business will be adversely affected.

WE HAVE NO LONG-TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS IN PLACE WITH OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As of the date of this Offering Circular we only have short-term, interim employment arrangements with our senior executive officers. We are negotiating
compensation packages and the terms of long-term formal employment agreements with our executive officers and we anticipate any such employment
agreement entered into with our executive officers will be on terms no less favorable to our executive officers than the terms of their respective interim
arrangement. There is a risk that the Company and any one or more of our executive officers will not reach an agreement with respect to their employment
agreements, in part because we expect their compensation packages will be comprised of cash compensation, equity compensation (e.g. stock options,
warrants or stock grants), as well as standard benefits and other terms customary for executive officers of similar experience and tenure. Although we
intend to finalize negotiations with respect to these employment agreements with each of our executive officers in the near future, if we fail to reach
mutually satisfactory agreements in this regard, any one or more of such persons may terminate their association with the Company. Additionally, we are
also highly dependent on certain consultants and service providers, including our development partners and our marketing and advertising service
providers, some of which are affiliates of the Company and our officers and directors. The loss of any one or more of these experienced executives,
consultants, service providers and/or development partners would have a material and adverse effect on our Company and our business prospects

WE ARE SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCED BY OUR OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

In the aggregate, ownership of the Company’s shares of common stock by management and affiliated parties, assuming the sale of the Maximum Offering,
will represent approximately 62.4% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock. These shareholders, if acting together, will be able to
significantly influence all matters requiring approval by shareholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or other business
combinations transactions. Please see “Security Ownership of Management & Certain Security Holders” below for more information.

Our future performance is dependent on the ability to retain key personnel. The Company’s performance is substantially dependent on the performance of

senior management. The loss of the services of any of its executive officers or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, results of operations and financial condition.
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OUR BUSINESS COULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY A DOWNTURN IN THE ECONOMY AND/OR MANUFACTURING.

We are dependent upon the continued demand for electric vehicles, making our business susceptible to a downturn in the economy or in manufacturing. For
example, a decrease in the number of individuals investing their money in the equity markets could result in a decrease in the number of companies
deciding to become or remain public. This downturn could have a material adverse effect on our business, our ability to raise funds, our production, and
ultimately our overall financial condition.

OUR BUSINESS WOULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO CREATE AND DEVELOP AN EFFECTIVE DIRECT
SALES FORCE.

Because a significant component of our growth strategy relates to increasing our revenues through sales to companies and individuals subject to the SEC
disclosure and reporting requirements, our business would be adversely affected if we were unable to develop and maintain an effective sales force to
market our products directly to consumers. Further complicating this matter, many states have prohibited direct to consumer vehicle sales. Atlis will need to
be effective at converting online interest into hard sales. We currently do not employ any sales staff to sell our products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR GROWTH.

We could experience growth over a short period of time, which could put a significant strain on our managerial, operational and financial resources. We
must implement and constantly improve our certification processes and hire, train and manage qualified personnel to manage such growth. We have limited
resources and may be unable to manage our growth. Our business strategy is based on the assumption that our customer base, geographic coverage and
service offerings will increase. If this occurs it will place a significant strain on our managerial, operational, and financial resources. If we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, our business will be adversely affected. As part of this growth, we may have to implement new operational, manufacturing,
and financial systems and procedures and controls to expand, train and manage our employees, especially in the areas of manufacturing and sales. If we fail
to develop and maintain our people and processes as we experience our anticipated growth, demand for our products and our revenues could decrease.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO KEEP UP WITH RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES

To remain competitive, we must continue to enhance our products and software. The evolving nature of the electric vehicle industry, which is characterized
by rapid technological change, c, frequent new product and service introductions and the emergence of new industry standards and practices, could render
our existing systems, software, and services obsolete. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to develop, innovate, license or acquire leading
technologies useful in our business, enhance our existing solutions, develop new solutions and technology that address the increasingly sophisticated and
varied needs of our current and prospective customers, and respond to technological advances and emerging industry and regulatory standards and practices
in a cost-effective and timely manner. Future advances in technology may not be beneficial to, or compatible with, our business. Furthermore, we may not
successfully use new technologies effectively or adapt our proprietary technology and hardware to emerging industry standards on a timely basis. Our
ability to remain technologically competitive may require substantial expenditures and lead time. If we are unable to adapt in a timely manner to changing
market conditions or user requirements, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be seriously harmed
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IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN OUR COMPANY AS A HIGHLY TRUSTED AND RESPECTED NAME
FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLES, WE COULD SUSTAIN LOSS OF REVENUES, WHICH COULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS,
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

In order to attract and retain a client base and increase business, we must establish, maintain and strengthen our name and the services we provide. In order
to be successful in establishing our reputation, clients must perceive us as a trusted source for quality services. If we are unable to attract and retain clients
with our current marketing plans, we may not be able to successfully establish our name and reputation, which could significantly affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

SMALL PUBLIC COMPANIES ARE INHERENTLY RISKY AND WE MAY BE EXPOSED TO MARKET FACTORS BEYOND OUR
CONTROL. IF SUCH EVENTS WERE TO OCCUR IT MAY RESULT IN A LOSS OF YOUR INVESTMENT.

Managing a small public company involves a high degree of risk. Few small public companies ever reach market stability and we will be subject to
oversight from governing bodies and regulations that will be costly to meet. Our present officer has limited experience in managing a fully reporting public
company, so we may be forced to obtain outside consultants to assist us with meeting these requirements. These outside consultants are expensive and can
have a direct impact on our ability to be profitable. This will make an investment in our Company a highly speculative and risky investment.

LIMITATIONS OF DIRECTOR LIABILITY AND DIRECTOR AND OFFICER INDEMNIFICATION

Our Certificate of Incorporation limits the liability of directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. Delaware law provides that directors of a
corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors, except for liability for any:

« breach of their duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

* act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

« unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law;
or

« Transactions for which the directors derived an improper personal benefit.

These limitations of liability do not apply to liabilities arising under the federal or state securities laws and do not affect the availability of equitable
remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission. Our corporate bylaws (“Bylaws”) provide that we will indemnify our directors, officers and employees to
the fullest extent permitted by law. Our Bylaws also provide that we are obligated to advance expenses incurred by a director or officer in advance of the
final disposition of any action or proceeding. We believe that these Bylaw provisions are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and
officers. The limitation of liability in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against directors for
breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though an action, if
successful, might provide a benefit to us and our stockholders. Our results of operations and financial condition may be harmed to the extent we pay the
costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions.
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RISKS OF BORROWING

As of the date of this Offering Circular, we have incurred certain debt obligations in the ordinary course of our business. While we don’t intend to incur any
additional debt from the equity commitments provided in this Offering, should we obtain secure bank debt in the future, possible risks could arise. If we
incur additional indebtedness, a portion of our future revenues will have to be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on such indebtedness.
Typical loan agreements also might contain restrictive covenants, which may impair our operating flexibility. Such loan agreements would also provide for
default under certain circumstances, such as failure to meet certain financial covenants. A default under a loan agreement could result in the loan becoming
immediately due and payable and, if unpaid, a judgment in favor of such lender which would be senior to our rights. A judgment creditor would have the
right to foreclose on any of our assets resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, ability to generate revenue, operating results or financial
condition.

UNANTICIPATED OBSTACLES

Our business plan may change significantly. Many of our potential business endeavors are capital intensive and may be subject to statutory or regulatory
requirements. Our Board of Directors believes that the chosen activities and strategies are achievable in light of current economic and legal conditions with
the skills, background, and knowledge of our principals and advisors. Our Board of Directors reserve the right to make significant modifications to our
stated strategies depending on future events.

RISKS OF OPERATIONS

Our future operating results may be volatile, difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly in the future due to a variety of factors, many of which may
be outside of our control. Due to the nature of our target market, we may be unable to accurately forecast our future revenues and operating results.
Furthermore, our failure to generate revenues would prevent us from achieving and maintaining profitability. There are no assurances that we can generate
significant revenue or achieve profitability. We anticipate having a sizeable amount of fixed expenses, and we expect to incur losses due to the execution of
our business strategy, continued development efforts and related expenses. As a result, we will need to generate significant revenues while containing costs
and operating expenses if we are to achieve profitability. We cannot be certain that we will ever achieve sufficient revenue levels to achieve profitability.

WE WILL INCUR INCREASED COSTS AS A RESULT OF BECOMING A PUBLIC COMPANY.

We have plans to become a publicly traded company in the U.S. As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we
did not incur as a private company. We will incur costs associated with our public company reporting requirements. We also anticipate that we will incur
costs associated with recently adopted corporate governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as new
rules implemented by the SEC and the National Association of Securities Dealers (the “NASD”). We expect these rules and regulations to increase our legal
and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-consuming and costly. We also expect these new rules and regulations may make it
more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, if we can obtain such insurance at all. We may be required to
accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar liability coverage. As a result, it may be more
difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers. We are currently evaluating and
monitoring developments with respect to these new rules, and we cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur or the timing of
such costs.
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NO MINIMUM CAPITALIZATION

We do not have a minimum capitalization and we may use the proceeds from this Offering immediately following our acceptance of the corresponding
subscription agreements. It is possible we may only raise a minimum amount of capital, which could leave us with insufficient capital to implement our
business plan, potentially resulting in greater operating losses unless we are able to raise the required capital from alternative sources. There is no assurance
that alternative capital, if needed, would be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

MINIMAL EMPLOYEES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

We currently only have a small number of employees and are in the process of establishing our human resources procedures, policies, processes and
registrations, which are not yet complete. However, we expect to hire additional employees upon receipt of the proceeds from this Offering. We also have
minimal operational infrastructure and no prior operating history. We intend to rely on our management team, our advisors, third-party consultants, third-
party developers, service providers, technology partners, outside attorneys, advisors, accountants, auditors, and other administrators. The loss of services of
any of such personnel may have a material adverse effect on our business and operations and there can be no assurance that if any or all of such personnel
were to become unavailable, that qualified successors can be found, on acceptable terms.

LIMITATION ON REMEDIES; INDEMNIFICATION

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended from time to time, provides that officers, directors, employees and other agents and their affiliates shall only
be liable to the Company and its shareholders for losses, judgments, liabilities and expenses that result from the fraud or other breach of fiduciary
obligations. Additionally, we intend to enter into corporate indemnification agreements with each of our officers and directors consistent with industry
practice. Thus, certain alleged errors or omissions might not be actionable by the Company. Our governing instruments also provide that, under the broadest
circumstances allowed under law, we must indemnify its officers, directors, employees and other agents and their affiliates for losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses and amounts paid in settlement of any claims sustained by them in connection with the Company, including liabilities under applicable securities
laws.

FORCE MAJEURE

Our business is uniquely susceptible to unforeseen delays or failures that are caused by forces of nature and related circumstances. These factors are outside
and beyond our control. The delay or failure to complete the development and testing of our XP Platform or XT Pickup and the commercial release of
related services may be due to any act of God, fire, war, terrorism, flood, strike, labor dispute, disaster, transportation or laboratory difficulties or any
similar or dissimilar event beyond our control. We will not be held liable to any shareholder in the event of any such failure. However, a court of competent
jurisdiction may determine that we are still liable to shareholders for catastrophic failures proximately caused by forces of nature outside of our control. If
such a court so decides, Atlis may have significant shareholder liability exposure.
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COVID-19 GLOBAL PANDEMIC

Similar to force majeure, our company is susceptible to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result of the pandemic, our workforce may have to
work remotely for an extended period of time. Being forced to work remotely may cause unforeseen delays in development. In particular, our engineering
teams often rely heavily on hands-on collaboration. Extended pandemic concerns will likely result in decreased productivity and efficiency throughout the
Company,

Additionally, an extended pandemic may wreak havoc on international automotive supply chains. If the pandemic makes it difficult for us to source
components from suppliers, we may be forced to develop and manufacture certain components ourselves, which would likely result in further delays and
cost overruns. We will not be held liable to any shareholder in the event of any delays or catastrophic failures proximately caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. However, a court of competent jurisdiction may determine that we are still liable to shareholders for catastrophic failures proximately caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic. If such a court so decides, Atlis may have significant shareholder liability exposure.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS OFFERING

THERE IS NO FIRM COMMITMENT TO PURCHASE THE CLASS A SHARES OF CLASS A COMMON STOCK BEING OFFERED, AND
AS A RESULT INITIAL INVESTORS ASSUME ADDITIONAL RISK.

This is a best effort, no minimum offering of Class A shares of our Class A common stock being conducted solely by certain members of our management.
There is no commitment by anyone to purchase any of the Class A shares being offered. We cannot give any assurance that any or all of the Class A shares
will be sold. There is no minimum and we will retain any amount of proceeds received from the sale of the Class A shares. Moreover, there is no assurance
that our estimate of our liquidity needs is accurate or that new business development or other unforeseen events will not occur, resulting in the need to raise
additional funds. As this offering is a best efforts financing, there is no assurance that this financing will be completed or that any future financing will be
affected. Initial investors assume additional risk on whether the offering will be fully subscribed and how the Company will utilize the proceeds.

THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED ARE RESTRICTED CLASS A SHARES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK AND AN
INVESTMENT IN OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK WILL BE ILLIQUID.

We are offering Class A shares of our Class A common stock pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act which imposes substantial
restrictions on the transfer of such securities. All certificates which evidence the Class A shares will be inscribed with a printed legend which clearly
describes the applicable restrictions on transfer or resale by the owner thereof. Accordingly, each investor should be aware of the long-term illiquid nature
of his investment. In no event may such securities be sold, pledged, hypothecated, assigned or otherwise transferred unless such securities are registered
under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or we received an opinion of counsel that an exemption from registration is available with
respect thereto. Rule 144, the primary exemption for resales of restricted securities is only available for securities of issuers providing current information
to the public. While we will be required to make such information available should we conduct an initial public offering, and assuming such public offering
is in fact successfully carried out, we do not currently make such information available precluding reliance on Rule 144. Thus, each investor should be
prepared to bear the risk of such investment for an indefinite period of time. See the sections entitled “Description of Securities” and “Placement of the
Offering”.
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THERE IS CURRENTLY NO MARKET FOR OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK, AND WE DO NOT EXPECT THAT A MARKET WILL
DEVELOP IN THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK ILLIQUID.

Prior to this Offering, there has been no public market for our Class A common stock. We cannot predict the extent to which an active market for our Class
A common stock will develop or be sustained after this Offering, or how the development of such a market might affect the market price of our Class A
common stock. The initial offering price of our Class A common stock in this offering is based on a number of factors, including market conditions in effect
at the time of the offering, and it may not be in any way indicative of the price at which our shares will trade following the completion of this offering.

We anticipate that we will apply for quoting of our Class A common stock on the OTC Markets or an approved secondary marketplace upon the
qualification of the offering statement of which this Offering Circular forms a part. However, there can be no assurance that our Class A common stock
shares will be quoted. If no active trading market for our Class A common stock develops or is sustained following this Offering, you may be unable to sell
your shares when you wish to sell them or at a price that you consider attractive or satisfactory. The lack of an active market may also adversely affect our
ability to raise capital by selling securities in the future, or impair our ability to license or acquire other product candidates, businesses or technologies using
our shares as consideration.

Investors may not be able to resell their shares at or above the initial offering price. We do not expect that a market for our stock will develop at any time in
the foreseeable future. The lack of a market may impair the ability to sell Class A shares at the time investors wish to sell them or at a price considered to
be reasonable. As such, Atlis investors should not expect to have the ability to liquidate their positions in Atlis any time in the near future.

EVEN IF A MARKET DEVELOPS FOR OUR CLASS A SHARES, OUR CLASS A SHARES MAY BE THINLY TRADED WITH WIDE
SHARE PRICE FLUCTUATIONS, LOW SHARE PRICES AND MINIMAL LIQUIDITY. WE MAY UTILIZE AN ALTERNATIVE TRADING
SYSTEM.

If a market for our Class A shares develops, the share price may be volatile with wide fluctuations in response to several factors, including:

- Potential investors’ anticipated feeling regarding our results of operations;
- Increased competition;

- Our ability or inability to generate future revenues; and

- Market perception of the future of development of electric vehicles.

Our Class A common stock may not be freely quoted for trading on any stock exchange or through any other traditional trading platform. Our common
stock may be issued, available for purchase and may be traded exclusively on a specific trading system that is registered with the SEC as an alternative
trading system (an “ATS”). We do not currently have any plans to trade our common stock on a specific ATS. Any disruption to the operations of an ATS or
a broker-dealer's customer interface with an ATS would materially disrupt trading in, or potentially result in a complete halt in the trading of, our common
stock. Because our common stock may be traded exclusively on a closed trading system, it is a possibility that there will be a limited number of holders of
our common stock. In addition, an ATS is likely to experience limited trading volume with a relatively small number of securities trading on the ATS
platform as compared to securities trading on traditional securities exchanges or trading platforms. As a result, this novel trading system may have limited
liquidity, resulting in a lower or higher price or greater volatility than would be the case with greater liquidity. You may not be able to resell your common
stock on a timely basis or at all.
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While we understand that many ATS platforms have adopted policies and procedures such that security holders are not free to manipulate the trading price
of securities contrary to applicable law, and while the risk of market manipulation exists in connection with the trading of any securities, the risk may be
greater for our Class A common stock because the ATS we choose may be a closed system that does not have the same breadth of market and liquidity as
the national market system. There can be no assurance that the efforts by an ATS to prevent such behavior will be sufficient to prevent such market
manipulation.

Unlike the more expansive listing requirements, policies and procedures of the Nasdaq Global Market and other trading platforms, there are no minimum
price requirements and limited listing requirements for securities to be traded on an ATS. As a result, trades of our Class A common stock on an ATS may
not be at prices that represent the national best bid or offer prices of securities that could be considered similar securities.

WE ARBITRARILY DETERMINED THE OFFERING PRICE AND THERE HAS BEEN NO INDEPENDENT VALUATION OF THE STOCK,
WHICH MEANS THAT THE STOCK MAY BE WORTH LESS THAN THE PURCHASE PRICE.

The offering price of the Class A shares of Class A common stock has been arbitrarily determined without independent valuation, based on estimates of the
price that purchasers of speculative securities, such as our Class A common stock, will be willing to pay considering our nature and capital structure, the
experience of the officers and directors and the market conditions for the sale of equity securities in similar companies. The offering price of the Class A
shares bears no relationship to our assets, earnings or book value, or any other objective standard of value and thus the Class A shares may have a value
significantly less than the offering price and the shares may never obtain a value equal to or greater than the offering price. See the section entitled
“Placement of the Offering” elsewhere in this memorandum.

THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR CLASS A CLASS A COMMON STOCK SHARES MAY FLUCTUATE, AND YOU COULD LOSE ALL OR
PART OF YOUR INVESTMENT

The offering price for our Class A Class A common stock shares is based on a number of factors. The price of these shares may decline following this
Offering. The stock market in general, and the market price of our shares will likely be subject to fluctuation, whether due to, or irrespective of, our
operating results, financial condition and prospects. Our financial performance, our industry’s overall performance, changing consumer preferences,
technologies and advertiser requirements, government regulatory action, tax laws and market conditions in general could have a significant impact on the
future market price of our Class A common stock. Some of the other factors that could negatively affect our share price or result in fluctuations in our share
price includes:

* actual or anticipated variations in our periodic operating results;

+ increases in market interest rates that lead purchasers of our shares to demand a higher yield;

» changes in earnings estimates;

+ changes in market valuations of similar companies;

+ actions or announcements by our competitors;

» adverse market reaction to any increased indebtedness we may incur in the future;

+ additions or departures of key personnel;

* actions by stockholders;
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+ speculation in the press or investment community; and
+ listing our shares on a national securities exchange

YOU WILL INCUR SUBSTANTIAL AND IMMEDIATE DILUTION OF THE PRICE YOU PAY FOR YOUR CLASS A SHARES IN THIS
OFFERING.

The offering price of our Class A common stock is substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of the outstanding Class A common stock
issued after this offering. Therefore, if you purchase Class A shares of our Class A common stock in this offering, you will incur substantial immediate
dilution in the net tangible book value per share of Class A common stock from the price you pay for such share.

WE DO NOT ANTICIPATE DIVIDENDS TO BE PAID ON OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK AND INVESTORS MAY LOSE THE ENTIRE
AMOUNT OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

A dividend has never been declared or paid in cash on our Class A common stock and we do not anticipate such a declaration or payment for the
foreseeable future. We expect to use future earnings, if any, to fund business growth. Therefore, stockholders will not receive any funds absent a sale of
their Class A shares. We cannot assure stockholders of a positive return on their investment when they sell their Class A shares nor can we assure that
stockholders will not lose the entire amount of their investment. Any payment of dividends on our capital stock will depend on our earnings, financial
condition and other business and economic factors affecting us at such a time as the board of directors may consider it relevant. If we do not pay dividends,
our Class A common stock may be less valuable because a return on your investment will only occur if the common stock price appreciates.

OUR LACK OF BUSINESS DIVERSIFICATION COULD CAUSE YOU TO LOSE ALL OR SOME OF YOUR INVESTMENT IF WE ARE
UNABLE TO GENERATE REVENUES FROM OUR PRIMARY PRODUCTS.

Our business consists of developing and manufacturing electric vehicles and charging infrastructure. We do not have any other lines of business or other
sources of revenue if we are unable to compete effectively in the marketplace. This lack of business diversification could cause you to lose all or some of
your investment if we are unable to generate revenues since we do not expect to have any other lines of business or alternative revenue sources.

SALES OF OUR CLASS A CLASS A COMMON STOCK UNDER RULE 144 COULD REDUCE THE PRICE OF OUR STOCK

In general, persons holding “restricted securities,” including affiliates, must hold their shares for a period of at least six (6) months, may not sell more than
one percent (1%) of the total issued and outstanding shares in any ninety (90) day period, and must resell the shares in an unsolicited brokerage transaction
at the market price.

However, Rule 144 will only be available for resale in the ninety (90) days after the Company files its semi-annual reports on Form 1-SA and annual

reports on Form 1-K, unless the Company voluntarily files interim quarterly reports on Form 1-U, which the Company has not yet decided to do. The
availability for sale of substantial amounts of Class A common stock under Rule 144 could reduce prevailing market prices for our securities.
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WE DO NOT HAVE ANY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES, SO SHAREHOLDERS WILL HAVE TO RELY ON OUR
DIRECTORS, NONE OF WHOM ARE INDEPENDENT, TO PERFORM THESE FUNCTIONS

We do not have an audit committee, compensation committee or any form of corporate governance committees composed of an independent director. The
Board performs these functions as a whole and no members of the Board are an independent director. However, until such corporate governance committees
and controls are formally established, there is a significant risk that certain members of the Board of Directors, executive management and/or our
controlling shareholder could thwart such plans and prevent such committees and controls from being implemented. Thus, there is a potential conflict in
that board members who are also part of management will participate in discussions concerning management compensation and audit issues that may affect
management decisions.

FAILURE TO MAINTAIN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WOULD HAVE AN ADVERSE IMPACT ON US

We are required to establish and maintain appropriate internal controls over financial reporting. Failure to establish those controls, or any failure of those
controls once established, could adversely impact our public disclosures regarding our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition,
management's assessment of internal controls over financial reporting may identify weaknesses and conditions that need to be addressed in our internal
controls over financial reporting or other matters that may raise concerns for investors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses and conditions that need to be
addressed in our internal control over financial reporting, disclosure of management's assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting or
disclosure of our public accounting firm's attestation to or report on management's assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting may have an
adverse impact on the price of our Class A Class A common stock.

MANAGEMENT HAS ULTIMATE DISCRETION OVER THE ACTUAL USE OF PROCEEDS DERIVED FROM THIS OFFERING

The net proceeds from this Offering will be used for the purposes described under “Use of Proceeds.” However, we reserve the right to use the funds
obtained from this Offering for other similar purposes not presently contemplated which we deem to be in the best interests of the Company and our
shareholders in order to address changed circumstances or opportunities. As a result of the foregoing, our success will be substantially dependent upon the
discretion and judgment of the Board of Directors with respect to application and allocation of the net proceeds of this Offering. Investors who purchase our
Class A common stock will be entrusting their funds to our Board of Directors, upon whose judgment and discretion the investors must depend. The failure
of our management to apply these funds effectively could harm our business. Pending their use, we may also invest the net proceeds from this offering in a
manner that does not produce income or that loses value.

OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND MAJORITY STOCKHOLDER MAY SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCE MATTERS TO BE VOTED ON
AND THEIR INTERESTS MAY DIFFER FROM, OR BE ADVERSE TO, THE INTERESTS OF OUR OTHER STOCKHOLDERS.

The Company’s executive officer and majority stockholder, Mark Hanchett, controls 84.11 % of our outstanding Class D stock prior to this Offering. As a
Majority stockholder, Mark Hanchett controls 84.11% of the voting rights for Atlis Motor Vehicles.
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Accordingly, the Company’s executive officer and majority stockholder possesses significant influence over the Company on matters submitted to the
stockholders for approval, including the election of directors, mergers, consolidations, the sale of all or substantially all of our assets, and also the power to
prevent or cause a change in control. This amount of control gives them substantial ability to determine the future of our Company, and as such, they may
elect to close the business, change the business plan or make any number of other major business decisions without the approval of shareholders. The
interest of our majority stockholders may differ from the interests of our other stockholders and could therefore result in corporate decisions that are adverse
to other stockholders.

GENERAL SECURITIES INVESTMENT RISKS

All investments in securities involve the risk of loss of capital. No guarantee or representation is made that an investor will receive a return of its capital.
The value of our Class A common stock can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including development problems, regulatory issues, technical
issues, commercial challenges, competition, legislation, government intervention, industry developments and trends, and general business and economic
conditions.

MULTIPLE SECURITIES OFFERINGS AND POTENTIAL FOR INTEGRATION OF OUR OFFERINGS

We are currently and will in the future be involved in one or more additional offers of our securities in other unrelated securities offerings. Any two or more
securities offerings undertaken by us could be found by the SEC, or a state securities regulator, agency, to be “integrated” and therefore constitute a single
offering of securities, which finding could lead to a disallowance of certain exemptions from registration for the sale of our securities in such other
securities offerings. Such a finding could result in disallowance of one or more of our exemptions from registration, which could give rise to various legal
actions on behalf of a federal or state regulatory agency and the Company.

THIS OFFERING WAS NOT REVIEWED BY INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONALS

We have not retained any independent professionals to review or comment on this Offering or otherwise protect the interest of the investors hereunder.
Although we have retained our own counsel, neither such counsel nor any other counsel has made, on behalf of the investors, any independent examination
of any factual matters represented by management herein. Therefore, for purposes of making a decision to purchase our Class A common stock, you should
not rely on our counsel with respect to any matters herein described. Prospective investors are strongly urged to rely on the advice of their own legal
counsel and advisors in making a determination to purchase our Class A common stock.

WE HAVE NOT UNDERGONE UNDERWRITING DUE DILIGENCE, AND WE CANNOT GUARANTEE THAT WE WILL SELL ANY
SPECIFIC NUMBER OF COMMON STOCK SHARES IN THIS OFFERING

There is no commitment by anyone to purchase all or any part of the Class A Shares offered hereby and, consequently, we can give no assurance that all of
the Class A shares in this Offering will be sold. Additionally, there is no underwriter for this Offering; therefore, you will not have the benefit of an
underwriter's due diligence efforts that would typically include the underwriter being involved in the preparation of this Offering Circular and the pricing of
our Class A common stock shares offered hereunder. Therefore, there can be no assurance that this Offering will be successful or that we will raise enough
capital from this Offering to further our development and business activities in a meaningful manner. Finally, prospective investors should be aware that we
reserve the right to withdraw, cancel, or modify this Offering at any time without notice, to reject any subscription in whole or in part, or to allot to any
prospective purchaser fewer Class A common stock Shares than the number for which he or she subscribed.
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INVESTORS IN THIS OFFERING WILL LIKELY EXPERIENCE ADDITIONAL DILUTION

If you purchase our Class A common stock in this Offering, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution because the price you pay will be
substantially greater than the net tangible book value per share of the shares you acquire. Since we will require funds in addition to the proceeds of this
Offering to conduct our planned business, we will raise such additional funds, to the extent not generated internally from operations, by issuing additional
equity and/or debt securities, resulting in further dilution to our existing stockholders (including purchasers of our Class A common stock in this Offering).

WE MAY TERMINATE THIS OFFERING AT ANY TIME

We reserve the right to terminate this Offering at any time, regardless of the number of Class A common stock shares sold. In the event that we terminate
this Offering at any time prior to the sale of all of the Class A common stock shares offered hereby, whatever amount of capital that we have raised at that
time will have already been utilized by the Company and no funds will be returned to subscribers.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO MEET OUR CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Our capital requirements depend on numerous factors, including but not limited to the rate and success of our research and development efforts, marketing
efforts, market acceptance of our products, our ability to establish and maintain our agreements with suppliers, our ability to ramp up production, product
demand and other factors. The capital requirements relating to development of our technology and the implementation of our business plan will be
significant. We cannot accurately predict the timing and amount of such capital requirements. However, we are dependent on the proceeds of this Offering
as well as additional financing that will be required in order to develop our products and fully implement our proposed business plans.

However, in the event that our plans change, our assumptions change or prove to be inaccurate, or if the proceeds of this Offering prove to be insufficient to
implement our business plan, we would be required to seek additional financing sooner than currently anticipated. There can be no assurance that any such
financing will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may dilute the equity interests of
our existing shareholders (including those purchasing shares pursuant to this Offering), and debt financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants
with respect to dividends, raising future capital and other financial and operational matters. If we are unable to obtain additional financing as and when
needed, we may be required to reduce the scope of our operations or our anticipated business plans, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, future operating results and financial condition.

IF WE PURSUE STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS, THEY MAY RESULT IN LOSSES

We may elect periodically to make strategic investments in various public and private companies with businesses or technologies that may complement our
business. The market values of these strategic investments may fluctuate due to market conditions and other conditions over which we have no control.
Other-than-temporary declines in the market price and valuations of the securities that we hold in other companies would require us to record losses related
to our investment. This could result in future charges to our earnings. It is uncertain whether or not we will realize any long-term benefits associated with
these strategic investments.
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THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK MAY FLUCTUATE AND OUR SHAREHOLDERS MAY LOSE ALL OR PART OF
THEIR INVESTMENT

If a market for our Class A common stock develops following this Offering, the trading price of our Class A common stock could be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. The market prices for securities of startup companies have historically
been highly volatile, and the market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. The market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, some of
which are beyond our control, such as:

* actual or anticipated adverse results or delays in our research and development efforts;

+ our failure to commercialize our XP Platform and XT pickup;

unanticipated serious safety concerns related to the use of our products;

adverse regulatory decisions;

legal disputes or other developments relating to proprietary rights, including patents, litigation matters and our ability to obtain patent protection for
our intellectual property, government investigations and the results of any proceedings or lawsuits, including patent or stockholder litigation;
» changes in laws or regulations applicable to the electric vehicle industry;

« our dependence on third party suppliers;

 announcements of the introduction of new products by our competitors;

» market conditions in the electric vehicle industry;

 announcements concerning product development results or intellectual property rights of others;

« future issuances of our common stock or other securities;

« the addition or departure of key personnel;

« actual or anticipated variations in quarterly operating results;

+ announcements of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by us or our competitors;

« our failure to meet or exceed the estimates and projections of the investment community;

issuances of debt or equity securities;

trading volume of our common stock;

* sales of our Class A common stock by us or our stockholders in the future;

overall performance of the equity markets and other factors that may be unrelated to our operating performance or the operating performance of our
competitors, including changes in market valuations of similar companies;

failure to meet or exceed any financial guidance or expectations regarding development milestones that we may provide to the public;
ineffectiveness of our internal controls;

general political and economic conditions;

effects of natural or man-made catastrophic events;

scarcity of raw materials necessary for battery production;

other events or factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Further, price and volume fluctuations may result in volatility in the price of our Class A common stock, which could cause a decline in the value of our
stock. Price volatility of our Class A common stock might worsen if the trading volume of our shares is low. The realization of any of the above risks or any
of a broad range of other risks, including those described in these “Risk Factors,” could have a dramatic and material adverse impact on the market price of
our Class A common stock.
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A SALE OF A SUBSTANTIAL NUMBER OF SHARES OF THE CLASS A COMMON STOCK MAY CAUSE THE SHARE PRICES TO
DECLINE

If our stockholders sell, or the market perceives that our stockholders intend to sell for various reasons, substantial amounts of our Class A common stock in
the public market, including shares issued in connection with the exercise of outstanding options or warrants, the market price of our shares could fall. Sales
of a substantial number of shares of our common stock may make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and
price that we deem reasonable or appropriate. We may become involved in securities class action litigation that could divert management’s attention and
harm our business. The stock markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market prices for
the common stock of pharmaceutical companies. These broad market fluctuations may cause the market price of our common stock to decline. In the past,
securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of a company’s securities. We may
become involved in this type of litigation in the future. Litigation often is expensive and diverts management’s attention and resources, which could
adversely affect our business.

OUR QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS MAY FLUCTUATE

We expect our operating results to be subject to quarterly fluctuations. Our net loss and other operating results will be affected by numerous factors,
including:

« variations in the level of expenses related to our development programs;

* any intellectual property infringement lawsuit in which we may become involved;

« regulatory developments affecting our products and related services; and

+ our execution of any collaborative, licensing or similar arrangements, and the timing of payments we may make or receive under these arrangements.

If our quarterly operating results fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the price of our Class A common stock could decline
substantially. Furthermore, any quarterly fluctuations in our operating results may, in turn, cause the price of our Class A common stock to fluctuate
substantially.

OUR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS HAVE A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF VOTING POWER

As of the date of this Offering Circular, our directors, executive officers and principal stockholders beneficially owned, in the aggregate, substantially all of
our outstanding voting securities. As a result, if some or all of them acted together, they would have the ability to exert significant influence over the
election of our board of directors and the outcome of issues requiring approval by our stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also have the
effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of our company that may be favored by other stockholders. This could prevent transactions in which
stockholders might otherwise recover a premium for their shares over current market prices.

OUR ABILITY TO UTILIZE LOSS CARRY FORWARDS MAY BE LIMITED
Generally, a change of more than fifty percent (50%) in the ownership of a company’s stock, by value, over a three-year period constitutes an ownership
change for U.S. federal income tax purposes. An ownership change may limit our ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards attributable to the

period prior to the change. As a result, if we earn net taxable income, our ability to use our pre-change net operating loss carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may become subject to limitations, which could potentially result in increased future tax liability for us.
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WE MAY BE REQUIRED TO EXPEND FUNDS TO INDEMNIFY OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, Bylaws and applicable Delaware law provide for the indemnification of our directors, officers, employees,
and agents, under certain circumstances, against attorney’s fees and other expenses incurred by them in any litigation to which they become a party arising
from their association with or activities on our behalf. We will also bear the expenses of such litigation for any of our directors, officers, employees, or
agents, upon such a person's promise to repay us, therefore if it is ultimately determined that any such person shall not have been entitled to
indemnification. This indemnification policy could result in substantial expenditures by us, which we will be unable to recover. Insofar as indemnification
for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of our Company pursuant
to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in
the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by us of
expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer, or controlling person of our Company in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted
by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the
matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question of whether such indemnification by it is against
public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

THE REQUIREMENTS OF BEING A PUBLIC COMPANY MAY STRAIN OUR RESOURCES AND DIVERT MANAGEMENT’S
ATTENTION FROM OPERATIONS

As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we have not incurred as a private company, including costs
associated with public company reporting requirements. We also will incur costs associated with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Dodd-Frank Act and related rules implemented or to be implemented by the SEC. The expenses incurred by public companies generally for
reporting and corporate governance purposes have been increasing. We expect the rules and regulations associated with being a public company to increase
our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-consuming and costly, although we are currently unable to estimate these
costs with any degree of certainty. These laws and regulations could also make it more difficult or costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance,
including director and officer liability insurance, and we may be forced to accept constraints on policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher
costs to obtain coverage. These laws and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our Board,
our board committees or as our executive officers and may divert management’s attention. Furthermore, if we are unable to satisfy our obligations as a
public company, we could be subject to delisting of our common stock, fines, sanctions and other regulatory action and potentially civil litigation.

THE PREPARATION OF OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRES ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS, AND ASSUMPTIONS THAT ARE
INHERENTLY UNCERTAIN

Financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) typically require the
use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Often, different estimates, judgments and assumptions could reasonably be
used that would have a material effect on such financial statements, and changes in these estimates, judgments and assumptions may occur from period to
period over time. These estimates, judgments and assumptions are inherently uncertain and, if our estimates were to prove to be wrong, we would face the
risk that charges to income or other financial statement changes or adjustments would be required. Any such charges or changes could harm our business,
including our financial condition and results of operations and the price of our securities. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” for a discussion of the accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions that we believe are the most critical to an
understanding of our consolidated financial statements and our business.
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UNFAVORABLE SECURITIES INDUSTRY REPORTS COULD HAVE A NEGATIVE EFFECT ON OUR SHARE PRICE

Any trading market for our Class A common stock will be influenced in part by any research reports that securities industry analysts publish about us. We
do not currently have and may never obtain research coverage by securities industry analysts. If no securities industry analysts commence coverage of us,
the market price and market trading volume of our Class A common stock could be negatively affected. In the event we are covered by analysts, and one or
more of such analysts downgrade our securities, or otherwise reports on us unfavorably, or discontinues coverage or us, the market price and market trading
volume of our Class A common stock could be negatively affected.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Assuming the sale by us of the Maximum Offering of $25,000,000 and estimated commissions and offering related expenses of $1,250,000, the total net
proceeds to us would be $23,750,000 which we currently intend to use as set forth below.

We expect from time to time to evaluate the acquisition of businesses, products and technologies for which a portion of the net proceeds may be used,
although we currently are not planning or negotiating any such transactions. As of the date of this Offering Circular, we cannot specify with certainty all of
the particular uses for the net proceeds to us from the sale of Class A common stock. Accordingly, we will retain broad discretion over the use of these
proceeds, if any. The following table represents management’s best estimate of the uses of the net proceeds received from the sale of Class A common stock
assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67%, and 33% of the Class A common stock shares offered for sale in this Offering.

% of Offering Sold 100% 67% 33
Equipment and Machinery $ 11,900,000 $ 7,973,000 $ 3,927,000
Research and Development () $ 7,850,000 $ 5,259,500 $ 2,590,500
Facilities $ 900,000 $ 603,000 $ 297,000
SG&A Expenses (2 $ 2,900,000 $ 1,943,000 $ 957,000
Other Opex $ 200,000 $ 134,000 $ 66,000
Commissions & Offering Expenses $ 1,250,000 $ 837,500 $ 412,500
TOTAL OFFERING SALES $ 25,000,000 $ 16,750,000 $ 8,250,000

(1)  Once research and development has been completed, we will need to invest significant funds to acquire or build a factory, purchase machinery and
robotics, and equip it for mass production.
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(2) Includes up to $100,000 that will be used to pay salaries and related compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company during 2020-
2021, pursuant to employment offer letters and contemplated employment agreements with such persons. See “Management — Executive
Compensation” elsewhere in this offering Circular. Also includes up to $2,000,000 in marketing & advertising expenses, assuming we raise the full
offering.

The amounts set forth above are estimates, and we cannot be certain that actual costs will not vary from these estimates. Our management has significant
flexibility and broad discretion in applying the net proceeds received in this Offering. We cannot assure you that our assumptions, expected costs and
expenses and estimates will prove to be accurate or that unforeseen events, problems or delays will not occur that would require us to seek additional debt
and/or equity funding, which may not be available on favorable terms, or at all. See “Risk Factors.”

This expected use of the net proceeds from this Offering represents our intentions based upon our current financial condition, results of operations, business
plans and conditions. As of the date of this Offering Circular, we cannot predict with certainty all of the particular uses for the net proceeds to be received
upon the closing of this Offering or the amounts that we will actually spend on the uses set forth above. The amounts and timing of our actual expenditures
may vary significantly depending on numerous factors. As a result, our management will retain broad discretion over the allocation of the net proceeds from
this Offering.

‘We may also use a portion of the net proceeds for the investment in strategic partnerships and possibly the acquisition of complementary businesses,
products or technologies, although we have no present commitments or agreements for any specific acquisitions or investments. Pending our use of the net
proceeds from this Offering, we intend to invest the net proceeds in a variety of capital preservation investments, including short-term, investment grade,
interest bearing instruments and U.S. government securities.

DILUTION

If you purchase shares in this Offering, your ownership interest in our Class A common stock will be diluted immediately, to the extent of the difference
between the price to the public charged for each share in this Offering and the net tangible book value per share of our Class A common stock after this
Offering.

On December 31, 2019 there were an aggregate of 16,055,117 shares of Class A and Class D common stock issued and outstanding. In addition, between

December 2019 and March 31, 2020, we received subscriptions for $888,698 of our Class A common stock shares from 1194 investors in our Regulation
CF campaign, that, by their terms, automatically convert into 225,576 shares of our Class A common stock as of the date of this Offering Circular (at a
conversion price of $3.94 per share). In addition we have awarded 817,862 shares to employees and contractors. Accordingly, as at date of this Offering
Circular, an aggregate of 17,151,882 shares of our Class A and Class D common stock are issued and outstanding.

Our net tangible book value as of December 31, 2019, was ($33,022) or ($0.002)per then-outstanding share of our common stock, based on 16,055,117
outstanding shares of common stock at December 31, 2019. Our net tangible book value as of the date of this Offering Circular was $$61,950.61

or $0.0036 per share of our common stock, based on 17,151,882 outstanding shares of Class A and Class D common stock as at the date of this Offering
Circular. Net tangible book value per share equals the amount of our total tangible assets less total liabilities, divided by the total number of shares of our
Class A and Class D common stock outstanding, all as of the date specified.
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If the maximum 3,033,981 shares of Class A common stock in this Offering at the initial public offering price of $8.24 per share, after deducting
approximately $5,000,000 in maximum sales commissions and other offering expenses payable by us, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value
would have been approximately $20,061,950.60 ($0.994 per share) as at December 31, 2019. This amount represents an immediate increase in pro forma
net tangible book value of $0.994 per share to our existing stockholders at the date of this Offering Circular, and an immediate dilution in pro forma net
tangible book value of approximately $7.24 per share to new investors purchasing shares of Class A common stock in this Offering at a price of $8.24 per
share.

The following table illustrates the per share dilution to new investors discussed above, assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67% and 33% of the shares
offered for sale in this offering (after our estimated offering expenses of $5,000,000, $3,350,000 and $1,650,000, respectively)

The following tables set forth, assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67%, and 33% of the shares offered for sale in this offering (after our estimated
offering expenses of $5,000,000, $3,350,000,and $1,650,000, respectively), the total number of shares previously sold to existing stockholders, the total
consideration paid for the foregoing and the respective percentages applicable to such purchased shares and consideration paid based on an average price of
$0.0001 per share paid by existing stockholders and $8.24 per share paid by investors in this Offering.

Funding Level $ 25,000,000 $ 13,400,000 $ 6,600,000
Offering Price $ 824 $ 824 $ 8.24
Pro forma net

tangible book

value per Class

A common $ 0.0036 $ 0.0036 $ 0.0036
stock share

before the

Offering

Increase per

common share

attributable to $ 82364 $ 8.2364 $ 8.2364
investors in this
Offering

Pro forma net
tangible book
value per Class
A common
stock share after
the Offering
Dilution to
investors
Dilution as a
percentage of 87.89% 91.4% 95.50%
Offering Price

$ 0994 $ 0.702 % 0.367

$ 7243 % 7535 $ 7.869
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Shares Purchased

Total Consideration

Number Percentage Amount Percentage
Assuming 100% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,151,882 84.97% $1715 0.01%
Stockholders
New Investors 3,033,981 15.03% $25,000,000 99.9%
Total 20,185,863 100.00% $25,001,715 100.00%
Shares Purchased Total Consideration
Number Percentage Amount Percentage
Assuming 67% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,151,882 89.40% $1,715 0.01%
Stockholders
New Investors 2,032,767 10.60% $13,400,000 99.99%
Total 19,184,649 100.00% $13,401,715 100.00%
Shares Purchased Total Consideration
Number Percentage Amount Percentage
Assuming 33% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,151,882 94.48% $1,715 0.03%
Stockholders
New Investors 1,001,214 5.52% $6,600,000 99.97%
Total 18,153,096 100.00% $6,601,715 100.00%

[This space intentionally left blank]




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION & RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular. This discussion contains forward-looking statements reflecting our current
expectations, whose actual outcomes involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those stated in or
implied by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the sections entitled “Risk Factors,” "Cautionary
Statement regarding Forward-Looking Statements" and elsewhere in this Offering Circular. Please see the notes to our Financial Statements for
information about our Significant Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Overview

Atlis Motor Vehicles was incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 9, 2016 and maintains its headquarters in Mesa, Arizona. We have incurred
losses from operations and have had negative cash flows from operating activities since our inception. The company's current operating plan indicates that
it will continue to incur losses from operations and generate negative cash flows from operating activities given ongoing expenditures related to the
completion of its ongoing research and development activities. Atlis is a pre-revenue development stage company purposed to design, develop, and produce
electric vehicles. The design and research phases are very protracted. No significant revenues have been generated since inception and no revenues are
expected in the 2020 fiscal year.

Operating Results
Year ended December 31, 2019 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2018

The Company generated revenues totaling $2,287 and $0 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively. Minimal revenues were generated in 2019 due to t-shirt
and other merchandise sales that began in 2019. Costs of revenue consist of materials.

Operating expenses consist of salaries, legal & professional fees, general and administrative expenses, research and development costs and, and advertising.
Salaries decreased to $182,176 in 2019 from $209,595 in 2018 due a decrease in team size because of a lack of sufficient funds. Legal and professional fees
increased by 14.6% from 2018 to 2019 as a result of increasing our use of contractors. The difference in Research & Development costs from $106,720 in
2018 to $50,428 in 2019 are results of the timing and costs of the prototype builds for the battery pack (2018) and XP Platform (2019). The battery cells and
pack parts needed are significantly more costly than those for the XP Platform, hence the drastic decrease in expense. General and administrative expenses
consist of travel expenses; certain equipment, tooling, and parts. General and administrative expenses totaled $89,021 in 2019 and $30,340 in 2018, an
increase of $58,681. This increase was due primarily to the addition in 2019 of computer purchases, engineering CAD software, and travel for fundraising
efforts and of remote employees to headquarters. Advertising decreased significantly from $147,355 in 2018 to $34,141 in 2019, a decrease of $113,214.
Advertising was necessary to raise the Regulation CF campaign in 2018, but due to our growing social media fan base we did not need to spend so much on
advertising to raise our second Regulation CF campaign in 2019.
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As aresult of the foregoing, our net loss was $470,378 in 2019 compared with $595,862 in 2018.

Our financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ ability to continue as a going concern is contingent upon its
ability to raise additional capital as required. Initially, we intend to finance our operations through equity and debt financings, including this offering and
private placements of equity securities.

As of December 31, 2019, our cash and cash equivalents (immediately marketable securities) were $5,074. As mentioned above, no significant revenues
have been generated since inception and no revenues are expected in the 2020 fiscal year. Unless we receive additional private financing or we receive a
minimum of $5,000,000 from the proceeds of this Offering, we will not be able to conduct our planned operations. We estimate that if we receive a
minimum of $5,000,000 of private financing or from the proceeds of this Offering, our existing capital resources will permit us to conduct our planned
operations for only approximately 180 days following the date of this Offering Circular. Development of an electric vehicle on this scale is a very cash
intensive proposition. Accordingly, our business plan is dependent on our raising sufficient proceeds from this Offering. In addition, we may have to raise
additional interim capital from other private sources.

The company expenses currently include a staff of 32 employees (mostly engineers, two technicians, 13 interns, a program manager, and company
management including CEO, President, and VP of Talent). Expenses include salaries, overhead, and fabrication expenses to support prototype development
efforts

Indebtedness
Name of person: Mark Hanchett
Relationship to company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Mark Hanchett loaned money to Atlis Motor Vehicles to ensure continued operations in the business.
Material terms of transaction: There are no material terms. Loan will be paid back as appropriate to ensure continued operation of the business. As of
December 31, 2019, the company owes Mark Hanchett $10,483.49.
Financings and Securities Offerings
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:
e Date of offering: February 28, 2018

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $2,000.13

Use of proceeds: Stock Purchase

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Shares Sold: 6897
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Date of offering: February 28, 2018

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $4,995.25

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Shares Sold: 17225

Date of offering: February 28, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $1,066,607.53

Use of proceeds: Product Development Develop the prototype Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station Develop the prototype Atlis
Motor Vehicles 100T pickup truck Facilities and Location Establish a permanent residence and prototype facility will be established. Two locations
are currently in the running. Team Members Atlis Motor Vehicles will bring on full-time team members who have previously worked part time on
efforts Atlis Motor Vehicles will lean on industry experts to assist in developing prototype components and final vehicle assembly. Seed Funding
Campaign Continue social media campaign to raise funding Create campaign video for Startengine.com page. Vehicle interest campaign Launch
marketing campaign to take pre-order interest for the Atlis Motor Vehicles PEV Pickup truck.

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Shares Sold: 3677957

Date of offering: May 2, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $58,000.00

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Shares Sold: 200000

Date of offering: May 21, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $4,350.00

Use of proceeds: Stock Purchase

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Shares Sold: 15000
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Date of offering: May 21, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $6,090.00

Use of proceeds: Stock Purchase

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 21000

Date of offering: September 17, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $1,500.17

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 5173

Date of offering: September 17, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $10,000.07

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 34483

Date of offering: September 18, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $5,000.18

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 17242

Date of offering: September 17, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $2,000.13

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Shares Sold: 6897
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Date of offering: September 18, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $4,500.22

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 15518

Date of offering: September 18, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $1,100.26

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 3794

Date of offering: September 18, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $3,000.15

Use of proceeds: Continued Operations

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 10345

Date of offering: October 30, 2019

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $19,999.85

Use of proceeds: Investment - Private

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)
Shares Sold: 6896547,269

Date of offering: March 10, 2020

Type of security sold: Common Stock

Final dollar amount sold: $32,551.65

Use of proceeds: Product Development Develop the prototype Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station Develop the prototype Atlis
Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck Facilities and Location Establish a permanent residence and prototype facility will be established

Shares sold: 6,684
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e Date of offering: April 10, 2020
Type of security sold: Common Stock
Final dollar amount sold: $30,119.95

Use of proceeds: Product Development Develop the prototype Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station Develop the prototype Atlis
Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck Facilities and Location Establish a permanent residence and prototype facility will be established

Shares sold: 6,219

The Company presently intends to raise additional capital to fund its research, development and operating expenses prior to the commencement of this
Offering under Regulation A+, and plans to conduct a private placement of its Common Stock pursuant to Regulation D and/or Regulation S prior to the
qualification of this Offering by the SEC. The Company must raise additional equity or debt financing, both now and in the future following this Offering.
However, no assurances can be made that the Company will be successful obtaining additional equity or debt financing, or that ultimately the Company will
achieve profitable operations and positive cash flow.

Since inception, our principal sources of operating funds have been proceeds from equity financing including Regulation CF crowdfunding equity financing
and including the sale of our Common Stock to initial investors known to management and principal shareholders of the Company. We do not expect that
our current cash on hand will fund our existing operations. We will need to raise additional capital in order to execute our business plan and growth goals
for at least the next twelve-month period thereafter. If Atlis is unable to raise sufficient additional funds, it will have to execute a slower than planned
growth path, reduce overhead and scale back its business plan until sufficient additional capital is raised to support further operational expansion and
growth. There can be no assurance that such a plan will be successful.

Current Plan of Operations

Our plan of operations is currently focused on the development of our XP platform and XT pickup. We expect to incur substantial expenditures in the
foreseeable future for the extended development and testing of our technology and the potential commercialization of the products. At this time, we cannot
reliably estimate the nature, timing or aggregate amount of such costs. Our products will require extensive technical evaluation, potential regulatory review
and approval, significant marketing efforts and substantial investment before it or any successors could provide us with any revenue. Further, we intend to
continue to build our corporate and operational infrastructure and to build interest in our products with the goal of becoming the market leader in electric
trucks.

As noted above, the continuation of our current plan of operations requires us to raise significant additional capital immediately. If we are successful in
raising capital through the sale of shares offered for sale in this Offering Circular we believe that the Company will have sufficient cash resources to fund
its plan of operations for the next twelve months. If we are unable to do so, our ability to continue as a going concern will be in jeopardy, likely causing us
to curtail and possibly cease operations.

We continually evaluate our plan of operations discussed above to determine the manner in which we can most effectively utilize our limited cash
resources. The timing of completion of any aspect of our plan of operations is highly dependent upon the availability of cash to implement that aspect of the
plan and other factors beyond our control. There is no assurance that we will successfully obtain the required capital or revenues, or, if obtained, that the
amounts will be sufficient to fund our ongoing operations. The inability to secure additional capital would have a material adverse effect on us, including
the possibility that we would have to sell or forego a portion or all of our assets or cease operations. If we discontinue our operations, we will not have
sufficient funds to pay any amounts to our stockholders. If in the future we are not able to demonstrate adequate progress in the development of our product,
we will not be able to raise the capital we need to continue our then current business operations and business activities, and we will likely not have
sufficient liquidity or cash resources to continue operating.
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Because our working capital requirements depend upon numerous factors there can be no assurance that our current cash resources will be sufficient to fund
our operations. At present, we have no committed external sources of capital, and do not expect any significant product revenues for the foreseeable future.

Thus, we will require immediate additional financing to fund future operations. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to obtain funds on
acceptable terms, if at all.

Capital Expenditures

We will require significant capital expenditures to secure the facilities and equipment necessary to complete development and begin producing our
products. Due to the size and scope of the operations, it will be necessary to expand facilities and equipment as production operations ramp. This will
require exponentially more capital.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingencies

Atlis Motor Vehicles has signed a 5 year and 3 month lease agreement with Majestic Mesa Partners, to occupy a 42,828 Sq. Ft industrial facility at 1828
North Higley Road, Suite 100, Mesa AZ , commencing on April 15t 2020. Base rent obligation for Months 1 through 7 is $14,133, Months 8-12 is

$28,266.48 with subsequent annual increase of 3% for Years 2-5. In addition to Base rent, Atlis Motor Vehicles is responsible for Property Taxes, utilities
and maintenance costs related to the property, which are estimated at a monthly rate of $7,265 for 2020, are commencing from Month 1 of the lease
obligation and will be annually adjusted as needed.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

In the ordinary course of our business, we are not exposed to market risk of the sort that may arise from changes in interest rates or foreign currency
exchange rates, or that may otherwise arise from transactions in derivatives. We do not currently invest in any securities as all capital is being diverted to
developing our products.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved
when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ Management, in consultation with its legal counsel as appropriate, assesses
such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings
that are pending against Atlis or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, Atlis, in consultation with legal counsel, evaluates the perceived
merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims, as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. If the
assessment of a contingency indicates it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the
estimated liability would be accrued in the Atlis Motor Vehicles’ financial statements. If the assessment indicates a potentially material loss contingency is
not probable, but is reasonably possible, or is probable, but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the
range of possible loss, if determinable and material, would be disclosed. Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they
involve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed.
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Upon the completion of this Offering, we may elect to become a public reporting company under the Exchange Act. If we elect to do so, we will be
required to publicly report on an ongoing basis as an “emerging growth company” (as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, which
we refer to as the “JOBS Act”) under the reporting rules set forth under the Exchange Act. As defined in the JOBS Act, an emerging growth company is
defined as a company with less than $1.0 Billion in revenue during its last fiscal year. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified
reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies.

For so long as we remain an “emerging growth company,” we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are
applicable to other Exchange Act reporting companies that are not “emerging growth companies,” including but not limited to:

not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;
taking advantage of extensions of time to comply with certain new or revised financial accounting standards;
being permitted to comply with reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements; and

being exempt from the requirement to hold a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden
parachute payments not previously approved.

If we are required to publicly report under the Exchange Act as an “emerging growth company”, we expect to take advantage of these reporting exemptions
until we are no longer an emerging growth company. We would remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, though if the market value of
our Common Stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million, we would cease to be an “emerging growth company”.

If we elect not to become a public reporting company under the Exchange Act, we will be required to publicly report on an ongoing basis under the
reporting rules set forth in Regulation A for Tier 2 issuers. The ongoing reporting requirements under Regulation A are more relaxed than for “emerging
growth companies” under the Exchange Act. The differences include, but are not limited to, being required to file only annual and semi-annual reports,
rather than annual and quarterly reports. Annual reports are due within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the end of the issuer's fiscal year, and
semi-annual reports are due within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the first six (6) months of the issuer's fiscal year
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OUR BUSINESS
Overview
ATLIS AND INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

Atlis Motor Vehicles is a technology development company currently developing a Vehicle as a Service platform for electric heavy duty and light duty work
vehicles. The company is in the process of developing electrified vehicle, infrastructure, and software platforms for work fleets. At the core of Atlis Motor
Vehicles’ hardware platform will be a proprietary battery technology capable of charging a full-size pickup truck in 15 minutes, and a modular system
architecture capable of scaling to meet the specific vehicle or equipment application needs. We want to build a truck with unprecedented capabilities at a
reasonable price. We also want to change the customer experience from sales, ordering, financing, and delivery to maintenance and service.

Principal Product and its market
Atlis Motor Vehicles has several pillars of product focus for our business. These pillars are:

- Battery technology. Our goal is to offer a superior battery technology solution that offers unparalleled performance in charging as well as
inclement weather and output performance.

- XP Platform and connected vehicle technology. As we look to the future of electrification, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP Platform aims to provide a
scalable technology solution with a connected cloud, mobile, service, and charging ecosystem that will provide unprecedented workflows and
customer experiences moving forward. This platform of technology will be leveraged to develop new vehicle solutions quickly while minimizing
costs and time The XP technology platform will allow Atlis Motor Vehicles to work quickly with strategic partners looking to develop new vehicle
solutions for niche and mass-market opportunities while leveraging the vast network of capabilities we look to provide.

- Advanced charging stations. The Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station, or AAC, tis being designed to boast the highest power
solution to enter the market, a 1.5MW charging station, that's as simple to operate as filling up your gas vehicle today or plugging in a Tesla
vehicle.

e The XT Pickup truck. The XT Pickup truck will be our flagship vehicle product offering. The XT Pickup truck aims to represent every key piece
of technology Atlis Motor Vehicles is developing and how this technology can be utilized to bring capable, non-compromising vehicle solutions
through electrification. The XT Pickup truck will be our market entry solution into the world of work, and is intended to be just the beginning of a
long line of vehicle solutions built on our XP Platform.

Product Development

From its incorporation in 2016 through early 2018, Atlis Motor Vehicles was focused purely on research and development. The business strategy, battery
intellectual property, and initial truck design were created by the founding team. In March 2018 Atlis Motor Vehicles launched its first Regulation CF
campaign to fund further development of the battery technology and hire the concept team to develop the XP Platform and XT Truck designs. In October
2018 Atlis Motor Vehicles completed a prototype battery pack that demonstrated a full charge in less than 15 minutes. In 2019 Atlis Motor Vehicles
completed a prototype build of the XP Platform. Progress slowed due to lapses in available funding until Atlis was able to launch a second Regulation CF
campaign in December 2019 to fund an initial production facility and hiring an engineering team to finalize design of the XT Truck and XP Platform. Atlis
Motor Vehicles is currently in the process of finalizing engineering designs for the XP Platform and XT Pickup Truck and is tracking for completion of the
design phase in Q4 of 2020. Once design phase is complete the XP Platform and XT Pickup Truck will complete a thorough validation and testing phase
before entering production in 2021.
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How We Will Generate Revenue
Atlis Motor Vehicles does not currently generate sales for our software and hardware services. Atlis Motor Vehicles is in the early stages of the product and
company development. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ expects to begin generating sales by late 2021.

Original forecasts projected sales beginning in 2020. However, insufficient funding and the COVID19 global pandemic have slowed our development. In
2019, the Company had very limited funds and postponed hiring and relocating to a production facility for approximately eight months until additional
funding was raised through a Regulation CF campaign in December of 2019. In March 2020 the company transitioned to a fully remote work schedule to
prioritize employee safety during the COVID19 pandemic. While most work can be completed remotely without effecting schedule, certain prototype
builds have taken longer than originally planned. Current projections of generating revenue by late 2021 are based upon the Company’s plans to operate
under new safety procedures that minimize risk of COVID19 to the Company.

Atlis Motor Vehicles has received over $1.5 billion in projected reservation interest for our XT Pickup Truck and XP Platform. This projection is based on a
predicted average sales price of Atlis XT Truck of $59,968 and average sales price of Atlis XP Platform of $27,000, using electronic reservations made on
the Company's website. These reservations are non-deposit and require no down payment to place. Atlis Motor Vehicles has chosen to forego the
requirement for a refundable deposit in favor of allowing reservation holders to become a potential investor in Atlis Motor Vehicles through our Regulation
CF offering.

Atlis Motor Vehicles is actively engaging in contact development with potential customers for interest for the XP Platform. Expressed interest for the XP
Platform is in relation to conversations currently underway with potential customers who have expressed interest in development of a specialized vehicle
using our XP Platform. This expressed interest should not be taken as a guarantee of sale. Customer interest here is anonymous until further public
disclosure agreements have been put in place.

Distribution Channels
Our hardware and services will be conducted online via our website. Fleet and consumer customers will be able to purchase the Atlis XP Platform, Atlis XT
Pickup Truck, and Atlis advanced charging solutions online.

Our advanced charging infrastructure will require users to be able to purchase electricity at our charging stations. This purchase will be conducted through
our cloud-based mobile application and website.

Growth Strategy
Our strategy for growth is to focus on execution. We are completing the design work to deliver our production prototype in the second half of 2020. From

there, we will stand up production and begin building products. Once we have started production, we plan to leverage influencer marketing and customer
word of mouth to generate additional interest in our products. We will develop a dedicated sales team pursuing larger fleet customers.
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Need for Government Approval of Principal Products or Services
As we progress, we may need to obtain government approval for meeting federal transportation safety guidelines.
Our Team Members

- Mark Hanchett, Chief Executive Officer - Mark Hanchett has over ten years of product development experience with 16 successful
electromechanical and software product launches. Mark Hanchett brings a passion for solving hard problems in product strategy, design,
manufacturing, and business operations, while continuously driving a focus on the best possible customer experience. Mark has served as Founder,
Director, and CEO of Atlis Motor Vehicles since inception in 2016. Before starting Atlis Motor Vehicles, Mark was a director at Axon Enterprise
Inc from 2012 to 2017, leading teams in the development of innovative hardware and software products for law enforcement. From 2007 to 2012
he served as a senior mechanical engineer and project manager leading cross-functional teams through design and development of innovative
conductive electrical weapons at Axon Enterprise inc. He lives in Mesa, Arizona with his wife and two kids. Mark is full time with Atlis.

- Annie Pratt, President - Annie is a creative problem solver with a background in product management, design, and business. After studying
Product Design at Stanford's design school, she kicked off her career as a Product Manager at Axon Enterprise, launching in-car video solutions
for law enforcement. Most recently she served as the Director of Consumer Products at Axon, where she built an independent business unit and
doubled both revenue and profit in three years. She has brought a passion for design thinking, user experience, and business strategy to Atlis.

- Tamica Sears, Vice President of Talent - Tamica has over 20 years of experience in Human Resources in a myriad of industries and Fortune 500
companies. She has guided organizations through mergers and acquisitions, organizational restructures, strategy sessions, succession planning, and
creating and implementing leadership development programs. She is passionate about helping leaders gain a better understanding of who they are,
their strengths and development opportunities, so that they can move forward with authenticity. She loves transforming the culture of organizations
to be more innovative and inclusive, enabling teams to be more responsive to changes in the environment, more engaged, and more productive.
She will use her experience working with organizations in VUCA environments to attract and retain top talent for Atlis.

- Huda Almashhadany, Lead Electrical Engineer - Huda brings extensive experience with electric vehicles and battery technology from her most
recent roles at Byton and Faraday Future

- Will Rudolphi, Director of Investor Relations - Will has an extensive background in business development and has taken on our fundraising
efforts.

- Tiff Geary, Program Manager - Tiffany spent the last four years at Faraday Future as a Vehicle Systems Engineer, where she worked across

software and hardware teams to integrate software systems. Her experience with electric vehicle systems brings value to ATLIS as she takes on
Program Management for R&D programs.
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- Ross Compton, Lead Vehicle Designer - Ross is an independently contracted award winning designer with a varied background within automotive
design. After completing the famous Coventry University Automotive and Transport design course he went straight to Turin, Italy where he was
lucky enough to work on the interior to the Willys AW380 show car shown in Bologna 2014. From there Ross has been on many smaller scale
projects for new and developing brands, designing everything from supercars to trucks. Perhaps the most notable experience is his work at
Bollinger Motors where Ross, alongside the owner, designed the Bollinger B1. His growing collection of works can be found on his own site
www.macchinadesign.com.

- Derek Duff, Vehicle Dynamics Engineer - Derek’s love for the automotive industry started with his first truck — since he can remember, he's been
researching trucks and imagining ways to design and modify them. After graduating with a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Maine, he moved to Michigan to work with IAV Automotive Engineering at the Chrysler Proving Grounds. A truck guy through-and-through,
Derek spends most of his personal time designing and implementing his ideas into truck builds. He is currently designing, testing and validating
the suspension and chassis designs for the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT and XP.

- Matthew Wilkins, Mechanical Design Engineer - Matt has an experienced background in a wide variety of fields. While pursuing his Mechanical
Engineering degree, he competed in the SAE Super mileage competition as a body design team lead. Matt then pursued his creative side and
achieved his Masters in Design, New Product Innovation with Arizona State University. He has worked at TASER International as an industrial
designer, performed consumer research, prototyping, and UI design at Nautilus Fitness, and has done freelance design. Matt is our swiss-army-
knife here at Atlis, able to grind out CAD work on our platform and body for weeks on end, and then switch gears into creative U, graphics, and
video work at a moment's notice. In his spare time, Matt is a competitive cyclist and ultramarathoner.

- Liam Burke, Senior Engineer - Liam has a passion for emerging technologies, innovative ideas, and scrappy teams. A mechanical engineer by
education, he has worked across a broad range of fields, from manufacturing technologies, to aerospace hardware, to consumer products. Before
Atlis, Liam led the consumer engineering team at Axon/Taser, where he planned and developed mechanical, electrical, and software systems.
Growing up between Montana and Washington, Liam loves the outdoors and believes a great product should be much like nature: inspiring,
durable, sustainable, and simple, yet full of detail.

- Abel Saucedo, Senior Electrical Engineer - An Electrification enthusiast, Abel has been involved in the EV scene for over 15 years. Throughout
his career, he’s designed products across a range of fields, from aerospace hardware, to utility power and consumer products. He also founded his
own portable energy company. A home-grown Arizonan, Abel enjoys running, rock climbing and crossfit with his daughter and pups.

Current Roles Being Filled as part of this offering.

VP of Engineering

Atlis Motor Vehicles is seeking and talking with a talented individual with at minimum 10 years of experience in automotive development programs. A
preference for electric vehicle development is desired for this position. Startup mindset and a focus on frugal spending will be key. We are primarily seeking
individuals who may currently be, or who are currently exiting existing EV startups such as, but not limited to, Faraday Future, Lucid Motors, Tesla,

Rivian, and Byton.
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VP of Operations

Atlis Motor Vehicles is seeking and talking with talented individuals with a minimum of 10 years of experience in automotive development and
manufacturing programs. A key indicator is an individual with automotive startup experience. This individual must possess key talents in supplier
development, operational excellence, and lean startup processes. We are primarily seeking individuals who may currently be, or who are currently exiting
existing EV startups such as, but not limited to, Faraday Future, Lucid Motors, Tesla, Rivian, and Byton.

Core Engineering and Technical talent.
Atlis Motor Vehicles currently hiring over 65 engineers with automotive experience or significant talents that will allow them to tackle key technical areas
of expertise. Our core focus is on battery, drive systems, vehicle dynamics, vehicle structures, and electronic systems.

Product and Program Management

Atlis Motor Vehicles is currently hiring key leadership roles in program management and product management to lead our technical teams in development
of hardware, software, and firmware systems. Each program is divided based on technical and product expertise. These individuals will be key factors in
managing expectations, schedules, budgets, and team coordination efforts.

Significant Purchases of Plant and Equipment

Category Purchase Price
Mechanical Fabrication Equipment (CNCs, Lathes, Laser $1,620,451
Cutters, Lifts, Welders, etc.)

Power Tools $573
Electrical Equipment (Meters, ESD Tables, Power $5,128
Supplies, etc.)

Battery Fabrication Equipment (Welders, Testers, Safety $65,352
Equipment, Storage)

Quality & Validation Test Equipment $69,499
Office Equipment (Desks, Conference Rooms, $100,773
Computers, etc.)

Paint Booth $31,000
TOTAL $1,892,776

Liquidity & Capital Resources

As of June 1, 2020, Atlis Motor Vehicles has a balance of $129,638.27 in cash available. As of June 1, 2020 Atlis Motor Vehicles does not have available
revolving credit.

PROPERTY

Atlis has occupied 1828 Higley Road, Mesa AZ, for all its operations. The 42,828 Sq. Ft industrial facility is occupied solely by Atlis Motor Vehicles. The
facility includes both office space and warehouse space.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

No active legal proceedings are currently pending to which the Company or any of its property are subject. In the first quarter of 2020, two employees
separated from the Company under non-amicable terms. While there is no litigation pending, the terminated employees may attempt to assert claims against
the Company.

MANAGEMENT

Executive Officer and Director

Our executive officers and directors, and their ages and positions as of the date of this memorandum, are as follows:

Executive Position Age Term of Office Approximate
Officers hours/week
Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer, Director 39 November 9, 2016 - Present full-time
Annie Pratt President 28 November 1, 2019 - Present full-time
Tamica Sears Vice President of Talent 41 March 1, 2020 - Present full-time
Michael Konstas Chief Financial Officer 51 January 1, 2020- April 8, 2020 |full-time
Glenn Reese Executive Vice President of Business 32 February 15, 2019 - February |full-time
Operations 28, 2020
Greg Hassler Executive Vice President of Business 42 July 1 2018 - May 30, 2019 full-time
Operations

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
2020 projections for the total executive compensation for the three current executive officers and directors at the end of calendar year 2020 is as follows:

Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation compensation ($)
received €))

Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $200,000 $0 $200,000

Annie Pratt President $200,000 $0 $200,000

Tamica Sears VP of Talent $120,000 $0 $120,000
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As of June 1, 2020, the executive compensation for the five executive officers and directors during 2020 is as follows:

Development

Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation compensation ($)
received (%)
Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $63,461.80 $0 $63,461.80
Annie Pratt Chief of Staff $43,253.48 $0 $43,253.48
Tamica Sears Vice President of Talent $25,000 $0 $25,000
Michael Konstas Chief Financial Officer $36,806.57 $0 $36,806.57
Glenn Reese Executive Vice President - Business $133,333.32 $0 $133,333.32

At the end of calendar year 2019, the executive compensation for the four executive officers and directors during 2019 was as follows:

Operations

Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation compensation ($)
received (%)

Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $25,000.00 $0 $25,000.00

Annie Pratt Chief of Staff $3,424.35 $0 $3,424.35

Glenn Reese Executive Vice President - Business $4000.00 $0 $4000.00
Development

Greg Hassler Executive Vice President - Business $26,636.61 $0 $26,636.61

Total cumulative compensation to all employees in 2019 was $182,176.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth information about the current beneficial ownership of the Company as of April 20, 2020.

Title of Class Name and JAmount and IAmount and IPercent of class
address of nature of nature of
beneficial owner beneficial lbeneficial
ownership ownership
acquirable
Class D stock Mark Hanchett (1 10,000,000 shares 0 84.1%
Class D stock |Annie Pratt D 1,269,626 shares 1,454,640 shares 10.7%

(1) Address for Mark Hanchett is 7259 E Posada Avenue, Mesa, AZ 85212. Address for Annie Pratt is 7433 E Princeton Avenue, Scottsdale, AZ 85257.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Name of Entity: Mark Hanchett

Relationship to Company: Officer

Nature/amount of interest in the transaction: Mark Hanchett loaned money to Atlis Motor Vehicles to ensure continued operations in the business.

Material Terms: There are no material terms. Loan will be paid back as appropriate to ensure continued operation of the business. As of January 1, 2020 the
company owes Mark Hanchett $10,483.49.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

We have authorized capital stock consisting of 60,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value per share. Atlis Motor Vehicles has several classes of
common stock shares.

Class A
Class A common stock has 1 vote per share. As of March 31%, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has issued 4,871,129 Class A shares outstanding.

Class B
Class B common stock has no voting power. This Class B classification is reserved for future issues of common stock.

As of March 15t, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has 0 Class B shares outstanding.
Class C
Class C common stock is Non-participating Preferred Class A common stock. This Class C Class A common stock has 1 vote per share. Class C stock

receives non-participating preferred liquidation preference. Upon a sale or transfer of Class C stock, Class C stock shall be converted to Class A stock.
Holder of Class C stock has the right to a board seat.

As of March 1%, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has 0 Class C shares outstanding.
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Class D
Class D classification of common stock has 10 votes per share. This Class D classification may be used for future issues of common stock. Upon
termination or resignation of employment all Class D stock vested to employee shall convert to the same number of shares of Class A stock.

As of March 315, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles had 12,225,048 Class D shares outstanding.

PENNY STOCK REGULATION

The SEC has adopted regulations which generally define “penny stock” to be any equity security that has a market price of less than Five Dollars ($5.00)
per share or an exercise price of less than Five Dollars ($5.00) per share. Such securities are subject to rules that impose additional sales practice
requirements on broker-dealers who sell them. For transactions covered by these rules, the broker-dealer must make a special suitability determination for
the purchaser of such securities and have received the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to the purchase. Additionally, for any transaction
involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require the delivery, prior to the transaction, of a disclosure schedule prepared by the SEC relating to the
penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative, current
quotations for the securities and, if the broker-dealer is the sole market-maker, the broker-dealer must disclose this fact and the broker-dealer’s presumed
control over the market. Finally, among other requirements, monthly statements must be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in
the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks. As our Common Stock immediately following this Offering may be subject to such
penny stock rules, purchasers in this Offering will in all likelihood find it more difficult to sell their Common Stock shares in the secondary market

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid cash dividends. We intend to retain earnings, if any, to support the development of the business and therefore, do not
anticipate paying cash dividends for the foreseeable future. Payment of future dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors after
taking into account various factors, including current financial condition, operating results and current and anticipated cash needs.

OFFERING INCENTIVES

The Company will provide the following perquisites (“perks”)1 to investors in this offering, in addition to the Shares purchased, at each level of investment
defined below, after a subscription for investment is accepted and after Shares are issued to the investor:

For an investment of $500 or more, in addition to the shares of Class A common stock you purchase, you will receive: $500 off the purchase of XT Pickup
Truck or subscription membership.

For an investment of $1500 or more, in addition to the shares of Class A common stock you purchase, you will receive: $1500 off the purchase of XT
Pickup Truck or subscription membership

LAl perks are not cumulative from previous investments or cumulative from level to level
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For an investment of $5000 or more, in addition to the shares of Class A common stock you purchase, you will receive: $5000 off the purchase of XT
Pickup Truck or subscription membership.

For an investment of $20,000 or more, in addition to the shares of Class A common stock you purchase, you will receive: $5000 off the purchase of XT
Pickup Truck or subscription membership.

For an investment of $100,000 or more, in addition to the shares of Class A common stock you purchase, you will receive: 100% off the purchase of XT
Pickup Truck or subscription membership.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The shares are being offered by us on a “best-efforts” basis by our officers, directors and employees, with the assistance of independent consultants, and
through registered broker-dealers who are members of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”). As of the date of this Offering Circular,
unless otherwise permitted by applicable law, we do not intend to accept subscriptions from investors in this Offering who reside in certain states, unless the
Company’s FINRA-member broker-dealer is approved consummate and process sales to investors in such states. We reserve the right to temporarily
suspend and/or modify this Offering and Offering Circular in the future, during the Offering Period, in order to take such actions necessary to enable the
Company to accept subscriptions in this Offering from investors residing in such states identified above.

There is no aggregate minimum to be raised in order for the Offering to become effective and therefore the Offering will be conducted on a “rolling basis.”
This means we will be entitled to begin applying “dollar one” of the proceeds from the Offering towards our business strategy, offering expenses,
reimbursements, and other uses as more specifically set forth in the “Use of Proceeds” contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

We have retained Jumpstart Securities, LLC as a FINRA registered broker-dealer for this transaction. Participating broker-dealers, if any, and others may be
indemnified by us with respect to this offering and the disclosures made in this Offering Circular. These provisions apply to all FINRA members
participating in this offering, including, but not limited to, Jumpstart Securities, LLC. JumpStart’s compensation includes up to a total maximum of five
percent (5%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering for sales commissions. JumpStart Securities will not receive any finders fees, but will receive a
commission/brokerage fee of $10,000 plus 1.5% of the aggregate amount of gross proceeds from the offering. Additionally, escrow and technology fees for
payment facilitation will equal 3% assuming the offering is completely fulfilled. The maximum amounts of all items of underwriting compensation in
connection with this offering, pursuant to FINRA rule 5110(c)(2)(C).

In return for the aforementioned compensation, JumpStart will provide the company: advisory services, marketing, data analytics, background checks,
investor accreditation, subscription agreement review, investment limit review, registered agency, data transmission, and back-office activities,

Notwithstanding the retainer of JumpStart Securities as noted above, we may pay selling commissions to other participating broker-dealers who are
members of FINRA for shares sold by them, equal to a percentage of the purchase price of the Class A common stock shares that they sell. We may pay
finder’s fees to persons who refer investors to us. We may also pay consulting fees to consultants who assist us with the Offering, based on invoices
submitted by them for advisory services rendered. As of the date of this Offering Circular, the Company has not retained or engaged with any other broker-
dealers, consultants, or finders. Consulting compensation, finder’s fees and brokerage commissions may be paid in cash, Class A common stock or warrants
to purchase our Class A common stock. We may also issue shares and grant stock options or warrants to purchase our Class A common stock to broker-
dealers for sales of shares attributable to them, and to finders and consultants, and reimburse them for due diligence and marketing costs on an accountable
or non-accountable basis.

54




Our Offering will expire on the first to occur of (a) the sale of all 3,033,981 shares of Class A common stock offered hereby, (b) November 30, 2020,
subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the sole discretion of the Company, or (c) when our board of directors elects to terminate the
Offering.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OFFERING
Investment Limitations

Generally, no sale may be made to you in this Offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is more than ten percent (10%) of the greater of your annual
income or net worth (please see below on how to calculate your net worth). Different rules apply to accredited investors and non-natural persons. Before
making any representation that your investment does not exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A.
For general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov.

Because this is a Tier 2, Regulation A offering, most investors must comply with the ten percent (10%) limitation on investment in the Offering. The only
investor in this Offering exempt from this limitation is an “accredited investor” as defined under Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act (an
“Accredited Investor”). If you meet one of the following tests you should qualify as an Accredited Investor:

(i) You are a natural person who has had individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two (2) most recent years, or joint income with your
spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of these years, and have a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year;

(i) You are a natural person and your individual net worth, or joint net worth with your spouse, exceeds $1,000,000 at the time you purchase Shares
(please see below on how to calculate your net worth);

(iii) You are an executive officer or general partner of the issuer or a manager or executive officer of the general partner of the issuer;

(iv) You are an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, a corporation, a Massachusetts
or similar business trust or a partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Shares, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000;

(v) You are a bank or a savings and loan association or other institution as defined in the Securities Act, a broker or dealer registered pursuant to Section
15 of the Exchange Act, an insurance company as defined by the Securities Act, an investment company registered under the Investment Company
Act of 1940 (the "Investment Company Act"), or a business development company as defined in that act, any Small Business Investment Company
licensed by the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 or a private business development company as defined in the Investment Advisers Act of
1940;

(vi) You are an entity (including an Individual Retirement Account trust) in which each equity owner is an accredited investor;
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(vii) You are a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, your purchase of Shares is directed by a person who either alone or with his purchaser
representative(s) (as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act) has such knowledge and experience in financial and business
matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment, and you were not formed for the specific purpose of
investing in the Shares; or

(viii) You are a plan established and maintained by a state, its political subdivisions, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or its political subdivisions,
for the benefit of its employees, if such plan has assets in excess of $5,000,000.

Offering Period and Expiration Date

This Offering will start on or immediately prior to the date on which the SEC initially qualifies this Offering Statement (the “Qualification Date”) and will
terminate on the Termination Date (the “Offering Period”).

Procedures for Subscribing
If you decide to subscribe for our Class A common stock shares in this Offering, you should:
1. Electronically receive, review, execute and deliver to us a subscription agreement; and

2. Deliver funds directly by wire or electronic funds transfer via ACH to the Company’s bank account designated in the Company’s subscription
agreement.

Any potential investor will have ample time to review the subscription agreement, along with their counsel, prior to making any final investment decision.
We shall only deliver such subscription agreement upon request after a potential investor has had ample opportunity to review this Offering Circular.

Right to Reject Subscriptions

After we receive your complete, executed subscription agreement and the funds required under the subscription agreement have been transferred to our
designated account, we have the right to review and accept or reject your subscription in whole or in part, for any reason or for no reason. We will return all
monies from rejected subscriptions immediately to you, without interest or deduction.

Acceptance of Subscriptions

Upon our acceptance of a subscription agreement, we will countersign the subscription agreement and issue the shares subscribed at closing. Once you
submit the subscription agreement and it is accepted, you may not revoke or change your subscription or request your subscription funds. All accepted
subscription agreements are irrevocable.

Under Rule 251 of Regulation A, non-accredited, non-natural investors are subject to the investment limitation and may only invest funds which do not
exceed ten percent (10%) of the greater of the purchaser's revenue or net assets (as of the purchaser's most recent fiscal year end). A non-accredited, natural
person may only invest funds which do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the greater of the purchaser's annual income or net worth (please see below on how
to calculate your net worth).

56




NOTE: For the purposes of calculating your net worth, it is defined as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. This calculation must exclude
the value of your primary residence and may exclude any indebtedness secured by your primary residence (up to an amount equal to the value of your
primary residence). In the case of fiduciary accounts, net worth and/or income suitability requirements may be satisfied by the beneficiary of the account or
by the fiduciary, if the fiduciary directly or indirectly provides funds for the purchase of the Shares.

In order to purchase our Class A common stock shares and prior to the acceptance of any funds from an investor, an investor will be required to represent,
to the Company’s satisfaction, that he is either an accredited investor or is in compliance with the ten percent (10%) of net worth or annual income
limitation on investment in this Offering.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of the Atlis appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular have been included herein in reliance upon the report, which includes an
explanatory paragraph as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, of LLC, an independent certified public accounting firm, appearing
elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of that firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a Regulation A Offering Statement on Form 1-A under the Securities Act of 1993, as amended, with respect to the shares of
Class A common stock offered hereby. This Offering Circular, which constitutes a part of the Offering Statement, does not contain all of the information set
forth in the Offering Statement or the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. For further information about us and the Class A common stock offered
hereby, we refer you to the Offering Statement and the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. Statements contained in this Offering Circular regarding the
contents of any contract or other document that is filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement are not necessarily complete, and each such statement is
qualified in all respects by reference to the full text of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement. Upon the completion of
this Offering, we will be required to file periodic reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. You may read and copy this information at the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet website that
contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, including us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of this site

is www.sec.gov.
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Pursuant to all the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing
on Firm 1-A and has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in Mesa, State of Arizona, on
June 1, 2020.

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.

By: /s/ Mark Hanchett

Name: Mark Hanchett
Title: Chief Executive Officer, Director

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Name Title Date

/s/ Mark Hanchett Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer & Director 6/3/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt President & Director 6/3/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt Principal Accounting Officer 6/3/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt Principal Financial Officer 6/3/20
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.

Audited Financial Statements For The Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

\ ' CPAZPLLC

Independent Auditor’s Report

To Management
Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Mesa, AZ

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. as of December 31, 2018 and 2019 and the related statements of income,
retained earnings, cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enty’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. as of

December 31, 2018 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note B, certain
conditions raise an uncertainty about the Company’s ability to connue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these maers are also described
in Note B. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our conclusion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

/s Jason Tyra

Jason M. Tyra, CPA, PLLC
Dallas, TX

April 21, 2020

1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 4710
Dallas, TX 75201

(P) 972-201-9008

(F) 972-201-9008

info@tyracpa.com www.tyracpa.com
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 5074 $ (1,500)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 5074 $ (1,500)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets $ 20,648 $ 20,648
Accumulated Depreciation $ (8,260) $ (4,130)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS $ 12,388 $ 16,518
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,462 $ 15,019
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Accounts Payable - 2,988
Accrued Taxes Payable 32,545 41,531
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,545 44,519
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Related Party Loan 10,483 24,124
Loans Payable 7,737 41,174
TOTAL LIABILITIES 50,765 109,817
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock (17,857,143 shares authorized;
16,055,117 issued; $0.0001 par value) 1,605 1,478
Additional Paid in Capital 1,081,914 550,165
Retained Earnings (Deficit) (1,116,821) (646,443)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (33,302) (94,800)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 17,462 15,018

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

Operating Income

Sales $ 2,287 $ -

$ 2,275 $ -

Gross Profit $ 12 $ -
Operating Expense

Salaries $ 182,176  $ 209,595

Legal & Professional $ 89,159 $ 77,806

Genearl & Administrative $ 89,021 $ 30,340

Research & Development $ 50,428 $ 106,720

Advertising $ 34,141  $ 147,355

Payroll Taxes $ 14,486 $ 14,563

Depreciation $ 4,130 $ 4,130

Rent $ 630 $ -

$ 464,171  $ 590,508

Net Income from Operations $ (464,159) $ (590,508)
Other Income (Expense)

Interest Expense $ (6,219) $ (5,354)
Net Income $ (470,378) $ (595,862)

Net Loss Per Share $ (0.03) $ (0.04)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss) For The Period $ (470,378) $ (595,862)
Change in Accrued Payroll Tax Payable $ (8,987) $ 41,531
Change in Accounts Payable $ (2,988) $ 2,988
Change in Payroll Corrections $ 1 8 -
Depreciation $ 4,130 $ 4,130
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ (478,212) $ (547,214)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets $ - % (20,648)
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities $ -5 (20,648)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payment toward Related Party Loan $ (13,641) $ (27,956)
Payment toward Loan Payable $ (33,452) $ 41,174
Issuance of Common Stock $ 127  $ 1,478
Increase in Additional Paid In Capital $ 531,749 $ 550,165
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities $ 484,783 $ 564,861
Cash at Beginning of Period $ (1,500) $ 1,500
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $ 6,571 $ (3,001)
Cash at End of Period $ 5075 $ (1,500)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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Balance at December 31, 2017
Issuance of Stock

Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2018

Issuance of Stock

Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2019

ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Common Stock Additional Paid in Retained Earnings Total Stockholders'
Number Amount Capital Equity

10,000,000 $ 1,000 (50,581) (49,581)

4,782,630 $ 478 % 550,165 - 550,643

(595,862) (595,862)

14,782,630 $ 1,478 § 550,165 (646,443) (94,800)

1,272,487 $ 127 °$ 531,749 531,876

(470,378) (470,378)

16,055,117 $ 1,605 $ 1,081,914 (1,116,821) (33,302)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AUDITED)
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. (“the Company”) is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware and domiciled in Arizona. The Company intends to
develop and manufacture electric vehicles and other energy sustainable products.

NOTE B- GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable
future. However, management has identified the following conditions and events that created an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue as
a going concern. The company sustained net losses of $470,378 in 2019 and $595,862 in and had no cash available as of December 31, 2018.

The following describes management's plans that are intended to mitigate the conditions and events that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. The Company plans to raise additional funds to meet obligations and further operations through a Reg A+ campaign. The
Company's ability to meet its obligations as they become due is dependent upon the success of management's plans, as described above.

These conditions and events create an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern through April 21, 2021 (one year after
the date that the financial statements are available to be issued). The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

NOTE C- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“US GAAP”). The Company’s fiscal year runs through December 31.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to customary risks and uncertainties associated with development of new technology including, but not limited to, the need for
protection of proprietary technology, dependence on key personnel, costs of services provided by third parties, passing regulatory testing, meeting
manufacturing and environmental requirements, the need to obtain additional financing, and limited operating history.

The Company currently has no developed products for commercialization and there can be no assurance that the Company’s research and development will

be successfully commercialized. Developing and commercializing a product requires significant capital, and based on the current operating plan, the
Company expects to continue to incur operating losses as well as cash outflows from operations in the near term.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances, and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Stockholders’ Equity

During 2018, the company issued 14,782,630 shares of common stock at Par Value $0.0001.
Fixed Assets

The Company capitalizes assets with an expected useful life of one year or more, and an original purchase price of $1,000 or more. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over management’s estimate of each asset’s useful life.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Current revenue is earned by the sale of small merchandise.

Advertising

The Company records advertising expenses in the year incurred.

Accrued Taxes Payable

During 2018 the company accrued $40,831 in payroll taxes payable.

Rent

The company leases a storage space on a month-to-month basis.

Equity Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options issued to employees under ASC 718 (Stock Compensation). Under ASC 718, share-based compensation cost to
employees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an item of expense ratably over the employee’s
requisite vesting period. The Company has elected early adoption of ASU 2018-07, which permits measurement of stock options at their intrinsic value,

instead of their fair value. An option’s intrinsic value is defined as the amount by which the fair value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of
an option. In certain cases, this means that option compensation granted by the Company may have an intrinsic value of $0.
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The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 505 (Equity). The fair value of the option issued
or committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is measured
at the value of the Company’s common stock on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty has been reached or the counterparty’s
performance is complete. The fair value of the equity instrument is charged directly to expense and credited to additional paid-in capital.

Income Taxes

The Company applies ASC 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax
rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any and the
change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of uncertain tax positions. A tax benefit from an uncertain position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” that the position is sustainable upon
examination by the relevant taxing authority based on its technical merit.

The Company is subject to tax filing requirements as a corporation in the federal jurisdiction of the United States. The Company sustained net operating
losses during fiscal years 2019 and 2018. Net operating losses will be carried forward to reduce taxable income in future years. Due to management’s
uncertainty as to the timing and valuation of any benefits associated with the net operating loss carryforwards, the Company has elected to recognize an
allowance to account for them in the financial statements, but has fully reserved it. Under current law, net operating losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

The Company is subject to franchise and income tax filing requirements in the State of Delaware and Arizona.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, or other standard setting bodies and
adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the Company believes that the impact of recently issued standards
that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU (Accounting Standards Update) 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, or ASU 2015-17. The
guidance requires that all deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance, be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. For
all entities other than public business entities, the guidance becomes effective for financial statements

issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption

is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period. The adoption of ASU 2015-17 had no material impact on the
Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.
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In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Restricted Cash, or ASU 2016-18. The amendments of ASU
2016-18 were issued to address the diversity in classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the statement
of cash flows which is currently not addressed under Topic 230. ASU 2016-18 would require an entity to include amounts generally described as restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning of period and end of period total amounts on the
statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018
for non-public entities. Early adoption is permitted, and the standard must be applied retrospectively. The adoption of ASU 2016-18 had no material impact
on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU, 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), or ASU 2014-09, and further updated through ASU
2016-12, or ASU 2016-12, which amends the existing accounting standards for revenue recognition. ASU 2014-09 is based on principles that govern the
recognition of revenue at an amount to which an entity expects to be entitled to when products are transferred to customers. This guidance is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning December 15, 2018 for non-public entities. The new revenue standard may be
applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cuamulative effect recognized as of the date of adoption. The adoption of
ASU 2014-09 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), or ASU 2016-02, which supersedes the guidance in ASC 840, Leases. The new
standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease
is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method
or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of
greater than 12 months regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for
operating leases today. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 for non-public entities. The adoption of
ASU 2016-02 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-based Payment Accounting, or ASU 2016-09. ASU 2016-09 simplifies
several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or
liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. Some of the areas of simplification apply only to non-public companies. This guidance was
effective on December 31, 2016 for public entities. For entities other than public business entities, the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted for an entity
in any interim or annual period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for issuance. An entity that elects early adoption must
adopt all amendments in the same period. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related
disclosures.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, or ASU 2017-09,
which clarifies when to account for a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. Under the new guidance,
modification accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the classification of the award (as equity or liability) changes as a result
of the change in terms or conditions. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2017, for both public entities and non-public entities. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2017-09 had no material impact on
the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.
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NOTE D- EQUITY

The Company has authorized the issuance of up to 17,857,143 shares of $0.0001 par value Common Stock, which is the Company’s sole class of equity
outstanding. Common shareholders have the right to vote on certain items of Company business at the rate of one vote per share of stock.

Net Income Per Share

Net earnings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
period, excluding shares subject to redemption or forfeiture. The Company presents basic and diluted net earnings or loss per share. Diluted net earnings or
loss per share reflect the actual weighted average of common shares issued and outstanding during the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive securities
outstanding. Potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the computation of the diluted net loss per share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

The Company recorded a net loss per share of $.03 and $.04 in the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Company had no potentially
dilutive securities outstanding during 2019 or 2018.

NOTE E- EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s equity compensation program provides for the grant of equity awards to employees and consultants. During 2019, the Company granted
1,996,674 shares of stock to various advisors and employees. Shares granted as compensation have vesting periods ranging from immediate to three years.
NOTE F- DEBT

In 2017, the company issued a note to a related party in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding continuing operations (“the Related Party Note
Payable”). The note does not accrue interest and is payable at a future date to be determined by management. During 2018 and 2017, the Company
capitalized no interest related to the note.

In 2018, the company issued a loan payable in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding continuing operations (“the Note Payable”). The note incurs an
annual interest rate of 35.6% on any remaining monthly balance. This interest is paid each month on the remaining loan balance. Minimum monthly
payments are equal to $4,872.

NOTE G- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is an exit price, representing the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants based on the highest and best use of the asset or liability. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined

based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The Company uses valuation techniques to measure fair value that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized as follows:
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Level 1 - Observable inputs, such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets; Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active
markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, or market-corroborated inputs; and Level 3 -
Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions about how market
participants would price the assets or liabilities.

The valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:

Market approach - Uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
Income approach - Uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on current market expectations about those future
amounts, including present value techniques, option pricing models, and excess earnings method. Cost approach - Based on the amount that currently would
be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).

NOTE H- CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents. The Company places its cash and cash
equivalents with a limited number of high-quality financial institutions and at times may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits.

NOTE I- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management considered events subsequent to the end of the period but before April 21, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Jumpstart
SECURITIES

BROKER-DEALER SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Broker-Dealer Service Agreement |“Agreement”) is made and entered inte & of f!ﬁhﬁ_ﬂg
o) LG by and between JumpStart Secunities, LLC “Jumpstart”, “us, "our®, or “we®)
and _hrye Mome Ugmioes .2

_ (“Issuer”, "pou” or "your”).

Whereas, lumpstart s a broker-dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange Commissian
and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatcey Authority ("FINRA") providing capital markets
compliance and other services for market pasticipants, mcluding isswvers conducting offerings of
SECLitas pursuant to exemptions from the registration reguirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as
arnended {the “Securities Act”], including Repulation A, a8 smended. In servicing this market, Jumpstart
has created and maintaine praprietary toals and technclogy, negotiated third-party integrations, and
has developed operational services, including limited customer service and comaliance, 10 proside
certain back-end tooks and specific compliance services ta Issuers raising capital; and,

Whureas, stuvr Boomderisbing @ vailal roisig Mol pesean e e enemplim s
registration [the “Offering”); and,

Whereas lisuer recognizes the benefit of having lurnpstart, a3 & regulated market participant,
prowide cortaln support services as deseribed herein for proposed Investars in its Dffering, and therefore
Issuer desines bo retain Jumpstant and Jumgstart desires to be retained by lsswer pursuant to the terms
and gonditions sot forth herein,

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and
for good and valuable condidaration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are bareby acknowledged, the
Parties agree as follows:

1 Retention:

a Issuer hereby retains Jumpstart to provide the services set farth in Section 2 below [the
“Services”] during the OFfering period, commencing on the date hereol and until the earfier of the
completion or cancellation af the Offering or the termination of this Agreement as provided in Secton &
herasd,

b. Jumgstart shall serve as the back-office service provider for all petential investors in the Cffesing
as reguosted by the ssuer. However, Jumpstart will not provide services for any nvestors whao are
intreduced to the D‘"!riﬂ* by & rEgil-l.Er!d broker-dealer that entered inbe a aﬂhg Aagreament with
Iscuier,

c. IS5UEF BErees 1o provide Jumpstan with due diligence infarmation and materials as it reasonatly
requasts and undarfakes to update such infoemation and materials thraughout the Offering as may be
necessany for accuracy,

d. Junpstart will not advise Issuer or any prospective investor with respect to the Offering, or the
terms and structura thereof, which will be determined solely and exclusiealy by lssuar and its advisers in

Exhibit 1A-1
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SECURITIES

mesting 15 capital reeds, but will assist In advising concerning marketing and distribution, Issuer will
provide Jumpstart with copies of the Offering materials and disclosures, including the investor
subscription agreement and the offering circular [collectively, the “Offesing Circular™). Under no
circumstances shall any eommunication, whether oral o written, be construed or relied on by Biuer a5
advice from jumpstart. lssuer acknowledges that lumpstart s not acting as a placement agent o
underwriter for the Offering and has not and will not at any time provide any securities, financing. legal
or sceunting advice to lssuer, bsuer represents that it will only rely on the advice of its securities
coursed, accountants andfor auditors, and any placement agent or underwriter. Further, lssuer
ackrowiedges and understands that Jumpstart will net have any dirsct communication with investors
other than unselicited contact that will be redirected to lssuer or lsswer's designess.

FA Services:
a. HirmpStart Sacurities Responsibilities — JumpStan agrees to:
i. Phase one:
A Advisory servicss, cavering in-depth analysis ard assessment activities on the

offering, business feasdility, business analysis, marketing approach, management
experience with offerings, and certain out-of-pocketl expenses for other analysis
workfactivities, such 2t legal work, diligence, etc

Phaze two:

A, As part of a fee selection in Section 3c, JumpStart Securities may Market the
odfering 10 its previous ireestors, potential investors, and slict imerest from investars
that mant the suitability, sophistication, and purchase criteria for the Offering:

B Accept investor data from Issuer, generally via any software system used to
capture nvesters, but alsa via other means as may ke established by mutual agreement
of the Parties;

[ Review and procsss information from potential investors, ncleding but not
limited te runnéng reasonabde background checks for anti-money laundesing {"AML"|,
IRS tax fraud identfication and USA PATRIOT Act purposes, and gather and review
responses b customer identification information;

o wverification of accredited investos status of each Imvestar, as appicable in
Regulation O, Rule 506c afferings;

E. Review subsorigtion agreements received from prospective investors to confirm
they are complete;

F. Contart Issuer andfor lssuer's designees, If needed, to gather additional
information or clarification from prospective investars;
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G Advise Iisuer as to permitted investment liméts for nvestors pursuant to
Regulation [, Rule S0&{c);

H. Prowide |ssuer with prompt notice aboul neonsEtent, incorect or otherwise
fhagged (e.g. for underage or AWML reasons) subsceriptions;

. Serve as regictered agent whers reguired for state blue sky reguirernents, but in
no clecumstance will Jumpstart solicdt a securities transaction, recormmend the Bsuer's
securities or provide Investrent advice to any prospective investor;

L Transmit data to tramsfer agent as book-entry data for makntaindng Bssuer's
responsibilities far managing investors {imvestor relationship management, aka "CRA®)
and for maintaining future good-defeery and recordioeping;

K Transmit any checks received from subscribers promptly upon settlement.
[} lnsugr Responaibilites = suer sgrees to;
I Refer investor data, at its sole and arbérary discretion, to fJumpstart Securities;

i, Ensura investors wnderstand they are making a “seff-directed” decision, and provide
Jurmnpstact with all information and data required to ascertain whether the imeestor is eligible to
inwast in the Offering and the investment threshold, if apolicable;

iii. Immediately, but not later than within 24 hours, notily Jumpstart with details of any
notices, requests, comglaints or actions of or by any regulatoes, law enforcerment, Investors,
trade associations or legal counsel regarding the Offering:

i, Comply with state and federal [aws and rules; and

W Nat compensate any unregistered person directly or indirectly with any fees,
commissions or other consideration based upon the amount, sale of securitées ar success of an
Offering.

c Marketing of Offering - Issuer represents that It will ensure the marketing and promotional
activithes it engages in, as related to the Offering, are not materially misleading and in compliance with
all SEC rules amd regulatery guidance, as well as Industry best practices. lssuer will pot compensate any
person for directly selling securities unless such person is associated with a FINRA member broker-
dealer and is appropristely registered with both the SEC and the state(s) in which the inveitors reside.
lssuer may use Jumpstart's name but anly to extent set Forth in Section 6 of this Agreement.

EN Gompensation For serdocs provided under this Agreement, the terms and payments shall bet

a Advisory Service Fee. We will pay lumpstart Securities, LLC a 510,000 advisory fee for providing
initial analysis work in the first phase of services.

b Administrative Service Fees: During the second phase of services, additionally, we will pay
lumpstart Securities, LLC the following administrative service fee: (i) foe por AML check executed,
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below, [2) fee per AML exception, as described in the fees below, and {3) accredited investor verification
fee. Administrative service fees will be charged to lssuer at the time of the subscoription.

i U5 Individual 52

i LIS Ensity 13

W, CAJUK individual 45
iv.  CAJ/UKEntity %75

¥ International Individual 560
il International Entity §75
i, AML Exceptions & 150/investor owed upon exception
wiil.  Investor verification  S45/verification owed upon subscription
& Broker-Dealer Clase Fees: During the second phase of services, a broker-dealer fee will be as

selected below. Please select one,

(| Marketing fee, including broker of record service fee of 2.25% [three and one quarter
percent] of the agpregate amount of gross Offering proceeds recelved. and that are accepted, by the
lsauer for use of lumpstart’s marketing services in stete rotice filings required for the Offering and
resiew of subseription information for accuracy, completensds, and compliance with Regulation D
puidelines. Swch lee shall not apply for any investor purchesing directly through lssuer wherein such
Inwester is @ contact of Issuer, and shall not apply to any investor referred by any other broker-dealer ta
|s5uer,

EF Braker of record fee of 1509 (one and one hall peream) of the aggregate smount of gross
Offering proceeds received, and that are accepted by the (ssuer.

Feas may be reduced on a case-by-case bass, or as equired in compliance with FINAA rules. Far these
purposes, an email fram Jumpstart to lssuer will constitute sufficient evidence of an alteration of the
fees contained in this Agreement. Any alteration to the fees shall not be mterpreted 1o be, or constitute
an amendrent of general waiver of other terme of this Agreement unless specifically set forth by
Jurnpstart in writing.

d Expenses: luer will be resporsible for and pay directly {i] feas due o FINRA for filings made
with respect to the Offering, if necessary, Pre-approved Travel and ONering expense reimbursemeants
may also be paid to Jumpstart Securities for out-of-pocket expenses (not to exceed 52,500L. If expenses
are expocted o enceed 52,500 they will be pre approved.  Reeeipts would be presented with the
requested reimbursements.

e Payment Terms: Jumpstart will charge Administrative service fees directly to suer via ACH-
dabit and lssuer hereby suthorizes such payment. Brokerage service fess are due upon the sale of
securities 10 investors and bsver agrees and directs that they will be paid Irom the flow of funds upon
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the acceptance by the Bswar of any investor, with such acceptance belng conditional on the terms of the
Offering. Once the swar countersigns the investor subscription the investors are accepted. The parties
shall hawe the reasonable right to obtain documentation concerning the details of the payments due.

4, ‘Warranties and Representations: The lssuer and lumpstart represent and warrant that each has
all requisite power and authority to enter into and carry owt the terms and provisions of this Agresment
and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement does not breach or conflict with any
agreament, docurmant of Instrument to which it is a party or bound, and furthes:

a Jumpstart warrants and represents to the Issuer that:

1 It ig an SEC registered, FINRA mamber, SIPC insured firm in good standing and ficensed
to conduct securities business;

Ii. It is duly registered in states where nvestors reside;

i, Iis periennsl whe provide services 1o the hiswer are licensed securitien repracentatives
andfar principals, as required by regulations for the business being conducted;

v, It will not compensate any unregistered persan with amy fees based upon the amount or
success of any investment in the Offering:

W. It will mot saolicit or seil imvestors any other services of investment products; and

ul. It will not prowide ary inwestment adwice nor any Investment solicitation or
recommendations to any investor,

b, lsiuer warrants and represents 1o Jumpstar that:

. The affering matertals will be complete and carrect in all material respects and will not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in
order to make the statements therein, in fight of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading,

il It will duly cormply with all applicable state and Federal laws, niles and regulations and
make all filings as required.

5 N lusivity, Mo U iting: This Agreamant is non-gxclusive and shall not be constroed
to prevent eithar party from engaging in any business activities.

B, Limited License of Trademarks. During the term of this Agreement, |SSuer may request 1o use
Jumpstart's name, logo and trademarks on its website and other marketing materials, but Jumpstart
St BRERIVE iR BEVAALE the JpEdific el Inteaded by 1B4UEF. Lenerally, the ULe o JUMpLTan's Aame,
logo o trademarks is not used in & manner that implies the Offering & endorsed, recomaended, or
vetted by Jumpstart, or that Issuer or its agents are authorized to act a3z a securities agent or a
representative of Jumpstart. Furthermore, it is agreed that Jumpstart and lssuer each, in perpetuity,
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have the option to use the name and logo of one anather in disclesing the existence of this business
refationship.

i Independent Contractor: it is agreed that lJumpstart and Issuer are independent contractars for
the business and services provided hereunder. Under no drcumstances shall this Agreement be deomaed
to imply or infer that |ssuer and Jumpstart have anything other than an arm's length and independent
refationship. Bath Jurnpstart and lssuver shall be ndividually responsible and liable for their cwn
respactive federal, state, local and other taxes or fees, as well as all costs associated with thesr
businesses. Jumpstart i not & fiduciary of the lssuer or its management of board of directors in regard
to any of the Services provided under this Agresment.

8 Tesrm and Termination: This Agresment is effective beginning on the date st forth abowe
theaugh the complation or cancellation of the Offering unless terminated by either Party pursuant to
this Section 8,

A Eithar Party may terminate their participation in this Agreement withaut caste by giving 10
days’ notice via email 1a the ather 8t any time. Such termination shall enly affect future business and not
appdy te transactions or other business conducted prior to the date of termination,

b Either Party may terminate their participation in this Agreement for a material breach of this
Agreement inmediately by giving notice via email to the other st any time, Such termination shall only
affect future business and not apply to transactions of other business conducted prior to the date of
termination. The non-breaching Party has the sole discretion to grant a period to cure by glving notice
via email of the time period for such cure, However, the grant of 3 cure period does not wake any
indemnification or fights af the non-breaching Party to pussue all remedies.

. In the event of any termination, the responsibdities of each party detaded in Section 2 shall
oEAsE:

da i the agreement i terminated by lssuer, |ssuer will reimburse lumpstart fes its actual,
documented out-af-pocket expenses up to an aggregate cap of 510,000 (except if termination Is for
breach of the Agreement by Jumpstart),

L8 Mutual Indemnification: The Farties heraby agree as follows

a. To the extent permitted by law, the lssuer will indemnify Jumpstart ard its affiliates,
stockhodders, directors, officers, employees and contralling persens [within the meaning of Section 15 of
the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act] against all losses, cladms, damages, expenses and
liabilithes. as the same are incurred [ncluding the reasonatle fees and expenses of counsell. relating to
of arising out of its activities hereunder or pursuant 1o this engagement ketter, excapt to the extent that
any |osses, claims, damages, expanses or Rabilities {or actions in respact therecf] are found in & final
Judgment [not subject to appeal] by 2 court of law to have resulted primarily and directly from
Jurnpstart’s willful misconduct or grass negligence in parforming the services desoribed herein.
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b. Pramiptly after recelpt by Jumnpstart of notice of any caim or the commencement af any action
ar proceeding with respect to which Jurmpstart is entitted 1o indemnity hereunder, Jumpstart will natify
the Issuer in writing of such dlaim or of the commencement of such action or proceeding, and the Issuer
will assume the defense of such action ar proceeding and will employ counsel reasonabdy satisfactary to
Jumpstart and will pay the feas and axpenses of such counsel, Notwithstanding the preceding sentenca,
Jumpstart will be entitled 1o emphoy course! separate from counsel far the lssuer and from ary othes
party in such action if counsel for umpstart reasonably determines that it would be inappropriate under
the applicabl rulns of professional respansibility for the same counsel to represant both the Issuer and
Jumpstart. In such event, the reasonable fees and dishursements of no mone than one such separate
cowmgel will b pald by the (ssuer, in addition to bcal counsel, The Bsuer will have the exclssive rght to
settle the caim of proceeding provided that the lseer will oot settle any such daim, sction or
proceeding without the prior written consent of Jumpstart, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

[ The Issuer agrees to notify Jumpstart promptly of the assertion agalnst It or any ather person of
any claim ar the commencement of any action or proceeding relating ta a transaction contemplated by
this Engagement [etter.

. If far any reason the foregoing indemaity is waavailable to Jumpstart ar insufficient to hald
Jumpstart harmiess, then the issuer shall contribute to the amount paid or payshle by Jumpsta as a
result of such losses, claims, damages or liabidities in such propertion as is appropriate to reflect not andy
the relative benefits received by the kssuer on the one hand and Jumgpstart on the other, but alsa the
ralative fAT of e ISEURT ON Iha ona nand and IWMEsTarT on e oTer That resditad in such nsses,
clairs, damages or Eabilities, as well a5 ary relevant equitable considerations. The amounts paid or
payable by a party in respect of losses, daims, demages and liabilities referred to above shall b= desmed
ta inchude any kegal or other fers and exponses incurmed in defending any litigation, proceeding ar other
action ar claim. Wotwithstanding the prowisions hereaf, Jumpstart's share of the labdity hereunder shall
not e in excess of the amount of fees actually recelved, or to be received, by Jumgs tart under this
engapament betler (excliding Say amounts received &8 reimbursement of esperdes ncurred by
Jumipstart].

1 Certain Placement Procedures, On or prior to the date the securities are made available for
purchaze by subseribers for the puschase and sale of the securities 1o subscribers in the Offering (the
“Cloging Date™), Jumpstart shall have obtaired from the Campany the following:

a Officers' Cernificate signed by the Chasrman ol the Board or the Chief Execitive Officer and the
Secretary of the Company {in their capacities as such] to the effect that the Company has perforred all
covpnants and complied with all canditions requined by this Agreement to be perfarmed or compled
with by the Company, that the representations and warramties of the Company set farth herein and the
disclosune provided in the cffering materials are tnae and carrect,

b. Secretary's Lerblicate signed by the bSecrefary or Assstant Secretary of the Company,
respoctively, certifpng (i} that the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended of the Company
are true and complote, have rat baen modified and are i full force and effect, (3] that the resoluticns
of the Campany's Baard of Directors reksting to the public effering contemplated by thic Agreament are




Jumpstart
SECURITIES

n full force and effect and have not been medified, (i} as to the accwracy and completeness of all
correspondence botween the Company or its counsel and the Commission, and {iv] as to the
incumbancy of the afficers of the Company. The documents referred to in such certificate chall be
attached to such certificate,

[ Legal Opinion af Campany Cownsel and negative assurance statement with respect to offering
custamarily provided in public ﬂ”!riﬂgl. addressed to Jumpstart Securities in form and substance
satisfactary to Jumpstart Securities.

11, Confidentiality and Mutual Non-Disel : I is acknowladged that in the performance of this
Agreement each party may become aware of andfor in possession of confidential, non-public
Information of the other party, Except as nacessary in ths Agreemant's perfermanca, or & authorized in
writing by a Party or by law, the Parties {and their affiliated persons) shall not disclose or make use of
such non-public information, Mothing contained herein shall be construed to probibst the SEC, FINRA, or
ather gavernment official or entities from obtaining, reviewing, and auditing any information, records,
ar data, ksuer asknewledges that regulatery recerd-keeping requirements, a5 wall as sesuritios industry
best practices, require Jumgstart o maintain copies of practically all data, inchuding communications
and Offering materials, regardless of any termination of this Agreement. Natwithstanding the foregoing
Information which s, or was, in the public demain {incheding having been published on the internet} is
not subject to this section,

12 Motlcas: AN notices glven pursuant o this Agreament shall ba In weiting and sant wia emall to:
- Jumpstart Securities, LLC: jonathan@ jumpstartsecurities. com
¥ tssier Sy ¢ S (name] _Lspa ST s IOTRSEMELTS Canfacld ermail)

13 Bimding Arbitration, Applicable Law and Venue, Atterneys Fees: This Agreement is governed
by, and will be interpreded and enforced in accordance with the regulations of tha SEC and FIN RA, and
laws of the State of New York, without regasd 1o principles of conflict of laws. Any claim or dispute
arising under this Agreement may only be brought in asbitration, pursuant to the rules of the Financial
Industry Regulatary Autharity {“FINRA"], with verue in Mew York City, Mew York. Each of the parties
heroby consents to this methad of dispute resalution, as well a5 jurisdiction, and waives any right it may
hawe to object to either the method, venue or jurisdiction for such cladm or dispute. Amy award an
arbitrator makes will be final and binding on all parties and judgment an it may be entered in any court
having jurisdiction. Furthermore, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover damages plus
reasonable attorney's fees,

14. Entira Agrasmant, Amendmant, Severability and Force Majeure: This Agreamant contains the
entire agreement between bsuer and Jumpstart regarding this Agreement. IF ary provision of this
Agreement s held mvabd, the remannder of thes Agreement shall continue an full torde and etlect.
Furthermore, no party shall be respensible for any failure to perform due to sos beyond s reasonable
contrad, ncludng acts of regulatars, pets of God, terrorism, shortage of supply, labor difficulties
{including strikes), war, ol unrest, fire, fioods, electrical outages, equipment or transmission faslures,
internet interruptions, vendor failures (including information technology providers), or other similar
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causes. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement must be amended in writing.

15. Counterparts; Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will
be deemed an original and all of which, taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument,
binding on each signatory thereto. This Agreement may be executed by signatures, electronically or
otherwise, delivered by facsimile or email, and a copy hereof that is properly executed and delivered by
a party will be binding upon that party to the same extent as an original executed version hereof.

1IN WITNESS WHEREDF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date set forth

above.
IlCTUI"D wﬂa HL['EMEE" . JumpStart Securities, LLC
Isswer, by i
Name: AakiE PRET (nz.e Jonathan Self )
Ermail : ARWEETLISMOTORIERILES. 204 il jonathan@jumpstartsecurities.com

Title: CwiEr oF SHAPF Title  CEOD
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc.

FIHST: The name of the corporation k! Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc.

SECOND: It registered office in the State of Delaware is located #t 16192 Coastal Highway,
Lewes, Delaware 19958, County of Sussex. The registered agent in charge thereof is Harvard
Business Services, Inc.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is o engage in any lawful activity for which
corporations may be organired under the General Corporation Law of Delaware,

: The tital number of shares of stock which the corporation is authorized to issue
is 10,0601 KK} shares having & par value of S00000100 per share,

FIFTH! Thi bausiness and affalrs of e corporation shall be managed by oF ubder the
direction of the beard of directors, and the directors need not be elected by ballod unless required
by the bylaws of the corporation,

SIXTH: This corporation shall be perpetunl unless otheraise decided by o majority of the
Bionrd of Directors.

: In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the laws of
Detaware, the board ol directors is authorezed 1o amend of repeal the bylaws.

EIGHTH: The corporateon reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision in this
Centificate of Incorporation n the manner prescribed by the laws of Delaware,
NINTH: The incomp is Harvard Busi Services, Inc., whose mailing sddress is 16192

Coastal Hiphway, Lewes, DE 19958,

TENTH: To the fullest extent permitied by the Delaware General Corporation Law a divector
of thiz corporation shall not be liable o the corporation or is stockholders for monctary damages
fior breach of fiduciary duty 0% a director,

I, the undersigned, for the purpose of forming a corporation under the laws of the State of

Diglaware do make and file this certificate, and do certify that the facts herein stated are true; and
have accordingly signed below, this November 09, 2016,

Signed and Aticsted mu:.ﬂﬁ!&i‘f %f_‘_

Harvard Business Services, Inc., Incorporator
By: Richard H. Bell, 1T, President
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STATEMENT OF INCORPORATOR

EE S IR R AT R IR SR 2 AT RS T ]
IN LIEU OF ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
FOR
Movember 8, 2016
W, Harvard Busingss Services, Ine., the incorporator of Atlis Molor Vehicles Ine. - a
Delaware Corparation -- hereby adopt the following resolution parsuant to Section 108 of the
Cremeral Cotporation Law of Delaware:

Resalved: That the certificale of incorpomation of Aths Motor Vehicles Inc. was filed
with the Secietary of Btate of Delaware on Movember &, 2016

Resalveid That on Movember 9, 2016 the following peraons were appointed as the wtial
Directors of the Corporation nntil thedr successors are elected and qualify:

Mark A Hanchett

Resabved That the balaws inclided with thas resolution are the imtial bylaws approved
by the incorporator.

Resalved: That the Seorstary of the Company 15 hereby anthonzed and directed to
cxccute o cerfificate of adopbion of the bylaws or repeal the imtal bylaws and reate a custom sct
of bylaws to be adoptad and approved by the diractors

Resabved The powers of tus incorpomtor are hersby terminated. and sad incorporator
shall no lenger be considerad & part of the body corporate of the above named corporation

This resolition shall be filed m the minute book of the compeanmy.

< ltned b Ty #

HARVARD BUSINEES SERVICES, INC_, Incorporalol
By: Richard H. Bell. President

##% Thas document i not part of the public record. Keep it in 2 safe place. ***
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BY-LAWS
OF Aths Mator Velicles Inc.

ADELAWARE CORPORATION

ARTICLE [ - REGISTERED AGENT AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Sectiom 1. The registered office of the corparation in the State of Delaware shall be 16192
Cosatal Highway, in the city of Lewesz. Comnty of Sussex. The registersd apent in charge thereof alall be
Harvard Bustiees Services, Inc.
Beclion 2. The cospotaiion may also have offices ol sach other places as te Boand of Directon
1oy from time to time designate, in amy State or Conntry arommnd the warld.

ARTICLE LI - SEAL
Section |, The comporate seal shall have mseribed thereom the name of the corporation. the vear
of it2 organization and the wosde “Corporate Seal, Dalaware™ oo “ Seal Delaware™.

ARTICLE IT] - STOCKHOLDERS MEETINGS.

Sechion |, Meetings of stockholders may be held st ay place, gither wathm or withow the State
of Diplaware and the U5 A & may be solected from time to time by the Board of Directare

Section 2. Regular Meetines: Regular meetings of the stockhodders shall be held without netice
accorcing to the schedule of the regular meetings of the mockhalders which shall be distribaed to ench
stockliolder at the firet meeting each yesa . The regulm nestimgs shall be hield ot such place as shall be
determined by the Board Regulba meetings shall nes be tequired i deemed woecessary by e Board,

Seciom 3, Election of Directors: Elections of the Directors af the comporation nesd ot be by
witten ballok, in accorlance with the Delawae Generml Corporation Law (TR}

Secton 4. Specisl Meetuses,  Specsal meetings of the socldwoldos may be called af any dene
by the pressdere. or the Boand of Directors, or stockhalders entitbed to cast st least one-fifth of the votes

which all sockholders are entitled fo caes al the peaoticalsr meeting, U pon written request of fy pescn
or pereois who have daly called & special meettiyg, o siadl be die duty of the secietary to fix te date,
pace mwl e of the meetieg, o be held w meore Qoo ity deys afler e teceipt of dee request. amd o
v dwe notics themeod to sl the persons entitled o vote sl the meeting

Eustness at all epectal moetings shall be confined to the olyecte soted i Hee call smd the maite=
penrnang thereto, mless all stocklolders entiled fo wote ame present and consent.

Written notice of a special mesting of stockhodders stating the ime and pace of the meeting. med
the obyect thereot. ghall be given 1o each stockholder entitled to vole al least 15 daya prics, unless a
preater period of notsce ie reqaired by stambe in a panicolar case

Seviion b Crssumn A gty of e e sasling sheaes of Qe conpuoras etied i ase,
Tepresented in a person or by proxy, shall constahute 8 quonam of & meeting of sockholders. 1 lees thina
wnajority of the outstandisg shares autitled to vote ie mpresented st a meeting. 8 majarily of the hams =0
represented, nevy ndjoum the meeting of ptime withoat finther natice.  The stockholders present o n
duly crgmized meeting may confimue ko trangnet asiness bl adjeamment, notwithetanding the
withirawnl of emough stockholders to leave bees than o quosnm,

Section 6. Proxies: Each stockholder ent@led (0 vede o o meeting of stockholdens or o express
comeent o dissent Lo carpomte action in wiiting withont nmeeting, may sthonze anather person or
pereons 1o @ct for I by proxy, b no such proxy dhall be wobed or acted apon after one year from iz
date, unbess the proxy grevides for alonger periodl, @ alowalde by law:

A duly executed praxy shall be imevocnble if i stabes that it is iorevocable and if, and ondy 2= kong,
a5, it 18 conpled wish myimerest mfficient in law oo sappoct moumevecalde power. A proxy may he
irmevocalle regardless of whetler il sgesest with whacly it |2 conpled e i tterest 1o He stock stselt or
it amfeved o e corporaiion generally. Al procies shall be Sed with the Secretary of the meetmg befoe
Teimg woled wpon

Aection T, Motce of Megtivges, Whenever stockholders are medquired or penmitted totake any
aison Al @ meetnyg, & writlen sosce of the meeting shall be prves widch elall state the place, date sd
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Teonar of the meeting. and, i the case of a special meeting. the purpose o purprees for which the meeting
18 called.

Unbese oflwrwise provided by laow, written notice of ary meeting shall be given ot Joss thas ten
neo mors than sixty days before the dote of the meeting to each mockholder enfitled to vote a8 such
meeing

Section 8. Corgeid I Liegy of Meatugee: Ay seton sequered o be taken at sy ool of gpecial
meeting of steckholders of a corporation. or amy acticn which may be taken o Ay armual or special
maeting of anch stecklodders, may be taken witlsout 8 meeting, without prion notice and without a vote, if
n consenl in wnhing, setting forh the acion so taken, shall be signed bey the holders of onlstanding 2 ok
having. Tof bess than the minimmn nomber of vobes that would be necessary o autharize or fake such
action at a meatu At which afl ehanee entitled te vote therecn were presant and voted . Prompt notice of
the taking of the corpornle action wilhont n g, by bess thim imons written corent shall be given
ta thise stockhoéders who have ot consented in witing.

Section 9. Lgtof Sockoldere. The officer wivn hie chaige of the stock ledger of He
compogation shall prepare and make, ot least ten days before every mesting, arramged m alphabetical order,
i showing the nddrees of ench stockholder md the munber of shares registered in the neome of each
mooklwolder. Mo shive of stock of whdely s bnstollimear io dne and aigoid ohall be voted of nmy meehing
The liet shall nce he open to the examination of amy . fior oy prrpose, excepe a8 TequTed by
Drelmware law, The list shall be kept asther 5 5 pace within the city where the mesting ie to be hald,
which place ahall be epectfied in the notice of the meeting, o, if not eo speciBed. at the place where the
meeting i€ 8o he held, The list shall be prodnced and Eepe at the fme and place of the meeting durirg the
whide tima thereot, and may be inspected by sy atockhobder who iz present.

ARTICLE IV - NRECTCORS

Section 1. The business snd affare of thie corporation shall be masaged by ite Beard of
Darectors. Each divector shall be electad for a teomn of cne vear, ad nntl lde soocessoy ehal] quabify o
umtil hiz enthier resignation or remonval.

Section 2. Reelar Megtings: Regular meetings of the Beand of Directorz ghall be held withom
natice aecorchng to the schecnbe of the regnlnr meetings of the B oard of Dwectors which shall he
distributed to each Boad member af the first meeting each vear. The regnlar meetings shall be held at
emch place a2 shall be determinad by the Bomd  Fegular meetings, i excess of the ame Annisd meating
LAnt, [ Sec. ) shall nok be required of deeaned unnecessary by the Board,

Sechion 3, Special Meetnge Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the
Chetrman of the Baard of Directore oo 5 days notice 1o all directoe, either pereorsdly or by mail, commar
service, E-fvindl ar telecopy, special meetings may be cadled by the President or Secretany in like manser
el o like wetice by written request to the Chamoan of the Board of Davectaons.

Section 4. Qoonuy A mapmiey of the totsd mumber of directors shall constinme a quanon of smy
el syl aeeliggs olike Cavecbos G e Dmeaciam ol lesness

Section 5 Comsent In Liew of Meeting: Any nction requited o permitted to be taken at amy
meeting of the Beand of Derectars, of of sy commidites theseof, may b taken without 8 meeting if af]
members of the Hoard or committes, as the cise may he, comsent thereta in writing. and the writing ar
wiitiigz are fled with the mimites of procesdinge of the Board or commities. The Boand of Directare
may hold itz meetimgs, and have an office or offices amywhee L te wordd within or coside of the stane
of Tielmvare.

Section 6. Confgrence Telephong:. Drirectos may participate in 8 meeting of the Boand, of a
coannuthes ofthe Bomd or of the sockholders, by mems of vaice conference tefephone ot video
comference telephone or similar commmunications equipnent by means of which all persons paricipating
in the meeting can hear each other. Participetion inthis manner ehall constinfe presence in persom & auch
meeting

jon [xrectors 2 mch shall nit recetve sy stated salary for their senvices.
Lot by tesolation of the B oard, a fixed sum per neeting amd sy expenses of attendance, may be allowad
for sttendance ol ench regular ar special meeting of the Board Notharg berein comamed sholl be
cometmued to prechnde any ditector from serving the corporntion in any other capacity and receiving
coanpanation thevefone.




sockholder. The demamd nnder oath ghall be dinected to the cotporation af ite registered office or at itz
peincapal plice of busmness

ARTICLE VIIT- STOCK CERTIFICATES, DIVIDENDS, ETC,

Sgction 1 The stock catificales of the corporaticn shall be naunbered med registered in the Steck
Tramster Ledger and transfer books of e corporation as they ae zsoed  They sholl beas the covporabe
seal and shall be signed by the President and the Secretary.

Section 2. Trpefiz. Trasfirz of te shames ehall be made on the boake of e corparation apan
smrender of the certificates therefore, endoreed by the person named in the certificate or by attamey.
lawfilly comsttuted in witing. Mo tranefer shall be made which ir incomsistent with spplicable law

Section 3 Leat Cpmificate. The corpaation may Beme a new stock cenificate in place of ay
cefificate theretofore signed by it alleged to hine been Jost, solen, or destroyed

Section 4. Record Mrate: [ ovidies thed the corporation may detemuine sockholder= entitled to
otz of of to vate 8 oy meeting of sockboldes o ay adjonmment thitesd, of to eXpress Come b
compogate ackiom in wriking withawt n meeting. or entitled to receive prynent of oy dividend or ather
dstribution or ellotment of anmy mghte, or entitled for the pnpose of amy other kvl action, the B oard of
Dhveetos nury g iy odvaned, o vecord dote, whacls sholl ot be more thi sy dmee paics 10 oy oflkes
acticm

I mo tecord date fe flved
(a)The record date for determining stockholders entithed to notice of ar be vote A A meeting of
ecckholderz aheall be st the cloas of siness on the day mext preceding the day on wiich nofice B gven
o, if the iotice B waived, at te close of the bushisss on the day nect preceding the day on which tle
meeting &= held.
(B Thee record date for which detenmining stockhobders entitled bo express condant to coTporate schon 1
wiltzikg Wathont a meetdiye, whes b0 prion actaon by the Boad of Disectore i necessary, slell be te day
om which the first written consent iz expresaed.
(e§The record date for detenmining stockholders for amy otler proposs shall be at the clese of ba=mess on
the day oiy whech the Boeard of Diectods sdogitz the vesodutio relating thereto.
(14 determination of sockhalders of record entithed o notice of or vote ata meeting of stockholders
ehall apply toany sdjormment of the meating: provided. however, that the Board of Chirectocs nay fxa
e recond date Tor the adjourned nweting

Section 5. Dngdends The Board of Directors may declare and prry dividensds apomn the
catatamding ahares of the corperation froon e b dmo snd o ench extent &2 tey dean advigabde. in te
manmer and npon the terms and conditions provided by satute and the Cedificat e of Incopormtion

Section 6. Reserves: Before payment of any dividend there may be set aside ot of the net
peafite of the corparation sch s of A a8 the directore. froon tine to Hme, in their abeolnte
lradivn, Wink progen o o eserve Tould kemeel safingencies, s i cpulising divilesls. o G
repailing of maintaining the property of the conporation, or fac such other purpose as the divectors shall
think cotsdiecive to the imterests of the corporation, amd the dinectons may aboleh any ench teseeve in the
manner in which it was cremted

ARTICLE IX - MISCELLANEOQUS PROVISIONS

Section | Checks: All checks or demands for money and notes of the compomticon shall be
eipniid by sach officer of officess a2 the Beard of Directors may from tme (o Hine despeas

Section 2, Fiecal Yem: The fiscal year shall begny omthe fird day of January of every vear,
umless this sectiom is amended according to Delaware Law,

Sgction 3. Negige Whenever written notice &2 Tequired to be grven to sy perecay, it may ba
rven bo such n persom, esther persomally or by sandmg o copy thereof Hooegh the mml, ar by elecopy
(FAX), or by telegram. charges prepaid. to his address appearing on the books of the corpomtion of the
coaporation, o suplsed by him to the corpomation to have been given to thi persos entitled thereto whan
deposited imthe United States maal or with o telegraph office for ansmassion to such person. Such notice
chall specify the place. day and honr of meeting amd. in the case of 8 special meeting of sockholders. the
peniral natmre of bnameEe to be trasacted.
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Sectton 4. Wimyer of ottew, Wikmever ay wikten nolce &8 required by statne, or by Certifican
ar the Iydaws of this corporaion a wadver Useeol in wrilitg, signed by the persen or persons entiled o
such o notice. whether before or after the tnne staled theredn, shall be deemed eqmvalest to the giving, of
suclinobice. Except inthe case of 8 specil meeting of stockhol ders, neithar the business (o be tmreacted
oy the parpese of the me ety meed be specified inthe walsver of notice of puch meeting. Antendance of a
prerso edllien o persoonon by prosy af any meeting, shall constitube o waiver of netace of such meetiog,
except where a peson sflends 1 mecting for the express pumpose of objecting to the tmesction of ame
Tuzinees becange the mesting was unlawfolly convened

Section 5. Disllowed Compensaion: Any paymenis made to an offices o emploves of (ke
corparaiion sach s o salory, commession, ons, mierest, rent, tevel oo entestmmment expense incured
Ty hiim, which shall be disallowed in whobe oo in part a5 0 dedoctitde expense by the Internal Reveme
service, shall be redmbased by snch officer or employes to tie corporstion fo the full extent of mmch
disallowaice. N aleall be e duty of the dueclons, a a Boad 1o enfouce payiment of each amou
disallowed o e of payment by the officer or employee, @l et Lo Oe determmatien of the Gectons,
propraticnate amoats may be withheld fivan his fisure compensation peymends watil the amoms owed fo
the corporation fas been recovered

Bootion 6. Rengtiong, Ay director or ctler officer moy neodgn ab ony tind. muwl pooigiotion o
Tre i writing, and i take effect from the fime of ils receipt by the corporaion, wless some Hime o be
fized im the resignation and then from that date. The acceplance of A wesignaion shall 1ot be requined o
ke it effertive,

ARTICLE X - LIABILITY

Section | Blockhelder linkilsty iz limited to the dock held in the compomtion

Sectien 2. Ho drector shall be perecially liable to the Corporsiomn o ite sockhaldes for
msoivetary damages for any breach of fiduciary dary by such disector ag a director. Netwailstanding the
fovegolng senfenee. o doeetod sl be lable to the extent provided by applicalibe law, (1) for teach of the
director's duty of lovalhy to the Comporation or its sockhalders, (i) for acte or omizsons not in good faith
o which owolve mbenhonal meeconduct or a ksowing viclabon of law, (i) porasnt (o Section 174 of
the Deliwars Deneial Corparation Law of {1%) For amy tamaaction froin which the disector derived an
impraper pereanal benefit, Mo amerdiment o or repeal of this Aricle Bighth shall apply to or have any
effect on the lishility or alleged linkility of sy director of the Corporation for or with respect fo any nots
ar amdssions of sch director oconming prior to such mnendment

ARTICLE X1 - AMENDMENTS
Section 1. Thess ylaows may be smaxded or repealed by the vole of siockholdes antithed to ca=
i lenst & majority of the vites which all stockholderes are entitled (o cast theveon, sty epnlar o epecial
meetimg of the stockholdere. duly comvened afber tatice to the sockholders of that puepese.
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BYLAWS
OF

Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc,
a Delaware Corporation

ARTHCLE [
Stockholders

Section 1.1, Anmuaal Meetlngs. An annual meeting of stockholders of Atlis Moter
Vehicles Inc (the " Corporation™) shall be held for the election of directors on a date and
at a tinve and place either within or without the state of Delaware fuoed by resolution of
the Board of Drectors. Any other proper business muy be transscted 4t the annual
TeCHng.

Section 1.2 Special Mectings. Special mestings of the stockholders may be called at
any time by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Direciors or the
hiolders of shares entithed to cast not |ess than en percent of the vobes at (he meeting,
such meeting to be held on & date and st @ tioe and place vither withinor without the
state of Delaware as may be stated in the notior of the mecting. Busines transscted at
any special meeting of the stockholders shall be limited 1o the pusposcs stated in e
notioe.

Section 1.1 Notice of Mestings. Whenever stockhalders are requined or permitted
o taket any action st a # writhen notice of the meeting shall be given not less
than ten nor more than sixy lﬁnhdﬂhdhnﬁh.bﬂm
entithed b0 voue thervar [ mailed, such noticor shall be desmied o e
wunuﬂmmwpﬂmhumﬁm
stucikhilcler's address as it appears on the reconds of the Corporaton. Such notice shall
etate the place, date and howr of the meoting, and in the caeo of 2 special mesting, the
peneral purpose for which the meeting is callsd.

Sevtion 4. Adjoumments. Any meeting of stockholders may be adiourned from
time ko time, o reconvene at the same or some other place. Notice need not be gives of
any such sdpnsrmed meetng if e date, time snd place thereat are announced at the
meoeting at which the sdparnment & taken. A the adjourned meding the Corp
mmmmmmmuuum"mm;aﬂm I

ia for more than 30 days o if after the adjourmunent a new record date
hﬂﬂhh-@mm-nﬂ-dhwmﬁgﬂhwh
vanch stockholder of pecord entitled to vote at the meeting,




Section | 5. Quoram. At each meeting of stockholders, excopt where otherwise
by law or the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote, represented in person or by
provey, Mmamunm‘ﬁhmhMMﬁi
quoram, any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of
a4 majority of the shares represeniod either in person or by proxy until & quoram is
Fﬂmnmhdhmnﬁmdhmmhw«m
wh*hn-hiqd&:mﬁgwhﬂbyh&rw:&
Mnﬂ!ﬂhmﬂﬂdh“wwh quorum purposes; provided, however,
Mﬁ%“ﬂ“h*ﬂh%bmm Indndh.hd
not imited to bt own stock, held by it in a Aduciary capacity

Section | & Organization Mestings of seckholders shall be presidad over by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any. or in the absence of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors by the Vice Chadrman of the Board of Disectors, if any, or in the
absence of the Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors by the President. or Ia the
absence of the foregoing persons by a chairman designated by the Board of Directors, or
in the absenee of such designation by & chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretasy.
or in the absence of the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the
meeting, of in thedr absence the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person to act
as secretary of Uhe mesting,

Section 1.7 Veting Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorposation,
each stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be entitled 1o one
vote for each share held by such stockholder which has voting power upon the matter in
questions. Drectors shall be elected by a plurality of the voles of the shares present in
person or represented by proxy at the meeting ansd entithad to vote on the clection of
direciors. In all other matters, unless otherwise provided by Law or by the comificate of
incorporation or these bylaws, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
shares present in person or represented by proxy and entithnd o vote on the subject
malter at 8 meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the act of {he stockholders,
Where a sepurate vobe by class or classes s requined, hMMﬂhw
of a majority of the shares of such class o clisses | np d by
wrﬂhhlﬂﬂlﬂdﬁ-d“ﬂmt- mwwkﬂuw
the certificats of incorporation or these bylaws.

Section 1 8. Stackholder’s Prosdes. Every person entitled 10 vole of 0 express
comsent of distent to corporate action in writing without a mesting may asthorize
another person or pemons o act by proxy with respect to such shares. No proxy shall be
vobed or acted on after three years from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer
period. Every proxy continues in full force and effect until revoked by the person
executing it Such revocation may be effected by & writing delivered to the Corporation
stating that the proxy is revoled or by o subsequent proty executed by the person
evecuting the prior proxy and presented to the meeting, or as 1o any merting by
attendlanoe at such mesting and voting in persan by the person executing the proxy




Section 1.9, Fixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record. In ordar that
the Corporation may determine the siockholders entithed to notice of any meeting, the
Board of Dinectors may fix a record date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less
than ten days prior to the date of such meeting, nor shall the record date precede the
date upon which the resalution fixing the racoed date is adopted by the Board of
Directors. in order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to
consent to corporate action without a meeting, the Board of Directors may fix a recond
date, which shall not precede, or be more than 10 days after, the date upon which the
resalution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors. In order that the
Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any
dividend or other distritution or allotment of any rights or of any other lawful action,
the Board of Directors may fix a recond date, which shall not be mone than sixty days
priot i such action.

I o revord date is fixed: (1) the record date for determining stockholders entitled 1o
notice of or o vote at 2 meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business an the
business day next preceding the day on which notice is given or, if notice is waived, at
the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which the meeting is
held, (2) the record daie for determining stockholdern entitled to give consent to
corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no pricr action by the Board of
Directors has been taken, shall be the day on which the first written consent is given; if
prior action by the Board of Directons in required, then the record date shall be the close
of business on the date the Board of Directors adopts the resalution taking such prior
action. and (3} the record date for determining stockholders for any other purpose shall
be at the close of business an the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the
resolution relating thereto, unless the Board of Dinectors sets a new record date.

Section 1.10. Consent of Stockholders in Lieu of Mecting. Exceprt as otherwise
provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action which may be taken at any
annual or special meeting of the stockholders may be taken without a meeting and
without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be
signed by the holders of cutstanding shares having not less than the minirmum number
of wotes that would be necessary to authirize ar take such action at » meeting st which
all shares entitled to vobe thereon were present and voted, and shall be delivered to the
Corparation. Every writton consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder
whnigﬂnmwmmhnmuhmm within &0 days of

earliest consent, written consents signed by a sufficient rumber of holders have been
delivered to the Corporation.

Unless all stockholders entithed to vote consent in writing, prompt notice of any
stockholder approval withouta meeting shall be given to those stockholdens who have
not consented in writing and who, if the action had been taken at & mesting, would have
beem entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for such meeting had been the
date that sufficient consents were delivered to the Corporation.
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ARTICLEN
Board of Divectors

Section 1 1. Powers: Number; Qualifications. The business and aifairs of the
Corporation shall be managed by, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or
under, the direction of the Board of Director, except as otherwise provided by laws or
in the certificate of incorporation. The Board of Directors shall consist of one or more
members, the number thereod ko be determined from time & time by the Board of
Directors.

Section 22 Election; Term of Office: Resignation; Kemoval; Vacancles Each
diirexcior shall hold office until a successor has been elociesd ansd qualified or until his or
her earlier resignation or removal Any director may resign effective upon giving
wrritten nestice to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary
of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified theretn, and
umbens otherwise theneln no acceptance of such resignation shall be nevessary
o maks it effective. Any of all of the directors may be removed, with or without cause if
such remowval is approved by a majority of the cotstanding voting shares then entitled 10
vote on the slection of directors. Unless othererise provided in the certificate of
incorporation or in these bylaws, vacancies and newly-treabed directorships resalting
fruem any bcrease in the authorised mimber of directon may be filled by o magority of
the directors then in office. although less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining
direcior.

Section 1.3 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Dirnctors may be
huld withoust notice st aach places within or without the state of Delaware and at surh
timwes as the Board of Directors may from time to tme determine, and if so determined
notice thereof need ot be given.

Saction 1.4, Speclal Mectings; Notice of Meetings; Walver of Notice. Special
meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time or place within or without
the state of Delaware whenever called by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, by the
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, or by any two directors, Reasonable
mwthoe shall be given by the person or perscss calllng the mesting unless a director signs
a waiver of notive or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes
thereof, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without
protesting the lack of notice prior to the meeting or at its commencement.

Saction 15 Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone Permitted
Members of the Board of Directors, of any commiltee designated by the Board of
Directors, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or of such committee,
an the case may be, through the use of conference tebephone or similar communications
exuipment by means of which all members participating in such meeting can hear one
another, and participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section shall constitute prisence
in person at such mesting,




Section 16, Quorum; Adjeunment; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of
the Board of Directors a majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. The vole of a majority of the directors present at
& magting at which a quorum is present shall be shall be the act of the Board of Directors

unless the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws shall require a vote of a greater
mamber.

Section 17 Organization. Meatings of the Board of Directors shall be presided over
by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, ot in the sbsence of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors by the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, or in their
absence by a chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretary, or in the absence of the

an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in the absence
of the Secretary and any Assistant Secretary the chalrman of the meeting may appoint
any person tr act as secretary of the meeting.

Section L8, Action by Directors Without a Meeting. Any action requind or
permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors. or any committer thereof, may be taken
without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors or of such committee, as the
case may be, consent in writing to such actbon and such comsent |s filed with the minutes
of the proceedings of the Board of Directors,

Section L9, Compensation of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the
authority to fix the compensation of directors for services in any capacity

ARTICLEm
Committees

Section 3.1, Committees of Directors. The Board of Direchors may designate one or
maore commiitees, each consisting of one or more direciors. Any committes, 1o the extent
provided in the resclution of the Board of Directors, shall have and may exercise all the
powers and authority of the Board of Directors, except that no such committee shall
have power or authority with respect o the following matters:

a) Approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or
matter expressiy required by Delaware Corporation Law to be submitted to the
stockholders for approval, or

b) The amendment or repeal of the bylaws, or the adoption of new bylaws




Section 1.2 Committee Rules. Unless the Board of Direcices otherwise provides,
each committee designated by the Board of Directors may adopt, smend and repeal
rules for the conduct of fts business. In the absence of a provision by the Board of
Directors or a provision in the rules of such commities 1o the contrary, each comunittes
shall conduct its business in the same manner as the Board of Directors conducts its
business pursuant to Article Il of these bylaws.

ARTICLEIV
Officen

Soction 4.1. Otficers; Election. As soon as practicable after the annual mecting of
stockholders in each year. the Board of Directors shall elect a President ard a Secretary.
and if it so determines, elect from among its members a Chadrman of the Board of
Drrectors and a Vice Chatrman of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may
alser elect one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries, and such other
afficers as the Boand of Directors may deem destrable or appropriste and may give any
of them such further designations or alternate titles, as it considers desirable,

Soction 4.2 Term of Office; Resignation; Removal; Vacancies, Except ms otherwise
provided in the resclution of the Board of Directors electing any officer, each officer
shall hold office until his or her successor is ebected and qualified or until his or her
earlier resignaton or removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice &
the Board of Directors or to the Chairman of the Board of Direcioes ar the Secretary of
the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and
unless otherwise specified therein no acceptance of such resigration shall be
w make it effective, The Board of Directors may remove any afficer with or without
cause at any time. Any such removal shall be without prejudice to the contractual rights
of such officer, if any, with the Corporation, but the election of an officer shall not of
itsel croate contractual rights. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation
by death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors at

Section 4.3 Powers and Duties. The officers of the Corporation shall have such
powers and duties in the management of the Corporation as shall be stated in these
bylaws o in & resolution of the Board of Directors which is not inconsistent with these
Tylaws and, to the extent not 50 stated, as generally pertain to their respective offices,
subject o the control of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall have the duty to
mecord the of the meetings of the stockhodders, the Board of Directors and
any commidees in & by bt leipet b thiat prarpose. The Board of Directors may

require any officer, agent or emplovee o give security for the faithiu] performance of his
or her duties.
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ARTICLE WV
Forms of Certificates; Loss and Transfer of Shares

Section 5.1. Forms of Certifieates. A holder of shares in the Corporation may
receive a certificate signed in the name of the Corporation by (1) the President, any Vice
President, Chudrenan of the Board of Directors or Vice Chairman, and (2) by the Chiel
Financial Officer, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary Each
certificats shall state the namber of shares and the dass or series of shares owned by
wach stockholder. [f sudh cemificate i manually signed by one officer or manually
countersigresd by a transfor agent of by a registrar, any other signatumne on the certificiate
may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transher agent or registrar who has signed or
whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a cerlificate shall have coased to be such
officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate & issued. it may be issoed by the
Corporation with the same effect as if such person were such officer, transfor agent or
registrar al the date of Ssue.

If the Corporation is authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more than
one series of any class, the powers, designations, preforences, relative or other spocial
rights, qualifications, restrictions and lmitations of rech class or series shall be set forth
i full or summarized on the face or back of the cenificate representing such class or
series Of stock, provided thal tn lieu of the foregoing, there may be set forth on the back
or lace of the certificate a statement that the Corporation will fumish without charge to
each stockholder who requests the powers, designations, preferences, relative or other
special rights, qualifications, restrictions and limitations of such class or series.

Soction 5.2, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates: Issuance of New
Certificates. The Corporation may issue a new share certificate or 2 new certificate for
been lost, stolen o destroved, and the Corporation may requldre the cwner of the lost,
stolen or destroyed certificate, or such owner's lagal represesviative, to give the
Corporstion a bond suffic ‘hh&mﬂfyhaphﬂm;:hinhuyhmﬁ
lpiﬂ#fmdnﬁumrﬂpmewlﬂﬂg'fmmﬂﬂ alleged loss, theft or
destruction of any such certificate or the issuance of such rew certificate,

Section 3.3 lssuance of non-certified book-entry shares, The may by
resolution provide for the ssuance of shares of its capital stock in
{uncertificated ) form. In such event, all references in these Bylaws io the defivery of
stock certificates shall be inappiicable. The Corporations Transfer Agent shall keep
appropriate records indicating the mumbser of shares of capital stock owned by esch
pemson o whom shases are bsued, sny restrictions applicable to such shares of capital
stock and the duration thereof. and other relovant information. Upon expination of any
applicable restrictions for any sesson, the Transfer Agent




Sewction 7 6 Amendment of Bylaws. Thes bylaws may be amended or repealed.
and new bylaws adopted, by the Board of Directors, The stockholders entitied 1 vote,
however, retain the right to adopt additional bylaws and may amemnd or repeal any
bylaw whether ar not adopted by them.

|Remander Inferttorsally Loft Blamk. |
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ARTICLE V1
Records

Section 6.1. Records, The Corporation shall keep & stock ledger,  list of
stockhodders and other books and records as may be required 1o ran the Corporation.
The Secretary shall have the duty to record the proceedings of the mectings of the
stockholders, the Board of Directomns and any committess in a hook to be kept for that
purpose.

Section 6.2, Form of Records. Any records maintained by the Corporation in the

the same.

ARTICLE VT
Mlisce | laneous

Section 7.1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal vear of the Corporation shall be determined by
the Board of Directors,

Soction 7.2 Seal, The Corporation may have a corporate seal which shall have the
name of the Carporation inscribed thereon and shall be in such form as may be
approved from time to time by the Board of Directors. The corporate seal may be used
by cousing it or a facsimie thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner
eproduoed.

Section 71 Walver of Notice of Meetings of Stockholders, Directors and
Committees. Whenever notice i required 1o be given by law or under any provision of
the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, a wiitten waiver thereof, signed by the
person entithed 1o notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall e deemed
squivalent of notice. Attendancs of a person st a meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice of such mevting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express

of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business
mmmhqumwmyﬂdwm Meither the business to be
transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special mesting, of the stockholders,
diractors or members of a committee of directors nesd be specified in any written waiver
of notice unless required in the cortificate of incorporation or these bylaws.




Section 7.4. Interested Directors; Quorum. No contract or transaction between the
Corporation and one or more of ils directors or between the Corporation and any other
Corporation, firm or assoclation in which one or more of its direckors are directors, or
have a financial interest. shall be void or voldable solely for this reason, or solely
because such director or directors are present at the meeting of the Board of Directors o
committee thereol which authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction, or
solely because his or ber or their voles ane coanted for such purpose, if: (1) the material
facts as to his or her relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are fully
disclosed or are known to the Board of Directors or the committee, and the Board of
DIrectors of committes authorizes, approves or ratikes the Contract of ransaction in
good faith authorizes the comtract or ransaction by the alffirmative votes of o magority of
the disinberested directors, even though the disinterestesd dizectors be besn than a
quorum, or (2) the material facts as to his or her relationship or interest and as to the
combract or transaction are fully disclosed or ere known o the steckholders and such
comtract of transaction is specifically approved by the stockholders in good faith by vote
of the stockholders; or (3) the coniract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of
the time itis authorized, approved or ratified. by the Board of Directors, a commiittes
thereof or the stockhalders. Common or interested directors may be counted in

ditermining the presence of a gquoram at & meeting of the Board of Directors or of a
committee which suthorizes the contract or transaction

Section T 5 Indemnification. The Corporation shall have the power o indemnify o

by reason of the fact that such person or such person’s testator or instate is or was a
director. officer or emplovee of the Corporation serves or served at the request of the
Corporation as a director, officer, employes or agent of another enberprise. Expenses,
including attomeys” fves, incurred by any such person in delending against such action,
suiit or procesding may be pald in advance of the final disposition of such action. suit or

hpﬁ&tyﬂﬁmhﬁﬁtﬂhuyﬂ“mﬂwnwmmpﬂlhm
employes henefit plan shall be deemed to be indemnifiable expenses; and action by a
person with respect to an emphoyee benefit plan which such person reasonable believes
to be in the interest of the participants and beneficianes of such plan shall be deemed o
be action sot opposed w the best interests of the Corporation.




ADOFTION OF BYLAWS BY SOLE INCORPORATOR
OF
Atlis Motor Vehicles Ine
The undersigned, as sole incorporator of Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc, a Delaware

corporation (the “Corporation”), hiteby adopts the attached bylaws as the bylaws of the
Corporation,

Executed as of December 6 2017




CERTIFICATE BY SECRETARY OF ADOPTION
OF BYLAWS BY SOLE INCORPORATOR

OF

Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc

The undersigned. Mark Hanchett, as Secretary of Atlis Motor Vahicles Inc, a
Delaware corporation (the "Corporation™), heriby certifies the attached document is a
true and complete copy of the bylaws of the Corporation and that such bylaws were
duly adopted by the person appotnted in the Centificate of Incorporation to act as the
sole incorporator of the Corporation on the date set forth below

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has exocuted this certificate as of
December 6, 2017

i1




ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT IN
LIEU OF ORGANIZATION AL MEETING BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
or
Atlis Motor ¥Vehicles Ine,
& Delaware Corporation

The undersigned, constituting ali of the members of the board of directors (the
“Haard”) of Al Motor Vahicles Inc, 8 Delasors corporstion (the Corporation), in leu
of holding & meeting of the Board, herelry comsent to the taking of the actions set forth
herein, and the approval and adoption of the following resolutions by this unanimous
written consent (“Writtn Consent”) pursuant i Saction 141 of the Delaw are Cenaral
Corporation Law and the Bylaws of the Corporation:

Cwitidiwate of bwvrpastativn

RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation fled with
the Delavare Secretary of State hereby is adopted. ratified and affirmed in all respects.

RESOLVED FURTHER., that the Secretary of the Corporation is authorised and
directed to insort a cortified copy of the Cantificate of Incorporation in the Corporation”s
minute book,

Stk Levuanie

RESOLVED. that the olficers of the Corporation are hereby anthorized to issue
arud sell shares of common stock of the Corporation, $0.001 par valie (the “Shares™),
which the Board hereby determines s be the falr market value of the Corporation’s
comman stock a8 of the date hereol, to sach person named below (the "Stockholder”), in
the amounts specified opposite each name in exchange lor cash or contributed property
s follows:

Name of Stockholder ~  NumberoiShases ~ Total Puschase Prica(§)

Mark Hanchett 1000000 $10,000.00

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board hereby determines that the cossdderation
10 be recetved for the sbove-mentionsd Shares & adaquate for the Corposation s
uarprmses, g thad the sale and isssance of the Shares o each of the abws-nermd
persens shall be conditionad upon recelpt by the Corporation of the purchase price of
said Sharvs and final copies of all appropriate documentation requined by Corporation,

RESOLVED FURTHER, that wpon the issuance and sale in sceordance with the

foregolng resolutions, such Shares shall be valilly issued, fully pakd and non-assessabile
shares of commn stock of the Corporation




RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers of the Corporation are hercby
authorized and directed, for and on behall of the Corporation, (i) to take all actions
nocessary to comply with applicable laws with respect to the sale and issuance of the
Shares, (ii) to thersafter execute and deliver on behalf of the Corporation, pursuant to
the authorizathon above, share certificates representing the Shares set forth above, and
(i) to take any such other action as they may deem necessary or appropriate to carry
out the issuance of the Shares and intent of these resolubions.

Eection of Officers

RESOLVED, that the following individuals are hereby elected to serve in the
offices of the Corporation set forth opposite their names until their successors are duly
elected and qualified, or their sarlier death, resignation or removal:

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are hereby suthorued and
directed to procure all corporate books, books of account and stuck books that may be
requined by the laws of Delaware or of any foreign jurisdiction in which the Corporation
may do business or which may be necessary or appropriste in connection with the
business of the Corporation.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers of the Corporation are authorized and
directed to maintain a minute book containing the Certificate of Incorporation, as filed
with and certified by the office of the Delaware Secretary of State and as may be
amended from tHme 10 tmse, its Bylaws and any amendments therebo, and the minutes of
amy and all meetings and actions of the Board, Board committees and the Corporation’s
steckholders, together with such other documents, inclading this Written Consent, as
the Corporation, the Board or the Corporation’s stockholders shall from time 1o time
direct and to enswre that an up o date copy is also kept ot the principal executive office
of the Corporation (as designated below).




Batification of Actions by Incorposator

RESOLVED, that the Action by Written Consent of the Sobe Incorporator dated
December 6, 2017 and all actions taken by the Corporation’s sole incorporator,
LegalZoom com, Inc. and its agenis, in connection with the formation of the Corporation
are hereby in all respects approved, ratified and affirmed for and on behalf of the
Corparation,

Angual Accounting Periesd

RESOLVED, that until otherwise determined by the Board the fiscal year of the
Corporation shall end on December 31,

Erincipal Feecutive Office

RESOLVED, that the principal executive office of the Corporation shall initially
be located at 7259 East Posada Ave., Mesa Aricona 85212

Bank Accounts

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation ase hereby authorized and
directed to establish, maintain and close ong of more sooounts in the name of the
Corporation for the funds of the Corpoaration with any federally insured bank or similar
depository; to cavse to be deposited, from time to thine, in such scoounts, such funds of
the Corporation as such officer deems necessary or advisable, and to designate, change
of revoke the designation, from time o tme, of the officer or officers or agent or agenb
of the Corporation authorized to make such deposits and to sign or countensign checks,
drafts or other orders for the payment of money issued in the name of the Corporation
against any funds depoaited in any of such accounts; and ko make such rules and
rogulations with respect to such accounts as such officers moay deem nocessary or
advisable, and to complete, mecute and deliver any documents as banks and similar
financial institutions customarily require to establish any such sccount and to exercise
the authority granted by this resolution including, but not limited to. customary
sigmature card forms and form banking resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that all form resolutions required by any such
depository, if any. are adopted in such form used by such depository by this Board, and
that the Secretary is authorized to certify such resclutions as having been adopted by the
Board and directed to insert a copy af any such form resolutions in the minute book of
the Corposation.




RESOLVED FURTHER, that any such depository 1o which a certafied copy of
these resolutions has been delivered by the Secretary of the Corporation i entitled to
rely upon such reschutions for all purposes until it shall have received written notice of
the revexation or amendment of these resolutions, as adopted by the Board.

Qualification to do Business

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corparation are hereby suthorized and
directed for and om behalf of the Corporation o take such action as they may deem
mecpssary o advisable o affact the qualification of the Corporation o do business as a
foreign corporation in each stabe that the officers may determine o be necessary or
appropriate, of B withdraw from o erminate the Corporation’s qualification to do
business in any such state.

RESOLVED FURTHER, thai any resclutions which in ion wiith the
foregoing shall be certified by the Secretary of the Corporation as having been adophed
by (he Board pusssant to this Written Ce 1 shall be d d adopted pursuant to this

Written Consent with the same force and affect as if prosented ko the Boand and adopial
thereby on the date of this Written Consent, and shall be inchuded in the minuie book of
the Corporateon.

Payment of Expenses
RESOLVED, that the officers of the Conporation are hereby authorioed and

dizectes to pay all expenses of the incorporation and organization of the Corporation,
including reimbursing any person for such person’s verifiable expenses therefor.

Agent for Service of Process in Delawarg

RESOLVED, that HARVARD BUSINESS SEKVICES, INC. shall be appoinied the
Corporation’s agent for service of process in Delaware,




Subchapter § Election

RESOLVED, that the Corporation shall elect to be treatid as 3 “small business
corporation” for income tax purposes under Subchapter S of Chapter 1 of the [ntermal
Revenue Code of 1986,and under the parallel provisions of the laws of the state of
Delaware and that the officers of the Corporation are hereby authorized and directed 1o
compicte and file o cause to be filed an Election by a Small Busless Corporation with
the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Section 1362{s) of B Internal Reverue Code
and ot4ain the writhen comsent of each stockholder of the Corporation to such
Subchapter S election and file such consent at the same time as the Election by a Small
Business Corporation, or within an extended period of time as may be granied by the
Internal Revenue Service.

Authorization of Further Actions

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are, and each of them hereby &,
authorized, empowered and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute
all documents and to take all further actions they may doem necessary, appropriste or
advisable to effect the purposes of each of the foregoing resolutions.

RESOLVED, that any and all actions taken by any oificer of the Corporation in
connection with the matters contemplated by the resolutions are hereby
ratified and confirmed in all respects as a8 if sach actions had been

approved,
presented to the Board for approval prior bo such actions being taken

NMW.MUI&WH‘HIMMHM
Corporation, has executed this Wiitten Consent as of the date set forth balow

Date: December 6, 2017 Directors:

el

Mark Hanchett
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Delaware -

The First State

I, JEFFREF F. SULLOGCE, SECRETARY OF STATE OF TN STATE OF
DELANARE, DO REREST CENTIFT “ATLIS SOTOR VENICLES INC. " IS DULY
INCORFORATES DNDIEN TEE LAMS OF THE STATE OF OFELANARE AND I8 IN ooob
STANDING AND HAS & LECAL CONPORATE EXTSTENCE SO0 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF X TWENTY=FIRST DAY OF AFRIL, A.D.
ora.

AND I DD EERENY FISITHES CENTIFY THEAT PEEF ANVUIAL EEFORTS EAVE
SEEN FILED TO DATE.

AND I DO AEMESY FUNTHEEN CENTIFY THAT TEN SAID "ATLIS SOTON

VERICLES INC. ¢ HAS INCORFORATED ON THE EAY OF MO . B
018,
ANS P DO HERERY FIRTHER CERTIFY THAT DHEE FRANCHTSE TANES MAVE

BEEN FAID TO DATE.

EXEEDC E300

Ef= 30203005118 .
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Exhibit 1A-3A

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE BYLAWS
OF
Atlis Motor Viehicles

The undersigned, wha i the [duly elected and/or acting] Secretary of Atlis Motar Vehicles, a Delaware
corporation (th “Company™], does hereby certify, & falkows:

1, Zection 5.1 af Articlke V of the Bylaws of the Company was amended, by unarimaus written consent
al the Board, on December 12, 2017, to read in 18 entirety, &3 follows:

“Section Centificate of Shares. Shanes of the corporation's stock may be certified or uncertified,
a5 provided wnder Detaware law, and shall be emtarad in tha books of the carparation and
registered as they &ne isped. Certificates repressnting shares of the corporstion’s stock shall be
dgred im the name of the corporation by the chalrman of the board or vice chairman of the
board or the chief exenutise afficer or president or vice president and by the chief financal
officer or an assktant treacunor or the secrotary or any assictant wecretary, cartidying tha
numriber of shares and the class or sedies of shares cwned by the sharehalter Aay or all of the
sigraatures an the cemificate may be facsimile, n the event that any officer, transder agent, or
registrar wha has signed or whose facsimile sigrarture has been placed an the certificate chall
have coased 1o be that offcer, transher 3gent, of regictrar bofons that certificate i ssuad, It may
b Esisned by tha corporation with the same affect as if that pesson were an offices, transier
agert of registrar at the date of mius,

Wighin a reasanasble time after the issuance or tranafer of uncertified shares, the cormporation
sl surd b b ragistarasd owrer thereal o written notice that shll set forth the name of the
arparation, that the corparation s organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, the
nazme of he sharsholder, the nember and dlass (and the designation af the series, if any) of the
shares reprosentad, and any restrictions on the ranster oF ragistmation of such shares Imposed
by the corporstion’s carificate of incorporstion, thete by-laws, any Kgreement among
ihafubolder 6F dry st betaben sharehalders and the corporatian ™

2. foction 5.1 of Articla V of tha Bylaws of the Campany was amendod, by unanimaus written corsant
of the Board, on DECEMBER 12, 2017, to réad in its entirety, 2 fallows:

"Bection 5.2. Lost Cerificates. Except as provided in this Section 5., no rew certficates for
shares ar urierlified shares shall be Bieed 1o replace an ol ceriificite unbeis the beller &
wirrgndered to the corparation and cancelied at the keme Bme. The board of direciors may, n
case any share certificate or certificate for any cther securty is lost, stolen, or destroved,
authoerize the issuance of a replacement certficate of stock, or uncertified shares in place of 2
certificate previously ssued by It on such terms and conditions a5 the board may require,
Imelding provisan far indemnificatian of the CoFparation SCUnM By 3 Band oF oIReT adeguans
security sufficient to protect the corporation agaiast arry claim that may be made agalnst it,
ircluding amy axnenes or labiity en account of the alleged loss. thaft, or destroction of the
certificate of the Hiusnce of the replacement centificats or uncenified ghares.”

3, The forapoing SMEnCmEnLs to ths Bylaws of the COMIOMaton e 101 besn modifed, ameroed,
rescindéed, of revaked gnd remain i full force and effect on the date hereat




The endersigned has exscuted this Co an
— e —— ——
4 e -

Mark Hamchett
we Officer and Director

Chief Exe




STATE OF DELAWARE
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

The carporition orgamized and existing under and by virtue of the General
Corporation Law of the Suse of Deleware does hereby certify-

FIRST" Thast & a meeting of the Board of Divectors of

ATLIS WOTOR VENICLES INC.

resolutions were duly adopted seming forth a proposed smendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of said corporation, declaring sid amendment 1o
be advisable and calling a mevting of the stockhoiders of said corporstion for
consideration thereof, The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment is

s follows:
RESOLVED. that the Cemificate of Incorporation of this comporation be amended
by changing the Asticle thereof numbered * Fourth * 50 that, ps

arnended, said Artcle shall be and resd as follows.

icle Fourth: The total nusher of common shares
ich the corporstion shall have the autharity to

ue is 17,8%7,143 shares and the par valus of sach
f such shares is §0.29.

SECOND That thereafter, purvuant to resolution of i Board of Directors, o
special meeting of the sockholders of said jon was duly called and held
upon ootice in accondance with Section 277 of the General Corporstion Law of
the State of Delaware at which meeting the necessary number of shares ax required
by statuie were voted in favor of the amendment.

THIRD: That ssid amendmen was duly adopied in accordince with the
provisions of Secton 242 of the General Corporstion Law of the Susie of

Delaware,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, sxid has cauned this certificate o be
"ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ" day of -mli
R =
Authorized Officer
Thile: Preaidant

Name: Mark Hanchett
Print or Type
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UNANBADUS WRITTEN COMNSENT
GF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
oF
Axlis Motbor Vehiclas
& Delaware Corparation

Tha undersigned, being all of the directors of Atlis Motor Vehices 8 Delawans corporation {the
“Company*), pursant to Del, Eode Ann, Title & § 141 hareby consent, approve and adopt the following
resolutions as if duly adopted at a special meeting of the Board of Dingctors held for this purpose

WHEREAS, 1 has been propesed that the Campany sall and offer up 1o $1,038 T1d in Comman Stock
(the “Secufitias”) through [cancument offerings under Regulation Crawdfunding and Regulaticn [ (the
“Cangurrent Df¥atings™]] OR [an offering under Regulition Crowdfunding {the “Offering”)| under the
Sepurities Act af 1933, as amended (the "Securitles Ast"};

Rugulation Crowdhinding Offering

WHERLAS, it has been pregosan 1hat the Company sell and offer up 1o §1,035, 714 in Securities through
2n offering under Regulation Crowdfunding under the Securities Act, the “Crawdfunding Cffering™),
pursugat 1o the teems of 3 subscription agreemant by and amang tha Comparry and the Investars party
thereto {the "Subseription Agreament”], substantially in the form attached hereta as Exhabit A; and an
Detering Maemarandum on Form € that has baen reviewed by the Board [the "Memprandum®);

WHEREAS, the Board has boan prosented with and roviewed the Memorandum, and deems it to be in
thia best interests of the Co m and appi v i b e To the Compary ba

engage In the Crowdtunding Offaring:

WHEREAS, to cornply with Roguiation Crowdfunding. the Company must fBe & Farm C with the Securitior
and Exehangs Commissinn {the “SEC"), usa an online portal to communicate the Crowdfunding Offerirg,
have an independent ceriiad public accountant condutt a financial review and enter Into agreements
with & transfer agent and an ecrow aget;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the directars hereby authorize and aporove ihe Memorandum
ard the Crowdfurding OFfering, and the issuance of the Securities pursuant 1o the terms thereal;

Regusation O Grrering

WHEREAS, it has boen proaosed that tha Company sell and offer up to $1.035.714 n Securlties through
ar offering under Regulation D under the Securities Act {the "Regulation D Offering”), pursuant to the
terms of 3 [subscription/purehase] agreemaent by and among the Company and the imwestors party
tharetn {the “Reguiation D Agresment ™), substantially in the form #nached hereto as Exhibit B

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED. that the directors hessby authorize and approve the Regulation D
Diftering. and the ksuarce of Regulation O Securities;

RESOLVED, that the farm, termi and provisions of the Regulation D Agreement be, and they haredy are,




in all respects, approved and adopted, and that the transactions cor lated by the ion D
Agreemert, inchiding the issuands of the Aegulation D Socurities, be, and they heseby are, inall respects
approved, and, further, that the Authorized Officens be, and each of tham harty s, authorized and
directad in the nama and on bebalf of the Company, and under NS tororate seal of otherwice, o
macwuts anil daliver tha Ragulation D Agresment in sustantfally puch farm, with fuch chenges therein
a5 the Authoriped Officer exscuting the same shall, by the exeoution thereod, approve, and cause the
Company 1o perform is abfigations thereurder

Subseription Agreement

RESOLVED, that the form, terma snd provisions of the Subscription Agreemaent by and among the
Company and the irvestors party thereta, a cony of which hes been subsnitted in substantially final form
1o each ditectos af the Company and Iz attached hereto as Exhibit &, be, and they hereby are, in all
respects, spproved and sdopted, ard that the tronsactions cantemplated by the Subscription
Bgreamant, including the issuance of the Secusitieg for @ price of $0.39 par Sacurity payabla as set forth
wn the Subseription Agreamant, be, and they hereby are, In all respect spproved, snd, Tunther, that the
afficers of the Company [the "Autharited Officers”) be, and gach of them hereby s, authorized and
directed In the name and on behalf of the Compary, and under its corporate seal or atherwise, i
exacute and deliver the Subseription Agreement in substantially tuch form, with such changes therein as
the Authorized Oficar sxsruting the same shall, by the exocution thereal | approve, and cause the
Company ke parfarm fts cbligations thereunder

Uncartificated Securities

RESOLVED, that the Secuslties shall be untanificated snd the Autharized Officers shal rord the
iwestar name, addeess and number of Securities held by each purchaser an the Company's books and
records [Aduiing hasks and rocards kapt in digital form onlins). In the event & holder reguests 3
written recerd of thelr investment within a rexsonable tma, the Autharlzed Officers are authorized to
prepare and deliver a written natice setting forth the holder' s name, the amaunt of Secarites held and
ary restrictions on the transfer or regisiration of sald Securities Imposed by the Cerbificate of
Incarporation, the Company’s bylaws and the Subscription Agreamant or by law or regulation.

Amenslments te the Company’s Bylaws

WHEREAS, Section 5.1 of the Eyiaws of the Company as adapied an December 12 grovidi that sharos of
the Campany shall b in certificated form end the issuarce of certificates Is not comtemplated in the

[Offering] [Concurrent Dffecingsl;

RESOLVED, that the amendmants 1o the Comparmy's Bylaws set out in the Carificato of Amandmant
atteched herabe as Exhibit C, be, and hefeby i, suthinied and that the Autharimd Defizers 32
autharized to effect such amendment,




RESOLVED, that the Authorzed OFficers are, and each of them acting singly is, authorized, In tha name
arl on bohalf of the Comparry, 1o caute to be compiled and filed with the SEC such Form C in the farm
reguired.

Onjine Portal

RESOLVED, that Start Engine Capital, LLC [ $tart Engine”| shall be engaged 1o pronsde the anfine portsd
reguired for 3 Crowdfunding OFfering and that the Autharized Officers be, and each of them beraby |5,
suthorlzed and directed in the name and on bohalf of the Company, and under i1s cofporate weal or
otherwlse, to enter inta an agresment with Start Engine in connaction with the Crowdfunding Offering
and cause the Comparry 1o perform its obligations thereunder

Dus Diligence

RESOLVED, that CrowdCheck, inc. shall be retalred to assist in the Farm C preparation process and to
conduct due diligence on the Memarandum, canpaign page and othor diszlezures required for the
Crowdfunding Offering and that the Authorized Officers be, and esch of them hereby is, authorized and
directed in the name and an bahatf of the Company, and urder its corporate seal ar otherwise, o enter
into an agreement with CrowdChesk, In. in eonnection with the Croundfunding Di¥ering and cause the
Company to perform its obligatiors thersunder

Financlal Resiew

RESOLVED, that lason M Tyra CPA, PLLE ["CPA®) shall be retained to conduct the required financial
review af the Comparny's 2046 and 3017 Hinancial stabarmeits A 1hat the Autharized Oeficers be, and
each of them heraby Is, authorzed and directed In the name and on behall &l the Comaany, and wnder
its corporate snal or athansise, to orter mbo an sgrapment with CPA in conmection with Crowdfunding
Offaring and cause the Company to perform its obligations tharguncer

Escrow Agent

RESOLVED, that [Prime Trusi] shall be sppesited micriw agant and that the Autharized DMficers ba, and
gach af them hereby &, authoriped and directed in the name and on behalf of the Company, and urder
15 corporate seal ar otherwise, to efler (Rto an agresment with said sscrow agent in connection with
the Crowdiunding Offering and cawse the Company to perlarm s obligstions thareunder

Transter Agent

RESCLVED, thet |Fund America Stock Transter, LLT| shall be appointed transtor agont and that the
Authorized Oificers be, and each of them heratiy &, autharized and directed in the mgma and on behalf
of the Company, and under its corporate seal or oiherwise, bo enlés Al 50 Jgreament with msd
transfer agent in connestion with the Crowdfunding Offering and cause the Compary & perform s
ohligations thercunder




Ganeral Authorization

RESOLVED FLRTHER, that the Autharized Officers of the Company are hereny severally awhorized and
directed to tokc, oroouwsc to e talen, oll aetions in the nare and o Gokal of the Comeeny, that rush
afficars determine are nec=tsary of advisable ta consummate the transactions contemplated by, or
atheraie to effect the purposes of, the foregoing resclutions, including; but not imited 1o, SigRing,
etifying to, verifying, acinowledging, delivering, accepting. Tiing and recording all agreements,
instrumeénts and documants related fo any of the resslitione.

RESOLVED FURTHER that alf acts of the officers of the Comparry taken befare the date hereal in
connection with matters referred to in these resolutions are heqeby ratfied, approved and adopted as
acts af the Company.

I WITNESS WHEREDF, the urdersigned have esecuted this unanimobs weitten eonsent effective s of
Becember 12, 2017

Hame: Mark Hanchett, Chief Exetistive OFficer, Directar
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EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATE OF AMEMDAENT
OF THE BYLAWS
or
Atlis Motor Wahicies

The undersigred, whi (s the [duly dected and/or acting] Secretary of Atlis Motor Vehickes, 8 Deliware
corparation (the “Compary”), doss hareby certify, as follows:

1. Section 5.1 of Article ¥ of the Bylews of the Company was amended, by unanimous written eoansent
of the Board, on December 12, 2017, to read in its entiraty, & follows:

*saction Certificate of Shares. Sharet of the corporation’s ctock may be certified or uncertified,
a5 prowidnd under Delaware law, and shall b srtered in thi books of the corporatian and
registered a8 they are issieed. Cortficates representing shares of the cosporation's stock shall be
signed In the name of the corporation by the chairman of the board or vice chaiman of the
bonrd ot the chiel exsscutive aFicer or president or vice pressdent and by the chief financal
oificer or 3 assistent treasurer of the Secretary or any asskstant pacretary, cartifying tha
number of shares and the class or series of shares owned by the shareholder Any or all of the
signabures on the cerilficate may be facsimBe. In the event that any alficer, transfer agent, or
reglstrar who ha signed or whose facsbmile sgnatune hes been placed an the certificrte shall
hawe ceased to be that officer, transfer agent, or regittrar bedore that centificats is issued, it may
b= dand By he GOFRATRTIAN WITh The tama effeer 3x  chat person were an officer, transfer
agent. or registrar af the date of lisae.

‘Within a reasonabie time after the isRiance or transfer of uncertified shares, the corparation
snall send o the registered pwner thereof a written notice that shall set forth tha nama of the
eoeporation, that the comporation I onganibed whiles this lrwd of the S1ate of [etaaare, the
name of the shareholder, the number and class {and the designation of the series, i any) of the
sharas represanted, and any restrictines oa the transfes ar reglstration of such thares mposed
Iy the corporation’s certificate of incorporation, these by-laws, any agraomant amaong
sharehoiders ar any agreement between sharaholders snd the corporatian.”

2. Section 5.1 of Articks ¥ of the Sylaws of the Company was smenidsd, by unanimaus seitian consant
of the Board, on DECEMBER 12, 2017, to read in its entirety, as fobows:

“Lectipn 5.2, Lagt Cenificates. Excapt as provided in this Section 5.2, ro new eeriificates for
shares o uncertified shares shall be issupd to replace an ofd certificate unbess the ttter |
surrendered ta the corparalion and cancaied ot the mame tme. The board of dinectors may, n
case any share certificate o certificate far any sther setisrity Is lost, stolen, or destroyed,
authoeize the ssanes of @ replacemant cortificate of stock, or uncertified shares in place of 3
certificate prewioushy (ssusd by It on such terms ard condition as the boged may requine,
meluding provisian for ind fication of the corporation securad by 3 bomd or ather adeguate
security sufticient fo profect thit COparatien Sgalnst any clalm that may be made sgasni L,
Including any expense of lability an account of the alleged koss, theft, or destructian of the




certificate of the ssuanco of the replacement certiicate or uncertified shares.”

1. The foregoing amendments to the Bylsws of the Corparation have mat been modified, amended,
rescirded, or révalkad and romain in full force and affect on the Gate nereaf

The undersigned has executed this Cecdifirate &5 of December 12, 017
o

e —— 3

-~ —— y
IWtark keanchet .
Chiel Exscutive Officer and Director

Mamse / Title

449




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

Atlis Motor Vehicles Ine, a corporation organized and existing wnder and by virtue of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIEST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Aflis Motor Vehicles Ing, resolutions
were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of
said corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and calling a meeting of the
stockholders of said corporation for consideration thereof. The resolution setting forth the
proposad amendment 15 as follows:

EESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of this corporation be amended by changing
the Article thereof numbered "FOURTH:" so that. as amended said Article shall be and read as
follows:

"The total number of shares of stock which the corperation is authorized to issue is
60,000,000 shares of common stock having a par value of $0.0001 per share.”

SECOND: That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of its Board of Directors, a special mesting
of the stockholders of said corporation was duly called and held. upon netice in accordance
with Section 222 of the General Corperation law of the State of Delaware at which meeting
the necessary mumber of shares as required by statute were voted in faver of the amendment.

THIED: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section
242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

IN WITWESS WHEREOQF, smd Athis Motor Vehicles Ine. has cansed this certificate to be
signed by an authorized officer, this 22 day of January . 2020.

BY: = -Signature

Mark Hanchett ;
Name: -please print
Anthorized Officer
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BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Aflis Motor Fehiclas, Inc shall contmue to operate i 1tz research and development of an elactric
maotor vehsela;

Whereas authority to create separate and distinct classes of commen stock is necessary for Aiiis Moo
Fekicles, I 1o continge raising fands for further operations while mamtaimn g voling coatral,

NOW THEEREFORE, BE [T RESOLVED that the Board of Disectors of Athis Metor Fahicles, lie hereby
authorizes the creation of the following classes of commeon stock:

Class A
Class A common stock kas 1 vole per share, This Class A classification shall be applied 1o all issuad
cormnon stock gnless noted oherwize.

Claz== B
Claes B common stock has ao veting pevrer. This Class B clacsification it resen-ed for future iames of
coon stock

Class ©

Class C commen stock is Noo-participating Prefemed Common Stock. Tihis Class C commen stock has 1
vote per share. Class C stock receives non-participating preferred liquidation preference. Upon a sale ar

tramafer of Cless C stock, Class € stock shall be conveeted fo Class A stock. Holder of Class C stock bas

the right to a board seat.

Class

Class O classification of commaon stock has 10 votas per skare. This Class D classification may be usad
for fumre issues of cotmmen stock. Upen ermiination or resignstion of emplovient all Class D stock
vested to employes shall comvert to Class A stock.
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Approved: Mack Hanchatr /Dater 3-6-2020

CERTIFICATION
I the undera=ned. do herely certify:
1 TharIam the duly elected avd acime Secreiary of Arlis Moror Fehicles, T, and

2 Thar the figepong constimes a Resoluion of the Board of said corporation. as duly adopeed ara
maatg of the Beard of Directors thataef hald on the § day of March, 2020

I WITHNESS WHEREOQF, I hawe herounts subsenbad by nama and affnced tha saal of caid corporation
this & day of March. 2020,

P i

Comoratz Secretany,
Arliz Mator Velticlss, Inc

51




Exhibit 1A-4

FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT RELATING TO OFFERING CONSUMMATED JUNE 1, 2020 FOR THE SALE OF COMMON
STOCK

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.

ATTLIS

MOTOR V = =

A Delaware Corporation
INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBSCRIBERS

IF, AFTER YOU HAVE CAREFULLY REVIEWED THE OFFERING CIRCULAR DATED JUNE 1, 2020 (THE “OFFERING CIRCULAR”) OF ATLIS
MOTOR VEHICLES, INC. (THE “COMPANY”), YOU DECIDE TO PURCHASE SHARES (AS DESCRIBED IN THE OFFERING CIRCULAR),
PLEASE CAREFULLY OBSERVE THE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW. THE INFORMATION REQUESTED IN THESE SUBSCRIPTION PAPERS IS
NECESSARY TO ENSURE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SECTION 4(2) AND REGULATION D OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED. SUCH INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND WILL NOT BE REVIEWED BY ANYONE OTHER THAN THE
COMPANY AND ITS COUNSEL. ALL SUBSCRIPTION PAPERS MUST BE COMPLETED, CORRECTLY SIGNED AND DATED, OR THEY MAY
NOT BE ACCEPTED.

CAPITALIZED TERMS USED BUT NOT DEFINED HEREIN SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS ASCRIBED TO THEM IN THE OFFERING
CIRCULAR.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

THIS INVESTMENT INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. THIS INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE ONLY FOR PERSONS WHO CAN BEAR THE
ECONOMIC RISK FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME AND WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.
FURTHERMORE, INVESTORS MUST UNDERSTAND THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS ILLIQUID AND IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE TO BE
ILLIQUID FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. NO PUBLIC MARKET EXISTS FOR THE SECURITIES.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE ON
EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS.
ALTHOUGH AN OFFERING STATEMENT HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “SEC”), THAT
OFFERING STATEMENT DOES NOT INCLUDE THE SAME INFORMATION THAT WOULD BE INCLUDED IN A REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER THE ACT. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED UPON THE MERITS
OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIALS OR
INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. ANY REPRESENTATION TO
THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.




THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT. IN
ADDITION, THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY” LAWS. INVESTORS WHO ARE NOT “ACCREDITED INVESTORS” (AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN SECTION
501 OF REGULATION D PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) ARE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS ON THE AMOUNT THEY MAY
INVEST, AS SET OUT IN SECTION 4(g). THE COMPANY IS RELYING ON THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH BY
EACH INVESTOR IN THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY INVESTOR IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS OFFERING TO DETERMINE THE APPLICABILITY TO THIS OFFERING OF EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY NOT TREAT THE CONTENTS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, THE OFFERING CIRCULAR OR ANY
OF THE OTHER MATERIALS PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY (COLLECTIVELY, THE “OFFERING MATERIALS”), OR ANY PRIOR OR
SUBSEQUENT COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS (INCLUDING “TESTING
THE WATERS” MATERIALS) AS INVESTMENT, LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE. IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST
RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE TERMS OF THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND THE
RISKS INVOLVED. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THE INVESTOR’S OWN COUNSEL, ACCOUNTANTS AND OTHER
PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS AS TO INVESTMENT, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE INVESTOR’S
PROPOSED INVESTMENT.

THE OFFERING MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER
THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE
BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY’S
MANAGEMENT. WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS “ESTIMATE,” “PROJECT,” “BELIEVE,” “ANTICIPATE,”
“INTEND,” “EXPECT” AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH
CONSTITUTE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT’S CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT
TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY’S ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO
PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THEY ARE
MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
TO REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE OCCURRENCE OF UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

DO NOT SIGN THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT UNLESS YOU CAN MAKE ALL THE REPRESENTATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN
AND IN THE ATTACHED QUALIFIED PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE.

(THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)




SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This subscription agreement (this “Subscription Agreement” or the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (hereinafter the “Company”) and the undersigned (hereinafter the “Investor”) as of the date set forth on the signature page hereto. Any term
used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Offering Circular (as defined below).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company desires to offer shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Class A Common Stock”) on a “best efforts”
basis pursuant to Regulation A of Section 3(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuant to a Tier 2 offerings (the
“Offering”), of up to 3,033,987 shares of Class A Common Stock of the Company, at a purchase price of $8.24 per share (the “Per Share Purchase
Price”), for total gross proceeds of up to $25,000,000 (the “Maximum Offering”); and

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to acquire that number of shares of Class A Common Stock (the “Shares”) as set forth on the signature page hereto at the
purchase price set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Offering will terminate on the first to occur of: (i) November 30, 2020, subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the
sole discretion of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Maximum Offering is sold; or (iii) when our board of directors elects to terminate the Offering
(in either case, the “Termination Date”).

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do hereby agree as
follows:

1. Subscription.

(@)  The Investor hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Shares set forth on the signature page hereto at the Per Share
Purchase Price, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The aggregate purchase price for the Shares with respect to each Investor (the “Purchase
Price”) is payable in the manner provided in Section 2(a) below..

(b) Investor understands that the Shares are being offered pursuant to the Form 1-A Regulation A Offering Circular dated May 4, 2020 and its exhibits
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on May 4, 2020 and the FORM 1-A Post Qualification Offering Circular filed with the
SEC on June 5, 2020, (collectively, the “Offering Circular”). The Investor is also urged to review the Company’s Annual Report for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2019, which has been filed or will be filed by the Company with the SEC pursuant to Rule 257(b)(1) of Regulation A and any Form 1-U
Current Reports pursuant to Regulation A filed by the Company with the SEC (all such reports, together with the Offering Circular are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “SEC Reports”). By subscribing to the Offering, the Investor acknowledges that Investor has received and reviewed a copy
of the SEC Reports and any other information required by Investor to make an investment decision with respect to the Shares. The Company will accept
tenders of funds to purchase the Shares. The Company will close on investments on a “rolling basis,” pursuant to the terms of the Offering Circular. As a
result, not all investors will receive their Shares on the same date.

(c) This subscription may be accepted or rejected in whole or in part, for any reason or for no reason, at any time prior to the Termination Date, by the
Company at its sole and absolute discretion. In addition, the Company, at its sole and absolute discretion, may allocate to Investor only a portion of the
number of the Shares that Investor has subscribed for hereunder. The Company will notify Investor whether this subscription is accepted (whether in whole
or in part) or rejected. If Investor’s subscription is rejected, Investor’s payment (or portion thereof if partially rejected) will be returned to Investor without
interest and all of Investor’s obligations hereunder shall terminate. In the event of rejection of this subscription in its entirety, or in the event the sale of the
Shares (or any portion thereof) to an Investor is not consummated for any reason, this Subscription Agreement shall have no force or effect, except
for Section 5 hereof, which shall remain in full force and effect.




(d) The terms of this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon Investor and its permitted transferees, heirs, successors and assigns (collectively, the
“Transferees”); provided, however, that for any such transfer to be deemed effective, the Transferee shall have executed and delivered to the Company in
advance an instrument in form acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion, pursuant to which the proposed Transferee shall acknowledge and agree to
be bound by the representations and warranties of Investor and the terms of this Subscription Agreement. No transfer of this Agreement may be made
without the consent of the Company, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.

2. Payment and Purchase Procedure. The Purchase Price shall be paid simultaneously with Investor’s subscription. Investor shall deliver payment for the
aggregate purchase price of the Shares by check, credit card, ACH deposit or by wire transfer to an account designated by the Company, or through
Company’s FINRA certified broker-dealer, as outlined in Section 8 below. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must fully
comply with the purchase procedure requirements set forth in Section 8 below.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and warrants to Investor that the following representations and warranties
are true and complete in all material respects as of the date of each Closing: (a) the Company is a corporation duly formed, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Company has all requisite power and authority to own and operate its properties and assets, to
execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement, the Shares and any other agreements or instruments required hereunder. The Company is duly qualified
and is authorized to do business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation in all jurisdictions in which the nature of its activities and of its properties
(both owned and leased) makes such qualification necessary, except for those jurisdictions in which failure to do so would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company or its business; (b) The issuance, sale and delivery of the Shares in accordance with this Subscription Agreement have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. The Shares, when issued, sold and delivered against payment therefor in
accordance with the provisions of this Subscription Agreement, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable; (c) the acceptance by the
Company of this Subscription Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby are within the Company’s powers and have been
duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. Upon the Company’s acceptance of this Subscription Agreement, this
Subscription Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms,
except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief, or other equitable remedies and (iii)
with respect to provisions relating to indemnification and contribution, as limited by the Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws and the Delaware
General Corporate Law in general.

4. Representations and Warranties of Investor. By subscribing to the Offering, Investor (and, if Investor is purchasing the Shares subscribed for hereby
in a fiduciary capacity, the person or persons for whom Investor is so purchasing) represents and warrants, which representations and warranties are true
and complete in all material respects, as of the date of each Closing:




(a) Requisite Power and Authority. Investor has all necessary power and authority under all applicable provisions of law to subscribe to the Offering, to
execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and to carry out the provisions thereof. All actions on Investor’s part required for the lawful subscription to
the offering have been or will be effectively taken prior to the Closing. Upon subscribing to the Offering, this Subscription Agreement will be a valid and
binding obligation of Investor, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights and (ii) as limited by general principles of equity that restrict the
availability of equitable remedies.

(b) Company Offering Circular and SEC Reports. Investor acknowledges the public availability of the Company’s Offering Circular. This Offering
Circular is made available in the Company’s qualified offering statement on SEC Form 1-A,on May 4, 2020. Such Offering Circular was amended and
restated pursuant to a Form 1-A POS Offering Circular filed with the SEC on June 5, 2020, and again qualified by the SEC on [June __, 2018]. In the
Company’s Offering Circular it makes clear the terms and conditions of the offering of Shares and the risks associated therewith are described. Investor has
had an opportunity to discuss the Company’s business, management and financial affairs with directors, officers and management of the Company and has
had the opportunity to review the Company’s operations and facilities. Investor has also had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from
the Company and its management regarding the terms and conditions of this investment. Investor acknowledges that except as set forth herein, no
representations or warranties have been made to Investor, or to Investor’s advisors or representative, by the Company or others with respect to the business
or prospects of the Company or its financial condition.

(c) Investment Experience; Investor Determination of Suitability. Investor has sufficient experience in financial and business matters to be capable of
utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor’s investment in the Shares, and to make an informed decision relating thereto.
Alternatively, the Investor has utilized the services of a purchaser representative and together they have sufficient experience in financial and business
matters that they are capable of utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor’s investment in the Shares, and to make an informed
decision relating thereto. Investor has evaluated the risks of an investment in the Shares, including those described in the section of the Offering Circular
entitled “Risk Factors,” and has determined that the investment is suitable for Investor. Investor has adequate financial resources for an investment of this
character. Investor could bear a complete loss of Investor’s investment in the Company.

(d) No Registration. Investor understands that the Shares are not being registered under the Securities Act on the ground that the issuance is exempt under
Regulation A of Section 3(b) of the Securities Act, and that reliance on such exemption is predicated in part on the truth and accuracy of Investor's
representations and warranties, and those of the other purchasers of the Shares, in the offering. Investor further understands that the Company has engaged
the services of a broker/dealer who is registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), JumpStart Securities, LLC. The Company
intends to use the broker/dealer to register/qualify the Shares in all states.. In the event that Shares are so registered or qualified, the Company will notify
the Investor and all prospective purchasers of the Shares as to those states in which the Company is permitted to offer and sell the Shares. If FINRA
approves the compensation of such broker/dealer, then the Shares will no longer be required to be registered under state securities laws on the basis that the
issuance thereof is exempt as an offer and sale not involving a registrable public offering in such state, as the Shares will be “covered securities” under the
National Securities Market Improvement Act of 1996. The Investor covenants not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Shares unless such Shares
have been registered under the applicable state securities laws in which the Shares are sold, or unless exemptions from such registration requirements are
otherwise available.




(e) Illiquidity and Continued Economic Risk. Investor acknowledges and agrees that there is no ready public market for the Shares and that there is no
guarantee that a market for their resale will ever exist. The Company has no obligation to list any of the Shares on any market or take any steps (including
registration under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) with respect to facilitating trading or resale of the Shares.
Investor must bear the economic risk of this investment indefinitely and Investor acknowledges that Investor is able to bear the economic risk of losing
Investor’s entire investment in the Shares.

(f) Accredited Investor Status or Investment Limits. Investor represents that either:
(i) that Investor is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Shares Act; or

(ii) that the Purchase Price, together with any other amounts previously used to purchase Shares in this offering, does not exceed Ten Percent (10%) of
the greater of Investor’s annual income or net worth (or in the case where Investor is a non-natural person, their revenue or net assets for such
Investor's most recently completed fiscal year end).

Investor represents that to the extent it has any questions with respect to its status as an accredited investor, or the application of the investment limits, it has
sought professional advice.

(g) Stockholder Information. Within five (5) days after receipt of a request from the Company, Investor hereby agrees to provide such information with
respect to its status as a stockholder (or potential stockholder) and to execute and deliver such documents as may reasonably be necessary to comply with
any and all laws and regulations to which the Company is or may become subject, including, without limitation, the need to determine the accredited
investor status of the Company’s stockholders. Investor further agrees that in the event it transfers any Shares, it will require the transferee of such Shares to
agree to provide such information to the Company as a condition of such transfer.

(h) Valuation; Arbitrary Determination of Per Share Purchase Price by the Company. Investor acknowledges that the Per Share Purchase Price of the
Shares to be sold in this offering was set by the Company on the basis of the Company’s internal valuation and no warranties are made as to value. Investor
further acknowledges that future offerings of securities of the Company may be made at lower valuations, with the result that Investor’s investment will
bear a lower valuation.

(i) Domicile. Investor maintains Investor’s domicile (and is not a transient or temporary resident) at the address provided with Investors subscription.

(j) Foreign Investors. If Investor is not a United States person (as defined by Section 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended),
Investor hereby represents that it has satisfied itself as to the full observance of the laws of its jurisdiction in connection with any invitation to subscribe for
the Shares or any use of this Subscription Agreement, including (i) the legal requirements within its jurisdiction for the purchase of the Shares, (ii) any
foreign exchange restrictions applicable to such purchase, (iii) any governmental or other consents that may need to be obtained, and (iv) the income tax
and other tax consequences, if any, that may be relevant to the purchase, holding, redemption, sale, or transfer of the Shares. Investor’s subscription and
payment for and continued beneficial ownership of the Shares will not violate any applicable securities or other laws of Investor’s jurisdiction.

(k) Fiduciary Capacity. If Investor is purchasing the Shares in a fiduciary capacity for another person or entity, including without limitation a corporation,
partnership, trust or any other entity, the Investor has been duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement and all other subscription documents.
Upon request of the Company, Investor will provide true, complete and current copies of all relevant documents creating the Investor, authorizing its
investment in the Company and/or evidencing the satisfaction of the foregoing.




5. Indemnity. The representations, warranties and covenants made by Investor herein shall survive the closing of this Subscription Agreement. Investor
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each other person, if any, who controls the
Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever (including, but
not limited to, any and all reasonable attorneys’ fees, including attorneys’ fees on appeal) and expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or
defending against any false representation or warranty or breach of failure by Investor to comply with any covenant or agreement made by Investor herein
or in any other document furnished by Investor to any of the foregoing in connection with this transaction

6. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the
Offering Circular, including, without limitation, this Subscription Agreement, shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of Arizona, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the
interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this Subscription Agreement and any documents included within the Offering
Circular (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees or agents) shall
be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the State of Arizona. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the state and federal courts sitting in the State of Arizona for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction
contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the documents included within the Offering Circular), and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such
court, that such action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of
process and consents to process being served in any such action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight
delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Subscription Agreement and agrees that such service
shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve
process in any other manner permitted by law. If any party hereto shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the documents
included within the Offering Circular, then the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the non-prevailing party for its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES
EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY,
UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.

7. Notices. Notice, requests, demands and other communications relating to this Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein shall be
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if and when (a) delivered personally, on the date of such delivery; or (b) mailed by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in the third day after the posting thereof; or (c) emailed on the date of such delivery to the address
of the respective parties as follows, if to the Company, to Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc 1828 N. Higley Rd. Mesa, AZ 85205, Attention: Mark Hanchett, Chief
Executive Officer or Annie Pratt, President or via annie@atlismotorvehicles.com. If to Investor, at Investor’s address supplied in connection with this
subscription, or to such other address as may be specified by written notice from time to time by the party entitled to receive such notice. Any notices,
requests, demands or other communications by email shall be confirmed by letter given in accordance with (a) or (b) above.




8. Purchase Procedure. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must, and he does hereby, deliver to the Company: (a) a fully
completed and executed counterpart of the Signature Page attached to this Subscription Agreement; and (b) payment for the aggregate Purchase Price in the
amount set forth on the Signature Page attached to this Agreement. Payment may be made by either check, wire, credit card or ACH deposits using the form
provided on invest.atlismotorvehicles.com. This form will be submitted to PrimeTrust, the Company’s escrow and payment processing provider.

9. Miscellaneous. All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of
the person or persons or entity or entities may require. Other than as set forth herein, this Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable by
Investor. The representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon Investor and its heirs,
executors, administrators and successors and shall inure to the benefit of the Company and its successors and assigns. None of the provisions of this
Subscription Agreement may be waived, changed or terminated orally or otherwise, except as specifically set forth herein or except by a writing signed by
the Company and Investor. In the event any part of this Subscription Agreement is found to be void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions are intended
to be separable and binding with the same effect as if the void or unenforceable part were never the subject of agreement. The invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability of one or more of the provisions of this Subscription Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of
the remainder of this Subscription Agreement in such jurisdiction or the validity, legality or enforceability of this Subscription Agreement, including any
such provision, in any other jurisdiction, it being intended that all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law. This Subscription Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties, if any, with respect to the subject
matter hereof and contains the sole and entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. The terms and provisions of
this Subscription Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of each party hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and it is not the intention of
the parties to confer, and no provision hereof shall confer, third-party beneficiary rights upon any other person. The headings used in this Subscription
Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define or limit the provisions hereof. In the event that either party hereto shall
commence any suit, action or other proceeding to interpret this Subscription Agreement, or determine to enforce any right or obligation created hereby, then
such party, if it prevails in such action, shall recover its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses and costs of appeal, if any. All notices and communications to be given or otherwise made to Investor shall be
deemed to be sufficient if sent by e-mail to such address provided by Investor on the signature page of this Subscription Agreement. Unless otherwise
specified in this Subscription Agreement, Investor shall send all notices or other communications required to be given hereunder to the Company. Any such
notice or communication shall be deemed to have been delivered and received on the first business day following that on which the e-mail has been sent
(assuming that there is no error in delivery). As used in this Section 9, the term “business day” shall mean any day other than a day on which banking
institutions in the State of Arizona are legally closed for business. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. No failure or
delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Subscription Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or
partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein
provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.




10. Consent to Electronic Delivery of Notices, Disclosures and Forms. Investor understands that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any notices,
disclosures, forms, privacy statements, reports or other communications (collectively, “Communications”) regarding the Company, the Investor’s
investment in the Company and the shares of Class A Common Stock (including annual and other updates and tax documents) may be delivered by
electronic means, such as by e-mail. Investor hereby consents to electronic delivery as described in the preceding sentence. In so consenting, Investor
acknowledges that e-mail messages are not secure and may contain computer viruses or other defects, may not be accurately replicated on other systems or
may be intercepted, deleted or interfered with, with or without the knowledge of the sender or the intended recipient. The Investor also acknowledges that
an e-mail from the Company may be accessed by recipients other than the Investor and may be interfered with, may contain computer viruses or other
defects and may not be successfully replicated on other systems. Neither the Company, nor any of its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each
other person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act (collectively, the “Company Parties”), gives any
warranties in relation to these matters. Investor further understands and agrees to each of the following: (a) other than with respect to tax documents in the
case of an election to receive paper versions, none of the Company Parties will be under any obligation to provide Investor with paper versions of any
Communications; (b) electronic Communications may be provided to Investor via e-mail or a website of a Company Party upon written notice of such
website’s internet address to such Investor. In order to view and retain the Communications, the Investor’s computer hardware and software must, at a
minimum, be capable of accessing the Internet, with connectivity to an internet service provider or any other capable communications medium, and with
software capable of viewing and printing a portable document format (“PDF”) file created by Adobe Acrobat. Further, the Investor must have a personal e-
mail address capable of sending and receiving e-mail messages to and from the Company Parties. To print the documents, the Investor will need access to a
printer compatible with his or her hardware and the required software; (c) if these software or hardware requirements change in the future, a Company Party
will notify the Investor through written notification. To facilitate these services, the Investor must provide the Company with his or her current e-mail
address and update that information as necessary. Unless otherwise required by law, the Investor will be deemed to have received any electronic
Communications that are sent to the most current e-mail address that the Investor has provided to the Company in writing; (d) none of the Company Parties
will assume liability for non-receipt of notification of the availability of electronic Communications in the event the Investor’s e-mail address on file is
invalid; the Investor’s e-mail or Internet service provider filters the notification as “spam” or “junk mail”; there is a malfunction in the Investor’s computer,
browser, internet service or software; or for other reasons beyond the control of the Company Parties; and (e) solely with respect to the provision of tax
documents by a Company Party, the Investor agrees to each of the following: (i) if the Investor does not consent to receive tax documents electronically, a
paper copy will be provided, and (ii) the Investor’s consent to receive tax documents electronically continues for every tax year of the Company until the
Investor withdraws its consent by notifying the Company in writing.

(THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)




INVESTOR CERTIFIES THAT HE/SHE HAS READ THIS ENTIRE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THAT EVERY STATEMENT
MADE BY THE INVESTOR HEREIN IS TRUE AND COMPLETE.

THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE OFFERING THE SECURITIES IN EVERY STATE. THE OFFERING MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE
AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY STATE OR JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE SECURITIES ARE NOT BEING OFFERED. THE
INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS WAS PREPARED BY THE COMPANY SOLELY FOR THE USE BY
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE MADE AS TO
THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OFFERING MATERIALS, AND NOTHING
CONTAINED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS IS OR SHOULD BE RELIED UPON AS A PROMISE OR REPRESENTATION AS TO THE
FUTURE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.

THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION AND FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER TO MODIFY, AMEND
AND/OR WITHDRAW ALL OR A PORTION OF THE OFFERING AND/OR ACCEPT OR REJECT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY
REASON OR FOR NO REASON, ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OR TO ALLOT TO ANY PROSPECTIVE
INVESTOR LESS THAN THE DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SECURITIES SUCH INVESTOR DESIRES TO PURCHASE. EXCEPT AS
OTHERWISE INDICATED, THE OFFERING MATERIALS SPEAK AS OF THEIR DATE. NEITHER THE DELIVERY NOR THE
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN
NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THAT DATE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Subscription Agreement is executed this day of , 2020.

Number of Shares Subscribed For:

Total Purchase Price: $

Signature of Investor:

Name of Investor:

Address of Investor:

E-Mail Address:

Investor’s SSN or Tax ID #

ACCEPTED BY: ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC

Signature of Authorized Signatory:

Name of Authorized Signatory: Annie Pratt, President

Date of Acceptance: , 2020.
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Dear Mark,

Aflis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer you the Full-Time position of CEO starting salary offered
for thiz position iz $200,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each month. If either
the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Aflis Motor Vehicles will pay out
payroll on the earfiest day preceding the intended date which payroll distributes. Direct deposit
is available. Your start date with Atlis Motor Vehides is on November 9, 2016.

“'ou will be granted 10,000,000 shares of common stock shares on your date of hire,
MNovember16, 2016.

Aflis Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior to taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supernvisor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and deliverables are appropriately re-assigned or completed prior to departure for
your time off.

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified period and congtitutes
“at will" employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company is free to terminate its employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with additional information about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal
identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your identity and
eligibility to work in the United States.

We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor Vehicles team! We look forward to working with
you in the future and hope you will find your employment at Atlis Motor Vehicles a rewarding

Mark Hanchett

Exhibit 1A-6A
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FRIDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2017

Dear Tamica,

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer you the Full-Time position of VP of Talent. The starting
salary offered for this position is $1:20,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each
month. If either the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Atliz Motor
Vehicles will pay out payroll on the earliest day preceding the intended date which payroll
distnibutes. Direct deposit is available.

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to also offer the following stock compensation:

= 30,000 common stock shares
» Stock shares will be vested over a period of 3 years

# March 16, 2021 - 10,000 shares issued
= March 146, 2022 - 10,000 shares issued
* March 16, 2023 - 10,000 shares issued

Your start date with Atlis Motor Vehicles is on March 16, 2020 . This offer will expire at
5:00pm on December 24, 2019,

Atliz Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior to taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supervisor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and deliverables are appropniately re-assigned or completed prior to departure
for your time off.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers health insurance through Blue Cross Blue Shield Arizona. Atlis
Motor Vehicles does not currently have a retirement plan. Atlis Motor Vehicles is expected to
begin offering retirement plans in 2020

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified peniod, and constitutes
*“at will* employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company is free to terminate its employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with additional information about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal
identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your identity and
eligibility to work in the United States.




We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor Vehicles team! If yvou have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact us at annie@atlismotorvehicles.com . We look forward to
wiorking with you in the future, and hope you will find your employment at Atlis Motor
Vehicles a rewarding expenence.

Offer Letter Acceptance

| hawve read and accept this offer of employment:

( i
éf)’/ﬁfz Agﬁf@f 12/20/2019

=mica Sears Diste




Tamica Sears Offer.pdf
Documert ID: GaBeTba-234d-11e0-§837-bcT e (4457

Rempuested:
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Dear Annie,

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer you the Full-Time position of Chief of Staff starting salary
offered for this posifion is $105,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each month. if
either the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Atlis Motor Vehicles will
pay out payroll on the earliest day preceding the intended date which payroll distributes. Direct
deposit is available. Your start date with Aflis Motor Vehicles is on December 29, 2019.

Stock Compensation:
« 1,075,674 shares issued January 1, 2020

+ 48 488 shares issued monthly for the next 34 months

Aflis Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior to taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supenvizor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and defiverables are appropriately re-assigned or completed prior to departure for
your time off.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers health insurance through Biue Cross Blue Shield Arizona. Atlis Motor
Vehicles does not cumently have a retirement plan. Atlis Motor Vehicles is expected to begin
offering retirement plans in 2020.

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified period, and constitutes
“at will" employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company ig free to terminate itz employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with additional informaticn about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal
identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your identity and
eligibility to work in the United States.

We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor \Vehicles team! If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact us at mark@atlismotorvehicles.com _ We look forward to
working with you in the future, and hope you will find your employment at Atlis Motor Vehicles a

Y e (i

Mark Hanchett — CEQ Annie Pratt




Employee Status Change Form

Employee Name: __ Anne Peabody Prait Social Security # 0o
Address: 7433 E Princeton Ave Scottsdale ~ AZ 85257
Location: Atlis HO Position: Chief of Staff

Effective Date: _ 03012020/ pateotBirth: _2¥F/1997  E.mail;

Employee Status

Type of Change: [] Hew Hira [] Rehire [#] Employes Status Change

[#] Regular Full Time (30 hours or mona) Hours par wesk:

[ Regular Part Time {28 hours or less) Hours per wesk:

[ Temporary (Short Term) Hours par wesk:

[ on call {As Neadad)

Salary EstablishmentiChange

Type of Change: [COMew Hire [ IMerit Increass [ Prometien  []Other

Currant Pay Rate: $ i Operhowr ¥l parysar

Mew Pay Rats: ] 200,000 [ per hour parysar

[] Exempt (Salaried) [ Mon-Exempt {Hourly)

Status Change

[ Looation Changs (Transfsr) From To

[ Position Changs From To

[ Loave of Abssncs Fram To

[ Othar

Termination of Employment

Last Working Day: ! !

Eligibks for rohire? [I¥es  [INo (i no, list reason)

Salect ONE reason for separation:

Yoluntary:

Dﬁuﬁam joboreompany  [CJRetroment  [JSchool o CaliNg Show [ sttar jobpeaybana itshours
[IMadical-zalf or tamity [JRaluzatng [CIFamily izsues  []0ther

Inveluntary:

L Poor parkimeanca [(Jress Misconduct [(JAtendancaTardness [ Unqualified for job

[CViolation of comparny policyprocadurs

[CJunprofassional conduct  []0thar

Ramarks;

Company Signaturs

A
[y e T

Em ployee Signagure

03102020




Employes Status Change Form Ternplate pdf

Document ID: 9d01%9a-631a- Tiea-25.08- bePB4a104c 7D

Requested:
Mar 10, 2020, 24T FM MST (Mar 10, 2020, 9:47 PM UTC)

Tamica Sears (lamicafatesmotonsenicles com)
IP: 2004 :675.81 1880000 bo 2:53323:b3b0fcEE

Signed:

Mar 10, 2020, Z:69 PM MST (Mar 10, 2020, 9:65 PM UTC)
Mark Hanchett (markgbatismotorvenicies com)

IP: 2001 :575:811 880005703138 3ae0867

Signed:

Mar 10, 2020, 3:00 PM MST (Mar 10, 2020, 10200 PM UTC)
Anne Pratt (anmef@atismotorvenices comij

IP: T0.184.260.38




Employee Status Change Form

Employee Name: Anne Peabody Pratt Soclal Security #: GlaER NN
Address: 7433 E Princeton Ave Scottsdale ~ AZ 85257
Location: Atlis HO Position: President
Effective Date: _ 04082020/ pateotBith: _2¥'F/1997  E.mai;
Employee Status
Type of Changa: []Mew Hire [ ] Rehire [[] Employes Status Change
] Regular Full Time (30 hours or mona) Hours par wesk:
[ Regular Part Time {28 hours or less) Hours per wesk:
[ Tamperary (Short Term) Hours por wesk:
[ on call {As Neadad)
Salary EstablishmentiChange
Type of Change: [OMew Hire [ IMerit Increass COPromatien  [CJOther
Currant Pay Rate: $ e Operhowr ¥l parysar
Mew Pay Rats: ] [ per hour [ psrysar
[] Exempt (Salaried) [ Mon-Exampt ({Hourly)
Status Change
[ Looation Changs (Transfsr) From To
[ Position Changs From To
[ Loave of Abssnos Fram To
[ Othar
Termination of Employment
Last Working Day: ! !
Eligibks for rohire? [I¥es  [INo (i no, list reason)
Salect ONE reason for separation:
Yoluntary:
Dﬁiﬁadw]wammm [JRatrement  [JSchoal [CINo Callo Show [CBattar jobpaybanafitshours
[IMadical-zalf or tamity [JRaluzatng [CIFamily izsues  []0ther
Inveluntary:
D s sk Fope e Flgumamis
Remarks:
Company Signaturs et C: —
Em ployes Signagure , .’-:" 75 Dl i




Employes Status Change Form Ternplate pdf

Docurnent I0: Pfdd953e-T3eb-Tea-8c57-0257 T1HZLE

Requested:

Apr B, 2020, 1:40 PM MST {Apr 8, 2020, 5:40 PM UTC)
Tamica Sears (lamicafatesmotonsenicles com)

IP: 2600:880001 D00 Z8CM0bd 123137 7-6463

Signed:

Apr 8, 2020, 2206 PM M3T (Apr 8, 2020, 9:056 PM UTC)
Mark Hanchett (markgbatismotorenices com)

IP: 260088002080 23 1a.c450. TEMEaT oo 1deb

Signed:

Apr B, 2020, 3:16 PM MET (Apr 8, 2020, 10:16 PM UTC)
Anne Pratt (anmef@atismotorvenices comij

IP: 71 223.140.238
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CUARANTY OF LEASE

THIS GUARANTY OF LEASE (thiz “Cuaranty”) is made as of Febmuary 12 2020, by NINO
GLOBATL, 11C, a Califorma hmited hability company (the “Guarantor™), m faver of MATESTIC MESA
PARTNERS, LLC, a Delaware limted hability company (“Landlord™).

WHEREAS, ATLIS MOTOFR. VEHICLES INC., a Delaware corporation (“Tenant™) and Landlord
desire to enter into that certain Standard Industrial Real Estate Lease (the “Lease”) dated February 12, 2020
concerming that approxamately 42 828 rentable square foot porbon (known as 1828 North Higley Foad, Smfe
. Mesa, Arizona) of that approvamately 85,554 square foot bulding located at the NWC E. Higley Road &
Ingram Street, Mesa Anzona (“Property™);

WHEFREAS, Guarantor has a2 financial interest in the Tenant; and

WHEREAS, Landlord would not execute the Lease if Guarantor did not execute and deliver to Landlord
thys Guaranty.

HNOW THEREFOEE, for and mn consideration of the execution of the foregoing Lease by Landlord and
as a matenal mducement to Landlord o execute said Lease, Guaranior bereby absolutely, presently, continually,
wnconditionally and irevecably guarantees the prompt payment by Tenant of all renfals and all other swms
payable by Tenant under said Lease and the farthful and prompt performance by Tenant of each and every one
of the terms, conditions and covenants of sad Lease to be kept and performed by Tenant, and further agrees as
follows:

I. It is specafically agreed and understood that the terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease
may be altered, affected, modified amended, comprommsed released or otherwise changed by agreement
between Landlord and Tenant, or by course of conduct and Guarantor does guaranty and promise to perform all
ﬁ&&obhﬁmﬂTmm&EhmumﬂMﬂMmﬂaiamﬂmm
or chanped and the Lease may be assigned by or wath the consent of Landlord or any assignee of Landlord
without consent or notice to Guarantor and that this Guaranty shall thereupon and thereafier puaranty the
performance of said Lease as so changed, modified, amended, compromized released altered or assigned.

Z This Guaranty shall not be released, modified or affected by fahwe or delay on the part of
Landlord to enforce any of the nghts or remedies of Landlord under the Lease, whether pursuant to the terms
thereof or at law or in equty, or by any release of amy person hable under the terms of the Lease (inchidmg,
without hrmiation, Tenant) or any other guarantor, including without hmmtahon, any other Guarantor named
herein, from any hability with respect to Guarantor's obligations hereunder.

3 Guarantor's hability under this Guaranty shall continue until all rents due under the Lease bave
been paid in full mn cash and unhil all other obligations o Landlord have been satisfied, and shall not be reduced
by virtee of any pavment by Tenant of any amount due under the Lease If all or any portion of Tenants
obligahions under the Lease 15 paid or performed by Tenant the obhigations of Guarantor herennder shall
conticne and reman m full force and effect in the event that all or any part of such payment(s) or
performance(s) 15 avoided or recovered directly or mdrectly from Landlord as a preference, frandulent transfar
or otherwise.

4 Guarantor wammants and represents to Landlord that Guarantor now has and will conhimue to
have full and complete access to any and all information concerning the Lease the value of the assets owned or
to be zcquired by Tenant Tenant's financial status and 1ts ability to pay and perform the obhzations owed to
Landlord under the Lease. Guarantor further warrants and represents that Guarantor has reviewed and approved
copies of the Lease and 15 fully infromed of the remedies Landlord may pursue, with or wathout nobee to
Tenant, in the event of defanlt under the Lease. So long as any of Guarantor's obligations hereunder remaims

Guaranty of Laase v MRS/ 03450-002 1525 Horth Higley Road, Suite _, Masa, AT
Fabruary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR VERICLES INC.]
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mmsatisfied or owmg to Landlord, Guarantor shall keep fully informed as to all aspects of Tenants financial
condition and the performance of said obligations.

5 Guarantor hereby covenants and agrees with Landlord that 1f a default shall at any tme occur 1n
the payvment of any sums due under the Lease by Tenant or in the performance of any other oblhization of Tenant
under the Lease, Guarantor shall and wall forthonth upon demand pay such sums, and any amears thereof, to
Lanﬂ.lnnimleglunmmyufﬂnUmhedShtﬁ anm:a for payment of public and private debts, and take all
other achons necessary to cure such defanlt and perform such oblizations of Tenant.

6. The hability of Guarantor under this Guaranty 1s a guaranty of payment and performance and
pot of collechabity, and 15 ot condihoned or contngent upon the pemunensss, wahdity, regulanty or
enforceability of the Lease or the pursuit by Landlord of any remedies which 1t now has or may bereafter have
with respect thereto, at law, in equity or otheranse.

7. Guarantor hereby wamnes and agrees not to assert or take advantage of to the extent permitted by
law: (1) all notices to Guarantor, to Tenant, or to any other person, inchodmg, but not limted to, notices of the
acceptance of this Guaranty or the creation, renewal, extension, assipnment modification or accrual of any of
the obhgations owed to Landlord under the Lease and, except to the extent set forth in Pap=yaph 9 hereof,
enforcement of any right or remedy with respect thereto, and notice of any other matters relating thereto, (1)
notice of acceptance of this Guaranty; () demand of payment, presentation and protest; (v} any right to require
Landlord to apply to any default any secunty depomit or other security it may hold under the Lease; (v) any
statute of mmtahons affecting Guarantor's hababity berevnder or the enforcement thereof; (V1) amy nght or
defense that may anse by reason of the meapability, lack or authority, death or disability of Tenant or any other
person; and (vi) all poneciples or provisions of law which conflict with the terms of this Guaranty., Guarantor
fimther agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty wpon the ocomrence of 2 default under the Lease,
potwithstanding any dispute between Landlord and Tepant with respect to the existence of said defanlt or
performance of the obligations under the Lease or any counterclaim, set-off or other clarm winich Tenant may
allege agamnst Landlord with respect thereto. Moreover, Guarantor agrees that Guarantor's obligations shall not
be affected by any crcumstances which constitate a legal or equtable discharge of a guarantor or surety.

L4 Guarantor agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty wathout the necessity of proceeding
against Tenant or any other puarantor. Guarantor hereby waives the nght to require Landlord to procesd agamst
Tenant, to procesd agamst any other puarantor, fo exereise any nght or remedy under the Lease or to pursue amy
other remedy or to enforce any other nght.

9. {a) Guarantor agrees that nothing contained herein shall prevent Landlord from sming on
the Lease or from exercising any rights avalable to it thereunder and that the exercise of any of the aforesaid
nghis shall ot conshifute a legal or equitable discharge of Guarantor. In addition, Guaranior agrees that
Landlord (not Tenant) shall have the nght to designate the portion of Tenant's oblizations under the Lease that 15
satisfied by a partial payment by Tenant.

)] Guarantor agrees that Guarantor shall have no nght of subrogation against Tenant or
any right of contribution against any other punarantor hereunder unless and until all amounts due vnder the Lease
have been paid m full and all other obligations under the Lease have been satisfied Guarantor further agrees
that, to the extent the waiver of Guarantor's nights of subrogation and coninbution as set forth herein 15 found by
a court of competent junsdichon to be voud or voadable for any reason, any nghis of subrogaton Guarantor may
bave apamst Tenant shall be jumor and subordinate to any nghts Landlord may have against Tenant, and any
nights of conmbution Guarantor may have agamst anmy other puarantor shall be junior and subordinate to amy
nghts Landlord may have against such other guarantor.

3] The oblizations of Guarantor under this Guaranty shall not be altered, hmited or

affected by amy case, vohmtary or imolontary, imvolving the bankruptcy, msolvency, recervership,
recrgamration. hgmdation or arrangement of Tenant or any defense wiuch Terant may have by reason of order,

Guaranty of Laase v MERE/03450-002 1525 Morth Higley Road, Suite _, Masa, AT
Fabruary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR VERICLES INC.]
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decree or decision of any court or admmistrative body resulting from any such case. Landlord shall have the sole
night to accept or reject any plan on behalf of Guarantor proposed m such case and to take any other action
which Guarantor would be enfifled to take, including, without hiomtation, the decision to file or pot file a claim.
Guarantor acknowledges and aprees that any payment which acerues with respect to Tenanf's oblipations under
the Lease (mcluding, without hnatation, the payment of rent) after the commencement of any such proceeding
{or, Emsﬂmtmmemhynwmﬁhwhmufhcmmdm

. such payment as would have acerved if said proceedings had not been commenced) shall be
in&uﬂadmﬂnmtmsubhgahmbamﬂuhecmﬂﬁﬂmmmhmofﬂnwﬂu‘lsa.ldnbllgz‘hms
should be determined without regard to any mule or law or order which may relieve Tenant of any of its
obligations under the Lease. Guarantor bereby permits any frustee in bankrupicy, receiver, debtor-in-possession,
assignee for the benefit of creditors or sumilar person to pay Landlord, or allow the claam of Landlord in respect
of, any such payment accrnng after the date on which such proceeding is commenced. Guarantor heveby assigns
mLmdldemmm‘srighthomc&i\mmypqmisﬁmanyminbmkmpmy recaiver, debtor-m-
possession, assignee for the bepefit of creditors or somilar person by way of dividend, adequate protection
payment or otherwise.

10. Any notice, statement, demand, consent, approval or other communication required or permitted
to be grven, rendered or made by either party to the other, pursuant to this Guaranty or pursuant to amy
applicable law or requirement of pubhec authority, shall be m writing (whether or not so stated elsewhers m this
Guaranty) and shall be deemed to have been properly given, rendered or made only if hand-delivered or sent by
first-class mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to the other party at its respective address set forth below, and shall
e deemed to have been given, rendered or made on the day it 15 hand-debrvered or one day after it 15 mailed,
umless it 15 mailed outside of Mancopa County, Anzona, m which case it shall be deemed to have been grven,
renderad or made on the third business day after the day it is mailed. By giving notice as provided above, erther
party may designate a different address for notices, statements, demands, consents, approvals or other
communications intended for if.

To Guarantor: HNino Global, LL.C
620 Newport Center Drive
Suite 1100
Mewpart Beach, California 92660

To Landlord: Majestic Masa Partners, LLC
cfo Majestic Realty Co.
13191 Crossroads Padkway North
Sixth Floor
City of Industry, California 91746

11. (Guarantor represents and warrants to Landlord as follows:

(a) Mo consent of any other person, including, without limtation, any creditors of Guarantor, and no
license, peromt, approval or authonzation of, exemphion by, nofice or report to, or registration, filmg or
declaration within any governmental authonty is required by Guarantor in connection with this Guaranty or the
execufton, delivery, performance, validity or enforceabibity of this Guaranty and all oblizations required
bereunder. ThlsGuanniyhasmedulyMﬂiadaﬂidﬁhmdhyGﬂnﬂm and constifutes the legally vahid
and lindimg obhipahon of Guarantor enforceable against such Guarantor m accordance with s terms.

(k) The execution, delivery and performance of this Guaranty will not violate any provision of any existing
law or regulation hinding on Guarantor, or any order, judgment, award or decree of any cowt, arbitrator or
sovernmental authorty binding on Guarantor, or of any mortgage, indenture, lease, contract or other agresment,
nstrument or undertalong to which Guarantor is a party or by whoech Guarantor or any of Guarantor's assets may
be bound, and will not result in, or requive, the creation or mposition of aoy lien on any of such Guarantor’s
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property, assets or revermes pursuant to the provisions of any such mortgage indenture, lease, contract or other
agreament, nstrument or tndertalong.

12, The oblizations of Tenant under the Lease to execute and deliver estoppel statements, as therein
provided, shall be deemed to also requre the Guarantor hereunder to do and provide the same relative to
Guarantor.

13. This Guaranty shall be binding upon each Guarantor, such Guarantor's heirs, representatives,
admim strators, executors, successors and assigns and shall imore to the benefit of and shall be enforceable by
Landlord, = successors, endorsees and assipns. Any mamed person executing this Guaranty agrees that
recowrse may be had agamst commmmity assets and agamnst his separate property for the sahsfachon of all
obligations herein pnaranteed As used herein, the singular shall include the ploral, and the maszeulme shafl
include the faminine and neuter and vice versa, if the confext so requires.

14 The term “Landlord” whenever used herein refers to and means the Landlord specifically
named in the Lease and also any assipnee of said Landlord, whether by outnght assipnment or by assignment for
secunty, and also any successor to the mterest of sad Landlord or of any assignee in the Lease or amy part
thereof, whether by assignment or otherwise. 5o long as the Landlord's imterest m or to demised premises (as
that term 15 used in the Lease) or the rent= issues and profits therefrom, or m, to or under the Tease, are subject
to any mortgage or deed of trust or assignment for secunty, no acqmsibon by Guarantor of the Landlords
interest in demised premises or under the Lease shall affect the contimmng obligations of Guarantor under this
Guaranty, which obhizations shall contmue m full force and effect for the benefit of the moripagee, benefimary,
trostes or assignee under such mortgage, deed of trust or assignment, of any purchaser at sale by madicial
foreclosure or under private power of sale, and of the successors and assigns of any such mortgages, beneficiary,
trustee, assignee or purchaser.

I5. The term “Tenant” whenever used herein refers to and means the Tenant m the Lease
specifically named and also any assigmee or sublessee of said Lease and also any suecessor to the interests of
said Tenant, assignee or sublessee of such Lease or any part thereof, whether by assiznment, sublease or
otherwse.

16. In the event of any dispute or hitigation regarding the enforcement or validity of this Guaranty,
Guarantor shall be oblizated to pay all charpes, costs and expenses (includmg, wathout nmtahon, reasonable
attorneys’ fees) mewred by Landlord, whether or not any action or proceeding 15 commenced regarding such
dispute and whether or not such hpahon 15 prosecuted to Judpment.

17 This Guaranty shall be povernsd by and construed m accordance with the laws of Anzona and
n a case imvolving diversity of cibizenship, shall be hitigated in and subject to the jumsdiction of the courts of
Anzona

18. Every provision of this Guaranty is mtended to be severable. In the event any term or provision
bereof 15 declared to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, such
illegality or mvahdity shall not affact the balance of the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and prowvisions
shall remain binding and enforceable.

19. This Guaranty may be executed mn any number of counterparts each of wiach shall be deemed
an onginal and all of which shall constitute one and the same Guaranty with the same effect as if all parties had
signed the same signature page Any signature page of this Guaranty may be detached from any counterpart of
thys Guaranty and re-attached to any other counferpart of this Guaranty identical in form hereto but having
attached to it one or more additional signature pages.

M. Mo failure or delay on the part of Landlord fo exercizse any power, right or privilege under this
Guaranty shall impair any sach power, nght or privilege, or be construed to be a warver of any default or an
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acquiescence therein, por shall any single or partial exercise of such power, right or privilege preclude other or
further exarcise thereof or of any other nght, power or prmilege.

21 This Guaranty shall constifute the enfre agreement between each Guarantor and the Landlord
with respect to the subject matter hereof Mo provision of this Guaranty or nght of Landlord hereunder mav be
warved nor may Guarantor be released from any obligation bereunder except by a wnting duly executed by an
authorized officer, director or trustee of Landlord.

any other agreement now or at any time hereafter in force between Landlord and Guarantor relating to the Lease
shall be cunmlative and not alternabive and such nghts, powers and remedies shall be i addihon to all nghts,
powers and remedies given to Landlord by law.

[Signatures on following page]
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IN WITHESS WHEREQF, Guarantor has execnted this Guaranty as of the day and year first above
written.

NINO GLOEAL, LLC,

ey
Frxecated on 2/12/2020 2030 2 e ket comny

By [ v .
W s enanas David nino
Tis: President
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STANDARD INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE

MAJESTIC MESA FARTNERS, LLC,
a Delaware limited lability company,

a5 Landlord,

and

ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC_
a Delaware corporation,

a5 Tenamt
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STANDARD INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE
(MULTI-TENANT NET LEASE FORM)
ARTICLE ONE BASIC TERMS

This Arficle One contains the Basic Terms of this Lease between Landlord and Tensnt named below. Other
Articles, Sections and Paragraphs of this Lease referred to i this Argcle Oge explain and define the Basic Terms and are to
be read in conjunction with the Basic Terms.

Saction 1.01 Drate of Lease: Febmeary 12, 2020
Section 1.02 Landlord: Majestic Iesa Parmers, LL.C, 3 Delaware limited lishility company.

Address of Landlord: c'o Majestic Realty Co.
13191 Crossroads Parkway Morth, Sixth Floor
City of Industry, California 91746
Attenfion: Property Management

With a copy of any notice to:

cio Majestic Realty Co.
2555 Camelback Road, Suite 740
Phoenix, Arizona 85016
Atiention: Jack Crerwinski

Section 1.03 Tenant: Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc., a Dielaware corporation.
Trade Mame: Atlis Motor Vehicles

Address of Tenant: 7259 E. Posada Avemne
Mesa_ Arizona E5212
Telephone: (916) 239-5776
Epmil: anniegatlismotorvehicles.com

Section 1.04 Property: The “Property”™ is that approximstely 42 828 rentshle square foot porton (known 85
1828 North Higley Road, Suite Mesa, Anzona) of that appromimately 85,554 square foot bulding located at the
NWC E. Higley Foad & Ingram Street, Mesa, Arirona, and identified on Exhibit “A™ attached hereto (the “Building™),
subject o0 the non-exclusive wse of such area as outlined in zreen on Exhibit “A ™ The Building includes the land the
Building, snd all other improvements located on the lamd  The square footage figures for the Building and Property, as
recited in this Section 104 are spproximate. Mo adjustment will be made to the Base Fent or any other amounts payable
by Tensnt under this Lease (or to sny other provisions of this Lease) if the acmal square footage, however measured, is
more of less than the square footape recited The Propesty does not inchade any portion of, and Landlord reserves to itself
the exterior walls snd roofiop of the Building (the “Reserved Areas™), and all components of electrical mechamical
b inz, heating, and sir conditioning systems and facilities located in the Property that are concealed or used in common
Ty tenants of the Building (the “Common Systems™). Landlord’s reservation includes the right to enter the Beserved Areas
o imstall, maintain, use, repair, alter, and replace thereon equipment that may be unrelated to the operation and use of the
building on the Property. Landlord’s reservation also includes the right (but not necessarily the obligation) fo inspect,
maintain repair, alter and replace the Common Systems and to enter the Property in order to do so.

Section 1.05 Term.

s {(8)  LeaseTerm: Five () years and three (3) months, plus the Stub Period (defined below), if

L] Lease Commencement Diate: Aprl 1, 2020
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() Lease Expiration Date: The expiration date of the initial Lease Term shall be the last day of
the sixty-third (§3™) Lease Month (defined below).

Section 1.04 Permitted Uses: (See Amicle Five) Only for warehousing, designing, memmfacturing testing,
storage, packaging and distribution of electric vehicle products, ceation of promotiona]l msterisls, mcloding reconding
antio and video snd for office and sdministrative uses related thersto.

Section 1.07 Imitial Security Deposit: (See Section 3.03) 384, 70044,

Section 1.08 Tenant’s Guarantor: Nino Global, LLC, a Californis limited hability compamy.

Section 1.09 Brokers: (See Article Thirteen)

Landlord’s Broker: oL
3131 East Camelback Boad, Suite 400
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Tenant's Broker: IILL
3131 East Camelback Boad, Swite 400
Phoenix Arizona §5014

Section 1.10 Rent and Other Charges Payable by Tenant:

(=) BASE RENT: Lesse Term Monthly Installment of Base Fent
Lease Months 1 through 7 $14,133 24 (*subject to Section 3.02)
Lease Months & through 12 §28,266.48

Lease Months 13 through 24 $29,114.47
Lease Months 25 through 36 32908791
Lease Months 37 through 48 $30,887.55
Lease Months 40 through 60 $31,814.17
Lease Months 61 through 63 $32,768.60

()] OTHER. PERIODIC PAYMENTS: (i) Real Property Taxes (see Section 402 below]); (i)
TUtilities {see Section 4.03 below); (i) Insursnce Premums (s=e Section 4.04 balow); (1v) Tenant's imitia]l Pro Rats Share of
Common Area Costs (see Section 405041 below); (v) Maintenance Items Costs (see Section 4.05(e); and (i) Maintenance
and Bepairs costs (see Sections 6.03 and 6.04).

Section 1.11 Tenant’s Pro Rata Share:

Building: 50.06%
Property: 100%

ARTICLE TWO LEASE TERM

Saction 2.01 Lease of Property for Lease Term Landlord hereby leases to Tenant snd Tenant leases from
Landlord the Property, as described in Section 1.04 above The term of this Lease (the ‘InseTu'n"'};h.'a!lheassetﬁ:rm
in Segtion LOS(E) sbove, chall commence on the date (the © InseCm.m:mDm")saﬁmhm
sbowe, and shall terminate on the date (the “Lease Expiration Date™) set forth in Section 1.05(c) sbove, unless sooner
terminated or extended as expressly provided in this Leass. The terms and provisions of this Lesse shall be effective as of
the date of this Lesse, except for the provisions of this Lease relating fo the payment of Rant.

Section 2.02 Delay in Commencement. Landlord shall not be lisble to Tenant if Landlord does not deliver
possession of the Property to Tenant on the Lease Commencement Date. Landlord’s non-delivery of the Property to Tenamt
on that date shall not affect this Lease or the oblizations of Tenant under thiz Lease, except that the Lease Commencement
Daate shall be delayed until Landlord delivers possession of the Property to Tenant (unless such delay is the result of a delay
cansed by Tenant) and the Lease Term shall be extended for a period equal to the delay in delivery of possession of the
Properiy to Tenant, plus the momber of days necessary to end the Lease Term on the last day of 3 month  If delivery of
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possession of the Property to Tensnt is delayed Landlord and Tenant shall, upon such delivery, exeoote &n amendment to
this Lease setting forth the actual Lease Commencement Date and Lease Expiration Date, substantially in the form stteched
as Exhibit “C™ to thiz Lease, which Tenant shall execute and retumn to Landlord within five (5) days after receipt fiom
Landlord. Fathme to execute such amendment shall not affect the acinal Lease Commencement Diste snd Lease Expiration
Date. The failmre of Tenant to take possession of or to ocoopy the Property wpon delivery by Landlord shall not setve to
relieve Tenant of any oblizations arising on the Lease Conmmencement Date, snd shall not delay the payment of Fent then
due by Tenant

Section 2.03 Early Occupancy. Tenant shall have the right of early occupancy of the Propesty, subject to (2)
full execution of this Lease, (b) Landlord’s receipt of all deposits and the initial monthly installment of Base Fent, and (c)
all of the terms and conditions of this Lease (inclnding, at not limited o, the insurance provisions of Section 4 .04 below?),
with the exception of the payment of Base Rent. Such early occupancy shall be for the purpose of preparing the Property
for Tenamt's use, including the installation of equipment snd storage of Tenant’s products. During soch period, Tensmt
shall assmme all risk of loss o0 Tensnt's equipment produects, and other personal property. Tensnt's access during this
period shall not interfere with constaction of Landlord’s Work by Landlord’s contractor, and in the event Tenant's access
does 5o interfers, Tmmtumﬂcmmmmuﬁsmmmmmsmmmmm
work. Temant's early cccupancy of the Property shall not advance the Lease Expiration Date

Section 2.04 Halding Over. The parties recogmnize and agree that the damage to Landlord resulting from any
failure by Tenant o timely swrender possession of the Property upon the expirstion or earlier tenmination of the Lease
Term will be substantial will exceed the amount of the monthly installments of the Base Bent then payable, and will be
impossible to acourately measure. Accordingly, Tenant agrees that if possession of the Property is not swrendered to
Lamndlord on or before the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term with or without the express or implied
consent of Landlord, such tenancy shall be a tenancy at sufferance only, and shall not constifute 3 renewal hereof or an
extension for any further term, and in such case Base Bent shall be paysble at a monthly rate eqgual to twice the Base Rent
applicable immediately before the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term Such temancy at sufferance shall be
subject o every other term, covenant and spyeement contained herein ot Tensnt shall have no right to notce of or to
emercise sy extension right, right of first refsal, night of first offer or other similsr right Mothing in this Lesse, inchoding
thiz Section 204 chall be construed as comsent by Landlord to Tensnt retsining possession of the Property after the
expiration or esrlier termination of the Lesse Term and no scceptance by Landlord of payments from Tenant affer the
expiration or earlier terminstion of the Legse Term shall be deemed to be other than on accowmt of the amount to be paid by
Tenant in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.04, which provisions shall sorvive the expiration or earlier
termination of the Lesce Term  The provisions of this Section 2,04 shsll not be deemad to limit or constnte a waiver of
any other rights or remedies of Landlord prowvided herein or at law. If Tenant fails to swrender the Property upon the
expiration or esrlier termination of the Lesse Term in sddition to any other Liabilities to Landlord acouing therefrom,
Tenant shall protect, defend mdemmnify and hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord’s members, managers, parmers and
chareholders, as applicable, mnd the affiliates, employees, agents, and contractors of Landlord and its members, managers,
partners, and shareholders, as applicable) from all losses, lisbilities, damages, costs and expenses (including attorneys” fees)
resulting from such faiture, including, withouot imitmg the generality of the foregoing. any cleims made by any succeeding
tenant fiommded upon swch failure o swrender, and any lost profits to Landlord resulting therefrom.

Section 2.05 Option to Extend Lease Term.

(=) Grant of Option. Landlord hereby grants to Tensnt one (1) opton (the “Option™) o extend the
Lesse Term for additional term of five () years (the “Exfension™), on the same terms and conditions as set forth in this
Lesse, but at an adjusted Base Fent as set forth below and withowt smy additional Option other than as zramted in this
Sectiog 205 The Opiion shall be exercised only by written notice delivered to Landlord not more than two mdred
seventy (2700 days and not less than one undred eighiy (180) days before the expiration of the initisl Lease Term If
Tenant fails to deliver Landlord written notice of the exercise of the Option within the prescribed time period, such Option
shall lapse, and there chall be no firther right to extend the Lease Term The Option shall be exercisable by Tenant on the
express comditions that {a) at the time of the exercize. and at all times thereafter and prior to the commencement of such
Extension, Tenant shall not be in defmlt wder any of the provisions of this Lease, (b)) Tenant haz not been ten (10} or more
days late in the payment of rent more than 3 total of three (3) times duning the initial Lease Tenm, and (c) at the time of the
exercise, and at all times thereafter and pror to the commencement of such Extension, there haz not been 3 materially
adverse change in Tenants financial condition (35 compared to Tenant's financial condition on the date of this Lease).
Following Tenant's timely and valid exercise of the Option, Landlord shall prepare and Tensnt shall execote and deliver to
Lamdlord an smendment to this Lease confirming the term of the Extencion and the amount of Base Rent payable by Tensnt
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during such Extension or, at Landlord’s sole option, Landlord and Tenant shall execute and deliver 2 new lease for the
Extension based on the standsrd form of lesse agreement then in wse by Landlord.

(L] FPersonal Options. The Opton is personal to the Tenant named in Sectog 1,03 of thiz Lesse or
any Tenant Affiliate described in Section 9.07 of this Lease. If Tenant subleases any portion of the Property or assigns or
otherwise wansfers any interest umder this Leace to sn entity other than 3 Tensnt Affiliste prior to the exercise of the Option
{whether with or without Iandlord’s consent), then such Option shall lapse. If Tenant subleases any portion of the Property
or assigns or otherwise transfers any mterest of Tenant under this Lease to an entity other than & Tenant Affiliste after the
emercise of the Option bt prior o the commencement of the Extension (whether with or withoat Landlord's consent), then
such Option shall lapse and the Lease Term shall expire as if such Option were not exercised I Tenant subleases amy
partion of the Property or assigns or otherwise rancfers any interest of Tenant under this Lesse to an entity other than a
Tenant Affiliste after the exercise of the Option and after the commencement of the Extension, then the term of this Lease
shall expire upon the expiration of the Extencion during which such sublease or transfer ocommed.

{c} Effect of an Option. While an Option 1= in effect, if Tenant chooses not to exercise it bt seeks
inctead to negotiate with Landiord for an extension of the Lease Term withowut regard to the terms of this Section 2.05.
Tenant acknowledzes and agrees that Landlord will only agree to such negotiations if Tensnt first waives n writing such

— (t‘_l:l Qus'l‘intn\iEssm'e. Time is of the essence with respect to Tenant's exercise of the Option(s)
Eranted in this Section 2.05.

(&) Option Bent. The Bace Rent payable by Tensnt donng the Extension shall commence upon the
first (1%) day of the first (1) month of the Extension (the “Option Fental Adjnstment Date”) and shall be an amount
equal to the greater of (i) the Base Rent, inchiding all escalations, being paid by Tenant under this Lease immediately prior
to the Extension and (ii) the face or stated rent, inchading all escalations, being quoted by landlords for non-sublesse, non-
encumbered space comparable in size, location m Tempe and quality to the Property for a term of five (5) years (“Fair
Market Valne™). Inno event shall I andiord be entitled to provide or consider amy tenant improvemsnt of other allowances
Of ConCessions in conmection with the Option Bent  The “Fair Market Valwe™ of the Property shall be detenmined in the
following manmer:

(i) Mot later than one nmdred (100) days prier to any applicable FEWV Bental Adjostment
Date, Landlord and Tenant shall meet to nepotiate, in good faith the fair rentsl valie of the Property as of soch FRWV Fentsl
Adjustment Date. If Landlord snd Tenant have not agreed upon the fair rentsl valne of the Property at lesst minety (90}
days prior to the applicable FRV Remtal Adjmstment Drate. the fair remtal valoe shall be determined by appraissl, neing
appraisers (zs provided below’).

[hi1] If Landlord and Tensnt are not able to agree upon the fair rental value of the Property
within the prescribed time period, then Landbord smd Tenant shall attempt fo agres in good faith upon 3 single appraiser not
later than sevenfy-five {75) days prior to the applicsble FEW Rental Adj Date. If Landlord and Tenant are umable to
AFTEE UPON & single appraiser within such time period, then Landlord and Tenant shall each appoint one appraiser, mot later
than sixty-five (§5) days prior to the applicable FRV Rental Adjustment Date. Within {10) days thereafter, the two (2)
Wwﬂiﬂssﬁﬂl@pﬂhﬂstﬁhﬂ(ﬁ"}w If either Tandiord or Tensnt fails to appoint its appraiser within
the prescribed time period, the single sppraiser appointed shall determine the fair rental value of the Property. If both
parties fail to appoint appraisers within the prescribed time periods, then the frst appraiser thereafter selected by 2 party
shall determine the fair rental valoe of the Property. Each party shall bear the cost of its own appraiser and the parties shall
share equally the cost of the single or third appraiser. if applicsble The sppraisers nsed shall have at least ten (107 years®
exparience in the sales snd leasing of commerrial‘industris] real property in the area in which the Property is located snd
chall be members of a professionsl organization such as the Sedety of Industrial and Office Fealtors, MAIOP, or their
equivalent.

{1} For the purposes of such appraizal the term “fair remtal valme™ chell mesn the price
that a ready and willing tenant would pay, as of the FEV Bental Adjustment Diate, 25 monthly rent to 2 ready and willing
landlord of property comparsble to the Property if soch property were exposed for lesase om the open morket for a
reasgnable period of time and taking into socount all of the purposes for which such property may be used. If a single
appraiser is chosen, then such sppraiser shall determine the fair rental valoe of the Property. Otherwise the fair rents] valos
of the Property shall be the anthmetic sverage of the two (2) of the three (3) appraizals which are closest in amount, and the
mnﬂﬂd)mmalshﬂbedlsmgmdad. In mo event, however, shall the Base Fent be reduced below the amount of Base
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Fent paid by Tenant under this Lease immediately prior to the FEV Fental Adjustment Date. Landlord and Tenant shall
instract the appraises(s) to complete their determination of the fair rental value not later than thirty (30) days prior o the
FEV Fental Aductment Date. I the fair rents] valie is not determined prior fo the applicable FEV Fental Admstment
Diate, then Tenant shall contimee to pay to Landlord the Base Fent applicsble to the Property immediately prier to such
Extension, until the fair rental value is determined When the fair rental value of the Property is determined | Iandlord shall
deliver notice thereof to Tenant. and Tenant shall pay o Landlord, within ten (10) days after receipt of snch notice, the
difference between the Base Fent achmlly paid by Temant to Landlord and the new Base Rent determimed hereumder.

i) Dhring the Extension, the monthly Base Rent shall be increased on the first (1%) day of
each Lease Year in each Extension (each 3 "Rental Adjostment Date™) by a factor of three percent (3%) of the monthly
Base Fent payable immedistely prier to the applicable Rental Adjustment Date.

ARTICLE THEEE BASE RENT

Saction 3.01 Time and Manmer of Payment. Upon Tenant’s execution of this Lesse, Tenant chall pay
Lamdlord monthly Base Rent in the amount stated in Section 1. 10031 above for the first Lease Month for which Base Rent is
payable. On the first day of the next Lease Month for which Base Reat is payable and each Lease Month thereafier, Tenant
chall pay Landlord monthlty Base Bent in the amount smted in Sechog 1100} sbove, in sdvance, withomt offset
recoupment, dedwction or prioT demsnd The Base Rent chall be payable at Landlord’s sddress or at such other place as
Landlord may desipnste in writing. The term “Lease Month™ shall mean each consecutive calendsar month during the
Lease Tenm, with the first Lease Month commencing on the Lease Commencement Diate if the Lease Commencement Diate
i the first day of a calendsr month; othervrise the first Lease Month shell commence on the first day of the first calendar
month following the Stab Period. For purposes of this Lease the term “Lease Year™ shall mesn with respect to the first
LenseYEﬂr,ﬂmperiﬂdcummmdngmﬂ:eﬁrstdxyuﬁhaﬁIstLﬂmlﬁnﬂhaﬂﬂuﬂiﬂgoﬂﬂnhﬂdﬂjn&'hh&lﬁh(lf’}
Lease Month, and with respect to subsequent Lesse Years, each consecutive twelve (12) month period during the Lease
Term following the first Lease Year. If the Lease Commencement Diate is a day other than the first day of 3 calendar
month then (3) the Lesse Term shall inclnde the momber of months stated {or the nomber of months inclhwded within the
mumber of years stated) in Sechog 1,05 above, plos the partizl month in which the Lease Commencement Diate falls (the
“Slnbl'mld."‘},mﬂ(h}ﬂtBaseRm:mﬂAﬂMmlRﬂfmtheStﬂerndshaﬂbepmﬂdhmdmﬂnmhﬂuf
days in swch calendar month and payable on the Lease Commencement Diate. MNotwithstanding the existence of amy Stub
Period, the Baze Fent shawement period identified in Section 1.10(s) shove shall be three (3) full calendar months and shall
commence on the first day of the first Lease Month All Base Rent and Additions] Fent (as defined below) shall be paid
together with any applicable rental or transaction privilege taxes from the State of Arizona and the City of Tempe without
separate demand or imvoice from Landlord.

Section 3.02 Abatement of Base Rent. Provided that Tenant is not in default umder the terms of this Lease,
Tenant shall be entitled to & monthly Base Bent credit (the “Abated Rent™) in an amoumnt equal to Fourteen Thousand Cme
Hundred Thirty-Three and 24/100 Dollars ($14,133.24) per month, which is attributable to the Base Rent due for the first
(1™, second (2™), and third (3") Lease Months. However, if Tenant is in default under this Lease and shall fail to cure
such defaolt within the time, if any, permitted for cure pursuant to this Lease, Landlord may, at its option, by notice to
Tensnt, elect, in addition to any other remedies Landlord mey have under this Lease that the unamortized Abated Fent shall
immedistely become due and payable by Tenant in accordsnce with the following fornmila: an amount equsl to Forty-Two
Thomsand Three Himdred Minety-MNine smd 72100 Dwllars ($42,390.72) (Tepresenting the appregste Abated Rent)
mmiltiplied by & fraction, the numerstor of which shall be the momber of Lease Months remaining in the initisl Tegse Term
and the denominator which shall be sixty (60).

Section 3.03 Security Deposit; Increases.

(=) TUpon Tensmt's execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord a cash Secority
Dieposit in the amount set forth in Section 1.07 sbove. Landlord may apply all or part of the Security Deposit to any umpaid
remt or other charges or amounts due from Tensnt or to cure soy other deffmits of Tenant.  If Tandlord wses sy part of the
Security Deposit, Tenant shall restore the Security Deposit to its full amount within ten (10) days after Landlord’s written
request. Tenant’s faihire to do so shall be & material defaplt under this Lease. Mo inferest shall be paid on the Security
Deposit Landlord shall not be required to keep the Security Deposit separate from its other accoumts and nmo trust
relationship is created with respect to the Security Deposit Landlord shall refomd the portion of the Security Deposit to
whirh Tenant is entitled (if any) within sixty ($0) days following the date that Tenant smmenders possession of the Property
to Landlerd in accordance with the termes and conditions of this Lease.
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(1] Each time the Base Renf is increased, Tenant shall deposit additions] funds with Landlord
sufficient to increase the Security Deposit to an amount which bears the same relationship to the adjosted Base Fent as the

Section 3.04 Application of Payments. Unless otheronise desipnated by Landlord in its sole discretiom, all
payments received by Landlord from Tenant shall be applied to the oldest payment oblization owed by Tenant to Landlord.
Mo designation by Tensnt, sither in 3 separate writing or on 3 check or money order, shall modify this section or have any
force or effect.

Section 3.05 Termination; Advance Payments TUpon termination of thizs Lesse under Article Seven
(Damage or Destruction) of this Lease, or under Article Eishi (Condemnation) of this Lease, or any other termimation mot
resulting from Tenant's default, snd after Tenant has vacated the Property in the manner required by thiz Lesse, Landlond
shall refund or credit o Tensnd (or Tenant’s successor) aoy advance rent or other advance payments made by Tenant to
Lamdilord, and any amounts paid for Real Property Taxes (defined below) and insurance which spply fo any tme periods
after termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE FOUR OTHER. CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT

Section 4.01 Additional Rent. All charges payable by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease other than Base
Fent are called “Additional Rent.” Unless this Lease provides otherwise, Tenant shall pay all Additiona]l Fent then due
with the next monthly installment of Base Fent The term “Tent” or “Rent™ shall mean Base Fent and Additions]l Rent
Without limitation on other oiblizations of Tenant that shall sorvive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term,
the obligation of Tenant to pay any accrued but unpaid Rent shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lesse
Term. The failure of Landlord to timely firnish Tenant the amount of the Rent shall not prechde Landlord from enforcing
its rights o collect such Rent.

Saction 4.02 Property Taxes.

{a) Real Property Taxes. Tenent shall pay all Real Property Taxes on or related to the Property
{inclnding amy fees, taxes or assessments against, oF a5 3 Tesult of, amy tenant improvemsnts insmlled on the Property by or
for the benafit of Tenant) during the Lease Term Landlord will bill Tenant monthly in advance for one-twelfth (1/12) of
the estimated smoumt of such Feal Property Tames for the owment tex year and Tensnt shall pay Landlord the amount of
such Real Property Tazes, as Additional Rent Landlord will pay swch Feal Property Taxes on or before their due date,
provided Tenant has timely made soch payments to Landlord.  Any penslty caused by Tensnt’s failore o tmely make such
payments shall slso be Additional Rent owed by Tenant immediately upon demand.

(L] Definition of Real Property Taxes. “Real Property Taxes™ means: (i) any fee, license fee,
license tax, business license fise or business privilege tax, commercis] rental tax (inchoding, withowt limitation. 3 sales tax
om rents paid), levy, charge. sssessment, special assessment duty, penalty or tax imposed by any taxing anthority agamst the
Property, sny improvement thereon, and any lessehold improvement, fixtures, installations, snd additions thereto; (if) amy
tax on Landlord’s right to receive, or the receipt of rent or income from the Property or agsinst Landlord’s bosiness of
leasing the Property; (iii) any tax or charge for fire protection, sireets, sidewalks, road maintensnre refiice, Water, Sewer or
other services provided to the Property by smy governmentsl agency; (iv) any X imposed upon this transsction or based
upon a re-assessment of the Property due to a8 change of ownership, a5 defined by Applicable Law (defined below), or other
transfer of all or part of Landlord’s interest in the Property; (v) any charge or fee replacing any tax previously mclhaded
within the definition of Feal Property Taxes; and (vi) legal and consulting fees, costs and disbursements mommed n
connection with proceedings to contest, determine, or reduce Resl Property Tames, Landlord specifically reserving the right,
‘bt not the obligation, to contest by appropriate legal proceedings the amount or walidity of amy Beal Property Taxes. “Real
Property Taxes™ do not, howeves, inclnde Landlord’s federal or state income, franchise, inheritance or estate taxes.

{c) Joint Asseszment; Tenant™s Share. If the Property is not separately assessed Real Froperty
Tames for the Property shall be Tenant’s Pro Fats Share of the Real Property Taxes for the parcel containing the Building.

{d) Personal Property Taxzes.

(i) Tensnt shall pay all taxes charged spainst trade fixtares, fomicshings, equipment or any
other personsl property belonging to Tensnt Tenant shall dilipently purspe the separate assessment of such persomal
‘property, so that it is taxed separately fom the Property.
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(i) If amy of Tensnt's personal property is taxed with the Property, Tensnt shall pay
Lamdlord the tames for the personsl property within fifieen (15) days after Tenant receives a written ststement from

Landlord for snch personal property taxes.

(] Use and Occopancy Taxes. Tenant shall also pay before any penalties or fines are d to
the sppropriate povernmental sothority any nse and eooUpeEncy 8 in connection with the Property. In the event Landlord
is required by Iaw to collect such tax, Tenamt shall pay such use snd ocoupancy tax to Landlord as Additional Rent within
m{lﬂ)d&ysnfdmﬂmﬂlmﬂmﬂﬂaﬂmmmmpmﬂmhﬂmdmﬁewmmgwmmﬂ
authority in a timely fashion

(£ Rent Tax. In the event that any governmental suthority imposes 3 tax, charge ascescment or
other imposition upon tenants or landlords in genersl which is based upon the rents payable under this Lease, incloding amy
taxes based upon the receipt of rents including gross receipts, sales or valoe sdded tax, Tensnt shall pay the same before
any penalties or fines are assessed o such povernments] authority or to Landlord if Landlord is responsible to collect the
same inwhich case Landlord chall remit the same in 8 timely manner snd. upon request of Tensnt, evidence to Tenant such
remittance.

Saction 4.03 Utilities. Tenant cshall pay, directly to the appropriste supplier, the cost of all namral gas, heat
light power, sewer service, telephone, fiber optic, cable or other comrmmications or data delivery services, water, refise
disposal and other wilities and services supplied to the Property. However, if any services or wilities are jointly metered
with other property, Landlord shall make a reasonsble determination of Tenant's proportionate share of the cost of such
mtilities and services amnd Temant shall pay such share to Landlord with Temant's next monthly installment of Base Fent
consistent with Section 4.01 sbove Tensnt acknowledzes and agrees that (1) this Lesse ic entiraly separste and distinct
from and independent of amy snd all apreements that Tenant may at any time enter into with any third party for the
provision of ufility services or any other services, and (2) Landlord has no obligation of any kind concerning the provision
of any such services. Landlord shall not be liable for any failore to firnish. stoppage of, or intermoption in firnishing any of
the semrices or ufilities described in this Section 4.03, when such faihire is caused by accident, breakage repairs, strikes,
lockouts, labor disputes, lsbor distobances, governmentsl regolation, civil disturbances, terrorist acts, acts of war,
moratorium or other zovernmental action, or any other cauwse beyond Landlord's reasonable control, and. i such event,
Tenant shall not be entitled to any damages nor shall any filure or intermuption abate or suspend Tenant's obligation to pay
remt 85 Tequired under this Lease or constitate or be constmoed as 3 consmactive or other eviction of Tenane  Further, in the
event any govermments] suthority or public whility prommlgstes or revises any law, ordinance, mle or regulation or issues
mandstory controls or vohmtary controls relating to the use or conservation of energy, water, gas, light or electricity, the
reduction of automobile or other emissions, or the provision of any other wility or service, Landlord may take amy
masmﬂ:lyapprmmtnmmpl}'wxﬂlmlm ondinance, mile, regulation mandstory conirol or volumtary
smdelime withowt affecting Tenant's obligations under this Lesss. Tenant recogmizes that security semices, if oy, provided
by Landlord at the building on the Property are for the protection of Landlord’s property snd under no circumstances shall
Landlord be responsible for, and Tensnt waives any rights with respect to, providing security or other protection for Tenant
or its enployess, invitees or property o or about the Property or the building on the Property.

Section 4.04 Insmramce Policies.

{a) Liability Insurance. Dhming the Lesse Tesm Temant, st Tenant's sole cost end expense, shall
maintain 3 policy of commercial general hability insurance (or its equivalent) insuring Tenant against lisbility for bodily
injury, property damsage (inchiding less of use of property) and persomsl injury snsing out of the operstion. use or
ooropancy of the Property. Tenant shall name Landlord (and amy affliste, lender or property memager of Landlord
desiznated by Landlord) s an additions] insured under such policy, and Tensnt shall provide Landlord with an appropriste
“addifional insured” endorsement to Tenant's hiability meurance policy (in a form acceptable to Landlord) not less than fen
{10} business days before the early sccess to or ecoopancy of the Property by Tenant or amy other member of the Tensant
Group (defined below). The initial amount of such insurance shall be not less than Thres Million Doltars ($3, 000 000.00)
per eoomTence and shall be subject o periodic increase based wpon inflation, moreased lishility swards, recommendation of
Lmﬂmismufunmlmmmmmmmﬁcm The lishility insurance obtained by Tenant under this

4.044a): shall (1) be primary to and seek no comtmibution for all mswrance available to Landlord; (i) contsin 3
“sepmmn\fmds"dmse[uremahnﬂ (iii) mclode typical contractual Lisbility coverage (withowt limitation or
deletion by endorsement); {iv) provide "ocomrence” hased coverage; and (V) not have a deductible or self-insured retention
amount in excess of Ten Thowssnd Dollars (310 000.00). The smount and coverage of such insurance shell mot limit
Tenant's Hability nor relieve Tensnt of amy other obligation under this Lesse Tensnt may saticfy its oblizations under this
Section through the wse of a combinstion of primary and excess or wmbrella coverage Landlord may slse obtzin
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commercial general lishility inswrance in an amount sand with coverage determined by Landlord, insuring Landlord against
liabidlity arising out of ownership, operation, or use of the Property by Landlord The lisbility policy obtsined by Landlord
chall be excess, secondary and non-contmbutory with respect to Tenant’s liability insurance.

(b} Property and Rental Income Insuramce. Dhring the Lease Term Lamdlord shall mesintain
palicies of insurance covering loss of or damage to the Property, the Buildilng and the building improvements owmned by
Landlord (but expressly excluding any property Tenant is required to imeure pursuant to Section 4.04d)}{wi) below) in the
full amount of their replacement cost, with soch policies providing protection against loss or damage due to fire or other
petils covered by the “Canses of Loss—Special Form™ policy {or a similar policy contsining equivalent coverage) and amy
other perils which Landlord, Landlord’s lender or ground lessor deems ressonsbly necessary. Landlord shall hawve the right
o obmin terorsm, flood and eartheuske insorance and other forms of insurance as required by any lender holding a
seCurity interest in the Property or amy groumd lessor. Tenant acknowledzes and agrees that Landlord’s property and remtsl
loss insorance required pursaant to Section 4.04(b) of this Lease insures damaze to the Property as a resunlt of fire or other
casualty and does not extend to damage to the Property as a result of Tensnt's and'or Tensnt’s employees, coniractors or
apents acts or omissions. For exsmple, fite damage to the Property that is camsed by a short in the electrical system is an
insured loss, but damesge to the Property cansed by forklift damage to a support cohonn, dock door or concrete wall is not
an insured less and would be Tenant's responsibility to repair. Landlord shall not obtmin insurance for Tenant's fixtures or
equipment or building improvements installed by Tenant on the Property. Duming the Lease Term, Landlord shall alse
maintain 4 rents] income insurance policy, with boss payable to Landlord, in an amount equal to one year's Base Rent plos
one year's estimated recuming Additional Fent. Motwithstandmg Secgon 4 04d10w) below, Tensnt shall be hisble for the
payment of its Pro Bata Share of amy deductible amount under Landlord’s inswrance policies (which deductible amoumt
shall not exceed §10,000.04) maintsined pursuant to this Secton 4.04 () provided, however, that if the loss or damage is
due o0 am act or omission of Tenant, then Tenant shall be responsible for payment of the entirety of such deductible smount.
Tenant shall not do or permt anything to be done which imalidates sny such msurance policies.

{cy Payment of Premiums. Tenant shall pay all premiums for the insorance policies described in

above and shall reimburse Tasndlord for Tensnt's proparticnate share of the cost of the msursnce policies
descmibed m Section 4.04(b) sbove, except Landlord shall pay all preminmes for non-primary conmmercisl general Hability
insurance which Landlord elects to obtain as provided in Section 4045 above. With respect to the premiums for the
insurance policies described in Section 4.04(0) above, Landlord shall bill Tensnt monthly in advance for the estimated
amount of Tenant’s proportionate share of such preminms, consistent with Section 4.050d) below, and Tenant shall pay
Landlord such smount, as Addiionsl Rent  If incursnce policies maintained by Landlord cover improvemsents on resl
property other than the Property, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant & statement of the premium showing in reasonsble detail
how Tenant's share of the premiom was computed. If the Legse Term expires before the expiration of an insorance policy
maintained by Landlord, Tenant shall be Lable only for Tenant’s prorated share of the insurence preminms. Subject to the
provisions of Section 2.03 above, prior to the Lease Commencement Diate. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord (5) either (i) a
certificate of insurance (in form acceptsble to Landlord) emecuted by an aothorized officer or agent of the msurance
company, certifiing that the insurance that Tenant is required to maintsin under this Section 4.04 is in full force and effect
and containing such other information Landlord reasonably requires, or (i) copies of the required policies of insurance or
other satisfectory evidence (on which Landlord can reasonsbly rely) that the insurance Tenant is required to maintsin under
this Section 4.04 = in full force and effect, and (b) oy endorsements to Tenant's insurance policies required by this Sacog
404 At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any insurance coverage Tenant is required to maintain under this
Sectiog 404 Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a certificate of insurance (in form acceptable to Landlord) or other
satisfactory evidence {on which Landlord can reasonsbly rely) verifying the timely renewsl of such coverage.

() General Insurance Provisions.

(i Any insurance that Tenant is required to msintsin under this Lesse chall inclode =
provision (by endorsement if necessary) that requoires the msurance carmer to give Landlord snd Landlord®s lender (if
requested) not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice prior fo any cancellation (whether by Tenant or the insurer) or
materisl modification of such coverage, mcluding the cancellation (whether by Tenant or the imsurer) or materizl
mdification of any required endorsements.

[ki1] If Tenant fails to deliver to Landlord or Landlord's lender (if requested) any certificate
of insurance or endorsement required under this Lease within the prescribed time pericd or if any soch policy is canceled
or mpdified doring the Tease Term without Landlord's consent, Landlord may obtain such insursnce for Landlord's sole
enafit (bat i= under no obligation to do s0), in which case Tenant shall remmburse Landlord for the cost of such insurance
within fifteen (15) days after receipt of 2 statement that indicates the cost of such insurance.  If Tenant fails to camy the
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requited imsurance, such failure shall swiomatically be deemed to be 2 covensnt by Tenant to self-insure such required
coverage, with & full waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord (in the case of deemed self-inswance of Tensnt's required
property msurance); provided however, that such faihore shall remain a breach of this Lease unless cured by Tenant and
any such deemed covenant to “self-insore™ shall not be constreed to grant Tenant the right to self-insure any of its inswance
obligations under this Lease

{1} Tenant shall mamfain all msursnce required wnder this Lesse with companies duly
suthorized to issue insurance policies in the State in which the Property is lecated and bolding a Financial Strength Rating
of “A" or better, and 2 Financial Size Category of “HIT° or larger, based on the most recent published ratings of the A M
Best Company. Landlord and Tensnt acknowledze the insurance markets sre rapidly changing and that insurance in the
form snd amounts described in this Sectiom 4.04 may not be svailable in the firure. Tensnt ackmowledzes that the
insurance described in this Section 404 i= for the primary benefit of Landlord. If at any time during the Lease Term,
Tensnt is mmable to obtain and msintzin the insorance required wnder this Lease, Tenant chall nevertheless maintain
insurance coverage which is (1) costomeary and commercially ressonsble in the insurance industry fior Tenant's type of
tmsiness, as that coverage may change from time to time and (2) accepmble to Landlord Landlord makes mo
representation as to the adequacy of such insurance to protect Landlord’s or Tenant's interests. If Tenant believes that any
such insurance coverage is inadequate, Tenant shall obtain amy such additions] property or lEability insurance which Tenamt
deems pecessary to profect Landlord and Tenant.

() Notenthstending amything in this Lesce to the confrary, Landlord and Tensmt each
hereby waives amy and all rights of recovery agsinst the other, or against the members, managers, officers, employees,
apents of representatives of the other (whether such right of recovery arises from a claim based on nepligence or otherwise),
for loss of or damage to its property or the property of others onder its contrel, if such loss or damage is covered by amy
insurance policy in force (whether or not described in this Lease) at the time of such loss or damage. To the extent required
under their respective policies of insorance, Landlord and Tensnt shall give notice to the insurance carmiers of this onafzal
waiver of claims and confirm that their respective policies of inswance do oot prohibit this waiver and inclode a

) Tensnt shall mot do or permit to be done amy act or thing upon the Property or the
Building which would (z) jecpardize or be in conflict with the property inswance policies covering the Building or fixtures
of property in the Building: () imTease the rate of property insurance applicable to the Building to an smount highet than it
otherwize would be for general office and warehouse use of the Building; or (c) sobject Landlord to any Lisbility or
respomsibility for injury to any person of persons of to property by reason of any business or operation being conducted at
the Property.

{wi) Tenant chall at ifs sole cost and expense keep i fll force and effect during the Laase
Term the following sdditional coversge: (1) workers’ compensation insurance as requited by state law; (2) employer's
lisbility insurance, with a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars (§2,000,000), each accident, not less than Two Million
Diollars (§2,000,000) policy limit, and not less tham Two Million Dollars (32,000,000) each employes for all persons
employed by Tenant who may come onto or eooupy the Property; (3) commerris] suto lishility insurance with a limnt of not
less than Two Million Dollars (32,000,000) apgregate limit fior bedily injury and property damage, inchading owned, non-
owned, and hired aute lishility coverage fior such wehicles driven om and around the Property (if Tensnt does mot own
company vehicles, 3 letter to that effect from an officer or principal of Tensnt, in addition to proof of non-owned snd hived
amto lishility coverage is required); and (4) “Cmmses of Loss — Special Form™ {or a similar policy contsining i
coverage)) property insurance on 3 replacement cost basis, covering (i) Tenant's persona] property, whether owmned, leased,
or rented, including but not limited to trade fwmres, fumiture and equipment, and (if) any Tensnts Alterations (defined
below). Such property insurance policies of Tenant shall contsin sn agreed amount endorsement in len of 8 co-insurance
clase, and shall be written 85 primary policies, not comtributing with and not supplementsl to the property insurance
coverage that Landlord is required fo camy pursuant o Secijon 4.04(0) sbove. Tenant may satisfy its Hability insursnce
oblizations under this subsection through the use of 3 combination of primsary and excess or umbrella coverage. Temant
shall be solely responsible for payment of the entirety of any self-insured refention or deductible smount under Tenant s
insurance policies.

{wid) If Tenant cammies amy of the lisbility insurance required hereunder in the form of a
policy covering more than one location, any certificate required herennder shall mske specific reference to the Property. In
adidition, amy such policy shall contin a “per location™ or “Designated Location (5) General Azsrepate™ (or comparahlbe)
endorsement assuning that any ageregate limit mnder such Lisbility policy shall apply separately to the Property and that the
insurer therenmder shall provide written notice to Landlord if the availsble portion of such agpregate is reduced to less than
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the minimmm amounts required wmder Section 404051 sbove by either payment of claims or the estsblishment of reserves
for claims (in which case Tenant shall be obligated to take immediate steps to increase the amowmt of its insurance coverage
in order to satisfy the mimmm requirements set forth in Section 4. 0403} sbova).

{wil) Tenant's msurance oblizations wmder this Section 4.04 are separate and ndependent
obligations of Tenant, and are expresshy not dependent or conditioned on any other oblipations of Tenant mnder this Lease.

Section 4.05 Maintenance Services and Costs.

{a) Maimtenance Services for the Property. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 6.03 apd 604 and in
addition to Section 4.05(c), Landlord shall maintsin the following Property and Building mamtenance items (collectively,
the “Maintenance Items™) during the Lease Term: () routine monthly landscape maintenance; (i) tree trimming; (i)
mingr landscape repairs; (iv) water imigation charges; (v) associztion dues; (vi) backflow testing; (vii) parkinz lot
swesping; (viil) exterior rodent control; (ix) Building firte sprinkler alstm monitoring (inclnding related phone line charges);
(x) ESFE. pump monitoring snd service charges; (@) exterior building painmt; (xil) asphalt slwmy seal; and (i) roof
membrane maintenance, repair and replacement. In commection with Landlord’s obligations wnder thiz Section 405(e)
Landlord may enter info 2 confract with 2 confractor/maintensnce provider of Landlord’s choice to provide some {(but not
necessarily all) of the maintenance services listed shove. Tenant shall reimbmurse Landlord for Tensnt's Pro Rata Share of
the cost of the Maintenance Ifems (the “Alaimtenamce Ifems Costs™) (prorated for any fractionsl month) upon written
notice from Landlord that such costs are due and payable, and in any event prier to delinguency. Landlord may, at
Landlord’s election, estimate m advance the anmnal Maintensnce Iems Costs fior which Tenant is lisble under this Section
4.050eh and require that Tenant pay such Maintenance Irems Costs to Landlord, in monthly installments, together with Base
Fent Landlord may adjust such estimates at soy time based npon Landlord’s experience and reasonable snticipation of
costs. Such sdjustments shall be effective as of the next rent payment date afier notice to Tenant In connection with the
Maintenance Iems Costs, Landlord shall collect from Tenant, as Additional Fent, reserves for shory sealing of the asphalt
portions of the ttock court, parking ot end doveways (the “Asphalt Reserve™). Further and in connection with the
Maintenance Ttemps Costs, Landlord shall collect from Tenant during the Extencion snd'or amy extension of the Lessa Term
hymﬂnlmnﬂlmeTm,umnmlRmi,mmﬁr[ﬂmhﬂdmgpmng(ﬂm“?aﬂﬂﬂm"},
(if) roof membrane maintensnce, repair and replacement (the “Roof Reserve™). The Asphslt Reserve, the Paint Reserve
ami the Foof Reserve are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Reserves.” In addition, Landlord shall collect
from Tenant, as Additional Fenr 3 management fee (the “Manazement Fee™) (which such Management Fee shall not
exceed five percent (5%) of gross rents of the Bullding for the calendar yesr) for managing the Property. Tenamt shall pay
such Beserves and Management Fee to Landlord in monthly installments topether with Base Fent The provisions of this
Sectiop 4.05() shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lezse Term

{t) Recomcliation Within one hondred twenty (120) deys after the end of each calendar yesr durmg the Lesse
Term, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a statement prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
setting forth, in reasomsble detail the total Maintensmee Items Costs paid or incwred by Landlond during the preceding
calendsr year, Upon receipt of such statement and except for the Feserves and Management Fee collected by Landlord

o Secton 4 05(5) sbove, which shall be retamed by Landlord, there shall be an sdjustment between Landlord and
Tenant, with payment to or credit given by Landlord (2= the case may be) so that [Landlord shall receive the antite amoumt
of Mamtenance Items Costs due from Tenant for such period.

Section 4.04 Late Charges. Tenant’s failure to pay rent prompily may case Landlord to incoor unanticipated
costs. The exact amount of such costs is impractical or extremely difficult to ascertzin Such costs may inchsde, but are not
limited to, processing and accounting charpes and late charges which may be imposed on Landlord by amy ground lease,
mortgage of trust deed enoombering the Property. Therefore, if Landlord does not receive amy rent payment within five (5}
days after it becomes due. Tenant chall pay Landlord a late charge equal to ten percent (10%) of the overdoe smoumt. The
parties apree that mch late charge rep a fair and ible estimate of the costs Landlord will incur by ressom of
such late payment If Tenant shall be served with a demand for payment of past due rent or any other charpe, any payments
tendered thereafter to cure any defsult of Tenant shall be made onky by cashier’s check, wire transfer, or other immediately
available fands.

Saction 4.07 Imterest on Past Due Oblipations. In addition to amy late charge inposed pursuant to Section
406 sbove, any amount owed by Tenant to Landlord which is not paid within five (5) days after it becomes due shall bear
interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum from the doe date of such amount (“Interest™); provided, however,
that no inferest shall be payable on amy late charges miposed on Tenant under thic Lease. The payment of interest on such
amounis shall mot excuse or cure any defmolt by Tensnt wnder this Lease. If the interest rate specified in this Section 4.07.
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or any other charge or payment due under this Lease which may be deemed or constroed as interest, is higher than the rate
permitied by lsw, such interest rate is hereby decreased to the maximum legal interest rate permitied by law.

ARTICLE FIVE USE OF PROFERTY

Saction 5.01 Permitted Uses. Tenant may use the Property anly for the Permitted Tses set forth in Section
106 shove snd for no other purpose whatsoever; provided that soch Permitted Uses (i) do not create any wmmswal or
atypical wear and tesr on the building on the Property or decrease the value of the Property; (ii) do not create any risk of
Environments]l Demages or Hazardons Material contamination oo the Property; (i) do not ceate obnoxious (35 o a
reasgnable person) odors or noise; (iv) do not inclsde storape of tives, chemirals {other than those permitted mder Section
503 below) or explosives or other products made with like materials; (v) do not mvolve fbrication or mamofactoring,
except a5 expresshy permitted in Section 1.08 abowe; (vi) do not exceed the load capacity of the floor slab; (vii) do not
imvolve the growing, cultvation harvesting, separating, use, sale, warehousing, distribotion, packing, dispensing, or
possession of cannsbis, including, without limitation, marijusna, or any related cannabis produocts; and (viil) is consistent
with the nse of other tenants of Landlord in the somounding srea

Section 5.02 Manner of Use. Tenant shall not cause or permit the Property to be inproved, developed, or
nsed in sny way which constitites 3 violation of any law, stamite, ordinance or governmentsl regulation or order, or othsr
governmental requirement now in force or which may bereafter be enacted or prommlzsted mclhuding, without limitafion,
any “preen building™ nrdmmt&,lawmmgnlam(cullecmﬂy, “Applicable Laws"), or which unreasonably interferes with
the rights of other tenants of Landlord, or which constitutes a myisance or waste. Tenant shall obtsin and pay for all pemmits
requited for Tenant's occupancy of the Property, and for all osiness licenses, and shall prompdy take all actions necessary
to comply with all applicable statotes, ordinances, mles, regnlations, orders and requirements regulating the use by Tenant
of the Property, incloding without imiting to the Occopational Safety and Health Act Motadthstanding the forezoing,
Landlord shall, at Tenant's sole cost and expense cooperate with Tenant in execufing permitting applications and
pmhmgu&&mmmﬂmmbhmsmmmb&Tamwm&mﬂnappmm
autharity 2 High Pile Stock Permit (or comparable permit), if needed Tenant, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, shall be
mﬁhhmﬂlmﬁmﬁmk&m%n;&ﬂm@emmhmsmﬂmmm
protection systems (mchading, without ki n, fire ext: hers) that may be required by the fire deparment or amy
Eovernmental sFency. hsha“bemsdﬂEdaTmDﬂnrfaﬂdnymnbmmhpumtmﬁmbyﬂaﬁmnﬁxm
Landlord’s receipt of governments] permits, approvals or certificates of oooupancy.

Tenant shall at its sole cost and expense, promptly comply with any Applicable Laws regarding the Proprety,
inchoding, without limitation those which relate to (or are miggered by) (1) Tenant's use of the Property, and (i) any
alteration or any tensnt improvements made by Tenant or at the request of Tensnt  Should any standard or resmlation nowr
or hereafter be imposed on Tenant by any federsl state or local govermmentsl body charged with the establishment
regulstion and enforcement of cocupational, health or safety standards, then Tensmt agrees, at its sole cost and expense to
comply prompitly with such standards or regulations. The judzment of any court of competent jurisdiction or the adnmiszion
of Tenant in any judicis] action, regardless of whether Landlord #s & party therato, that Temant has violated any Applicable
Laws, shall be conclusive of that fact s between Landlord and Tenant Tenamt shall immedistely notify Landlord m
writing of any water infiltration at the Property. Consistent with the provisions of this Secgiop 5.02 Tenant acknowledges
and agrees that it is solely responsible for obtaining swy required certificate of ocoupancy (or its equivalent) from the
applicable povernments] authorities.

Section 5.03 Harzardous Materials.
5031 Definitions.
A “Hazardous Material™ means any substance, whether solid, liquid er gaseouns in nature:

(1) the presence of which requires investigation or remedistion under any federal, state or
local statute. regulation. ordimance, order, action, policy or commaon law; or

(it which is or becomes defined as a2 “harsrdows waste”™ “hazsrdons substance ™
“polhotant " “contaminent” “hazardous material™ or “toxic” mder sy federal state or local stanme regmlation, mile or
ordinsmce or amendments thereto inchoding, without Limitati the Comprehensive Environmentsl Besponse,
Compensation and Lisbility Act (42 U.5.C. section 2601 et seq.) and'or the Fesource Conservation and Fecovery Act (42
U.5.C. section §901 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.5.C. section 1801 et seq.), the Federal
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Water Pollution Control Act (33 TL.5.C. section 1251 et seq.), the Clean Air Act (42 U.5.C. section 7401 et seq.), the Toxic
Substanwes Confrol Act, as amended (15 U.5.C. section 2601 et seq.), and the Ocoupationsl Safety snd Health Act (29
TL5.C. section §51 et seq.), as these lams have been a ded o1 suppl ted: or

(ki wihich is toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammmshle, infections, radioactve, carcinopemic,
muitagenic, or otherwize hazardous or is or becomes repulsted by sy povernments] sothority, agency, department
commission, board, apency or mstrumentality of the United States, the Stete of Arizons or any political subdivision thereof,
ar

(v} the presence of which on the Property or the Building canses or threstens to canse a
mmcance upon the Property or the Buillding or to adjacent properties or poses or threatens to pose s hazard to the health or
safety of persons on or sbout the Property; or

(%) the presence of which on adjacent properties conld comstitate a trespass by Tenant; or

{wi) without Lmdtation which contsins gasoline, diesel fiel or other petrolemm
hydrocarbons; or

(vil}  without limitstion which confaine polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), ashestos or ures
formaldabyde foam msulation: or

(wiif)  -withowt imitstion which contains radon gas.
B. “Environmental Requirements" means all applicable present and firiare:

[k} stafutes, regulations, moles, ordinemces, codes, lcemses, permufs, orders, approvals,
plans, suthorizations, concessions, framchises, and similar items (including, but not limited to these pertaining to reporting,
licensing, permitting, imvestigation and remediztion), of all Governmental Agencies; and

(id) all applicable judicisl administrative, and regulatory decrees, judgments. and orders
relating to the protection of iman health or the emvironment, including, withowt limitetion, all requirements pertaining to
emissions, discharges. releases or threatened releases of Hazardowns Materials or chemical substances imbo the air, surface
water, gproundwater of land or relating o the memfacture, processing, distribution, use, trestment storage, disposal
transport, or handling of Hazardous Materials or chemical substances.

C. “Environmental Damages” mesns all claims judements, damages. losses, penslties, fines,
lishilities {inchiding strict lisbility), encombrances liens, costs, and expences (nclnding the expense of investigation and
defense of any claim whether or not such claim s ultimately defeated or the amount of amy good faith setflement or
judgment arising from amy such claim) of whatever kind or natume, contingent or otherwise, matwed or onmatored,
foreseeable or unforeseesble (including withouwt limitation reasonsble attomeys” fees and disbursements and consultants®
fees) any of which are incwrmed at any time 85 8 resnlt of the existence of Hazardons Material upon, shout, or beneath the
Property or the Building or migrating or threatening to mizrate o of from the Property or the Building, or the existenre of 2
violstion of Environmentsl Fequirements pertzining to the Property or the Building and the activities thereon, regardless of
whether the existence of such Hazardons Material or the violation of Environmental Requitements anpse prior to the present
ownership or operation of the Property. Envirommental Damages inclode withowt lindtation:

(i damapes for personal injury, or imjury to property or nanhmal TESOUTTES OCONTINE UpOD
or off of the Propesty, including withowt limitatiom lost profits, consequential damages the cost of demolition and
rebuilding of sny improvemsnts on real property, inferest, penalties and damages arising from claims brought by or on
ehalf of employees of Tenant {with respect to which Tenant waives any right to raise as & defence agninst Landlord smy
immmnnify to wiich it may be entifled under any industrial or worker's compensation laws);

[kit] fees, costs or expenses incmmed for the services of attomeys, consultsnts CoOnTaCtors,
exparts, laboratories and all other costs inowred in connection with the investigation or remediation of such Harardoos
Miaterials or vielation of such Envi ntal Bequir including, but net lmited to, the preparation of any feasibility
studies or repornts or the performence of any cleamp, remediation, removal response, shatement containment closure,
mauunarmmmgwmimqunadbjmyﬂuvmﬂnlﬂgmymmmmhhnﬂc&sﬂmeﬂkefﬂHacﬂmmxme
of the Property snd the Building or amy other property in & manner consistent with its corment use or otherwise expended in
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connection with such conditions, and inchuding, without limitation, aoy attorneys® fees, costs and expenses incuwmed in
enforcing the provisions of this Lease or collecting any sums doe herennder;

(idd) lishility to sny third person or Governmental Agency o indemnify such person or
Governmental Agency for costs expended in connection with the items referenced in subsection (ii) above; and

) dimimion in the fair market value of the Property or the Building including, without
limitation, any reduction in fair market rental vahe or life expectancy of the Property or the Building or the improvements
located thereon or the resiriction on the wse of or adverse impact on the marketing of the Property or the Building or amy
portion thereof

D “Governmental Agency™ means all governments] azencies, departments, commissions, boards,
reans or instromentalities of the United States, states, counties, dities and political subdivisions thereof.

B The “Tenamt Grouwp” mesns Tenmant Tenant's successors, assigmees, gmarantors, officers,
members, managers, directors, agents, employess, contractors, invitees, permitees or other parties under the supenvision or
conirol of Tenant or entering the Property during the Lease Term with the permission or knowledge of Tenant, other than
Landlord or Landlord’s agents of engoyess.

5032 Prohibitioms.

A Osher than (i) normal quantities of general office and cleaning supplies contmining de mimimis
amounts of Hazardons Material, (ii) those Hazardous Materials that may be contained within vehicles, squipment and
machinery operated at the Property (e.g., fisel in a vehicle’s tank]) or contained in original packaging fom manofactorer and
temporarily beld by Tensnt while in transit, 50 long a5 such items are handled by Tensnt in stoict complisnce with all
Environments] Fequirements and (iii) except as specified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto, Tenant shall not cause, permit or
suffer any Herardous Material to be brought upon, treated, kept, stored, disposed of discharged relessed produced,
manufactured, generated. refined or used upon, about or benesth the Property by the Tenant Group, or any other person
without the prior written consent of Landlord. From time to time during the Lease Term, Tensnt may request Landlord’s
approval of Tenant's use of other Hazardows Materials which approval may be withheld in Landlord’s sole discretion.
Before the date of Tenant's early access to or occupancy of the Property, Tensnt shall provide to Landlord for those
Hazardoos Materisls described on Exhibit “B™: (2) a description of handling, storage, use and disposal procedures; and (b)
all *commmunity right fo know™ plans or disclosures and/or emergency response plans which Tenant is required to supply to
local Governments] Agencies pursusnt to any Environments] Fequremeants.

B. Tenant shall not camse, permit or suffer the existence or the commission by the Tensnt Group, or
by amy other person, of a viclation of any Envirommental Bequirements upon, sbout or beneath the Property or the Building

C. Tenant shall neither create or soffer to exist, nor permit the Tenant Group to create or suffer to
exist amy lien, security imterest or other charge or encumbrance of any kind with respect to the Property or the Building,
incloding withowt limitstion, any lien imposed pormant to secion 107(f) of the Superfind Amendments and
Fesuthorization Act of 1985 (42 U.5.C. section 2607(T)) or amy similar state statute.

D Except as otherwise expressly allowed by Section 5.03 2(A) above, Tensmt shall not mstall,
OpeTate of maintain any above or below zrade tank swmp, pit, pond, lagoon or other storage or trestment vessal or device
on the Property without Landlord’s prior written consent which may be withheld in Iandlord’s sole and sbsobre
i 3

5033 Indemnity.

A Tenant, its successors, assigns snd guarantors, sgres o indemmnify, defend, reimburse and hold
harmless:

) Landlord; and

(i) any other person who acquires all or 2 portion of the Property in any menner (ncluding
purchase at & foreclosure sale) or who becomes entitled fo exercise the rights and remedies of Landlord under this Lease;
and
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(i) the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, parters, members, managers, agents,
coniractors, subcomtractors, experts, licensees, affiliates, lessess, morizapess, tustees, heirs, devisess, successors, 8ssigns
amed imvitees of Landlord snd soch persoms;

from and against any and =11 Environmentsl Damages which exist a5 a result of the activities or negligence of the Tenant
Group or which exist as a result of the breach of sny warranty or covenant or the inscoaracy of amy representation of Tensnt
contsined in this Lease or by Tenant's remedistion of the Property or the Building or faihme to meet its oblizations
contained in this Secgion 503

B. The cbligations contained in this Section $.03.3 chall incinde, but not be limited to, the rden
and expense of defending all claims suts and admimictrative proceedings, even if such claims, suits or proceedings are
zroumdless, false or frandulent, and conducting all nepotistions of amy description, and paying and discharzing, when and as
the same become due, any and sl judsments, penalties or other sums due against such indenmified persons. Landlord, at
its sole expense may employ additional counsel of its choice to asseciate with counsel representing Tenant.

C. Landlord shall have the right bat not the obligstion to join and participate in, and control, if it so
elects, any legal proceedings or actons initisted in commection with Tenant's activites. Landlord may also negotiate,

defend spprove amd appesl swy action taken or issued by smy applicsble govermmentsl awhority with regard to
contamination of the Property or the Building by a Hazardous Material.

D The oblizations of Tenant in this Seciion 5033 shall swvive the expiration or termination of
thiz Lease

E The oblizations of Tensnt wnder this Sectiog 5.03.3 shall not be affected by any investization by
or on behalf of Landlord, or by any information which Landlord may have or obtain with respect thereio.

5034 Obligation to Remediate. In addiion to the oblization of Tenant to indemmnify Landlord
pursnamt te this Lease, Tenant shall upon approval and demsnd of Landlord at its sole cost and expense and using
contractors approved by Landlord, prompily take all actions to remediate the Property and the Building which are required
by any Governmentsl Azency, or which are ressonably necessary to mitirate Environmentsl Damages or to allow foll
economic use of the Property and the Building, which remediation is necessitated from the presence upon, about o beneath
the Property and the Building, st sny time dwring or upon terminstion of this Lease (whether discovered during or following
the Lease Term)), of a Hazardous Material o1 a vielation of Environments] Regquitements existing as a result of the activities
or neglizence of the Tenant Group. Such actions shall inchide, but not be limited to, the imnestization of the environmental
condition of the Property and the Building, the preparation of any feasbility stodies, reports or remedial plans, and the
performance of any clesmup, remedistion, containment, operation, maintenance, monitoring or restoration work, whether on
or off the Property, which shall be performed in 3 manner approved by Landlord Tenant shall take all actions necessary o
restore the Property and the Building to the condition existing prior to the infroduction of Hazardouws Material upon, about
of beneath the Property and the Building, notwithctanding any lesser standard of remedisfion allowable mnder Applicable
Law or governmental policies.

5035 Right to Inspect. Landlord shall have the right in its sole and sbsolhute discretion, bue not the
duty, to enter and conduct sn inspection of the Property, incinding imasive tests, st amy reasonable tfime to determiine
whether Tenant is complying with the terms of this Lease inclnding but not limited to the complisnce of the Property and
the activities thereon with Environmental Bequirements and the existence of Environmental Damagzes as & result of the
condition of the Property or swrounding properties and activities thereon Landlord shall have the right, bat not the duty, to
retain any independent professional consnltant (the “Consmltant™) to enter the Property to conduct such an inspection or to
review any report prepared by or for Tensnt concemning such compliance. The cost of the Consultamt shall be paid by
Landlord umless such imvestigation discloses a violation of any Emvironmental Fequitement by the Tenant Group or the
existence of 3 Hazardous Material on the Property or any other property cansed by the activities or neglizence of the Tenant
Group (other than Hazsrdons Mhaterials wsed in complisnce with a1l Environments]l Requirements and previously spproved
Ty Landlord), in which case Tenant shall pay the cost of the Consultant Tenant hersby grants to Landlord, and the agents,
employees, consultants and contractors of Landlord the right to enfer the Property to perform such tests on the Property as
are reasonably necessary to conduct such reviews and investigations. Landlord shall use commercislly ressonable efforts to
minimize interference with the business of Tenant.

5034 Notification. If Tenant shall become aware of or receive notice or other commmmication
concerming any actal alleged, suspected or threstensd violation of Environmenta] Fequirements, or lability of Tenant for
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Environments] Diamages in connection with the Property or past or present activities of any person thereon, inchuding bt
not limited to notice or other compmnication conceming any sctual or threstened investization, ingoiry, lawsmt, claim
dtstion, directive, summons, procesding, complaint, notice, order, writ, or mjunction, relating o same, then Tenant shall
deliver to Landiord within ten (10) days of the receipt of such nofice or commmumication by Tenant, a written description of
said vielation, lisbility, or actusl or threatened event or condition, together with copies of any doruments evidencing same.
Reeceipt of such notice shall not be deemed to create any obligation on the part of Landlord to defend or otherwise respond
o amy such notification

If requested by Landlord, Tensnt shall disclose to Landlord the names and amounts of all Hazardons Matesials
other than peneral office and cleaning supplies referred to in Jeciion 5,032 of this Lease, which were used, generaied,
treated, handled, stored or disposed of on the Property or which Tenant intends to use, gemerate, trest, handle, store or
dispose of on the Property. The foregoing in no way shall limit the necessity for Tenant obtaining Landlord's comsent
parsnant to Section 5.03.2 of this Lease

5037 Surrender of Property. In the mmety (B0) days prior to the expiration or termination of the
Leace Term, and for up to ninety (907 days after the kater to occur of (i) Tenant's full surender to Landlord of exclusive

possession of the Property; and (ii) the termmination of this Lease, Landlord may have an environmental assessment of the
Properiy performed in accordance with Section 5.03_5 of this Lease. Tenant shall perform at its sole cost and expense, any
clean-up or remedial work recommended by the Comsultant which is necessary to remove, mitipste of remediate any
Harardous Matensls snd'or contamination of the Property or the Buoildng cansed by the activities or neglizence of the
Tenant Group.

50328 Assirnment and Subletting. In the event this Lesse provides that Tenant may assign this Lease
or sublet the Property subject to Landlord’s consent and'or certsin other conditions, and if the proposed assignes’s or
subtensnt’s activities in or about the Property inwolve the use, handling, storage or disposzal of any Hazardouns Materisls
other than those wsed by Tenant snd in guantities and processes similar to Tenant’s uses in compliance with this Lease, (i) it
shall be reasomable for Landlord to withhold its consent to such sssignment or sublease in lizht of the risk of contamination
posed by such activities andfor (i) Landlord may, in its sole and absohate discretion, impose an additional condition to such
assizmment or sublease which requires Tenant to reasonably establish that such assignes’s or subtenant’s activities pose no
materially greater risk of contamination to the Property than do Tensnt's pernmitted activities in view of: (3) the quantities,
tomicity and other properties of the Hazsrdons Materials to be wsed by such assipnee or subfenant; (b) the precantions
apzmet 8 release of Hazsrdous Materials such assiznes or subtenant agrees to inpl t; () such sssigmea’s or enant’s
finamcial condition as it relates to its ability to fund 3 major clean-up; and (d}snd:asslgneesurmm;pohqrmd
historical record respecting its willingness to respond to the clean-up of 3 release of Hazardous Materials.

5039 Swmrvival of Hazardons Materials Obligation. Tenant’s breach of any of ifs covensnts or
oblizations under this Secgon 503 shall constitnte a material default under this Lease. The oblipations of Tensnt under this
Section 5.03 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of thiz Lease withowt any limitation, and shall constitute
obligations that are independent and severable from Tenant's covenants and oblizations to pay rent under this Lease.

Section 5.04 Anctions and Sigms. Tenant shall not conduct or permit any auctions or sheriff's sales at the
Property. Subject to Landlord’s prior written approval and provided all signs are in keeping with the quality, design and
style of the business park within which the Property is located Tensnt at ifs sole cost and expense may install an
identification sign (“Sign™) at the Property; provided, however, that (i) the size, color, location, materials and desizn of the
Sigm shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written spproval; (i) the Sizn chall comply with all spplicable governmental miles
and regulations and the Property’s covenants, conditions and restrictions; (iif) the Sign shall not be painted directly on the
mnilding on the Property or attached or placed on the roof of the building on the Property; and (iv) Tenant's confiming
sipmage right chall be confingent upon Tenant maintining the SiFn in & first-class condition. Tenant shall be responsible
for all costs inowmed n conmection with the design. construction, installation, repair and maintensnce of the Sign. Upon the
expiration or ezrlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall cause the Sizn to be removed and shall repair aoy damaze
caused by sach removal {mchiding, tut not limited to, patching and painting), all at Tensni®s sole cost and expenss. Except
for the 5ipn, no other sisn notice, logos, pictore, names of advertisement may be posted or installed st the Property or
Building by or on behalf of or at the request of Tenant withont the prior written consent of Landlord, which may be
withheld in Landlord’s sole discretion. Amy sigms, notices, lopos, pichures, names or advertisements which are installed and
that have not been separately approved in writing by Landlord, may be remowved by Landlord, without notice to Tenant at
Tenant's sole cost and expensa.
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Section 5.05 Indemnity. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Tenant shall indemmify, defend. protect
amd bold harmiess Landlord (and Landlerd’s members, mansgers, parimers, snd shareholders, as applicable, and the
affiliates, employees, agents, and confractors of Landlord and its members, managers, partners, =nd shareholders, as
applicable) and Landlord's property mansger from amy and all costs, damn,loss,damag\e,expmseuﬂhshuhty(mﬂiﬂmg
without limitation court costs, liigation expenses, and reasonsble attormeys’ fees) incnmed in connection with or arsing
from: {g) Tenant’s use of the Property and the Conmmon Arvess including, but not limited to, those arising from any
arcident, incident, injury or damaze however and by whomseever caused (except to the extent of any claim arsing out of
Landlord’s gross neglipence or willful misconduct), o aoy person of property oCcmming in of sbout the Property; (b) the
conduct of Tenant's business or awything else done or permitted by Tensnt to be done in or about the Property; (c) amy
breach or default in the performance of Tenant's oblizations under this Lease; (d) any misrepresentation or breach of
warranty by Tenant under this Lease; or (&) other acts or omissions of Tenant. As nsed in this Section, the term “Tenant™
chall mclnde Tensnt’s employess, agents, conractors and imvitess, if applicsble The provisions of this Section 5.05 shall
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease with respect to any claims or lsbility ocowming prier to such
expiration or earlier termination and shall constifute oblizations that are independent and severable from Tenant's
covenants and oblizations to pay rent under this Leasa

Section 5.04 Landlord’s Access. Landlord reserves the right at all reasonmsble times and upon reasonable
notice to Tenant to enter the Property to (1) inspect it; (i) show the Property to prospective purchasers, morigagess or
tenamts, or to the ground or wderlying lessors; (iii) post motices of non-respensibility; (iv) alter, improve or repair the
Property; or (v) place “For Sale™ and “For Lease™ szigns om the Property. Nmmm;mmtummm
contzined in this Section 5.06, Landlord may enter the Property at amy time to (A) perform services required of
('Bjubep-nrss&ismndnemmyhmuhuﬂtmleasgmthemannﬂ'pwnﬂadmthsLﬂse,mﬂcmeﬁ:Amhﬂhle
Law; and (C) perform aoy covenanss of Tenant which Tenant fails to perform.  Any such entries shall be withowt the
shatement of Bent and shall inclnde the nght to take such ble steps as required to accomplish the stated puorposes.
Tenant hereby waives any clsims for damages or for any imjurnes of moonvemience fo of interference with Temant's
tmsiness, lost profits, any loss of ocoupancy or quist enjoyment of the Property, and any other loss eccasioned thereby. In
an emergency, Landlord shall have the right to use any means that Landlord may deem proper to open the doors in and to
the Property. Any emry imto the Property in the manner described sbove shall mot be deemed to be a forcible or nnlawfil
eniry into, or 2 detamer of, the Property, or an scmal or constmctive eviciion of Tenant from sny portion of the Property.

Section 5.07 Vehicle Parking. Tenant shall be entitled o we of the unreserved, non-exclusive sutomobile
parking spaces in the Property as shown on Exhibit “A™ amtached hereto. Tenant’s parking shall be on a “first come, first
serve” basis and shall be limited to vehicles no larger than standard size sutomobiles or pickop utlity vehicles. Tenant
shall not allow large trucks or other large vehicles to be parked within the Building (other than in desipnated areas) or om
the sdjacent public streets; provided, however, that the parking or storing of large tucks and other commercial vehicles is
allowed in font of adjscent and perpendicular to Tenant's dock hizgh loading doors at the Property, 5o as to be on the
concTete apron adjacent to such doors, or in other aress specifically desipnated by Landlord for such purpose. Temporary
parking of larpe delivery wehicles at the Building may be penmitted by the mles and regulations established by Landlord
Vehicles shall be parked only in siriped parking spaces and not in driveways, loading areas or other locations mot
specifically desiznated for parking. Handicapped spaces shall only be used by those legslly permitted to use them If
Tenant parks more vehicles in the parking area then ac permitted above or parks eutside the desipnated parking area shown
on Exhibit “A™, then sach condact shall be a material breach of this Lease. In addition to Landlord’s other remedies under
thiz Lease Tenant shall pay a daily charge determined by Landlord for each such additional vehicle.

Section 5.08 Qmiet Possession. If Tenant pays the rent and observes and performs all other terms, covenants
and conditions on Tenant’s part to be observed and performed mmder this Lease, Landlerd agrees to defend Tensnt’s might to
quiet emjoyment of the Property for the Lease Term against any party claiming by, through or under Landlord | subject to the
provisions of this Lease

ARTICLE 5IX CONDITION OF FROPERTY; MAINTENANCE, REFAIRS AND ALTERATIONS

Saction 6.01 Existing Conditions. Tenant accepts the Property in its “as-is™ comdition as of the earlier of
Tenant's ocoapancy of the Property or the Lease Commencemsnt Diate, subject to all recorded meatters, kaws, ordinances,
and governmental regulations and orders. Except as expressly provided in this Lesse, Tensant acknowledzes that neither
Landlord nor any agent of Landlord has made any representations or warranties, express or implied whatsoever with
respect 10 the condition of the Property, the Building, or any buildings or other improvements on or comprising a part of
either of same mor with respect to the fimess or suitability thereof for any particular nse or qEpese, and Tenant herekny
waives amy snd all such warranties, express or implied inclading specifically but without Lmitation sny warranty or
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representation of switability. Tenant represents snd warrants that Tenant hes made its own inspection of and inguiry
reganding the condition of the Property {or has had the opportmity to do so) and is mot relying on any representations of
Landlord or any Broker with respect theren.

Section §.02 Exemption of Landlord from Liability. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Landlord
chall mot be lishle for (and Tensnt ssomes the rick of ) any damage or injury to the person, business {(or any loss of ncome
therefrom), goods, wares, merchandize or other property of Tenant, Tenant’s employess, Invitees, customers or sny other
person in or about the Property, whether such damage or injury is caused by or results from: (&) fire, steam electricity,
water, gas or raim; {b) the bresksge leskage obstmaction or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plombing,
air conditioning or ighting fixtures or amy other canse;, (o) conditions arising in or sbout the Property or upon other portions
of the Building, or from other sources or places; (d) criminal acts or enry by mmawthorized persons into the Propesty or the
‘building on the Property; or (2) any act or onussion of amy other tensnt of Landlord Landlord shall not be Lisble for sany
such damage or injury even though the canse of or the means of repaining such damage or injury are not accessible to
Tenant The provisions of this Segijon § 02 shall not, however, exempt Landlord from lisbility to the extent of Landlord's
zross neglipence or willfnl misconduct, snd are subject to Section 4. 044d)(iv) shove.

Section §.03 Landlord®s Oblizations.

(=) Sobject to the prowisions of Arficle Seven (Damage or Destructon) and Article Eizht
(Condemnation), snd except for damapge caused by amy act or omission of Tenant, or Tenamt’s employess, agents,
conftractors or invitees, or as 3 result of Tenant’s alterations, Landlord shall keep the foundation and the structural portions
of the (1) roof and (i) exterior walls of the Property in good order, condition and repair (provided that Tenant maintains
such itemns in accordsnce with 8 first class mdustrial building). The sbove-referenced items chell be at Landlord”s sole cost
and expense. Landlord shall as pecessary, (1) maintaing repair and replace the roof membrane; (if) paint the exterior walls
of the building on the Property; and (iif} shury-seal and stripe the asphalt portion of the track court and the parking lot.
During the Initial Lease Term, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for (a) all costs paid by Landlord for subsections (i) and (i)
showa; and (b)) the amount, if amy, of the cost of subsection (i) in excess of the Asphalt Reserve collected by Landlord
pursnant to Section 405(3) Daring the Extencion and'or any extension of the Leace Term beyond the Initial Lease Term,
Tensnt shall reimburse Landlord the amount, if any, of the cost of subsections (i), (i) andier (iif) above in excess of the
Reserves collecied by Landlord pursnant to Segtion 40508} for such item s applicsble. In addition and during the Lease
Term Landlord shall be responsible for amy asphslt repairs and/or repaving the paved aress and'or concrete repairs and/or

and Tenant chall reimburse Landlord for such costs. All costs required to be paid pursuant to this Secfiog
503 chall be paid within ten (10) days of Landlord’s written request accompanied by supporting decumentation for such
cost  Lamdlord, however, shall not be oblizated to maintsin or repair floor, windows, doors, plate glass or surfaces of
exterior walls. Landlord shall not be obligated to meke any repairs under this Section §.03 wtil a reasonsble time after
written receipt from Tensnt of the need for such repairs. Tenant wames the benefit of any present or fithure law which
might zive Tenant the right to repair the Property at Landlord's expence or to tenninate this Tease becanse of the condition
of the Property.

] HNotithstsnding the foregoing, Landlord shall st Landlord’s expense canse the warehouse
floors to be broom-swept and the existing plombing, lishting, air conditioning, hesting, and ventilating systems, fire
sprinkler system and loading doors in the Property (collectively, the “Warramted Ifems™), to be in good operating
condition on the date Tenant first enters the Property. Upon written request ffiom Tenant received within ninety (90) days
of the date Tenant first emters the Property, Landlord shall repair any Warranted Items not delivered in good operating
condition unless such repairs are required doe to the acts or emissions of Tenant or a5 a result of alterations, additions or
improvements to the Property made by Tenant or for Tenant Landlord shall be deemed to have delivered the Property in
the condition required by this Section 6.03 unless Tenant gives Landlord written notice and sets forth with specificity the
natore and extent of any items requiring repair, within ninety (90) days after the date Tenant first enters the Property.

Section §.04 Tenant’s Oblizations.

=) Exrept 2= provided in Sectiom 4.05 (c) above with respect to Landlord’s oblizations for the
performance of certsin work at the Property that is the subject of Common Area Costs, Section 603 (Tandlord's
Ohplizations) above, Article Seven (Demage or Destruction) below, and Article Eisht (Condemnation) below, Tensmt at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, shall keep all portions of the Property (including nonstroctural | interior, exterior, systems
and equipment) in good order, condition and repair. If any portion of the Property or any system of equipment in the
Property that Tenant is oblizated to repair cannot be folly repaired or restored (in Landlord’s judgment), Tensnt shall
prompidy replace (subject to Landlord’s right to mmdertske such responsibility) such portion of the Property or system or

Industrial Leass v MENER034530-002 1828 North Higley Road, Suite _, Mesa, AT
Fobroary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR. VEEECLES INC ]

17




DocuSign Envelope 1D AFS4TI2E-FIED-4617-BABT-DDSSE0A3AZE1

equipment in the Property. The cost of such replacement shall be amortized (using a rate of interest regsonsbly determined
by Landlord) over the nseful life as reasonably determined by Landlord, and Tenant shall only be lisble for that portion of
the cost which is applicable to the Lease Term (as it may be extended) (the “Useful Life Alocation™), and if the full
replacement cost is initially borme by Tensnt Landlord shall reimburse Tenant or provide Tensnt with a credit against
futare Additional Fent oblizations in an amownt equal to Landlord’s share of such total cost. Tenant shall maintain a
preventive maintensmce service comract providing for the regular inspection and maintenance of the Property’s heating and
air conditioning systems (the “HVAC Systems™) by a licensed heating and sir conditioning comtractor, unless Landlord is
obligated to maintsin all or a portion of such equipment pursnant to Section §.03(a) abowve, or unless Landlord makes the
election described i the next succeeding sentence. Landlord shall have the right, mpon written notice to Temant, to
undertake the responsibility fior preventive maintensnce of all or a porton of the HVAC Systems at Tenant™s expense. the
cost of which shall be paid by Tensnt as Additions] Bent Wotwithstanding sy lansumge to the contrary in this Sacgog
G5.04(a), Tensnt shall pay the full cost of such repair or replacement of the HVAC Systems and is not entitled to the benefit
of the Useful Life Allocation if Tensnt has fajled to obtain snd maintain the preventive maintensnce confracts for the
HVAC Systems, as required above (and assuming Landlord has not elected to do so). If any part of the Property or the
Building is damaged by any act or omission of Tenant (soch as damage to the floor slsb camsed by overloading), Tensnt
shall pay Landliord the cost of repairing or replacing such damaged property, whether or not Landlord would othersise be
obligated to pay the cost of maintaining or repairing such property and without the benefit of the Useful Life Allocation. It
is the intention of Landlord and Tensant that, at all times during the Lease Term Tensnt shall maintyin the Property in an
attractive, first-class and folly operative condition.  Without limiting the penerality of the provisions contained sbove in this
Section 6.04(a) Tenant sprees to pay to Landlord the cost to repair sny damage cansed by the ransportation and storage of
itz products in, en, or sbout the Property, inchading, bt not limvited to sny damage to the Property’s concrete floor slab,
adjoining concrete ramps, adjpining concrete truck apron, and adjoining concrete or asphalt parking and access areas due to
the use of forklifts or other equipment or vehicles hsuling Tenant’s products or otherwise. Ovdinary wear and tear on the
Property shall not inclnde any damage or deteriorstion that could have been prevented by good maintensmee practice or by
Tensnt performing all of its oblizgations wmder this Lease. Tenant's payment obligation described im the immedistely
preceding sentence shall include the cost of replacement of sny damaged areas of the Property or the Building, if repair is
impracticable, so a5 to restore such aress to the condition existing prior to such damaze and in such event Tenant shall not
be entitled to the benefit of the Usefil Life Allocation.

)] Tenant shall fulfill all of Tenant’s obligations under this Seciipn §.04 at Tenant’s sole cost and
expence. except a5 otherwise expressly provided in this Section §.04. If Tensnt fails to maintain repair or replace the
Property as redquired by this Secgop 6§04 Tandlord may (but withont aoy obligation to de so), opon ten (10) days® prior
nofice to Tenant (except that no notice shall be required m the case of an emergency), enter the Property and perform such
maintensmce or repair (including replacement, as needed) on behalf of Tenant. In such case, Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord on demand for all costs incurred in performing such maintenance, repair or replacement, phis an administration
fee aqual to fifteen percent (15%) of such amoumt

Section 6.05 Alterations, Additions, and Improvements.

(=) Tenant shall not make any alterations, addifions, or improvements to the Property (“Temant’s
Alterations™) withowt Landlord’s prior written consent except that no consent shall be required for non-stactural interior
alterations that (i) do not exceed Twenty-five Thousand Diollars ($25,000.00) in cost; (if} are not visible from the outside of
the building on the Property; and (iif) do not alter or penetrate the floor slsb or the roof membrane. Landlord may require
Tenant to provide demolition and'or lien and completion bonds in form and amomnt satisfactory to Landlord Tensnt shall
prompdy remove sny Tenant's Alterstions constructed in violsfion of this Section 6.05(8) wpon Landlord’s written request.
All Tenant's Alterations shall be performed in & good spd workmanlike manner, in conformity with all Applicable Laws,
and all contractors and subcontractors shall be approved by Landlord Upon completion of any such work, Tenant shall
provide Landbord with “ac built™ plans, copies of all constroction comrects, and proof of payment for =]l labor and
materials.  Momithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, Tensant mmst obtain Landlord’s prior written consent
for any Tenant’s Alterstions that will {or may) be wisible from the outside of the building on the Property. Landlord shall
hawe the right, in its sole discretion, to determine the location of amy such visible Tensnt’s Alterations and require the
screening of such items at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

k) Tenant shall pay when due all claims for labor and material furnished to the Property or alleged
to have been firnished to or for Tensnt at or for use of the Property. Tenant shall give Landlord at least twenty (20) days’
‘prioT Written notice of the commencement of any work on the Property, regardless of whether Landlord’s consent to such
work is required. If so provided Tenant agrees to promptly sign and retum the Notice and Acknowledgment to Landlord:;
provided, however, that Tenmant sckmowledges and agrees that under no droomstances chall such Motice and
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Acknowledzement or the terms of this Secjop §.05 be construed as Landlond’s consent to or approval of amy Tenani's
Alterstions. Landlord may elect to record and post notices of non-responsibility on the Property.

<) To the extent Landlord’s prier consent is required by this Section §.05 Landlord may condition
its comsent to any proposed Tenant’s Alterations on such requirements as Landlord, in its sole discretion, deems necessary
or desirsble, inchding without Hmitation: (1) Tensnt's submission to Landlord, for Landlord's prior written approval, of all
plans and specifications relating to Tenant's Alterations; (ii) Landlord’s prior written spproval of the fime or times when
Tensnt's Alterations are to be made; (i) Landlord’s prior wmitten approval of the contractors snd subcontractors
performing Tenant's Alterations; (iv) Tenant’s written notice of whether Tenant’s Alterations inchode the use or handling of
any Harardons Materials; (v) Tenant's obmining, for Landlord’s benefit and protection, of such insorance a5 Landlord may
reasanably require (in addition to that required under Section 404 of this Lease); (vi) Tenant's obtsining all applicable
permits from the governmentsl authorities snd the fomishing of copies of such permits to Landlord before the
commencement of work on the subject Tenant's Alterations; and (vii) Tenant's payment to Landlord of all costs and
expenses incumed by Landlord becanse of Tenant’s Alterations, including, but not limited to, costs inommed in reviewing
the plans and specificstions for, and the progress of Tensnt’s Aleratons and costs of engsging outside consultants
{whether for strochral engineering review or otherwise).

{d) Tenant shall have no power or authority fo do any act or make any contract which may creste or
be the basis for any Lien upon the interect of Landliord in the Property or the Building, or any portion thereof. Within ten
{10} days following the imposition of sny mechamcs or other hen or stop notice filad wath respect to the Property or the
Building, or any portion thereof, based upon any act of Tenant or of anyone claiming by, throuzh or undsr Tenant, or hased
upon work performed or materials supplied sllegedly for Tensnt (an “Impoesition™), Tensnt shall either (5) canse such
Impasition to be relessed of record by payment, or (b) in case of a dispieed Imposition, camse the posting of a proper bond
(purseant to Applicable Law under which a court issmes an order that discharges the lien) or provide other security
satisfactory to Landlord. Prowvided that the Imposition is timely released or bonded over, Tensnt shall have the right to
contest the walidity of the oblization underlying the Imposition provided that Temant shall dilizently comtest such
(inchnding sttomeys’ ﬁ!es)amngﬁmulmlmdmm LMmdmymmmetupaylmm‘smysfasmd
costs inowrmed while participating in such action if Landlord shall decide it is in its best interest to so participate. If Tenant
fails to mke either action within such ten (10)-day period, Landlord, at its election, may pay and satisfy the Imposition, in
‘which case the sum 5o paid by Landlord, with interest from the date of payment at the rate set forth in Section 4.07 of this
Lease, chall be deemed Additiomsl Rent doe snd payable by Tensnt within ten (10) days after Tenamt's receipt of
Landlord's payment d d. Wothing in this Lease shall be construed as consent on the part of Landlord to subject the
interest and estate of Landlord to lisbility under any applicable Hen law for any reason or purpose whatsoever, it being
expressly understood that Landlord's interest and estate shall not be subject to swch Lsbility smd that no person shall have
any right to assert amy such lien

(e} HNotwithstanding any lamgnage to the contrary in this Sectjon 605 if the proposed Tenant's
Alterstions imvolve or affect in any way one or more of the stuciural components of the building on the Propesty, or relate
in =my way to life safety maftters meloding bot not hmited to, the Property’s or Building's fire suppression system
{collectively, the “Straciural and Safety Alteratioms™), Landlord®s prior written consent will be required, regardless of the
cost of the proposed Tensmi's Alterations. MMoreover, Tensnt agrees to nse conmaciors snd subcontractors selected by
Landlord for the constraction of any and all permitted Stroctoral snd Safety Alterations, and for amy work invobning
passible roof penetrations (50 35 to ensure that any such work is performed properly and does not render swy applicable roof
warmanty void or voidable).

H Tenant acknowledzes and sgrees that any Tenant's Alterations are wholly optionsl with Tenant
and are mot being required by Landlord, either as a condition to the effectivensss of this Lease or otherwise.

{E) All door access system hardware shall be nstalled such that the door and frame can be restored
back to their eriginal condition if door access control hardware components are removed.

Section 6.04 Condition wpon Termination. Upon the termination of this Lesse, Tenant shall swrender the
Property to Landlord, broom clean and in the same condition a= received {mcluding, withowt limitation the remonval of all
floor striping and the resealing of the floor, but only to the extent such resealing is necessitated by the removal of such floor
siriping]), ordinary wear and tear excepted; provided, . that (2) “orndinary wear and tesr™ shall not inclode any
dmnammﬁtmmMMMEMMEMMMWQMMWMEWWTMMEH
of its obligations under this Lease and (&) Tenant shall not be obligated to repair any damage which Landlord is required to
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repair mnder Sections 405 and 6,03 above or Aficle Seveq (Damage or Destroction) below. In addition, Landlord may
require Tenant to remove any Tenant's Alberations (whether or not made with Landlord’s consent)) prior to the expiration of
this Lease snd to restore the Property to its prior condition, all at Tenant’s expenss. All Tensnt's Alterafions that Landlord
has not required Tenant to remove shall become Landlord's property and shall be somendered to Landlord upon the
expiration or earlier termimation of this Lease, except that Tenant may remove any of Tenant’s machinery, equipment or
other personsl property that can be removed without material damage to the Propesty. Tenant shall repair, at Tensnt's
expence. any dameage to the Property caused by the removal of any such machinery, equipment or other personal property
{inclnding, wathowt imitation, the complete removal of all sds and bolts that penstrate the walls and filling and patching
the holes). In no event, however, shall Tenant remowe any of the following materials or equipment {(which shall be deemed
Landlord’s property) without Landlord's prior written consent: amy power wirng and power panels; ighting and lizhting
fixnres; wall coverings; drapes, blinds snd other window coverings; carpets snd other floor coverings; heaters, =ir
mmmmmmmngcmmmgqmmgmmmimmmmm
dock locks and dock seals; and other similar bailding operating equipment and decorations. Tenant's oblizations under this
Section .04 shall also inchide its obligations under Section 5.04 with respect to any Sign. If Tenant fails, by the expiration
or earlier termination of the Lease Term, to restore the Property to the condition requited under this Secgon 606 them
Tenant shall pay Landiord on demand an smount equal to the cost of such restoration work, phis = adminstration fee
equal to fifieen percent (15%) of such amount, in addition to any other remedy Landlord may have under this Lease ar
Applicable Law for such breach If Tenant fails to smrender the Propesty to Landlord upon termination of this Lease in the
under Section 5.03 above, such failire shall comstitate a holdover for purposes of Section 204 above.

Section 6.07 Roof Agcess. Anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant shall not and shall
not permit aoy of its employees, agents, ConiTactors of Mvitees to enfer on of in any way move about on the roof of the
tilding on the Property, for amy purposes whatsoever, withowt the prior wmitten comsent of, coordinstion with, snd
supervision of Landlord or its selected agents or contractors.

Saction 6.08 Floor Load Limits. Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the Property excesding the
floor load per square foot area which it was desipned to camy snd which i= allowed by law. Landiord reserves the nght to
prescribe the weizht and position of all safes, machinery snd mechanical equipment in the building on the Property. Such
installations shall be placed and maintained by Tenant, at Tensnt’s expense, in settings sofficient. in Landlord’s judgment,
1o absorh and prevent vibration, noise and annoyance to other oooupants of the Buildine

Section 6.09 Floor Bolts. Pror to anchorineg any racking or equipment to the floor of the Property, Tenant
shall drill the holes for any anchor bolts to a depth that is one inch (17) deeper than normally required for such anchoring
mechanism  Upon the expiration or earlier fermination of this Lease, Tenant shall cut the top of the anchor bolts, pound the
remaiming bolt info the one inch {17) space described above, and pour epoxy filler into the existing hole so that the epoxy
filler is flush with the flpor, all at Tenant's sole cost and expensa.

ARTICLE SEVEN DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
Section 7.01 Damsage or Destruction to the Property.

=) Tmﬂmﬂmﬂyundbrdmwﬁﬁngf'MNuﬁﬂﬁnmﬁmehmmemnf
any damage o the Property. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.01(c) snd Section 7.01(d) below, if the insursnce
proceeds received by Landlord from the insarance policies described in Sectiog 4.04i(bh above are sufficient to pay for the
necessary repairs, this Lease shall remain in effect and Landlord shall repair the damage as soon as reasonably possible.
Lamddlord may elect (bat is not required) to repair amy damspe to Tensnt's Alterations or to Tenant's fixmres, machinery,
equipment, or other persons] property (collectively, "Temant's Property™). In the absence of such an election, Tenant shall
be solely respensible for the repair, replacement and restoration of Tenant’s Alterations snd Tenant's Property and shall
prompdy commence such work and diligenthy porsue the same to conmpletion. unless this Lease is terminated as provided im
this Aricle Seven

(L] If the insurance procesds received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay the entire cost of repair,
of if the cause of the damsge is not covered by the insuwrance policies which Landlord maintsins wnder Section 4 0404
abowve, Landlord may elect either to: (i) repair the damage as soon 25 reasonsbly possible, in which case this Lease shall
remeain in foll force and effect; or () terminate this Lesse as of the date the damage occmmed. Landlord shall notify Tenant
within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Damaze Notice whether Landlord elects to repair the damage or terminate this
Lease If Landlord elects to repair the damage and notwithstanding Secton 404 diiv) shove, Tenant shall pay to Landlord
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(i) Tenant’s Pro Fata Share of the deductible amount under Landlord®s insurance policies (which deductible amount shall
oot exceed $10,000.000, and (i) if the damage is due to o act or omission of Tensnt or Tenant's employees, agemts,
contractors or mvitees, the enfirefy of any such deductible amount. I Landlord elects to terminate thic Lease, Tensnt may
elect to contime this Lease in full force and effect, in which case Tenant shall repair any damage to the Property and the
tilding om the Property in & mammer satisfactory to Landlord to restore the Property and building on the Propesty to the
condition generally existing immedistely before the damage or destraction Tenant shall pay the cost of such repairs,
except that upon satisfctory completion of soch repairs, Landlond shall deliver to Tenant sny insurance proceeds received
by Landlord (but expressly exchuding amy proceeds recerved by Landlord’s lender) for the dsmage repaired by Tenant
Tenant shall zive Landlord written notice of such election within ten (10) days afier receiving Landlord’s termination
nafice.

(<) If the repairs to the Property are estimated to require more than one hondred eizhey (1800 days
from Landlerd's receipt of insorance proceeds and buailding permits (the “Repair Peried™) to be Substantislly Complated,
then either I andlord or Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease in 8 manner consistent with this Section 7.010c)
In the event of damage to the Property, Landlord shall have the right to provide Tenant with 8 written notice, or Tensamnt
chall have the mght, st any time after providing Landlord with 3 Damsge Notice pursusnt fo Section 7.01{a) sbove, to
request in writing that Landlord deliver te Tenant 3 written nofice (in each case, the “Contractor Certificate™), certifying
o both Landlord and Tenant in the reasomsble opimion of Landlord’s conoiractor, the amount of tme required to
Substantially Complete the repair of the Property. If in the Contracior Certificate, the coniractor certifies that the repair of
the Property will take a period in excess of the Fepair Period to be Substantialty Completed, then within five (5) days after
the delivery of the Contractor Certificate to Tenant, Tensnt or Landlord may tenminate this Lease by delivering written
notice of such termination to the other party within swch five (5) day period, and this Lease shall be terminated as of the
date of the other party’s receipt of such written notice of termination  Motwithstanding the above, Tenant shall not have
any right o termunate this Leass under this Secgion 7.0] if the damage to the Property was caused by the acts or omissions
of Tenant or its agents. employees, COMTICtors, of imvitess.

{d) If the damage to the Property occurs during the last one hondred eighty (180 days of the Lesse
Term and such damage will require more tham thirry (30) days to Substansdally Complete the repair, then either Landlord or
Tensnt may elect to terminate this Lease zs of the date the damage ocouwred, regardless of the sufficiency of any insurance
proceeds. The party electing to terminate this Lease, pursuant to this Section 7.01(d}., shall give written notification to the
other party of such election within thirty {(30) days after Tenant’s Damaze Notice.

(=) Ag used in this Section 7.01, “Substantial Complefion™ or “Sobstamtially Complete™ (or
similar phrase) mesns such work is completed, except for mimor items of work (e.g, pick-up work, etc) that can be
completed with only minor inferference with Tensnt's conduct of business at the Property.

Section 7.02 Temporary Reduction of Bemt. If the Property is destroved or demaped and Landlord or
Tenant repairs or restores the Property pursusnt to the provisions of this Asticle Sewen amy Base Fent and recuming
Additionsl Fent payable during the period of such damage repair and'or restoration shall be reduced according to the
depres, if any, to which Tensmt’s use of the Property is impaired However, the reduction shall not exceed the sum of one
year's payment of Base Rent, Feal Property Taxes, insurance premiums, Common Area Costs and Maimtenance Services
Costs. Except for soch possible reduction in Base Fent and recurring Additional Rent, Tensnt shall not be entitled to amy
compensstion, redoction, or reimbursement from Landlord as & result of any damape, destmoction, Tepair, or restoration of
of to the Property. If such destraction or damage was caused by the acts or omissions of Tensnt or its agents, employees,
comtractors, or imvitess, there will be no shatement of rent.

Section 7.03 ‘Waiver. Tensnt waives the protection of any stamie, code or judicial decision which may gramt
o Tenant the right to terminste & lease in the event of the destmrtion of the Property. Tenant aprees that the provisions of
Articls Seven above shall povern the rights and oblizations of Landlord snd Tensnt in the event of amy destruction of the
Property.

ARTICLE EIGHT CONDEMNATION

If all or oy portion of the Property is taken under the power of eminent domain or s0ld under the threat of that
power (all of which are called *“‘Condemnation™), this Lease shall terminate as to the part taken or sold on the date the
condenming suthority takes fitle or possession, whichever ocoars first If more than twenty percent (20%4) of the flioor area
of the building on the Property or such other material portion of either the Property or Common Aress is taken and Tenasnt
cannot reasonably continoe to conduct its business at the Property, either Landlord or Tenant may terminsate this Lease as of
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the date the condemming auwthority takes title or possession, by delivering written notice to the other within ten (10) days
after receipt of written notice of such taking {or in the sbsence of such notice, within ten (10) days after the condemming
amthority takes tifle or possession). If neither Landlord nor Tenant termminates this Lease, thiz Lease shall remain m effect as
mmemmuf'ﬂrepmgﬂ'tymtalmMMMBMMMMMMMMmmmm
reduction in the floor area of the Property. Landlord shall be entitled fo receive the entite award or payment in connection
therewith except that Tenant shall have the right to file any separate claim available to Tenant for any taking of Tenant’s
personal property and fixtures belonging o Tenant and removable by Tenant upon expiration of the Lesse Term pursusnt to
the terms of this Lease and for moving expenses. oo long as such claim does not dinnimish the sward svailsble to Landlord,
its zroumd lessor with respect to the real property or its lender, and swch claim is paysble separately to Tenans. If this Lease
is not terminated, Landlord shall repair any damage to the Property cansed by the Condemnation, except that Landlord shall
not be oblizated to repair any demape for which Tenant has been reimbursed by the condenming suthority. If the severance
damages received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay for such repair, Landlord shall have the right to either terminate thic
Lease or make such repair st Landlord’s expense.

ARTICLE NINE ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 9.01 Transfers. Except as otherwize provided in Secijog 907 below, Tenant shall not, without the
prior written consent of Landlord, assign. motipage, pledsze, encumber or otherwise transfer, this Lease or any inferest
herennder, permit any assipnment or other such foregoing transfer of this Lease or any mferest hereunder by operation of
law, or sublet the Property or amy part thereof (all of the foregomg are hereinafier sometimes refemed to collectively as
“Tramsfers” and any person to whom any Transfer is made or sought to be made is hereinafier sometimes referred to as a
“Tramsferee™). To request Landlord’s consent to any Transfer requiring such consent under the provisions of this Aricle
Mige Tensnt shall notify Landlord in writing, which notice (the “Transfer Notice™) shall inclnde (i) the proposed effective
date of the Transfer, which shall not be less than forty-five (45) days after the date of delivery of the Tramsfar Motice, (i) a
description of the portion of the Property to be transferred (the “Subject Space™), (iii) all of the terms of the proposed
Transfer and the considerstion therefor, incloding & caloulation of the “Transfer Premium ™ as that term is defined in

be exeruted to evidence such Trensfer or the agreements incidental or related to such Transfer, and (iv) cmrent financial
statements of the proposed Transferee certified by an officer, parmer or owner thereof and any other information required
by Landlord, which will ensble Landlord to determine the finsncisl responsibility, character, and reputstion of the proposed
Transferee, nanme of such Transferee’s business and proposed use of the Subject Space. snd such other information as
Landlord may reasonably require. Amy Transfer requiring but made withowt Landlord's prior written consent shall at
Landlord’s option, be mill, void and of no effect, and shall at Landlord's option, constitate 2 material default by Tenant
umnder this Lesse. Whether or not Landlord shall grant consent, Tenant shall pay Landlord's review and processing fees, as
well a5 amy reasonable legal fees inoumed by Landlord in commection with swch review, within thirty (30) days afier written
request by Landlosd.

Section 9.02 Landlord’s Consemt. Landiord shall not unreasonably withhold ifs consent to any propoesed
Transfer imrolving an assipnment or subletting of the Subject Space to the Transferes on the terms specified in the Transfer
Motice. The parties herebry agree that it shall be reasonable under this Lesce and under sny Applicable Law for Landlord to
withhold consent to any proposed Transfer where one or more of the following apply, without limitation as o other
reasonable sroumds for withholding consent:

9021 The Transferes’s character or reputation is siznificantly less prestigions than that of Tenamt;
9022 The Transferee’s business or use of the Subject Space is not permitted under this Lease;

0023 The Transferes is not a party of reasonsble finsmcial worth and'or financial stability in lizht of
the responsibilities invobred under this Lease on the date comsent is requested;

9024 The proposed Transfer would canse Landlord to be in violation of another lesse or agreement to
which Landlord is a party;

9025 The terms of the proposed Transfer will allow the Transferee to exercise 3 right of renewal right
of expansion, right of first offer, or other similar nght beld by Tenant (or will allow the Transferee to occupy space leased
Ty Tenant pursuant to any such right);
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90248 A default of Tensnt under this Lease is then pending;

9027 Landlord or its leasing agent has received a proposal from or made a proposal to the proposed
Transferee to lease space in the Building within six (§) months prior to Tenant’s Transfer Motice; or

9022 The proposed Trancferee or an Affiliste of the proposed Transferes is already a tenant in the
Building.

If Landlord consents to sny Transfer pursuant to the ferms of this Secton 9.02 (and does not ewercise amy
recapiure rights Landlord may have under Secton 904 of this Lesse), Tenant may within one ondred eighty (180) days
after Landlord’s consent, bt not later than the expiration of such 180-dsy period, enter into such Tramsfer of the Property
or portion thereof upon substantially the same terms and conditions as are set forth in the Transfer Motice furmished by
Tenant fo Landlord pursuant te Section .01 of this Lease.

Saction 9.03 Transfer Preminm. In the event of 3 Transfer requiring Landlord’s consent if Landlord
consents te soch a Transfer, as a condition thereto which the parties hereby agree is reasomable, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord fifty percent (50%) of any “Transfer Preminm, ™ as that term is defined in this Secgon 0,03, received by Tenant
from such Trancferes. “Transfer Premimm™ shell mesn all remt, additionsl rent or other consideration payable by soch
Transferes in excess of the Base Fent and Additional Bent payable by Tenant under this Lease on a per rentable square foot
Tasis if less than =1 of the Property is fransferred. “Transfer Premiom™ shall alse inchude, bot not be limdted to, key money
amd bomns money paid by Transferee to Tenant in connection with such Transfer, and any payment in excess of fair market
vahoe for services rendered by Tenant to Transferes or fior assets, fixtures, inventory, equipment, of firniture ransferred by
Tenant to Transferee in connection with such Transfer.

Section 9.04 Landlord’s Option as to Subject Space. Nomwithstanding amything to the contrary contained
in this Article Mipe Landlord shall have the option, by giving written notice to Tensnt within thirty (30) days after receipt
of any Transfer Notice pertaining to an assignment or subletting, to recapiore the Subject Space  Such recapture notice
chall cancel and terminste this Lease with respect to the Subject Space as of the effective date of the proposed Transfer mntil
the last day of the term of the Transfer as set forth in the Transfer Notice. In the event of a recapture by Landlord, if this
Leace shall be canceled with respect to less than the entite Property, the Bent reserved herein shall be prorated on the basis
of the number of rentable square feot retained by Tensnt in proportion to the mmwher of rentable square feet contained in the
Property, and this Lease as so amended shall continne thereafter in full force and effect, and upon request of either parry,
the parties shall execute written confirmation of the same. In the svent of a recapiure, Landlord may, if it elects, enter into
a new lease covering the Subject Space with the intended Transferes on such terms as Landlord and sach person or entity
may agTes OF ENter info A new lease covering the Subject Space with sy other person or entity; in such event, Tenant shall
not be entited to any portion of the Transfer Premium if any, which Landlord may realize on account of such termination
and reletting.

Section 9.05 Effect of Tramsfer. If Landlord comsenfs to a Transfer, (1) the terms snd condifions of this
Leace shall in no way be deemed to have been waived or modified (if) such consent chall not be deemed consent to any
fiwther Transfer by either Tenant or a Transferes, (fii) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord, prompily afier execufion am
original executed copy of all decumentation pertaining to the Transfer in form reasonsbly acceptsble fo Landlord (0v)
Tenant shall firmish upon Landlord’s request a complete statement certified by an independent certified public accountant,
of Tenant's chief finamcial officer, setting forth in deteil the computation of any Transfer Premium Tensnt bas dermved amd
shall derive from such Transfer, and (v) no Transfer relating to this Lease or agreement entered into with respect thereto,
wihether with or withowt I andlord’s consent, shall relieve Tenant or any grarantor of Tenant’s oblizations under this Lease
from lishility mmder this Tease Landlord or it suthorized represenmtatives shall have the right at all ressonable times to
anudit the books, records snd papers of Tenant relating to amy Transfer, and shall have the right to make copies thereof. If
the Transfer Preminm respecting any Transfer shall be formd understated, Tensmt shall within thirty (30) days after
demand pay the defidency and Landlord’s costs of such andit and if umderstated by more then tem percent (10%),
Lamdflord shall have the right to cancel this Lease upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Tenant.

Section 9.04 Additional Tramsfers. For parposes of this Lease, the term “Tramsfer™ shall also include: (f) if
Tenant is a parimership, the cummlative withdrawal or change volumtary, imvoluntary or by operation of law, of teenty-five
percent (25%) of mome of the parmers, or the commlative ransfer of twenty-five percent (25%) oT more of parmership
imterests, within & twelve (12}-month period, or the dissolation of the parmership without immediste reconstimtion thereof,
{if) if Tenant is & closely held corporation {i.e., whose stock is not publicly held and not traded through an exchange or over
the counter), (A} the dissolution merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Tenant, (B) the sale or other transfer of
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more than zn aggrezate of twenty-five percent (25%) of the woting shares of Tenant (other than to immediste famiby
members by reason of gift or death) within a twelve (12)-month period, or (C) the sale mortgage, hypothecation or pledze
of more than sn aggregate of twenty-five percent (25%) of the value of the mmencumberad assets of Tenant within a twelve
{12) month penod; snd (i) if Tenant is & limited Lability company, any commlstive transfer of more than twenty-five
percent (25%) of the memberzhip interests. In addition to those types of Transfers specified above in this Agcls Mme (1)
any chamge to the form of tenant entity or any use of the Property by an individusl or entity other than Tensnt whether
pursuamt to 8 license or comcession, o otherwise, and (1) amy reduction of twenty-five percemt (25%) or more in the
tanmible met worth of Tenant resulting from a transsction or series of ramssctions (whether merger, sale aCqEsition,
finsmcing, leverage buyout, spin-off, or otherwise), whether or mot a formal sssizmment or bypothecation of this Lease or of
Tenant's assets ooours, shall be deemed a Transfer requiring Landlord’s consent. As wsed in this Lease, "tanmible met
worth” means the sum of all of Tenant's assefs, less lishilities snd intanpible sccets, 30 determined by the use of generally
accepted accounting principles, and the reduction of Tenant's tangible met worth shall by measured based on Tensnt's
tangzible net worth as represented to Landlord as of the time of execotion of this Lease  Motwithstanding any languaze to
the contrary in this Article Mine, Landlord may, in its sole discretion, withheld its consent to any proposed assipnment of
Tenant's leasehold interest in the Property to a lendsr s security, whether such proposed assignment is in the form of a
lezsehnld deed of trust, leasshold mortzage. or otherwise.

Section 9.07 Tenant Affiliate. Notwithstanding anyihing to the confrary contzined in Secgion 901 of this
Lease, a Transfer of all or a portion of the Property to an affiliste of Tenant (en entity which is controlled by, controls, or is
under common conirel with, Tenant) (3 “Tenant Affiliate™), shall not be deemed 2 Transfer wmder Azfjcle MNige for whoch
(a)tunsmmsmqmmd,ur&)anmisﬁrPrmmmsmuble The terms of this Section 0.07 are only applicable provided
that: (i) Tensnt immediately notifies Landlord of any such Transfer; (i) promptly supplies Landlord with any docoments or
information requested by Landlord regarding such Tramsfer; (iif) if requested by Landlord have sn affiliate of the Tensnt
Affiliste guarantes this Lease using Landlord's stamdard guaranty form: () if such Toensfer 15 an sssipnment, Tenant
Affiliste assumes in wrting all of Tensnt’s oblizations under thiz Lease; and {v) such Transfer is not 3 subterfuge by
Tenant to avoid its obligations under this Lease or the Transfer restrictions set forth in this Article Nime *“Control™ as
nsed berein, shall mean the ownership, directly or indirectly, of at lesst ffty-one percent (51%%) of the votng securities of,
or possession of the right to vote, in the ordinary direction of its affairs, of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the voting
inberest in, A0y Erson of entity.

Section 9.08 No Merger. Mo merger shall result fiom Tenant™s sublease of the Property under this Arficls
Mine Tensnt's smrender of this Lesse or the termination of this Lease in any other manner. In amy such event, Landlord
may terminate any or all subtenancies or succeed to the interest of Tenant as sublandlord under any or all subtenancies.

Section 9.09 Tenant’s Indemmity. If Landlord shall withhold its consent to any proposed Transfer requiring
Lamdlord’s consent, or if andlord shall exercise its recapimre right in Seciion 904 shove Tenant shall mdemmify, defend
and hold harmiesz Landlord (and Landlord’s members, mansgers, parmers, snd chareholders, as applicable, and the
affiliates, employees, agents, and contractors of Landlord and its members, managers, parmers, and shareholders, as
applicable) from snd apainst any and all lesses, lishilities, damapes, costs and expenses (including attomeys’ fees) resulting
mMmthmmmmemmmwmwmmuﬂBm
claiming 3 Commission of similar compencation in connection with the proposed Transfer.

ARTICLE TEN DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01  Covenants and Conditions. Tenant's performance of each of Tenant’s obligations under this
Lease is a condition as well as a covenant  Tenant's right to confinne in possession of the Property is conditioned upon
such performance. Time is of the essence in the performance of all covensnts and conditions.

Section 10.02  Defaulfs. Tenant shall be in material default under this Lease (an “Event of Default™):

(=) If Tenant shandons the Property or if Temant’s vacatiom of the Property results in the
cancellation or modification of any insurance descrbed in Sacion 4 .04 abowe;

()] If Tenant fails to pay rent or any other charge when due;

(<) If Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant's non-monetary oblizations under this Lease for a
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord; provided that if more than thirty (307 days are required to
complete such performance, Tensnt shall not be in defanlt if Tensnt commences soch performance within the thirty {30
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day period and thereafier diligently pursues its completion. However, Landlord shall not be required to give such notice if
Tenant's faitore to perform constitates a non-curable breach of this Lease. The notice required by this subsection {c) is (i)
imtended to satisfy sny and all notice requitements imposed by law on Landlord and is not in addiion to sny soch
requitement. and (i) not ntended to extend the time for Tenant's performance if 8 shorter period of time for performance is
expressly provided in this Lease.

] (i) If Tenant makes 8 general acsipnment or geners] arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (i)
if a bankruptcy petition is filed by or against Tenant and is not dismissed within thirty (307 days; (i) if a tostes or receiver
is appointed to take possession of substantially all of Tenant’s assets located at the Property or of Tenant's interest in this
Lease and possession is not restored to Tensmt within thirty (300 days; or (iv) if substantislly all of Tenant's assets located
at the Property or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease is subjected to attachment execution or other judicial seizume which is
not discharged within thirty (30) days. Ifa court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of the acts described in this
subsection (d) is not a defanlt under this Lease, and a trustee is appointed to teke possession (or if Tenant remains 2 debtor
in possession) and such trustee or Tensnt transfers Tenant's interest hereunder, then Landlord shall receive, as Additional
Rent the excess, if any, of the rent (or amy other consideration) paid in connection with such sssisnment or sublease over
the rent payable by Tenant under this Lease.

(e} If amy guaranior of this Lesse revokes or otherwise terminates, or puwports to revoke or
otherwise terminate any smaranty of all or any portion of Tenant's obligations under this Tease Unbess otherwise expressly

H If Tenant fails to deliver an instrument or certificate within the time provided in Seciion 11,01 or
Section 11.02 below, respectively.

{E) If an wnawthorired Transfer ocours, as set forth in Article Nine abowve.

Section 10003 Remedies. On the ooommence of any Event of Defamlt Landlord may, at smy time thereafter,
with or without notice or demsand and without limiting Landlord in the exercize of amy right or remedy which Landlord may
have:

(=) Terminate Tenant's right to possession of the Property by any Lawful means, in which case this
Lease shall terminate and Tensmt shall immediately surrender possession of the Property to Landlord. If Tenant shall be
served with a demand for the payment of past due rent or any other charse, any payments rendered thereafter to cure amy
defmult by Tenant shall be made only by cashier’s check, wire transfer, or other immediately availsble fimds. In such event,
Lamdlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant all dsmages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's default
inchoding (1) the worth at the time of the award of the unpaid Bace Fent, Additions] Rent and other charges which Landlord
had earned at the time of the termination; (i) the worth at the time of the sward of the amount by which the unpaid Base
exceads the amoimt of such rental loss that Tensnt proves Landbord could have reasonably avoided: (iif) the worth at the
time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid Base Fent Additionsl Rent and other charges which Tenant would
hawe paid for the balance of the Lease Term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tensnt
proves Landlord could heve reasomsbly avoided; smd (iv) amy other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the
detriment proximately camsed by Tenant's failme to perform its oblizations under this Lease or which in the ordinsry
course of things would be likely to resnlt therefrom, including, bt not imited to, any costs or expenses Landlord mours im
maintaining or preserving the Property after such default, the cost of recovering possession of the Property, expenses of
reletting, including necessary remowation or alterstion of the Property, Landlord’s reasomable attomeys’ fees inoummed in
connection therewith and any real estate commission paid or payable. As vsed in subparts (i) and (i) above, the “worth at
the time of the award” = computed by allowing interest on unpaid amounts st the rate of fifteen percent {15%:) per annom
or such lesser amount as may then be the maxivmm lawfil rate. As used in subpart (iif) above, the “worth at the time of the
award” is computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the
time of the award, plus one percent (1%4). If Tenant has abandoned the Property, Landlord shall heve the option of (1)
retaking possession of the Property and recovering from Tensmt the ammmt specified in this Section 10.03(s), sndor (i)

()] Maintain Tenant's right to possession, in which case this Lease shall contimne in effect whether
of ot Tenant has shandoned the Property. In such event, Landlord shall be enfitled to enforce all of Landlord’s nights and
remedies under this Lease mcinding the right to recover the rent as it becomes dus; or
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{cy Pursue amy other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord wnder the laws or judicial
decisions of the state in which the Property is located.

Section 10.04  Termimation. If Landlord elects to terminate this Lease as a result of an Event of Default,
Tenant shall be lisble to Landlord for all damages resulting therefrom, which shall include, without limitstion, all costs,
expences and fees, inclnding reasonsble attormeys” fees that Landlord incurs in connection with the filing, commencing,
pursning andior defending of amy action in any bemkrupécy court or other court with respect to this Leace; the obfaining of
relief from amy stey in bankruptcy restraining amy action to evict Tenant; or the pursuing of amy action with respect to
Landlord’s right to possession of the Property. All such damages suffered (zpart from Base Fent and other Fent payable
herennder) chall constimte pecimiary damages that mmst be reimbursed to Landlord prior to sssomption of this Lease by
Tenant o any successor o Tenant in any bankropery or other procesding

Section 10,05  Cumulative Remedies. Landlord’s exercise of any right or remedy shall not prevent it from
exercising any other right or remedy available at law, in equity, or otherwise.

Section 10.06  Smrremder. Mo act or thing done by Landlord or its agents during the Lease Tenm shall be
deemed an acceptance of a surender of the Property, and no agresment to accept a swrender of the Property shall be valid
unless made in writing and signed by Landlord.

Section 10.07  Removal of Temant's Property. All fisnitore, equipment, and other persomal property of
Tenant left unattended at the Property upon the vacation or shandenment thereof following an unoured Event by Default by
Tenant of upon the termimation of this Lease for amy camse whamoever shall conclusively be deemed to have besn
sbandoned by Tensnt, snd may be appropriated, sold, stored, destroyed or otherwise disposed of by Landlord without
notice to Tenant and without oblization te account therefore. Tenant shall reimbuorse Landlord for all reasonable expensas
reasonsbly inowred in connection with the disposition of such personal property. Landlord, upon presentation of evidence
of a third party’s claim of ownership or security interest in amy such property, may oo over such property to the third party
claimant without any Lishility to Tensnt.

Section 10,08  Pumitive and Consequential Damages. MNotwithstanding amything to the contrary contained in
thiz Lease nothing in this Lease shall impose any oblizstions on Tenant or Landlord o be responsible or Hsble for, snd
each herelry releases the other from all hability for, pumitive, exemplary, or consequential dasmages other than those
consequential damages incurred by Landlord in connection with (3) the holdover of the Property by Tenant affer the
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, (b) the contamination of the Property or the Building or any other property
resulting from the presence or uwse of Hazardous Materials caused or permitted by the Temant Group, or (c) amy repair,
physical constmction or improvernent work performed by or on behalf of Tenant in the Property.

Section 10009  Landlord’s Liem. In addition to any stamtory of common law liem protecting Landlord’s
interests, in consideration of the muiml bepefits arising under this Lease, Tenant hereby grants to Landlord a lien and
sequrity interest in 81l of Tenant’s property now or hereafter placed in or on the Property to secure payment of all Base Rent
and Additional Fent that become due under this Lease. The provizions of this section constitute & security agreement under
the Uniform Commercial Code of the State where the Property is located (the “Code™) so that Landlord has and may
enforce & security inferest on all of Tenant’s inventory, fixtres, machinvery, equipment, accessions, fimnishings, and other
such property now of hereafter placed in or on the Property and all proceeds therefrom (the “Collateral™), snd such
property chall not be removed from the Property without the prior written consent of Landlord untfil all srresrages in Base
Rent and Additional Fent have been paid and Tenant has complied with sll other provisions of this Lease. Consistent with
the terms of the Code, Temant suthorizes Landlord to file a financing statement describing the Collateral Tpon the
oocmmence of an Event of Defanlt identified in Section 1007 of this Lease. Tandlord may, in addition to all other remedies
provided by law or under this Lease, without notice or demand except as provided below, exercise the nghts afforded to @
secured party umder the Code. To the extent the Code requires Landlord to give to Tenant notice of any act or event and
such motice cannot be walidly waived before a defsult ocours, then five () days prior written notice thereof chall be
reasgnable notice of the act or event

ARTICLE ELEVEN FROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01  Subordination. This Lease is subject snd subordinate to all present and fomre groumd or
undertying leases of the Building or the Property, snd to the Len of any mortgages or deeds of tmost, now or hereafter in
force against the Building or the Property, and to all renewals, extensions, modifications, consolidations and replacements
thereof and to all advances made or hereafter to be made upon the security of much mortgages or deeds of trust unless the
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holders of such morigazes or deeds of trust, or the lessors umder such pround lease or mderlying lesses, require in writing
that this Lease be superior thereto. This clause shall be self-operative and no firther instrument of subordnation shall be
requited o make the interest of any lessor under any ground or underlying lesse or holder of any mortgaze deed of trust or
sequrity deed superior to the inferest of Tenant herevmder. Tenant covensmts and agrees in the event any proceedings are
rought for the foreclosure of any such mortzage or deed of trust, or if any ground or underlying lease is terminated, to
attorn, without any deductions or set-offs whatsoever, to the purchaser upon any such foreclosure sale, or to the lessor of
such ground or mnderlying lesse, s the case may be, if so requested by such purchaser or lessor, and to recogmze such
purchaser or lessor as the landlord under this Lease, provided such Lienholder or purchaser or ground lessor shall agres to
accept this Lesse and not distorb Tenant's gccupancy, under the terms and conditions of this Lease, so long as Tensnt
timely pays the rent and observes and performs all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be observed and
perfirmed by Tenamt Tamdlord’s imterest herein may be assisned 8s security at any time to amy Henhobder. Tenant chall
within ten (10} days of request by Landlord, execute such further imstrmments or sssurances in the form as ic then required
by Landlord’s lender to evidence or confirm the subordinstion or superiority of this Lease to any such mortzapes, deeds of
trast, pround leases or underlying leases. Tenant hereby fmevocably authorizes Landlord to execute and deliver in the mame
of Tenant any soch instument or instoments if Tensnt fails o do so, provided that such suthorization shall in no way
relieve Tenamt from the obligstion of executing such instruments of subordination or superiority. Tenant waives the
provisions of any corrent or fuhme statote, mile or law which may give or porport to Zive Tenant amy right or election to
terminate or otherwise adversely affect this Lease snd the obligations of Tensnt hereumder in the event of any foreclosure
proceading or zale

Section 11.02  Estoppel Certificates.

=) Upon Landlord’s written request, Tensnt chall execute, acknowledpe and deliver to Landlord a
writien statement, m the form as is then required by Landlord’s lender or any prospective purchaser, certifying: (i) that none
of the terms or provisions of this Lease have been chanzed {or if they have been changed, stating how they have been
changed); (i) that this Lease has not been cancelled or terminated:, (iif) the last date of payment of the Base Fent and other
charges and the time period covered by much payment;, (iv) that Landlord is not in defanlt imder this Lesse (or, if Landlord
is claimed to be m default, stating why); and (v) mch other reprecentations or information with respect to Tenant or this
Lease a5 Landlord may reasomably request or which amy prospective purchaser or encumbrancer of the Property may
requite. Tenant shall deliver such statement to Landlord within ten (10) days after Landlord’s request. Landlord may zive
any soch smtement by Tenant to amy prospective purchaser of enmmwbrancer of the Property. Suwch purchaser or
encumbrancer may rely conclusively upon such statement as e and comect.

(k) If Tenant does not deliver such statement to Landlord within such ten (10)-day period, Landlord,
amd amy prospective purchaser or encumbrancer, may conclusively presume and rely upon the following facts: (1) that the
terms and provisions of this Lesse have not been changed except as otherwise represented by Landlord; (i) that this Lesse
has mot been canceled or tenminsted except 2 otherwise represented by Landlord; (iif) that not more than one month®s Base
Reent or other charges hawve been paid in advance; and (iv) that Landlord is not in defanlt under this Lease. In such event,
Tenant shall be estopped from denying the tuth of such facts.

Section 11.03  Tenant’s Financial Condition. Within ten (10) days after written request from Landlord,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord such financisl statements, as Landlord reasonsbly requires, to verify the net worth of
Tenant or any assignee, subtenant, or goarentor of Tensnt In addition, Tenant shall deliver to any lender desipnated by
Landlord amy financial statements required by such lender to facilitate the financing or refinancing of the Property. Tenant
represents and warrants to Landlord that esch such financial statement is & troe and acourate statement as of the date of soch
statement All financial staterments shall be confidential and shall be used only for the purposes set forth in this Lease.

ABRTICIE TWELVE LECGAL COSTS

Section 12.01  Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or defalt under this Lease, such
party (the “Defanlting Party™) shall reimburse the other party (the “Non-defanlting Party™) upon demand for any costs or
expences that the Mon-defmiting Party inours in connection with any breach or default of the Defsnlting Party mder this
Lease, whether or not suit is commenced or judgment entered. Such costs shall include legal fees and costs imommed for the
nepotiation of 3 setlement, enforcement of rights or otherwise. Furthermore, if any action for breach of or to enforce the
provisions of this Lesse is commenced the court i such action shall award to the party in whose favor a judgment is
entered, 8 reasomable sum as attormeys” fiees and costs. The losing party in such action chall pay such attorneys® foes and
costs. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Landlord and Tenant waive the protection of any statate, code or judicial
decision that may limit the smount of attomeys” fees otherwise recovershle by either party under the terms of this Lease
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Tenant shall also indenmify Landlord agamst and hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord®s members, managers, parmers,
aml shareholders, &s applicable, and the affilistes, employees, agents, and coniractors of Landlord and its members,
managers, partners, and shareholders, == applicable) from =1l costs, expencses, demands and Hability Landlord may imcour if
Landlord becomes or is made a party to any claim or action (2) institgted by Tenant spmimct any third party, or by amy third
party against Temant or by or agzinst any person holding amy interest under or using the Property by licemse of or
apreement with Tenant (2 "Tenant Licensee™); (b} for foreclosure of any lien for labor or materis]l finnished to or for
Tenant or such Tensnt Licenses; () otherwise aricing out of or resulting fom oy act or transsction of Tenant or such
Tenant Licensee; of (d) necessary to protect Landlord’s interest under this Lesse in 8 bankrupécy case, of other proceeding
wunder Title 11 of the United States Code, as amended Tenant shall defend Landlord against amy such claim or action at
Tenant's expense with counsel reasonsbly acceptable to Landlord or, at Landlord’s election, Tenant shall reimburse
Lamadlord for amy legsl fiees or costs Landlord inowrs in any such clsim or action. Withont limitstion on other obligations of
Tenant that shall survive the expiration or earlier terminstion of the Lease Term the obligations of Tenant contsined i this
Zoaction 12.0] shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

Section 12.02  Landlord’s Comsemt Tensnt shall pay Landiord’s ressomable stomeys’ fees ncmred i
connection with (3) Tenant's request for Landlord’s consent under Azgicls Mige (Assimment and Subletting) of this Lease,
of in connection with any other act which Tenant proposes to do and which requires Landlord’s consent, or (b) any other
Lamdlord action requested by Tenant.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN BEOEKERS

Landlord and Tenant heselry warmant to each other that they have had no dealings with amy real estate broker or
apent in connection with the negotistion of this Lesse, snd that they know of no other real estate broker or apent who is
entitied to a commission in connection with this Lease. excepting only the resl estate broker(s) or agent(s) named in Section
1.00 shove (the “Brokers™). Each party agrees to indenmify and defend the other party against and hold the other party
harmless from any and all claims, demeands, losses, Lisbilides, lewsnits, judgments and costs #nd expenses (inchiding
without limvitation reasonsble atomeys’ fees) with respect to any leasing commission or equivalent compensation allered to
e owing on account of the indemnifying party’s dealings with amy real estate broker or agent, other than the Broker{s).

ARTICLE FOURTEEN TENANT IMFROVEMENTS

Section 1401  Tenant Improvements. Tenant desires to make certain improvements to the Property, which
such improvements shall be momually apreed o between Landlord and Tenmant (collectively, the “Temant
Improvements™). Upon mutus] agreement as to the scope of the Tenant Improvements snd subject to Landlord’s review
amdd approval of all plans snd specifications for the Tenant Improvements, Tenant shall have the right to comstuce the
Tensnt Improvements, provided (i) Tenant obtains all necessary permits, approvals snd other entitlements required from the
City of Mesa, Arizona incloding the final approved inspection card for the Tensnt Improvements a copy of which shall be
delivered to Landlerd; (i) all contractors are licensed and in goed standing by the Department of Consmmer Affairs
Comtractor State License Board, Swmte of Areons; (iii) Tensnt shall allow Landlord’s affiliated compamy, Cmnme
Comstruction Co., L.P., to competitively bid the construction of the Tenant Improvement; {ic}ﬂle'fm
(a)tummdmguudnmhmnlihemﬁlst—dassmmﬂs,md{b)mmmphm all Applicable Laws; {x}
Tenant obtains, for Landlord’s benefit and protection, such inswrance as Landlord may reasonably require (in addition to
that required under Section 4.04 of this Lease) with respect to the construction of the Tensnt Improvements; and (vi) Tenant
delivers to Landlord execwted mncondittional mechsanic’s len releases for amy contractor or materisl supplier of the Tenant
Improvements which shsll comply with the appropriste statutory provisioms, ac reasonsbly determined by Landlond
{collectively, the “‘Completion Requirements™). In addition to the foregoing and prior to commencement of construction
of the Tenant Inprovements, Landlord shall have the right to require that Tenant either: (T) increase the Security Deposit by
an amount equal to the cost to complete constroction of the Tenant Improvements; or {IT) Landlord may require Tenant to
provide demolition and'or ien and completion bonds in form and amomnt satisfactory to Landlord  Upon the completion of
Tenant Improvements, the Tenant Improvements shall become Landlord’s property and shall be smrendered to Landlord
upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease, a5 amended in soch condition &s set forth in this Lesss, unless
Landlord, in its sole discretion, requites removal of such Tenant Improvernents, in which case. such Tensnt Improvemsnts
mumdmmymmwmmmmmofthmmmmm
repaired.  Motwithstanding the forepping, Tensnt may request at the time it secks Landlords comsent to the Tenamt
Improvements that Landlord state at the time it grants approval, whether or not remowval of any of the Tenant Improvements
will be required at the end of the Lease Term  Swch request shall specifically cite this Section and Landlord's oblization to
make soch statement
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Section 1402  Tenant Improvement Allowance Tensnt shall be entitled to a one-time Tenant Improvemsnt
allowance (the “Tenant Improvement Allowance™) in the smount not to exceed Four Hundred Sinm Thousand Bight
Hundred Sixty-5ix and 00104 Dollars ($406,866.00) toward the construction of the Tensnt Improvements, as such term is
defined in Section 14.01 of this Lease provided Tensnt {g) is not in monetary defsult beyond applicable notice and ome
periods under the Lease and (b) Tenant has complied with the Completion Requirements, as such term is defined im
Section 14.01 of this Lease. The Tensnt Improvement Allowance shall only be disinrsed by Landlord to reimbnrse Tensnt
for costs related to the desizn and constraction of the Tenant Inprovements (ncluding bt not limited to hard and soft costs
and fees of architectural, engineering, and other professionsls), and mo portion of the Tensnt Improvement Allowance, if
amy, remaining after the completion of the Tenant Improvements shall be available for nse by Tenant for aoy other purpose.
The Tensnt Improvement Allgwance shall be distursed by Landlord within thirty (307 days of Tenant’s congpletion of the
Tenant Improvements and satisfaction of the Completion Requirements and notice from Tenant to Landlord that the Tenant
Improvements are complete. Tenant chall have no claim to any Tensnt Improvement A llewance mot requested by Tenant i
writing within one hundred twenty (120 days after the date the construction of the Tenant Improvements are completed.

Section 14.03  No Other Improvements. Consistent with Section §.01 of this Lesse Tensnt scoepss the
Property in its “as =7 condition, and Landlord shall have no lability or obligation for msking amy alterations or
improvements of any kind in or about the Property.

ABRTICLE FIFTEEN COMMUNICATIONS SEEVICES

Section 15.01 Landlords Commumications Equipment. Subject to Applicable Law, Landlord reserves to
itself amd its affliates the exclusive right to {3) place anennse and related Holities and other equipment fior the provision of
commumications services (the ‘“‘Commamications Equmipment™) on the rooftop or in other portions of the Property, the
Building, or on other property owned or controlled by Landlord or an affiliste of Landlord designated by Landlord or sach
affiliste for such nse, and (b) enter into license agreements, lezses, or other agreements for the use of such areas by
commercial and other providers of commmmications services (the “Commumications Agreements™). As used m this
Article, “Commumications Services™ chall mean the implementstion provision, facilitation and maintensnce of woice,
data, mehumnﬂmmmmncm;mm[mmymmﬁmﬂmufﬂuﬁmgmgjnﬂnﬂmg,wﬂnmhmm (2] the
pmmaﬂmaleufpmnm—pmmnﬂephmewmmm (inchading dedicated lonz distance service), (b) video
commmumications service, (T} B00-mumber service, {d) telephone credit or debit card service, (&) andio or video conferencing,
paping, voice mail and message centers, (f) data ransmission seTvice, (2) scoess 1o compater “imtemet™ or other networked
m—hasedcmmmem,(h}sahﬂ:mmcshhm!mmf:}mﬂhmdmgmlmm;msmymm
(k) provision of teleph video ¢ ication or other commmmication equipment to consumers of such services;
whether now existing or subsequently developed and however provided mncluding, withowt limitation wireless
transmission and reception of commumication sipnals. Landlord shall be enfitled to amy and sl fees or other charges
payable by any such provider of Commmmications Services on account of any Ci icafions AgTe

Section 15.02  Tenant’s Communications Equipment MNotenthstanding any language to the contrary in this
Leace, with Landlord’s prior written consent and subject to all applicable provisions of this Lease and Applicable Taw,
Tenant may, at Tenant’s sobe cost and expense, install Commmmications Equipment on the rooftop or in other portions of
the Property, but only if such Cx ications Equip is solely limited to Tensnt’s cwn use in the conduoct of its
hmﬁsﬁmﬁekwﬁy(’fu:lfsﬂmiﬁmsmm") Tenant’s Commumications Equipment shall
remain the property of Tensnt or its contractor. Tensnt shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses related to the
nse amd maintenance of Tenant’s Commmnications Equipment, snd the removal of which upon the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease shall be governed by Segton 606 of this Lease Any damsge cansed by such installation or
remonval shall be repaired as required in Section §.06 of this Lease. Landlord agrees to permit Tensnt and its contractors
reasgnable sccess o the rooftop of the building on the Property and other areas of the Building required to facilitate the
inctallation use, maimtenance, and remowal of Tenant's Commumications Equipment, o long a5 other nsers and ocoupants
of the building and the Buwldng are not disturbed thersby and Tenant complies with Secgog §.07 of this Lease. Tenant
shall defend indenmify snd hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord's members, managers, partmers, and shareholders, as
applicable, and the affilistes, employees, agents, and contractors of Landlord snd its members, managers, parmers, and
shareholders, as applicable) from all empenses, costs, damages, loss, claims or other expenses (ncloding reasomable
attorneys’ fees) srising out of Tenant's instsllation uwse, maintensnce. and removal of Tenant's Commumications
Equipment. Tensnt azress that the use of Tenant's Cc prations Equip shall in no way interfere with the operation
medmmmmm[mgmmmmmmmmmﬂu
subject of 8 Commmumications Agreement), the Building, the Property, or any of the systems on the building on the Propesty.
Tenant shall indemmify, defend snd hold harmbess Landlord {and Landlord's members managers, parimers, snd
shareholders, s applicable, snd the affilistes, employees, agents, and contractors of Landlord and its merbers, managers,
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pariners, and shareholders, as applicable) from all expences, costs, damages, losses, claims or other expenses and lisbilites
arising from any such interference  If such interference ooours, Tensnt aprees to suspend nse of Tenant's Commmmications

Equipment until the interference has been comected to the sole satisfaction of Landlord Tenant shall be responsible for all
costs associsted with any tests deemed necessary to resolve any and all interference caused by Tenant's Commmnications
Equipment, or any use that is not permitted by this Article. If such interference has not been corrected within tenenty {20}
days, Landlord may require Tenant to remove those components of Temant’s Commmnications Equipment causing such
imterference, or Landlord will emjoin such imterference at Tenant's sole cost and expense. All operations by Tenamt
pmmmtnmjsﬁrﬁdeshaﬁbe]swfdandinmmewrﬂ:allm and regulstions of the Federal Commumications
Commission. Consistent with the terms of Section §.05 of this Lease, (a) Landlord shall have the right, in its sole
discretion, to determine the location of amy visible Tenant's Commmmications Equipment and require its scresning at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, and () the installstion the Tensnt's Commmmications Equoipment is subject to Landlord's
prior approval of the final installation plans, provided that such mstsllation plans do mot inclode any roof penetrations.
Also, any rooftop installstion of Tenant's Commmmications Equipment shall be commenced and completed in foll and strict
compliance with the requirement to use a contractor o mubcontracter selected by Landlord fior any work involving possible
ronf penetrations, &5 set forth in Secgog § 05 of this Lease, 5o 85 o preserve any applicable roof warmanty. Regardless of
any roof warranty or any repair obligations of Landlord in this Lease, Tenant shall be sobely responsible for the (&) repair of
any leaks or other damsage to the roof membrane resulting from the imstallation of any Tenant’s Commmmications
Equipment, and {b) all expenses costs, damages, losses, claims or other expenses and lisbilities arising from the voiding of
any applicable roof warranty resulting from the acts or omissions of Tenant or its apents, employess or comractors. The
obligations of Tenant under this Article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN MISCELLANEOUS FROVISIONS

Section 16.01  Nom-Discriminatiom Tensnt promiises, and it is 8 condition to the continnance of this Lesse,
that there will be no discrimination against, or sezregation of, any person or zroup of persons on the basis of race, color,
relimion creed. age, sex, disability, national oTiging ancestry, ethmicity, sexual orientation, maritsl statns, citizenship stafts,
Of VETETEN stams in the leasing, subleasing, trancferming, occupancy, temimre or use of the Property or any portion thereof.

Section 16.02  Landlord’s Liability; Certain Dmufies.

(=) As msed in this Lease the term “Landlord”™ mesns only the omment owner or owners of the fee
fitle to the Property or the lessehold estate umder a ground lease of the Property at the fime in question Each Landlord is
obligated to perform the oblizations of Landlord under this Lease only during the time such Landlord owns such inferest or
ttle. Any Landlord who transfers its title or interest is relieved of all isbility with respect to the obligations of Landlord
umnder this Lease to be performed on or after the date of wansfer. However, each Tandliord shall deliver to its transferee all
fimds that Tenant previcusly paid if sach fimds have not yet been applied under the terme of this Leacse.

1] Tenant shall give written notice of any failure by Landlord to perform amy of its obligations
under this Lease to Landlord and to soy ground lessor, mortpages or beneficiaTy mnder sy deed of trost encumbering the
Property whose name and address have been furnished to Tenant in writing. Landlord chall not be in default under thiz
Lease umless Landlosd (or such ground lessor, mortgages or beneficiary) fails to cure such non-performance within thirty
(30) days after receipt of Tenant's notice. However, if such non-performsnce reasonsbly requires more than thirty (300
days to cure, Landlord shall not be in default if such ome is commenced within such thirty (30)-day period and thereafier
diligently pursned to completion

{cy HNotwithstanding any term or provision herein to the contrary, the lisbility of Landlord for the
performance of its duties and oblipations wnder this Lease is limited o Landlord's interest in the Property, amd neither
Landlord nor its partmers, 5, hareholders, officers or other principals shall have any personal Hability

{d) Tenant shall have no right to tenminate this Tesse based on an uncored default by Landlord in
the performence of Landlord’s obligations under this Lease; provided, however, that Tensnt may seek to recover from
Landlord sn amount representing appropriste actoal, compensatory damages for bresch of contract based on amy such
wncured defult of Landlord, but not otherwise. Consistent with Segtion 10.08 above, in no event shall Tenant be permitied
o Tecover consequential, punitive of exemplary damages fiom Landlord based on any such unomred default of Landlord, or
otheraise.
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(€} With respect to any provision of this Lease which provides (or is held to provide) that Landlord
shall not unressonably withhold any consent or approval, Tensnt shall not be entitled to make any claim for, and Tenant
hereby expressly waives, amy claim for damages, it being acknowledged and agreed that Temant's sole right and exclusive
remedy therefor shall be an action for specific performance.

Section 16.03  Severability. A determination by & court of competent jurisdiction that amy provision of this
Leace or any part thereof ic illegal or umenforceable chall not cancel or imvalidate the remainder of such provizion or this
Lease, which shall remain in full force and effect, and it is the intention of the parties that there shall be substitated for such
provision as is illegal or unenforcesble a provision as similar to such provision as may be possible and yet be legal and
enforceabls.

Section 16.04  Imferpretation. The captions of the Articles or Sections of this Lease are to assist the parties in
reading this Lesse and are not a part of the terms or provisions of this Lease. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise,
(i) the plural and sinpulsr mombers will each be deemed to inchude the other; (i) the masculine, feminine snd neuter
genders will each be deemed to inchide the others; (i) “shall™ “will™ “mmst” “sgrees,” and “covenants™ are each
mandatory; (Iv) “may” is permissive; (¥) “or” is not exclusive; and (vi) “includes™ and “inchiding™ are not limiting. In the
event of a dispute between Landlord and Tenant over the interpretation of this Lease, both parties shall be deemed to have
been the drafter of this Lease, and any Applicable Law that states that contracts are to be constroed agzinst the drafter shall
not apply. In amy provision relating to the conduct, scis or onussions of Tenant, the term “Tenant™ shall inchide Tenant's
apents, employees, comiractors, imvitees, successors of others using the Property with Tensnt's express or imphed
PETIssi0n.

Section 16.05  Incorporation of Prior Apreements; Modifications. This Lesse is the only spreement
between the parties pertsining to the lesse of the Property and no other agresments are effective. All amendments to this
Lease shall be in writing and signed by all parties. Any other attempted amendment shall be woid. All attached exhibits are
hereby expressly ncorporated into this Lease by this reference.

Section 16.06  Modices. All notices, d ds, statements or C ications (collectively, *MNotices™) given or
reqmdmbegmbyeﬂhﬂmmﬂnmmshaﬂhemmg,ﬂmﬂbembyﬂmmdsmmm
registered mail postaze prepaid, Tetom receipt requested mationally-recopnized commercial overnight courier, or delivered
persomally (i) o Tensnt at the sppropriate address set forth in Sectjop 103 above except that upon Tenant's takimg
passession of the Property, the Property shall be Tenant's address for notice purposes, or (ii) to Landlord at the sddresses
set forth in Section 107 shove Landlord and Tensnt shall have the right to change its respective Motice address upon
ziving Motice to the other party. Any Motice will be deemed given two (I) business days after the date it is mailed as
provided in this Sectiop 1606 or wpon the date delivery is made if delivered by an spproved courier (as provided above)
or personally delivered Consistent with the provisions of Section 16.02(b) above, if Tenant is notified of the identity and
address of Landlord’s secured lender or ground or underlying lessor, Tenant shall give to sach lender or ground or
nndertying lessor written notice of amy defanlt by Landlord nnder the terms of this Lease by registered or certified mail or
by mse of a nationalty-recopnized commercisl ovemight courier, snd soch lender or ground or ondertying lessor shell be
ziven the same opporimity to cure such defamlt ac s provided Landlord under this Lease (unless such cuore period s
extendad pursusnt to the terms of any agreement to which Tenant is a party or to which Tenant consents) prior to Tensnt’s
exercising any remedy available to Tenant. Motices required hereunder may be given by either an agent or attorney acting
on behalf of Landlord or Tenant.

Section 16.07  Waivers. The faihme of Landlord to insist upon the strict performance, in any of one or more
instances, of any term covenant or condition of this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Landlord of such term,
covenant or condition Mo waiver by Landlord of sny breach by Tensnt of any term, provision amd covenant contained
herein shall be deemed or construed to conmstifute s waiver of amy other or sobsequent breach by Tenant of any term,
provision or covenant contamed herein. Landlord’s scceptance of the payment of rent {or portions thereof) or amy other
payments hereunder after the ocowrence of and during the continnance of 3 defanlt (or with knowledze of a breach of any
term o provision of this Lesse which with the ziving of notice and the passage of time, or both, would constitute & default)
chall not be comstrued &= 3 waiver of such defsmlt or sny other rights or remedies of Landlord, mchading any right of
Landlord to recover the Property. Moreover, Tenant scknowledges and agrees that Landlord’s acceptance of a partial rent
payment shall not, under any circumstances (whether or not such partizl payment is accompanied by a spedsl endorsement
or other statement), constitute an accord and satisfaction. Landlord will accept the check (or other payment mesns) for
payment withount prejudice to Landlord’s right to recover the balance of such rent or to pursue any other remedy available
to Landlord Forbearsnce by Landlord to enforce one or more of the remedies herein provided upon the ocommence of a
defamit shall not be deemed or construed to constitute 3 waiver of such defanlt
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Section 1608  No Becordatiom Tenani shall not record this Lesse or any assizmment or security document
perteining to this Lease. Either Landlord or Tensnt may require that 8 “Short Form™ or memorandom of this Lease
execied by both parties be recorded. The party requiring such recording shall pay all transfer taxes and recording fees.

Section 16.09  Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease binds any party who legally acquires amy rights or
imterest in this Lease from Landlord or Tenamt. However, Landlord shall have no oblization to Tenant’s successor unless
the nghts or imterects of Tenant's snccessor are acquired in accordance with the ferms of this Lease. The laws of the State
in which the Property is located shall govern this Lease, withowt regard to such State’s conflicts of law principles. Tenant
hereby knowingly, ntentionally, and imevecably agrees that Landlord may bring any action or claim to enforce or interpret
the provisioms of this Tease in the State and County where the Property is located and that Tenant immevocsbly consents to
personal jurisdiction in snch State for the purposes of any sach action or claim  Mothing in this Section 16.08 shsll ba
deemed to prechnde or prevent Landlord from bringing any action or claim to enforce or imterpret the provisions of this
Lease in any other appropriate place or foram. Tenant forther agrees that any action or claim brouzht by Tenant to enforce
or inferpret the prowisions of this Lease or otherwise arising out of or relsted to this Lease or to Tensnt’s wse snd
occupancy of the Property, regardless of the theory of relief or recovery and regardless of whether third parties are imvolved
in the action, may only be bronght in the State and County whete the Property is located, umless otherwise agreed in writing
Ty Landlord prior to the commencement of any such action

In the imterest of obtxining & speedier amd less costly adjndication of any dispute, Landlord and Tenamt
hereby kmowimgly, intentionally, and irrevocably waive the right to trial by jury in any legal action, proceeding,
claim, or connterclaim browght by either of them azainst the other on all matters arising out of or related to this
Lease or the use and ccoapancy of the Property.

Section 16.10  Corporate Awthority; Partnership Awthority; LLC Anthority. If Tenant is a corporation,
esch person sigming this Lease on behalf of Tenant represents and warrants that he has foll awthority to do so and that this
Lease binds the corporation. Within thirty (300 days after this Lease is signed, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a certified
copy of 8 resohition of Tenant’s Board of Directors suthorizing the execotion of this Lease or other evidence of such
authority reasonably acceptsble to Landlord If Tenant is a parmership, each person or enfity sizning this Lesse for Tenant
represents and warrants that he or it is a peneral partmer of the partnership, that be or it has full suthority to sign for the
parinership and that this Lease binds the parmership and all peneral parivers of the parimership. Tenant shall give written
notice t¢ Landlord of any general parmer’s withdrawal or addition. Within thirty (30) days after this Lease is sigmed,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of Tenant's recorded statement of partnership or certificate of hmited partmership.
If Tenant is a lmited lishility compamy (LLC), each person or entity signing this Lease for Tenant represents and warmants
that he or it is 8 manapger or member of the LLC, that he or it has foll suthority to sizn for the L1.C and that this Lease binds
the LLC. Within thirty (30) days afier this Lease is signed, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a certified copy of a resolution
of Tenant's menagers or members suthorizing the expcufion of this Lesse, or other evidence of such suthority reasemably

acceptable to Landlosd.
Section 1611 Jeint amd Several Liahility. All parties sisming this Lesse as Temant shall be jointly snd
severally lishle for all oblipsfions of Tenant

Section 16.12  Force Majeure. A “Force Majeure” event shall ocowr if Landlord or Tensnt cannot perform
amy of its obligations due to events beyond such party’s control (except with respect to the oblizations imposed with regard
to Base Pent, Additional Rent and other charges to be paid by Tenant pursuant to this Lesse), and in such cases the time
provided for performing such obligations shall be extended by 2 period of time equal to the doration of such events. Events
beyond Landlord’s or Tenant's control include, bt are not limited to, acts of God, war, dvil commoton, termorist acts,
labor disputes, strikes, fire, flood or other casualty, shortages of labor or material, povernment repulstion or restriction,
waiting periods for obtammg governments] permits or spprovals or inspections, or weather condifions. Mo express
reference in this Lease to & Force Majeure event shall create amy inference that the terms of this Sechion 16.12 do not apply
with equal force in the shsence of such an express reference.

Section 16,13  Comnterparts. This Lesse may be exeroted in commterparts smd when all coumterpart
documents are executed, the counterparts shall comstiinte a single binding instument. Beceipt of fcsimile signatures
{(regzardless of the means of transmission, whether by PDF or other format) shall be as binding on the parties as an origima]
SiFmaiure.

Section 16.14  Relatiomship of Parties. MNothing contzined in this Lease shall be deemed or comstrued by the
parties hereto or by aoy third party to create the relationship of princpal and agent, parmership, joint venturer or amy
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association between Landlord and Tenant it being expressly understood and agreed that neither the method of computation
of Rient nor any act of the parties hereto shall be deemed to oeate any relationship between Landlord and Tenant other than
the relationship of landlord and tensnt

Section 16.15 MNo Warranty. In emecwting amd delivering this Lease Tenant has oot relied on amy
representation, incheding, bt mot limited to, amy representstion whatsoever 85 to the amount of any item comprising
Additionsl Rent or the amount of the Additionsl Renf in the aggregate or that Landlord is fismishing the same services to
ather tenants ataﬂ,unﬂtesmnelzcﬂarmﬂnmhﬂmnrmymymmymuflaﬂmdwhﬂ:smm
fntﬂ:lmzmmmnmmmeufﬂ:euh:‘bmaﬂadnd

Section 16.16  Waiver of Redemption by Tenamt. Temant hersby waives for Tensnt and for all thoss
claiming under Tenamt, all rights now or hereafter existing to redeem by order or judzment of any coort or by any legal
process of wiit, Tenant's right of oocopancy of the Property after amy termination of this Lease

Section 16.17  Indepemdent Covemamts. This Lesse shall be comstrued 8s though the covensmts hersinm
between Landlord and Tenant are mdependent and not dependent and Tenant, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law,
hereby expressly waives the benefit of any statute or other law to the contrary and azrees that if Landlord fails to perform
its obligatioms set forth herein Tenant shall not be entitled o mske any repairs or perform any acts herennder at Landlord’s
expence oT to any sefoff of the Rent or other amoumts owing hereunder apaimst Landlord.

Section 16,18  Confidentiality. Tenant azrees that the terms of this Lease are confidential and constinse
proprietary information of Landlord, and that disclosure of the terms hereof could adversely affect Landlord. Tenant shall
Ekesp its parmers, members, mansgers, officers, directors, employees, agents, real estate brokers and zsles persoms and
attomneys, as applicsble, from disclosing the terms of thiz Lease to amy other person without Landlord’s prior written
comsent, except to any accountants of Tensnt in comnection with the preparstion of Tensnt’s financial statements or Ex
retmms, fo agents or consuliants of Tensant in connection with Tenant’s performance of its obligations hereunder, to lenders
and sppraisers m commection with securing financing, o an assigmee of this Leace or subMensnt of the Property, or to a
person to whom discloswre is required in connection with any action brought to enforce this Lease; provided, however, that
Tenant shall inform such persons of the confidentislity of the terms of this Lease and shall obtain their agreement to abide
Ty the confidentiality provisions of this Section prior to such disclosure. In the event Tenant is required to disclose this
Leace or any terms thereof to povemnmentsl agencies pursusnt fo Applicable Law, Tensnt shell pror to making such
disclosure, submit 8 written request to the applicsble sothorities that thizs Lease be exempt from such disclosure
requitements and take other actions reasonsbly necessary to awoid such disclosure. Tenant shall provide Landlord with a
copy of such request and all related documents promptly following the submission thereof to the applicable awthorities and
chall keep Landlord apprised of the stams of such request and all responses thereto. Tenant shall, in amy event, provide
Landlord with not less than ten (10) days' notice prior to disclosing this Lease or sny ferm thereof to any court or
sovernmental agency.

Section 16.19  Revenme and Expense Accounting. Landlord and Tensnt agree that for purposes of Section
447 of the Internal Revenne Code rental income will scome to Landlord snd rents] expenses will accrue to Tensnt in the
amounts and 25 of the dates rent is paysble under this Leasze.

Section 1620  Temant’s Represemtations and Warranties Tensnt warrants and represents to Landlord as
followrs, each of which is material and being relied upon by Landlord:

(=) Tensnt and all persons and enfities () owning (directly or indirectly) an ownership inferest in
Tenant, (i} whom or which are an sssipnes of Tensnt’s interest in this Lease; or (1ii) whom or which sre a puarantor of
Tensnt's oblizations under this Lease: {x) are not, and shall not become, a person or entity with whom Landlord i=
resmicted from doing business under regulations of the Office of Foreizn Assets Control ("OFAC™) of the Department of
the Treasury (incleding, bat not limited to, those named on OFAC's Specislly Desipnated MNationals and Blocked Persons
list) or under any stanre, executive order {inchiding, but not limited to, the September 24 2001 Executive Order Blocking
Property and Prohibiting Transactions With Persons Who Commit, Thresten to Commit, or Support Temrorism), or other
sovermmental action; () are not, and shall not become, 3 person or entity with whom Landlord is restricted from doing
tmsiness under the Intermations]l Mooey Laundering Abatement and Finencial Anti-Temmorism Act of 2001 or the
regulations or orders theseunder; and (z) are not knowingly engaged in and shall not knowingly engage in, any dealings or
transaction or be otherwise associated with such persons or entifies described m clamses (x) or (), above
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(b} If Tenant is an entity, Tenant iz doly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of its organization, and is qualified to do business in the State in which the Property is located, and the
persons execiEing this Lease on behalf of Tenant have the foll right and suthority to bind Tenant without the consent or
approval of any other person or entity. Tenant has full power, capacity, suthorty and legal right to execute and deliver this
Lease and to perform all of its oblizations herenmder. This Lease is a legal walid and binding obligation of Temant,
enforceable i accordance with its ferms.

(<) Tmthsmt(l)mﬂgagmmﬂasnmmfwtebmaﬁtufm (zjﬁlﬂdanyvdmsmry
petition in bankmuptcy or suffered the filing of an involmtary petition by any ceditors, (3) suffered the appointment of
mmmhpussmmnfaﬂmmmﬁlmm{ﬂmmmmuﬂngmhuﬂmofaﬂ
or substantially all of its assets, (5) admiitted in writing its insbility to pay its debts as they come doe, or (6) made sn offer
of settlement, extension or composition to its creditors zenarally.

Tenant confirms. that all of the above representations and warranties are troe as of the date of thiz Lease, and acknowledzes
and agrees that they (and amy other representations snd warrsnfies of Tenant contzined in this Lesse) shall survive the
expiration or earhier termination of this Lease

Section 16.21  Heirs and Swccessors. The covenants and apreements of this Lease shall be binding upon the
heirs, leral representatives, suocessors and permited assigns of the parties heseto.

Section 1622  Reservations. Landlord reserves o iiself the right o grant, fiom time to tme, without the
consent or joinder of Tenant, such easements, righis and dedications that Landlord deems necessary, and to camse the
recordation of parcel maps (or equivalent) and restrictions, so long s= such easements, rights dedications, maps snd
resmictions do not wreasonably interfere with the use of the Property by Tensnt Tenant agrees to sign any documents
reasonably requested by Landlord to effectuate any such easements, rights, dedications, maps or restrictions.

Section 16.23  Guoaranty of Lease This Lesse i subject to snd condifioned upon Tensnt delivering to
Landlord, concwrently with Tensnt's execuotion and delivery of this Lease, a Guaranty (the “Caaramty™) in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit “D™ which Guaranty shall be fully execated by and binding upon Nino Global, LLC, a California
lirnited lisbility company, a5 puarantor. Tensmt agrees that Landlord (not Tenant) may desiznate the portion of Tenant’s
Leace obligation that is satisfied by partial payment by Tensmt and Tenant hereby expresshy waives amy and a1 bensfits
under any applicable statute with respect to the Guaranty.

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND
RECIPROCAL EASEMENTS

Landlord may prepare for eventes] recordation agaimst the Property and other adjacent land a Declaration of
Covensnts, Conditions, Bestrictions snd Beciprocal Easements (the “Declaration™). So long ao the provisions of the
Declarafion do not inTesse Tensnt's oblizations in any material way (the performance of ministerial acts shall not be
deemed material) and do not have 3 materially adverse effect on Tenant’s comduct of business from the Property, Tenant
aprees that the Lease shall be subject and subordinate to the Declaration snmd further agrees to emecute a recordable
instrument (prepared by Landlord at its sole cost and expense) in order to evidence such subordination

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN NO OFTION OR OFFER

THE SUBMISSION OF THIS LEASE BY LANDLORD, ITS AGENT OF REFPRESENTATIVE FOR
EXAMINATION OF. EXECUTION BY TENANT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OPTION OF. OFFER. TO LEASE
THE PROPERTY UPON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN OF. A RESERVATION OF THE
PROPERTY IN FAVOR OF TEMANT, IT BEING INTENDED HEREBY THAT THIS LEASE SHAIT ONLY
BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON THE EXECUTION HEREOF BY LANDLORD ANMD DELIVERY OF A FULLY
EXECUTED LEASE TO TENANT, WHETHER 5S5UCH EXECUTION AND DELIVERY IS ACCOMPLISHED BY
PHYSICAL DELIVERY OF. DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OF. OTHER ELECTRONIC MEAMS.
NEITHER. PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION TO CONTINUE DISCUSSIONS OR NEGOTIATIOMS OF
THIS LEASE.

(Lgft intenfionally blank — signaure page to follow)
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Landlord snd Tenant have signed this Lease at the place and on the dates specified adjacent to their siznatres

below.
LANDLORD:

Sipmed on 2020 MATESTIC MESA PARTNERS, LLC,

at 2 a Delavrare limited lishility comparmy

By: Majestic Reslty Co.,
a Califiprmia corporation,
Mamager's Agent

By:

TENANT:
Signedon___ 2/12/2020 2020 ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC.,

at__72L0 Eact Posada Ave, Mesa, AF a Delavware corporation
85212 T

- [ Mark Havonift
Printed Name. ' Mark Hanchett
Ts: CED

Indnstrial Leass w8 & KH03450-002 15X North Higloy Kead, Suite __ Masa, AT
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DEFPICTION OR DESCRIFTION OF THE FROPEETY

= 3
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EXHIBITE
HAZARDOUS MATERTATS

To be sitached by Tensnt prior to emecution, pursuant to Seghiog 5032 of this Lease and in the absence of such
attachment Tensnt acknowledpges that Tandlord shall not have approved Tensnt’s imtrodnction of amy Hazatdons Material

to the Property.
Endustrial Leass w&MENKR03450-002 1828 Morth Higley Road, Suite _, BMesa, AT
Fobroary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR. VEHICLES INC ]
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EXHIBIT C

CONFIEMATION OF INITIAL LEASE TERAM AND AMENDMENT TO LEASE

MSCDMWHWGFMMEMMWTDMfMMjE
made a5 of the day of 20__ by znd betwean

(“Landlord™), amd _ .3 (“Tenant™). LamllmdamiTuant AFTEE 85
follows

I Lamflord and Tensnt have entered into a Standard Industrial Feal Esmte Lesse, dated . | S
(the “Lease™), in which Landlord lezsed to Tensnt and Tenant lessed from Landlord certsin described premmses located at

(the “Property”).

2 Comsistent with Sections 2.01 snd 3.02 of the Lease Landlord snd Tenant hereby confirm the Lease
Commencement Diate and the Lease Expiration Diate of the initial Lease Term (25 defined in the Leass), and amend Soctiog
1.05 of the Lease to conform to soch dates. The pertinent dates are as follows:

a 20___is the Lease Commencement Diate; and

b 20___ is the Lease Expiration Date.

EN Tensnt confirms that:

a It has accepted possession of the Property as provided in the Lease;

L3 The Lease has not been modified, altered. or amended except as provided in this Confirmation and as
follows: ;and

C The Lease is i full force and effect.

4 The provisions of this Confirmation shall inore to the benefit or bind, as the case mey require, Landlord,

Tenant and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

DATED as of the date first written above.

LANDLORD: TENAMT:

a a

By By:

Irs: Trs:

Indnstrial Loass w8 MENLED3450-002 1828 North Higley Road, Suite __, Masa, AT
Fobroary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR. VEHICLES INC ]
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EXHIBIT Id

GUARANTY OF LEASE

THIS GUARANTY OF LEASE (thiz “Cuaranty”) is made as of February 12 2020, by MINO
GLOBAL, LLC, a Califorma hmuited hability company (the “Guarantor™), m favor of MATESTIC MESA
PARTNERS, L1C, a Delawrare limited hiability company (“Landlord™).

WHEREAS, ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC., a Delaware corporation (“Temamt™ and Landlord
desire to enter into that certain Standard Industrial Real Estate Lease (the “Lease™) dated February 12, 2020
concerming that approxmmately 42 328 rentable square foot portion (knowm as 1828 North Higley Road, Smie
_ . Mesa, Anizona) of that approsamataly 83,554 square foot bulding located at the MWC E. Higley Road &
Ingram Street, Mesa Anzona (“Property™);

WHEFREAS, Guarantor has a financial interest in the Tenant; and

WHEREAS, Landlord would not execute the Lease if Guarantor did not execute and deliver to Landlord
this Guaranty.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the execution of the foregoing Lease by Landlord and
as a matenal inducement to Landlord to execute said Lease, Guaranior hereby absohitely, presently, contimmally,
wmncondibonally and urevecably guarantees the prompt payment by Tenant of all rentals and all other sums
payable by Tenant under sa1d Lease and the fathful and prompt performance by Tenant of each and every one
of the terms, conditions and covenants of said Lease to be kept and performed by Tenant, and finther agrees as
follows:

1. It 15 specfically agreed and understood that the terms, covenants and condihons of the Lease
may be altered, affected, modified amended, comprommsed, released or otherwise changed by agreement
betwean I andlord and Tenant, or by course of conduct and Guarantor does guaranty and promise to perform all
of the oblizations of Tenant under the Lease as so altered, affected, modified, amended, compromized, released
or changed and the Lease may be assigned by or with the consent of Landlord or any assignee of Landlord
without consent or nofice to Guaranfor and that this Guaranty shall thereupon and thereafier guaranty the
performance of said Lease as zo chanped, modified amended, compromised, released. altered or assigned.

2 This Guaranty shall not be released, modified or affected by falure or delay on the part of
Landlord to enforce any of the nghts or remedies of Landlord under the Lease, whether pursuant to the terms
thereof or at law or in eqmty, or by any release of any person hable under the terms of the Lease (inchudmg,
without lirtation, Tenant) or any other guarantor, inchidmg without Limyfahion, any other Guarantor named
berein, from any habality with respect to Guarantor's obligations hereunder.

3 Guarantor's habibity under this Guaranty shall continue untl all rents due under the Lease have
been paid in full m cash and until all other obligations to Landlord have been zatisfied, and shall not be educed
by virtue of any payment by Tenant of any amount due under the Lease. If all or any portion of Tenant's
obligations under the Lease 15 paid or performed by Tenant, the oblizations of Guarantor herevmder shall
continue and reman m full force and effect i the event that all or any part of such payment(s) or
performance(s) 15 avoided or recovered directly or mdrectly from Landlord as a preference, frandulent transfer
or otherwise.

4. Guarantor wamrants and represents to Landlord that Guarantor now has and will continue to
have full and complete access to any and all information concerming the Lease, the value of the assets owned or
to be acquired by Tenant, Tenant's financial status and s ahility to pay and perform the chhzations owed to
Landlord under the Lease. Guarantor further warrants and represents that Guarantor has reviewed and approved
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copies of the Lease and 1s fully informed of the remedies Landlord may pursue, with or wathout notice to
Tenant, in the event of default under the Lease. So long as any of Guarantor's obligations hereunder remains
wmsatisfied or owmg to Landlord, Guaranior shall keep fully informed as to all aspecis of Tenants financial
condition and the parformance of said obhgations.

5 Guarantor hereby covenants and agrees with Landlord that if a defamlt shall at any time occor in
the payment of any sum= due under the Lease by Tenant or in the performance of any other obhigation of Tenant
umder the Lease, Guarantor shall and will forthwith upon demand pay such sums, and any amrears thereof, to
Landlord in legal cwrency of the United States of Amenca for payment of public and private debts, and take all
other actions necessary to cure such default and perform such obhigations of Tenant.

6. The habihty of Guarantor under this Guaranty 1s a guaranty of payment and performance and
pot of collectibility, and is not conditioned or contingent upon the pemuinensss, wvahidity, regulanty or
enforceability of the Lease or the purst by Landlord of any remedies which 1f now has or may bereafter have
with respect thereto, at law, in equity or otheranse.

T Guarantor hereby waives and agrees not to assert or take advantage of to the extent permitted by
law: (1} all potices to Guarantor, to Tenant, or to any other person, inchoding, but not lirmted to, notices of the
acceptance of this Guaranty or the creation, venewal, extension, assipnment, modification or acerual of any of
the obhgations owed to Landlord under the Lease and, except to the extent set forth in Paragraph 9 hereof,
enforcement of any right or remedy with respect thereto, and notice of any other matters relating thereto, (1)
notice of acceptance of this Guaranty; (m) demand of payment, presentation and protest; (1v) any right to requre
Landlord to apply to any default any secunty depomsit or other security it may hold under the Lease; (v} any
statute of limitahons affecting Guarantor's hability berewnder or the enforcement thereof; (vi) any right or
defense that may anse by reason of the mcapability, lack or awthonty, death or disability of Tenant or any other
person; and (vit) all proneciples or provisions of law which confliet with the terms of this Guaranty. Guarantor
fimther agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty upon the ocomrence of a default under the Lease,
notwithstanding any dispute between Landlord and Tepant with respect to the existence of said defanlt or
performance of the obligations under the Lease or any counterclaim, set-off or other claim winch Tenant may
allege agamst Landlord with respect thereto. Moreover, Guarantor agrees that Guarantor's obligations shall not
e affected by any coreumstances which constitate a legal or equtable discharge of 2 guarantor or surety.

5 Guarantor agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty wathout the necessity of proceeding
against Tenant or any other puarantor. Guaranior hereby waives the nght to require Landlord to proceed agamst
Tenant, to proceed agamst any other puarantor, to exercise any nght or remedy under the Lease or to pursue any
other remedy or to enforce any other nght.

9. {a) Guarantor agrees that nothing contained herein shall prevent Landlord from swng on
the Lease or from exercising any rights available to it therennder and that the exercise of any of the aforesaid
nghis shall ot conshiute a legal or equitable discharge of Guarantor. In addiion, Guaranmbor agrees that
Landlord (not Tenant) shall have the nght to designate the portion of Tenant's obhzations under the Lease that 15
satisfied by a partial payment by Tenant.

(1] Guarantor agrees that Guarantor shall have no nght of sabrogaton against Tenant or
any night of contnbution against any other guarantor hereunder unless and wntl all amounts due under the Lease
bhave been paid m full and all other cbhgations under the Lease have been satsfied Guarantor farther aprees
that, to the extent the warver of Guarantor's rights of subrogation and coninbution as set forth berein 1s found by
a court of competent jurisdiction to be void or voidable for any reason, any nghts of subrogation Guarantor may
bave agamst Tenant shall be jumor and subordinate to any nghts Landlord may have against Tenant, and any
nghts of conmbution Guarantor may have against any other guarantor shall be junior and subordinate to any
nghts Landlord may have against such other puarantor.

Endustrial Leass w&MENKR03450-002 1828 Morth Higley Road, Suite _, BMesa, AT
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(3] The oblisations of Guarantor under this Guaranty shall not be altered hmited or
affected by amy case, vohmtary or imvolontary, imrohing the bankmptey, mschrency, recervership,
reorganization, hgmdation or arrangement of Tenant or any defense which Tepant may have by reason of order,
decree or decision of any court or adoomstrative body resulting from any such case. Landlord shall have the sole
nght to accept or reject any plan on behalf of Guarantor proposed m such case and to take any other achon
which Guarantor would be enfifled to take, including, without hvitation, the decision to file or not file a claim
Guarantor acknowledges and agrees that any payment which acerues with respect to Tenant's obligations under
the Lease (meluding, without hmitation, the payment of rent) after the commencement of any such proceeding
{or, if any such payment ceases to accmue by operation of law by reason of the commencement of such
proceeding, such payment as would have accrued if said proceedings had not been commenced) shall be
meluded m Guarantor's obligations hereunder because it 15 the mfenhon of the parbes that smid oblhzahons
should be determmined without regard to any mule or law or order which may relieve Tenant of any of its
obligahions vnder the Lease. Guarantor hereby permits any frustes in bankruptey, receiver, debtor-in-possession,
assignee for the benefit of creditors or simlar person to pay Landlord, or allow the claim of Landlord m respect
of, any such payment accrnng after the date on which such proceeding 15 commenced. Gnam.lmhmehyas&igns
to Landlord Guarantor’s nght to recerve any payments from any trustee in bankruptcy, recerver, debior-m-
possession, assipnee for the benefit of creditors or similar person by way of dividend adequate protection
payvment or otherwize.

10 Any notice, staternent, demand, consent, approval or other compmmcation required or permutted
to be piven, rendered or made by either party to the other, purmuant to this Guaranty or pursuant to amy
apphicable law or requrement of pubhc authonty, shall be m wrhng (whether or not so stated elsewhers m thes
Guaranty) and shall be deemed to have been properly given, rendered or made only if hand-delivered or sent by
first-class mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to the other party at its respective address set forth below, and shall
e deemed fo bave been given, rendered or made on the day it 1s hand-delivered or one day after 1t is mailed,
umless it 15 mailed outside of Maricopa County, Arizona, in which caze it shall be deemed to have been given,
rendered or made on the third business day after the day it 15 mailed. By giving notice as provided above, erther
party may desipnate a different address for notices, statements, demands, consents, approvals or other
commmications intended for it

To Guarantor: HNino Global, LLC
620 Newport Center Dirive
Suate 1100
Mewport Beach, California 92660

To Landlord: Majestic Mesa Partners, LLC
cfo Majestic Realty Co.
13191 Crossroads Parkway North
Sixth Floor
City of Industry, Califormia 91746

Il Guarantor represents and warrants to Landlord as follows:

(2} Mo consent of any other person, mcluding, without hmitation, any creditors of
Guarantor, and no license, permit, approval or authorization of, exemption by, potice or report to, or regstrabion,
fihng or declaration within any governmental awthonty is required by Guarantor in connection with ths
Guaranty or the execution, delivery, performance, vahdity or enforceabihity of this Guaranty and all obhigations
required herevmder This Guaranty has been duly executed and delivered by Guarantor, and constitutes the
legally valid and bindmg obligation of Guarantor enforceable against such Guaranfor in accordance with its
terms.

1] The execution, delivery and performance of this Guaranty will not viclate amy provision
of any existng law or regulaton bmdme on Guarantor, or any order, judgment, award or decree of any court,

Industrial Leass v MENER034530-002 1828 North Higley Road, Suite _, Mesa, AT
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arbitrator or governmental authority bindmg on Guarantor, or of any mortgage, indenture, lease, contract or
other agreement, instroment or undertakmg to whech Guarantor is a party or by which Guarantor or any of
Guarantor's assets may be bound, and wall not result in, or require, the creation or Imposiion of any lien on any
of such Guarantor’s property, assets or revenues pursuant to the provisions of any such mortzage, indenture,
lease, contract or other agreement, instrument or undertakong.

12, The oblizgations of Tenant under the Lease to execute and deliver estoppel statements, as therein
provided, shall be deemed to also requre the Guarantor hereunder to do and prowide the same relative to
Guarantor.

13. This Guaranty shall be binding upon each Guarantor, such Guarantor's heirs, representatives,
administrators, executors, successors and assigns and shall imire to the benefit of and shall be enforceable by
Landlosd, s successors, endorsees and assigns. Any mamed person executing this Guaranty agrees that
recourse may be bhad against community assets and against his separate property for the sahisfaction of all
obligations herein punaranteed. As used herein, the singular shall nclede the ploral, and the masculine shall

14. The term “Landlord” whenever used berein refers to and means the Landlord specifically
named in the Lease and also any assipnes of said Landlord, whether by outnght assipnment or by assignment for
security, and also any successor to the interest of sad Landlord or of any assigmee in the Lease or any part
thereof, whether by assipnment or otherwise. So long as the Landlord's interest m or to demised premses (as
that term 15 used 1n the Lease) or the rents, 155ues and profits therefrom, or mn, to or under the Lease, are subject
to any mortgage or deed of trust or assignment for secunty, no acquisiton by Guarantor of the Landlords
inferest in demised premises or under the Lease shall affact the contimming obligations of Guarantor under this
Guaranty, which obligations shall contmue m full force and effect for the benefit of the morizagee, beneficiary,
trustee or assignee under such mortgage, deed of trust or assignment, of amy purchaser at sale by padicial
foreclosure or under private power of sale, and of the swccessors and assigns of any such mortzagee, beneficiary,
trustes, assignee or purchaser.

I3 The term “Tenant” whenever uwsed herein refers to and means the Tenant m the Lease
specifically named and also any assignee or sublessee of said Lease and also any suecessor to the interests of
said Tenant, assignes or sublessee of such Lease or any part thereof, whether by assignment, sublease or
otherwse.

16, In the event of any dispute or hbizahion regarding the enforcement or vahdity of this Guaranty,
Guarantor shall be oblizated to pay all charges, costs and expenses (includmg, without linstabion, reasonable
attorneys’ fees) mewred by Landlord whether or not any achon or procesding is commenced regarding such
dispute and whether or not such hiigahion 1s prosecuted to judgment.

17. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed i accordance with the laws of Anzona and
in a case involving divernity of citizenship, shall be htigated in and subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of
Arizona.

18. Every provision of this Guaranty 1s intended to be severable. In the event any ferm or provision
berecf 15 declared to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent junisdichon, such
legality or mvahdity shall not affect the balance of the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and prownsions
shall remain binding and enforceabls.

19. This Guaranty may be execuied in any oumber of counterparts each of which shall be deemed
an onginal and all of which shall constitute one and the same Guaranty with the same effect as if all parties had
signed the same signature page. Any signature page of this Guaranty mav be detached from any counterpart of
this Guaranty and re-attached to any other counterpart of this Guaranty identical in form hereto but having
attached to it one or more addihonal siprature pages.

Industrial Leass v MENER034530-002 1828 North Higley Road, Suite _, Mesa, AT
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M. Mo failure or delay on the part of Landlord to exercise any power, nght or privilege under this
Guaranty shall mmpair any such power, nght or pnvilege, or be construed fo be a warver of any default or an
acquiescence theren por shall any single or partial exercise of such power, nght or prmalege preclude other or
further exercise thereof or of any other nght, power or pmalege.

21 This Guaranty shall constifute the enfive agreement between each Guarantor and the Landlord
with respect to the subject matter hereof No provision of this Guaranty or nght of Landlord herennder may be
warved nor may Guarantor be released from any oblization hereunder except by a wnhing duly executed by an
authonzed officer, director or trustee of Landlord.

0.8 The hahty of Guarantor and all nghts, powers and remedies of Landlord hereunder and under
any other agresment now or at any time hereafter in force between Landlord and Guarantor relating to the Lease
shall be cunmlative and not alternative and such nghts, powers and remedies shall be in addition fo all nghis,
powers and remedies given to Landlord by lawr.

IN WITHESS WHEREQF, Guarantor has executed thes Guaranty as of the day and year first above

written.
NING GLOBAL, LLC,
. T o zCaJJfaa;la];Medhaln]ﬂvcﬂmpﬂn}r
IB\‘T::IDE_ v
Tts- President
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Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc

Attn: Mark Hanchett, Founder and CEO
1828 N. Higley Rd.

Mesa, AZ 85205
Mark@atlismotorvehicles.com

Re:  Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc; Opinion RE Legality

Dear Mr. Hanchett,

WCAZ Law, PLLC
Jordan Christensen, Esq.
2824 N. Power Rd. Ste. 113-253
Mesa, AZ 85215
Cell: (815) 751-0367
JChristensen@wcazlaw.com

Wednesday, June 3, 2020

Exhibit 1A-12

In connection with the Regulation A offering of Class A units of common stock for Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc, (“the Company”) dated June 1, 2020 (as
amended), please accept this letter as my opinion under the laws of the United States of America and the State of Delaware as to the legality of the

securities covered by the Offering Circular.

Based upon my review of the Company’s financial situation and Offering Circular, and assuming the accuracy of the Company’s inputs, it is my opinion
that under the laws of the State of Delaware that the Class A units of common stock offered will, when sold, be legally issued, fully paid, and non-

assessable.

Sincerely,

Jordan Christensen
WCAZ Law, PLLC
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ROADMAP CIAL TRANSPARENC

Aflis is building products for the people who get work done.

We have a lot to prove and much mare to shew. But, we have come so far so quickly already.
With so many achievements and industry leading leaps forward. The future is now and we
have only just begun

We secure investment from our base of tans, people who align themselves with our take on the

world, share our Phih)suphias. and wanl a beter future.

INVEST
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328 $166 MILLION $8.24

INVESTORS COMPAMNY VALUE SHARE PRICE RESERVATIOMNS
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With 52/ 5 rowdfunding compal

we're opening our Reg A compaign lo raise 325M. The ollows us to take the next big steps: bui

preduction-ready prototypes of the XP Platlorm, bottery pack, and fastcharging infrastructure
$25M and how are we going to spend

Equipment & Machinary

INVEST




; the: vehi el will
the ¥T pickup

XT TRUCK DESIGN DEVELOPMENT
ATLIS CHARGING DESIGN
XF FLATFORM TESTING
PRODUCTION PROTOTYFE CHARGING DEMOD
XT VALIDATION

CHARGING TECHNOLOGY PRODULCTION

AP PLATFORM PRODLUCTION

v W

KT PRODUCTION

FINANCIAL TRANSPARENCY | ROADMAP




FOUNDED

Atlis Motar Vehciles was officially incorporated.

JALOPNIK T INSIDE

ROAO [ SHOW Core??
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uncrate




CONCEPT TEAM HIRED

We hired our cancept development team and began work on the
future Atlis product line with testing, prototyping and future
develapment,

JALOPNIK  “TFmmmex  INSIDEEVs  uncrate

ROAD | SHOW Qore?? - |
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12 MIN FAST CHARGE

Less than 3 months after the hire of our first concept team, we
managed to charge our battery pack prototype fram 0-100% in
12:37. This was the building point for aur next leap in battery tech.
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$1 MILLION RAISED

We ended the year on o high with the release of our new website
completed our first round ing - funding the next wave of
pments. This was all rai ommunity and future
omers, further illustre pthics of being for the people,

b}r the p-a-::-s::-h:.
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CONCEPT XP

PLATFORM RELEASED

We completed the development of cur concapt XP Platferm. This
showcased our incredible ground clearance and massive off road

terrain capabilities.

JALOPNIK  TFmmoex  INsIDEEVs  uncrate
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$1 MILLION RAISED

After another public car gn begun in December 2018, we
d cur initial 3750K target in under 24 hours thanks 1o the
support of our community. was than extended for the
wext manth to gather another ompleting in Jonuary.
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ATLIS MOVES TO NEW
FACILITY

. with more
cility ready lo tackle the
consirue astruclure and XT
Frototype.

IALOPNIK  yEroe Insip€cvs  uncrate
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9:26 FAST CHARGE

Alter numerous lesting and improvements we wera able 1o aftain o
charge time of 0-100% in just ? minutes 24 ssconds.

T INsipe=vs  uncrate

ROAO | SHOW Qore?? [ |
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We know that securing, financial suppart is a challenge for any new brand, especially an am
comparny. But we have Gf’fﬁﬂ'f‘ achioved so much, in latively short timeframe, with a |Udf¢rb'lllfy
small bu&;m We are able la thrive where others weuld diss

VIEW THE ATLIS VIDEQ

FINANCIAL ROADMAI P
TRANSPARENCY

INVEST
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NUMBERS. ALL OF THEM.

INVESTMENT, PUT TO GOOD USE

‘We hove bean »
roising over $2, 4
W are not like the others, » at nead mossive amaounts of copital, becouse

with PUTpSE

INVEST
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the difference.
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wa spend wisely, with purpase.

%26 MINUTE BATTERY
CHARGE TIME
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SHARED VALUE
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pporters and

COMPANY VALUE

SHARE PRICE

wilFunding Invesiors
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MADE IN THE USA. BY THE USA.

We are made up of investors lerge and small all aver the United States. \We are mode in
America and we are supported by Americans, from ol backgrounds, with one shared goal

v $10 MILLION RAISED

INVEST




A4l $10 MILLION RAISED
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TOTAL COST UNTIL PRODUCTION

Clearly the largest percentoge of spending goss towards the production of the prototypes
themsehas. Included in this is the tocfing costs and mecessary equipment for the preparation of
manufachring and confinvation of profetyping.

The second lergest percentage of spand is related to hiring the team we reed to get o
production, YWe will confinue o grew cur teom of indusiry experts and radical thinkers toe bring
Adlis’s disruplive products to market on fime and in budget,

. S54% Equipment & mMachinery . 313 5% Research & Develapmant

7o 5GAA 4.5% Facilities

. 1% Other D_:E:I:

INVEST




3,328

INVESTORS

IT'S JUST THE START.

WHAT HAPPENS AFTER WE RAISE
$25M?
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THE ROAD AHEAD IS LONG AND
FULL OF OPPORTUNITY.

INVEST




THE IMMEDIATE NEXT STEPS

nearnng I'H:l

XP PLATFORM TIME FRAME

[l Qz Q3 Q4

FRODUCTION PROTOTYFE OUT

XP PLATFORM PRODUCTION
BEGIN SHIFFING KP PLATFORM
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XT TRUCK TIME FRAME
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DESIGN DEVELOFMENT

BODT IN WHITE

ET VALIDATION
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T PRODUCTION

ATLIS CHARGIMNG INFRASTRUCTURE
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SECURING PARTMERS
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CHARGIMNG PRODUCTION
[ cHasGiGRoDucTioN | INVEST

LALMCH INFRASTRUCTURE WITH PARTMER(S)




©0
BE

40

00O

5wy

EMGIMEERING LEADERSHIP

FIMNANCIAL TRAMSPFARENCY

GAPS TO FILL

Wi are still expanding the company to prepare for production and bacause of this we have
key team mambers ta hire in preparction. Belbw is the ri

that we will be conducting

me frame and scole of employment

PROJECT MANAGERS
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THE ROAD AHEAD

The and batiery fechnols where our road ends. We have many more producte
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Pursuant to all the requrements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that 1t has reascnable grounds to
beheve that it meats all of the requrements for filmg on Fim 1-A and has duly caused this offermg
statement to be signed on behalf by the ondersigned, thevemmto duly authonized in Mesa, State of Arizona,

on June 1, 2020,

Adliz Motor Vehicles, Ine.

PR
B}r:_'_'_,__,-:i"'
Name: Mark Hancheit
“Title: Chief Execotive Officer, Director

Thas offering statement has been signed by the followimg persons m the capacities and on the date

indicated.
S1znature Mame Title Diate
= | Mark Hanchet Chief Executive Officer &
= t G cutive CBT 6/3/2020
d,} ,} ﬁfﬁ" Annie Pratt Fresabe & Diiectiis CH e
0@ f%ﬂ\, Annie Pratt Principal Accounting Officer | ¢, /3 /20y
: Annie Pratt Principal Finaneisl Officer G /:; /20

61
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